

Alaska Department of Transportation and Public Facilities

Statewide Public Facilities Construction Manual

Effective August 1, 2014

FOREWARD

Statewide Public Facilities (SWPF) was established as a separate office with statewide responsibilities on August 3, 2007 (See Section 18.5).

The SWPF section provides cradle to grave project management of vertical construction projects for the Department of Transportation and Public Facilities (Department) and other executive branch agencies. SWPF contributes to the Department's mission by improving the delivery of state services in Alaska and protecting the health and safety of Alaska's people by constructing safe, environmentally sound, reliable, and cost-effective buildings.

Core services provided by SWPF include site assessments, energy conservation services, facility planning, structural assessments, project programming, cost estimating, management and construction administration services necessary to design, construct, renovate, or repair state owned public facilities. Project planning requires architectural, engineering, environmental, and estimating services. Design carries the project through the completion of a bid-ready set of plans, specifications for the legal and technical contract terms, and an engineer's estimate for the cost of construction. Construction contracts are administered with project management personnel and on-site personnel.

This manual provides guidance to SWPF personnel administering the construction phase of project delivery contracts. Its main purpose is to provide consistency in the way SWPF administers the construction phase of projects. That said; there will often be unique circumstances on any project that may not fit within the guidance provided and require additional consultation between the Project Engineer and the Project Manager (PM).

This manual is a companion to the Alaska Construction Manual (ACM) for some federal aid projects. The ACM provides detailed guidance on contract administration requirements for projects funded by the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), the Federal Transit Authority (FTA) and the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA). The ACM is referenced throughout this manual and should be consulted for FHWA, FTA or FAA funded projects.

This manual is not part of the construction contract. The construction contract governs the relationship between the Department and the Contractor, and the terms of the contract supersede any information or guidelines contained in this manual.

The following items apply to this manual:

- 1. The SWPF Construction Manual is written to the Project Engineer and PM unless otherwise noted.
- 2. The words Project Engineer, Department, and PM are capitalized throughout.

You may download this manual at the intranet site:

- http://web.dot.state.ak.us/public-facilities/resources.shtml
- You will need to enter your user name (without the preceding SOA\)
- You will need to enter your LDAP password (same as email password)

Questions and comments may be directed to:

sandra.barzilay@alaska.gov

DOT&PF/Statewide Public Facilities Attn: Sandra Barzilay 2200 East 42nd St. Anchorage, AK, 99508 Phone 907-269-0856 (This page intentionally left blank)

Table of Contents

1.	Constru	Construction Overview1-1			
	1.1.	Acronyms1-1			
	1.2.	Definitions1-1			
	1.3.	Organizational Structure			
	1.4.	Channels of Authority1-4			
	1.5.	Project Staff – Assignments & Training1-4			
	1.6.	Employee Conduct1-4			
	1.7	Federal-Aid Project Oversight Responsibility Agreements			
	1.8	Construction Manual Exceptions1-5			
2.	Fiscal N	Management2-1	L		
	2.1.	General2-1			
	2.2.	Project Numbering & Project Account Coding2-1			
	2.3.	Reimbursable Service Agreements (RSA)2-2			
	2.4.	Utility Agreements2-2			
	2.5.	Project Development Authorization (PDA)2-2			
	2.6.	Federal Funding2-3			
	2.7.	Memorandum of Agreement (MOA)2-3			
	2.8.	Project Budget2-3			
	2.9.	Project Encumbrances2-3			
	2.10.	RSA Billings2-4			
	2.11.	Expenditure Monitoring2-4			
	2.12.	Unauthorized Expenditures2-4			
3.	Prelimi	nary Activities	L		
	3.1.	Review the Records			
	3.2.	Prior to Bid Opening			
	3.3.	Bid Opening and Evaluation			
	3.4.	Protest Period			
	3.5.	Letter of Award			
	3.6.	Notice to Proceed			

	3.7.	Federal Aviation Administration Notice to Proceed	
	3.8.	Preconstruction Conference	
	3.9.	Contractor's Progress Schedule	
	3.10.	Project Staffing & the Construction Engineering Budget	
	3.11.	Conflict Resolution	
	3.12.	Partnering Conference	
	3.13.	Pollution Prevention Plans	
	3.14.	Preconstruction Site Inspection	
4.	Field O	Office Set-Up & Record Keeping	4-1
	4.1.	Field Office4-1	
	4.2.	Vehicles	
	4.3.	Housing, Travel and Per Diem4-1	
	4.4.	Equipment4-1	
	4.5.	Supplies4-2	
	4.6.	Required Postings	
	4.7.	Meeting Minutes	
	4.8.	Telephone Records and E-mail4-2	
	4.9.	Project Records	
	4.10.	Central Office Records	
	4.11.	Records Systems	
	4.12.	Records Management	
	4.13.	Source Documents	
	4.14.	Materials Certification List (MCL)	
	4.15.	Qualified Products List (QPL)4-5	
	4.16.	Disclosure of Records	
	4.17.	Reference Books/Material	

5.	Field I	Laboratory and Special Inspections	5-1
	5.1.	Field Laboratory	5-1
	5.2.	Special Inspections - General	5-1
	5.3.	International Building Code Special Inspections	5-1
	5.4.	Third Party Inspections	5-2
6.	Manag	ging Staff and Safety	6-1
	6.1.	Project Staff Administration	6-1
	6.2.	Staff Logistics	6-1
	6.3.	Authority and Duties	6-1
	6.4.	Channels of Authority	6-1
	6.5.	Personal Safety	6-1
	6.6.	Emergencies	
	6.7.	Accident Reporting	6-2
	6.8.	Employee Safety Concerns Program	
	6.9.	Contractor Safety	
7.	Program Administration7-1		
	7.1.	General	7-1
	7.2.	External Affirmative Action	7-1
	7.3.	Internal Reporting Requirements	7-1
	7.4.	Labor Compliance	7-1
	7.5.	Buy American	
	7.6.	Buy America	
	7.7.	Alaska Product Preferences	7-2
8.	Contra	act Administration in the Office	8-1
	8.1.	Subcontract Process	8-1
	8.2.	Subcontract Approval Process	8-1
	8.3.	Submittal Schedule	
	8.4.	Substitution Request	
	8.5.	Shop Drawings, Material Certifications, Product Submittals, Warranties O&M Manual, Spare Parts, and Training	

	8.6.	Schedule Assurance
	8.7.	Schedule of Values (SOV)
	8.8.	Recording As-Built Changes
	8.9.	Other Administrative Approvals
	8.10.	Administrative Reviews & Inspections by Others
9.	Contrac	et Administration in the Field9-1
	9.1.	Request for Information (RFI)
	9.2.	Directives
	9.3.	Contractor's Equipment
	9.4.	Erosion, Sediment, and Pollution control
	9.5.	Environmental Permits and Commitments
10.	Quality	Control and Quality Assurance
	10.1.	General10-1
	10.2.	Quality Control (QC)
	10.3.	Quality Assurance (QA)10-1
	10.4.	Warranty and Guarantee
	10.5.	Defective Work10-1
	10.6.	Minor Non-Compliance10-1
	10.7.	Non-Compliance Notification (NCN)10-2
	10.8.	Failed Test Results
	10.9.	Corrective Action Proposal
	10.10.	Corrective Action Proposal Approval
	10.11.	Non-Compliance Notification (NCN) Close Out
	10.12.	Non-Compliance Notice (NCN) Log / Payments
	10.13.	Nonresponsive Contractor 10-2
	10.14.	Other Potential Remedies 10-2
	10.15.	Detailed Records of Dispute
	10.16.	Deviations from Contract

11.	Claims.		11-1
	11.1.	Contractor Claims	11-1
	11.2.	Claims against the Contractor for Damage	11-1
	11.3.	Claims against the Contractor for Money	
12.	Contrac	ctor Payments	12-1
	12.1.	General	
	12.2.	Pay Estimates	
	12.3.	Payment Verification Process	
	12.4.	Retainage	
	12.5.	Payment for Stored Materials and Equipment	
	12.6.	Withholding Payment	
	12.7.	Interest	
	12.8.	Assignment of Payments	
13.	Contrac	ct Changes and Supplemental Agreements	
	13.1.	General	
	13.2.	Interim Work Authorizations	
	13.3.	Requests for Changes	
	13.4.	Evaluating Change Request	
	13.5.	Supplemental Agreements	
	13.6.	Change Orders	
	13.7.	Funding and Encumbrance	
	13.8.	Requests for Proposals	
	13.9.	Contract Changes and Change Order Procedures	
	13.10.	Requirements for Professional Seals	
	13.11.	Procurement of Supplies vs. Procurement of Construction	
14.	Contrac	ct Time	14-1
	14.1.	General	14-1
	14.2.	Temporary Suspension of Work	14-1
	14.3.	Seasonal Suspension of Work	14-1

	14.4.	Extension of Contract Time14-1	
	14.5.	Liquidated Damages	
15.	Contra	ct Completion	15-1
	15.1.	Start-up, Commissioning, and System Demonstration	
	15.2.	Partial Acceptance	
	15.3.	Requirements for Substantial Completion Inspection	
	15.4.	Substantial Completion15-1	
	15.5.	Inspection Procedures15-1	
	15.6.	Verifying Substantial Completion15-2	
	15.7.	Certificate of Substantial Completion15-2	
	15.8.	Final Completion Inspection	
	15.9.	Final Completion	
16.	Project	Closeout	16-1
	16.1.	Overview	
	16.2.	Checklist for State Funded Projects Closeout	
	16.3.	Federally Funded Projects (FHWA & FAA) Closeout	
	16.4.	Federally Funded Projects (Other) Closeout	
	16.5.	Building Facilities Form	
	16.6.	Final Acceptance	
	16.7.	Obligations to Client	
	16.8.	Bonds	
	16.9.	Warranties16-2	
	16.10.	Final Construction Completion Report16-2	
17.	Exhibit	ts Index	17-i
	17.1	Meeting Sign In: BLDG-Form 0117-1	
	17.2	Contractor Delegation of Authority: BLDG-Form 02	
	17.3	Telephone Log: BLDG-Form 03	
	17.4	Site Visit Sign-in: BLDG-Form 0417-5	
	17.5	Subcontractor Certification: BLDG-Form 0517-6	

17.6	Labor Compliance: BLDG-Form 0617-8
17.7	Permit Log: BLDG-Form 07
17.8	Alaska Forest Products Certification: BLDG-Form 08
17.9	Daily Inspection Report: BLDG-Form 09
17.10	Substitution Request: BLDG-Form 10
17.11	Submittal Log: BLDG Form 11
17.12	Non-Compliance Notice: BLDG Form 1217-18
17.13	Non-Compliance Notice Log: BLDG-Form 13
17.14	Request for Information: BLDG-Form 1417-21
17.15	Request for Information Log: BLDG-Form 15 17-23
17.16	Change Notice: BLDG-Form 16 17-24
17.17	Request for Proposal: BLDG-Form 17
17.18	Request for Proposal/Change Notice Log: BLDG-Form 1817-26
17.19	Cost of Work: BLDG-Form 19 17-27
17.20	Change Order: BLDG-Form 20
17.21	Supplemental Agreement: BLDG-Form 21
17.22	Interim Work Authorization: BLDG-Form 22
17.23	Schedule of Values: BLDG-Form 23 17-31
17.24	Progress Summary: BLDG-Form 24
17.25	Periodic Estimate for Partial Payment: BLDG Form 25 17-33
17.26	Stored Materials: BLDG-Form 26
17.27	Certificate of Substantial Completion: BLDG-Form 2717-36
17.28	Contractor's Release: BLDG-Form 28
17.29	Certificate of Final Estimate: BLDG-Form 29
17.30	Contractors Civil Rights Representatives: BLDG-Form 30
17.31	EEO-1 Certification: BLDG-Form 31
17.32	Project Closeout Data: BLDG-Form 32
17.33	Not Used
17.34	Final Estimate Funding Breakout: BLDG-Form 34 17-44
17.35	Construction Contract Closeout Checklists: BLDG-Form 35 and FAA & FHWA Checklist
17.36	Directive: BLDG-Form 36 17-48
17.37	Time Impact Evaluation: BLDG-Form 3717-49

17.38	Project Completion Form Certification – Design: BLDG-Form 38 17-51
17.39	Project Completion Form Certification – Construction: BLDG-Form 39 17-52
17.40	CSI Division 1 Checklist: BLDG-Form 40 (Proposed)17-53
17.41	Project Engineer Responsibility Checklist: BLDG-Form 41 17-54
17.42	Contractors Log: BLDG Form 42 (Option to Replace Multiple Forms) 17-57
17.43	Project Budget: BLDG-Form 4317-69
17.44	Project Status Report
17.45	Notice to Proceed Letter: Sample 01 17-71
17.46	Preconstruction Conference Agenda: Sample 02 17-72
17.47	Authorizations and Limitations Letter: Sample 0317-74
17.48	EEO Poster: Sample 04
17.49	Schedule of Values Acceptance Letter: Sample 05 17-78
17.50	Progress Schedule Acceptance Letter: Sample 06 17-79
17.51	Submittal Schedule Acceptance Letter: Sample 0717-80
17.52	Subcontract Approval Letter: Sample 0817-81
17.53	Final Completion Letter: Sample 0917-82
17.54	Labor Tax Clearance Memo: Sample 10
17.55	Revenue Tax Clearance Memo: Sample 1117-84
17.56	Final Acceptance Letter: Sample 1217-85
17.57	Flow of Information Diagram: Sample 13 – For Preconstruction Meeting Handout

18.	Appendix	ζ	18-i
	18.1	General Conditions for Design-Bid-Build Contracts	. 18-1
	18.2	General Conditions Modified for CM/GC Contracts	. 18-69
	18.3	RESERVED (General Conditions Modified for Design-Build Contracts	. 18-140
	18.4	Statewide Public Facilities (SWPF) Filing System	. 18-141
	18.5	Commissioner von Scheben Memorandum	. 18-144

1. Construction Overview

- 1.1. Acronyms
- 1.2. Definitions
- 1.3. Organizational Structure
- 1.4. Channels of Authority
- 1.5. Project Staff Assignments & Training
- 1.6. Employee Conduct
- 1.7. Federal-Aid Project Oversight Responsibility Agreements
- 1.8. Construction Manual Exceptions

1.1. Acronyms

The following acronyms are used in this manual:

AC	A account Code
AC A/E	Account Code
	Architect/Engineer
AKOSH	Alaska Occupational Safety and Health
AKSAS	Alaska State Accounting System
CC	Collocation Code
CPM	Critical Path Method
CSI	Construction Specifications International
CMGC	Construction Manager / General
	Contractor
BMP	Best Management Practice
DEC	Department of Environmental
	Conservation (state)
DB	Design Build
FAA	Federal Aviation Administration
FHWA	Federal Highway Administration
GC	General Conditions
IBC	International Building Code
ICAP	Indirect Cost Allocation Plan
IRIS	Integrated Resource Information System
IWA	Interim Work Authorization
LC	Ledger Code
M&O	Maintenance and Operations
NOI	Notice of Intent
NTP	Notice to Proceed
OSHA	Occupation Safety and Health
	Administration (federal)
OMB	Office of Management and Budget (state)
PDA	Project Development Authorization
PM	Project Manager
PR	Program Code
PSA	Professional Service Agreement
RFI	Request for Information
RFP	Request for Proposal
ROW	Right of Way
RSA	Reimbursable Service Agreement
SWPF	Statewide Public Facilities

SWPPPStorm Water Pollution Prevention PlanT&MTime and Material

1.2. Definitions

The terms defined below are used in this manual or they are likely to be encountered during contract administration. If there is any conflict between these definitions and definitions contained in the project delivery contract, the language of the contract governs.

Adjusted Bid Amount: A basis for comparing bids after credits for Alaska bidder's preference, Alaska veteran owned business preference, and Alaska products preference have been subtracted. The resulting amount is used to select the low bidder, but is not the same as the award amount. Preferences do not apply to federally funded projects.

Alaska Construction Manual provides instructions to personnel who inspect and administer airport, highway and marine construction contracts for the Department. The ACM has application to some SWPF projects, primarily those funded by the FHWA and FAA. The ACM is available on the Departments web site under Statewide Design and Engineering Services.

As-Advertised Documents: The plans, project manual and addenda available to contractors prior to bid or technical and price proposals.

Competitive Sealed Price Proposals: Project delivery method where the contractor submits technical and sealed price proposals in response to an RFP containing complete plans and project manual. The contractor is selected based on the scoring and ranking of technical proposals, followed by a public opening of the sealed price proposals for final scoring adjustment.

Construction Manager / General Contractor:

Project delivery method where the contractor submits technical proposals in response to RFP containing conceptual design documents. The contractor is selected based on qualifications, past experience or best-value. The contractor (construction manager) provides input regarding material, design, scheduling, pricing, phasing and other input that helps the designer (under separate contract to Department) develop a more constructible project. At approximately 90% design completion, the Department and the construction manager negotiate a guaranteed maximum price for construction of project based on the defined scope and schedule. If this price is acceptable to both parties, they execute a contract for construction services, and the construction manager becomes the general contractor.

Conformed contract: The bound contract documents containing the plans and specifications, addenda, the fully-executed contract, payment and performance bonds, and completed bid schedule form. DB contracts include the contractor's proposal.

Department: Alaska Department of Transportation and Public Facilities.

Division 0: The sections listed under Bidding/Proposal and Contract Requirements and Contract Provisions and Specifications in the conformed contract table of contents. These sections delineate contract administration requirements.

Division 1: The sections listed under General Requirements in the conformed contract table of contents. These sections contain general administrative and procedural requirements as they apply to the Technical Specifications sections.

Design-Bid-Build: Project delivery method where the Department develops complete design and solicits bids. The contractor is selected based on low bid.

Design-Build (DB): Project delivery method where the contractor is selected at conceptual design phase through a RFP process. The contractor is responsible for final design. Selection is based on evaluation of technical proposals. Sealed cost proposals are also a rating factor; however, low cost proposal may or may not be the deciding factor.

Encumbrance: The accounting process of reserving project funds for a specific contract obligation.

General Conditions: Section 00700 of Division 0 in the conformed contract (design-bid-build and CMGC contracts), or Section 00920 of Division 0 in DB contracts. This section defines rights, responsibilities, relationships and administrative requirements and applies to all sections of specifications including Division 1.

General Requirements: See Division 1 definition.

Inspector: A person assigned to the Project Engineer with the sole responsibility of quality assurance.

Office Engineer: A person responsible for a construction project's clerical and administrative matters, with no field responsibilities.

Project Manager: The person responsible for managing the design and construction for one or more individual facilities projects. The PM has overall responsibility for cost, schedule, and quality performance. The PM will provide supervision, direction, guidance, conflict resolution, and coordination to the Project Engineers assigned to specific construction projects. In some instances, the PM will perform duties normally assigned to Project Engineers due to staffing shortages or other reasons.

Project Manual: Bound paper or consolidated electronic document(s) consisting of Divisions 0, 1, technical specifications and plan set. The plan set is usually separated, except for small projects.

Project Engineer: The Department's designated on site representative.

Record Drawings: Digitized or mylar plan set modified by designer of record to reflect the contractor's final red line record drawings.

Red Line Record Drawings: Plan set annotated by the contractor to show actual installation as it happens.

Small Procurement: Simplified contract procurement method for small projects as limited by Alaska Statue 36.30.015 and Alaska Administrative Code (2 AAC 12.740). Guidance is provided in the Department's Small Procurement Manual.

Supplemental Conditions: Section 00800 of the conformed contract modifies the General Conditions (Section 00700 in design-bid-build and CMGC contracts) specific to a project, its locale, and its unique requirements. DB contracts do not have supplemental conditions.

1.3. Organizational Structure

Commissioner

The Governor appoints the commissioner of the Alaska Department of Transportation and Public Facilities and the legislature confirms the appointment. The commissioner is responsible for administration of all functions of the Department throughout the State. The commissioner exercises this responsibility through delegation of authority.

Deputy Commissioners

Three Deputy Commissioners report to the Commissioner. One of them supervises the Chief of SWPF.

Chief of Statewide Public Facilities (the Chief)

The Chief is responsible for directing the activities of design and construction administration for all projects assigned to SWPF. The Chief ensures that personnel performing these activities adhere to policies, procedures, and standards set by the Department and client agencies. **The Chief also serves as the Contracting Officer for most of the contracts administered by SWPF.** One example of an exception is when SWPF staff providing construction administration for a project at Ted Stevens Anchorage International Airport (ANC). In this case, the ANC Director of Environmental Engineering and Planning is the Contracting Officer. There may be other exceptions.

Client

A client is any entity requesting support from SWPF and securing said support through a formal agreement. SWPF is a service provider. Services include public facilities project management, planning, programming, design and construction contract administration for clients. Clients include the Department and other state agencies, with the exception of the court system and the University of Alaska which have separate contracting authority.

SWPF does not own, operate or maintain any public facilities. The financial and administrative relationship between SWPF and clients is described in more detail in Section 2 of this manual.

Contracting Officer

The person authorized by the Commissioner of the Department to enter into and administer the contract on behalf of the Department. The contracting officer for SWPF is usually the Chief, but there are exceptions. The project's Contracting Officer is always identified on the invitation to bid or the notice to proceed.

Project Manager

The PM reports directly to their supervisor and is responsible for day to day management of one or more SWPF projects and is the primary point of contact for the client. The PM may or may not be the direct supervisor of a project engineer assigned to a project managed by the PM.

A PM may be assigned responsible charge of several small to medium sized projects or be tasked with administering a large complex project.

Project Engineer

The Project Engineer is the primary point of contact for the contractor and reports directly to a PM on a project by project basis. This means a Project Engineer often reports to more than one PM concurrently due to overlapping assignments for projects in closeout, startup and construction phases.

The Project Engineer may be either a Department employee or contract employee provided by a consulting engineering firm under a professional services agreement.

The Project Engineer (if a Department employee) is assigned a supervisor for timesheets, leave, performance evaluation purposes, and work assignments. This subject is covered in more detail in Section 6 of this manual.

The Project Engineer ensures that all work performed by the contractor conforms to the requirements of the contract in accordance with policies, procedures and standards established by the Department. The Project Engineer has responsibility to lead any assigned project staff.

Project Staff

Project staff may include inspectors and technicians assigned to a project who report directly to the Project Engineer. Project staff may be either SWPF employees or contract employees provided by a consulting engineering firm under a professional services agreement.

Regional / Headquarters Support Staff

There are Department employees outside the SWPF chain of command that have oversight roles that may influence contract administration decisions.

• Quality Assurance Engineers (QAE) report directly to regional construction engineers, who report to regional upper management, who report to the commissioner directly or indirectly. QAE's duties are described in Department policy and procedure: 05.01.050 Concurrent Review of Construction Projects. The QAE is only required to be involved in SWPF administered projects that are funded by the FHWA, FAA or Federal Transit Authority; however the QAE my support other QA efforts if requested by SWPF and subject to availability. Most SWPF projects are not subject to mandatory QAE oversight.

- Environmental Compliance Staff exist at the Department regions and headquarters through a wide variety of supervisor chains of command that will not be detailed here for brevity. Environmental compliance staff from the Department, permitting or regulatory agencies may visit the project during construction and conduct informal or formal compliance inspections, either prearranged or unannounced. Procedures for accommodating these environmental compliance inspections are detailed in Section 9 of this manual.
- Utility Staff exist at the Department regions and headquarters to assist SWPF in utility contract coordination and contract development with local utility companies.

1.4. Channels of Authority

It is the Department's policy to delegate authority and responsibility to the lowest level of management consistent with the Department's policies, sound business practices, and applicable statutes and regulations in order to achieve Departmental objectives efficiently and expeditiously (General Policy 01.01.010), available on Department web site homepage.

Decision making is the most important element of contract administration, and personnel at every level must take responsibility to make decisions within the authority delegated to them. Consequently, construction personnel are expected to follow the channels of authority as outlined herein.

Immediate supervisors will not be bypassed except in case of a contract administration emergency, and then only in the event the supervisor cannot be readily located.

The Project Engineer is the single point of contact between the Department and all other parties associated with the project delivery contract, except that the PM is the primary point of contact for the client. The PM may in some instances delegate some or all of the client contact responsibility to the Project Engineer. All communications from the contractor should be directed to the Project Engineer, allowing the Project Engineer to deal effectively with the contractor. All communications from the client should be directed to the PM unless the PM has delegated this duty to the Project Engineer.

1.5. Project Staff – Assignments & Training

Shortly after a contract is awarded, the PM prepares a delegation of authority letter signed by the Contracting Officer to the contractor identifying the Chief, PM, Project Engineer, and consultant assigned to administer the contract.

The PM is responsible for developing a staffing plan for a project. Positions are filled with available staff in accordance with collective bargaining agreements, or as described in a professional service agreement for consulting engineering services. All project staff members should receive written notification of their initial assignment to a project, but notification may be done verbally. The notification should list the Project Engineer as their lead, along with the specific staff responsibilities, authorities, and assignments.

The PM should review employee's qualifications and the requirements of the assignment. If any job task or safety-related training is needed (Alaska Statue 18.60.066 Employee Safety Education Programs), the PM should make required arrangements before the start of the assignment, if possible. As the PM familiarizes each employee with their assignment or reassignment, the PM should review the employee's responsibilities, authority, relationship with their supervisor and other project personnel, and any other information that will make the employee better able to perform in the assigned capacities.

1.6. Employee Conduct

Employees should conduct themselves in an ethical, courteous, and helpful manner within the confines of their project role when dealing with contractors, clients, the public and other project staff. Rules of conduct apply to all Department employees, including consultant employees.

When in doubt, discuss the issue with your supervisor. Consult with the lead administrative assistant if you need help finding policy concerning employee conduct.

The Chief is the ethics advisor for SWPF. The Department's human resources office is another source of support and guidance for employee conduct questions or issues.

1.7. Federal-Aid Project Oversight Responsibility Agreements

Overall responsibility and protocol for projects with federal funding from other agencies varies considerably. Such responsibility and protocol will be identified by the PM during the preconstruction phase of the project and included in the project delivery contract. Any special or unusual requirements that are not contained in the project delivery contract will be conveyed to the Project Engineer once assigned to a project.

1.8. Construction Manual Exceptions

Due to variances in project staffing or to the nature of a project; there may be situations where full compliance with this manual is neither cost-effective nor practical. There will also be situations that are not adequately addressed in this manual. In such cases the Project Engineer should discuss exceptions with PM.

Exceptions may not violate federal, state, or local law, federal aid requirements, Department policy and procedure or the Department's Chief Engineer directives.

Exceptions not resolved through verbal consultation between the Project Engineer and PM will be documented in a memo. The memo will be sent to the Chief through the PM. (This page intentional left blank)

2. Fiscal Management

- 2.1. General
- 2.2. Project Numbering & Project Account Coding
- 2.3. Reimbursable Service Agreements
- 2.4. Utility Agreements
- 2.5. Project Development Authorization
- 2.6. Federal Funding
- 2.7. Memorandum of Agreement
- 2.8. Project Budget
- 2.9. Project Encumbrances
- 2.10 RSA Billings
- 2.11. Expenditure Monitoring
- 2.12. Unauthorized Expenditures

2.1. General

The PM will develop project budgets at project inception and update them each month, or more frequently as necessary to document significant changes. The PM may maintain a number of budgets for each project depending on the intended audience (detailed and summary).

The PM will encumber funds for all contractual financial obligations as contracts are awarded or amended by a change document. Failure to do so may result in insufficient funds for contractor payment.

Budget updates are distributed with the project status summary report each month. The project budget and status summary reports are management mandates and do not effect contract management. Failure to perform these duties is not subject to comment by regional concurrent review associated with FHWA, FTA or FAA funded projects and shall not be used to delay final payment to the contractor.

2.2. Project Numbering & Project Account Coding

Every project is identified by a unique five digit Alaska state accounting system (AKSAS) project number, whether the project is state-funded, federallyfunded, or a combination of both. AKSAS is a legacy accounting system scheduled for replacement.

July 1, 2015 is the projected launch date for the new integrated resource information system (IRIS); which includes a new financial accounting system. After the IRIS accounting system is live and AKSAS is retired, much of the information here will need to be revised. Post IRIS implementation, projects will continue to be

identified by state and federal (if applicable) project numbers. Other accounting coding and terminology will change.

The following information is related to AKSAS. The launch date for IRIS is only a projection. Changeovers of accounting systems generally require a significant re-education and training for staff.

Many federally funded projects also have a federal project number or numbers assigned to it; this number relates to the federal funding agreement. During the preconstruction process the PM must determine if federal project numbers need to be shown in the contract.

Within AKSAS, there are two series of numbers that identify a project's financial account: an eight digit collocation code (CC) identifying the source of project funds, and an eight digit ledger code (LC), the first six of which identify the project, the seventh digit identifies the project phase (design, right-of-way, construction, utility) and the eighth digit identifies the eligibility of the expense (non-participating/state-only funds, participating/federally reimbursable funds, or deferred participating/state-funds until eligibility is resolved).

Additionally, there are two five-digit number codes that further identify a particular expense charged to a project: an account code (AC) identifying category of expense (payroll, per-diem, commodity, travel, contractual service), and a program code (PR) identifying both project phase (design, construction) and segment of the budget or support group that incurs the expense (Civil Rights Office, field engineering, contractor payments, construction administration, environmental unit, quality assurance/materials unit, utilities, project control unit).

For most projects, the CC and the first seven digits of the LC are usually the same for all of a project's construction expenses. The Project Engineer needs only to know how to use the PR and AC, and how to determine the federal funding eligibility (if any) of a particular expense (the last digit of the LC). Projects that have multiple funding sources may prove more of a challenge. Project Control and the SWPF Financial Coordinator should be consulted for guidance on unusual situations. The Departments A-87 Implementation Manual, available on line, explains the use of these codes and provides examples. The Department assesses an overhead rate (officially called the Indirect Cost Allocation Plan, ICAP) on all capital projects. ICAP charges are applied to all capital expenses once a month. This ICAP revenue supports the overhead activity within the Department.

2.3. Reimbursable Service Agreements

SWPF frequently performs work for other state agencies (clients). RSAs are formal agreements between two agencies whereby the requesting agency requests the services of the other, the servicing agency, and the requesting agency agrees to compensate the servicing agency for services rendered. SWPF is usually the servicing agency, although occasionally it will request the services of another agency through the RSA process. The servicing function is generally to plan, design and construct facility related projects for the client, including but not limited to new construction, rehabilitation, renovations, energy upgrades, demolitions, and hazardous material abatement.

The requesting agency does not actually give SWPF funds to perform the requested service. Instead, the agency gives SWPF authorization to spend the client's funds. SWPF pays its contractors, vendors, and payroll obligations from Department funds and bills the client's funding for reimbursement.

The RSA comprises the source documentation authorizing a project's funding from a client. From the RSA the following information can be learned:

- Scope of work
- Expiration date
- Project number and financial Coding
- Source of funds (non-federal and/or federal)
- Allocated of funding broken out by work items
- Schedule of maximum cost

As a cautionary note, if the box at the bottom of Section V on the RSA form is checked, the servicing agency may not change line items without approval of the client. This can cause significant delays if funds need to be shifted between funding allocations on short notice. PM's should carefully consider and discuss potential impacts with the client if a proposed schedule of maximum cost appears to be unnecessarily restrictive, before sending the RSA to the Chief for approval.

Clients may request RSA modifications to increase or reduce existing authorizations. During construction,

clients may request contract changes that increase the scope and cost of the project beyond the limits of available funding, including change order contingency funding. The RSA must be modified to increase funding before executing any such change documents.

Original and amended RSA's are co-signed by Departmental representatives (client and SWPF). The Chief is the approving authority for SWPF. The PM must initial the amended RSA to indicate the authorization increase is adequate to finance the additional work before sending the RSA amendment to the Chief for approval.

A client may believe the current authorized RSA funding level is too high and request a portion of it be returned. This is called a "negative RSA" and it reduces the authorization from the current amount to the new amount specified by the client. In this case the Chief requires "initials" sign off from the PM that the negative RSA is appropriate before approving any such action. It is imperative that careful attention be paid to negative RSA requests to preclude release of funding required to complete the project. Copies of the RSA should be kept in the project fiscal file.

2.4. Utility Agreements

Utility companies sometimes pay for a portion of the work done under a contract administered by SWPF. These funding arrangements are set up under RSAs or Utility Agreements.

2.5. Project Development Authorization

A PDA allows SWPF to perform work for the Department. A PDA places project funding on the books and into the proper phase.

PDA's provide the same basic information as an RSA:

- Project number and ledger code
- Authorized funding by phase (design, construction, utilities, land, etc.)
- Collocation codes

The PM may only spend up to what is authorized by phase and CC. The PM will initiate PDA amendments through the SWPF Financial Coordinator.

Copies of original PDA and amendments should be kept in the project fiscal file.

2.6. Federal Funding

On federally funded projects, the State enters into two contracts: one with the contractor and the other with the federal funding agency. Federal financial programs are set up and run differently, but all accomplish the same end – the transfer of federal funds to the receiving entity, which for the purposes of this manual is our clients (including the Department).

Federal funding sources have different rules and the PM must become familiar with the requirements detailed in individual federal grants or agreements. These federal agreements or grants sometime some with strict billing and reporting requirements and it is important that the PM study and become familiar with all the terms and conditions.

Since this can be an overwhelming amount of information for a single PM to absorb, SWPF generally assigns projects attached to similar or the same federal funding streams to a single PM initially. This PM becomes the subject matter expert for the particular funding source and passes this knowledge on to other PM's who encounter these funding types.

The Department has a long history, and support structure at Headquarter and the Regions to properly handle FHWA, FTA, and FAA federal funding sources.

RSA's with a client are sometimes funded partly or entirely by federal funding from various federal agencies. As an agent for our client, PM's must be familiar with the source(s) of federal funding (if any) associated with an RSA and what the requirements are for administering the funds.

PM's should get a copy of any federal funding agreement between the client and the federal funding agency. A client may or may not be very familiar with the terms and conditions of the federal funding agreements supporting their project. PM's are responsible for ensuring that projects administered by SWPF are in compliance with federal funding requirements that sometimes vary greatly from one federal agency to another.

2.7. Memorandum of Agreement

Occasionally a memorandum of agreement (MOA) is used in place of an RSA. Whereas an RSA applies to agreements between state agencies, MOAs may apply to agreement between SWPF and a municipality, tribal organization or even a federal entity. The MOA serves a similar purpose as an RSA, but it is important that the PM study the MOA and become familiar with all the terms and conditions.

2.8. Project Budget

PM will prepare budget at project inception and updated monthly until final completion. After construction bids are received, PM will verify authorized funding and revise the budget as necessary. The PM will work with the SWPF Financial Coordinator to make any needed adjustments.

A budget form is available (see BLDG-Form 43, Section 17.43). The PM may modified format to meet project's particular needs, but as a minimum must include the following information:

- Current authorized funding
- Expenditure categories by PR
- Current expenditures
- Projected expenditures at completion
- Projected balance (authorized funding minus projected expenditures)

Columns in the budget form should be totaled for each phase (design, construction) and for total project. An overrun in one phase will require programming action to move funding between phases. A total project overrun will require supplemental funding.

Whenever a change to the project is made and at least monthly, the project budget should be updated. This is needed to verify that the authorized funding will not be exceeded and to provide as much warning as possible when supplemental funding must be sought. PM's will always provide a timely, honest and realistic appraisal of what the project will cost as presently designed and managed.

2.9. Project Encumbrances

Contracts and associated change orders or amendments cannot be executed without sufficient funds encumbered to make all anticipated payments. Encumbrances must be for the exact amount of the contract: i.e. no contingencies may be encumbered. The PM's will encumber funds for the contract, including professional service agreement (PSA) when initially executed and for each individual amendment or change order as it is executed. Excess funding will be unencumbered. Failure to do so opens the possibility of inadvertent overpayment to a contractor and also makes it difficult to monitor unencumbered project balances. Encumbrances establish a priority for payment of project expenditures. The State accounting system makes payments on a first come, first served basis until the money runs out.

The PM will ensure sufficient funding is always encumbered to cover remaining contract payments as the project progress. All contractual obligations (consultant contracts or equipment purchases) and certain vendor stock requests are handled in a similar fashion.

PM's must ensure that encumbrances for each contract and each change document are made in a timely manner, or run the risk of being unable to pay the contractor's progress payments when they come due.

2.10. RSA Billings

The RSA is charged for all project expenses. An "Execute RSA" report is produced monthly showing all prior month expenditures. The Finance Section sends these reports to the PM.

The PM reviews these reports and certifies expenditures. The Finance Section then sends the report to the client.

The PM responds to any client inquiries about individual charges.

2.11. Expenditure Monitoring

The PM is the financial manager for all active projects. The PM (with the Project Engineer's support) will maintain the construction phase financial account in a positive condition at all times.

The PM will closely monitor construction phase expenditures to avoid exceeding the available funds. This is particularly important when the project encounters changed conditions or when additional work is contemplated. Current project financial information can be viewed daily in AKSAS or through monthly printed project expenditure reports or special audit trails. Project expenses will be paid only if sufficient funds are available in AKSAS to cover them.

2.12. Unauthorized Expenditures

If a PM determines inappropriate expenditures were charged to a project, the PM requests an Alder Report from the SWPF Financial Coordinator. Adjustments for timesheet and travel errors will be processed by the Administrative Assistant. The Accounting Technician will process project related errors, such as wrong coding on a project.

3. Preliminary Activities

- 3.1. Review the Records
- 3.2. Prior to Bid Opening
- 3.3. Bid Opening and Evaluation
- 3.4. Protest Period
- 3.5. Letter of Award
- 3.6. Notice to Proceed
- 3.7. Federal Aviation Administration Notice to Proceed
- 3.8. Preconstruction Conference
- 3.9. Contractor's Progress Schedule
- 3.10. Project Staffing & the Construction Engineering Budget
- 3.11. Conflict Resolution
- 3.12. Partnering Conference
- 3.13. Pollution Prevention Plans
- 3.14. Preconstruction Site Inspection

3.1. Review the Records

Newly assigned Project Engineers should thoroughly review the contract and related documents. This holds true no matter what stage the project is in when the assignment is made.

The Project Engineer should obtain and review the following documents as applicable:

- **Conformed Contract** including separate "information available to bidders"
- **Designer's Estimate** useful when reviewing proposals and schedule of values
- Environmental Documents (federal funding) including environmental commitments and permits
- State Environmental Checklist (state funding) including environmental commitments and permits
- Materials Report to anticipate conditions likely to be encountered during excavation
- **Property Plans** usually shown on plan set or a separate information available to bidders
- Utility Agreements for relocation or extension of utilities
- **Right of Way (ROW) Agreements** for impacts to land not owned by the client

• Lease Agreements - for impacts to leased property (land and or facilities) not owned by the client

3.2. Prior to Bid Opening

The most critical aspect of the advertising phase of a project is answering questions from bidders. The PM and the Project Engineer must ensure that all bidders receive the same information. The best method of accomplishing this is to write down all questions and any answers provided by the PM or Project Engineer. The questions and answers are then sent to our Contracts Section who incorporates them into an Addendum which is issued to all bidders.

During the advertising period, the PM responds to bidders' inquiries through our Contractions Section only but may ask the Project Engineer for support. The PM also coordinates responses with the designer of record as appropriate.

The PM may delegate some pre-bid-opening duties, but not responsibilities, to the Project Engineer such as participating in pre-bid meetings or site visits. In this case it is imperative that the PM discuss communication protocol with the Project Engineer to ensure SWPF speaks with one voice to contractors prior to bid opening and that all the contractor questions are recorded in one place.

If contacted by a bidder, the PM should limit discussion to understanding questions being asked. If a response is warranted, the PM should issue the response in a written addendum through our Contracts Section only. The PM should keep a permanent record of all contacts made with bidders, suppliers, and subcontractors during the advertising period.

When answering potential bidder's questions it is critical that the PM ensure that **ALL** potential bidders have access to the exact same information provided by the Department. If the question is simply a matter of clarification of what is in the contract documents then the question could be answered verbally. For example: Question "Where is the geotechnical report?" Answer "Sheet 18". Any other questions and answers should be recorded in writing through an Addendum. Answering bidders question via phone calls is a dangerous practice. Prior to the bid opening, the only information on project cost the Department releases to the public is a range of estimated contract prices the designer's estimate fits within. The designer's estimate is not made public until bid opening.

3.3. Bid Opening and Evaluation

After the bid opening, the Central Region Chief of Contracts (Chief of Contracts) releases certified bid tabulations and the PM evaluates the bids with the support of the consultant designer to determine that there are no irregularities. On unit bid items, irregularities could include significant variation in price for a particular bid item between bidders. Variations of 30% usually warrant analysis and comment. Other irregularities could be unbalancing the bid by greatly inflating the cost of a unit bid item that will be constructed early in the project.

SWPF projects are often lump sum and most contain very few unit bid items. Irregularities on a lump sum contract could include an unusually wide spread between the low bidder and other bidders, particularly if the low bidder is significantly below the designers estimate. This would warrant analysis and comment.

The PM will sometimes ask the Project Engineer for assistance in the bid evaluation. When the evaluation is complete, the PM prepares a memo from the Contracting Officer to the Chief of Contracts recommending issuing the intent to award letter.

The Chief of Contracts issues a subcontractor's list letter to the apparent low bidder once identified; this may be concurrent with the bid evaluation by the PM. This letter triggers the requirement that within five working days after the identification of the apparent low bidder (AS 36.30.115); the apparent low bidder must provide the Department with the subcontractors list (Form 25D-5). On this form, the apparent low bidder certifies they will subcontract one-half of one percent or less of the contract amount, or list all subcontractors with the items of work that each will perform. The apparent low bidder may be declared non responsive if they miss the 5 day deadline.

Alaska Statutes mandate preferences for Alaska bidders and for bidders obligating themselves to use various Alaska products and Alaska Veterans Preference for State funded projects. **These preferences are in the form of deductions from the total bid amount only for purposes of determining the low bidder. These deductions are not actually**

deducted from the contract amount paid to the successful contractor.

Care must be exercised when reading the bid schedule in the conformed specifications or the bid tabulation. The line titled total bid is the contract amount, not the line titled adjusted bid amount.

Bidding preferences are **not allowed on federal-aid projects.**

After receipt of the bid evaluation and recommendation to precede memo, the Chief of Contracts sends a notice of intent to award letter to the apparent low bidder with a copy going to all the unsuccessful bidders. This starts the protest period as detailed in the next section.

The notice of intent to award letter indicates the following requirements:

- A request for the executed contract form
- Performance and payment bonds, if required
- Certificate of insurance
- EEO Certification (Form 25A-304)
- Disadvantaged business enterprise (DBE) utilization report (Form 25A-325C)
- The Contractor's Questionnaire (Form 25D-8)
- Buy American certificate (FAA funding only)
- A request for written DBE commitment (Form 25A–326)

The apparent low bidder has 5 days to return the subcontractor's list and 15 days to return all of the forms indicated above, acceptably completed, to the Chief of Contracts. The Chief of Contracts then prepares a letter of award for the Contracting Officer's signature.

On federally funded projects that contain DBE requirements, if the apparent low bidder is unable to meet the DBE goals, they must submit:

- DBE summary of good faith effort documentation (Form 25A-332A)
- DBE contact reports (Form 25A-321A)
- DBE utilization report (Form 25A-325C)

The Chief of Contracts and the Civil Rights Office (CRO) review these forms, which document the apparent low bidder's unsuccessful efforts at meeting the DBE goals. The Chief of Contracts and the CRO recommended to the Contracting Officer to either accept the good faith effort documentation or adjust the project's DBE goals or to award the contract to the next lowest bidder. If the apparent low bidder has failed to demonstrate they made a good faith effort. then the apparent low bidder has three days from the date the Department notifies them of this determination to request an administrative reconsideration of the determination by the DBE liaison officer. If the apparent low bidder's reconsideration is denied, then the Department awards the contract to the next lowest responsive and responsible bidder that meets the DBE goals. If the Contracting Officer awards the bid based on good faith effort, then the Contracting Officer notifies the successful low bidder of the revised goals in the letter of award. If the Department decides to award the contract to the next lowest bidder, the above procedure is repeated.

3.4. Protest Period

The period between the letter of intent to award and letter of award is known as the protest period. Interested parties, generally understood to be the unsuccessful bidders, may protest the award of the contract to the Contracting Officer. Subcontractors are not recognized as interested parties. Questions regarding protests should be forwarded to the Chief of Contracts.

3.5. Letter of Award

Once all of the successful low bidder's documents are in order, and bid protest (if any) are resolved, the Contracting Officer signs the contract, the successful low bidder becomes the contractor, and they receive the letter of award. The amount of the successful low bid becomes the amount of award, and is known as the original contract amount. On FHWA, FTA and FAA funded projects this amount usually establishes the daily-liquidated damage charge that applies when actual construction time exceeds contract completion time. On most project administered by SWPF, the daily-liquidated damages are determined by the actual damages a delay to a project will cause the Department.

On all projects, the contractor receives a letter of award. The FAA requires FAA review of the conformed contract before giving its concurrence (Airport improvement program handbook, sections 1201 and 1204).

3.6. Notice to Proceed

The PM is responsible for drafting, signing and issuing the NTP if delegated the authority to do so;

otherwise the Contracting Officer signs the NTP. The NTP should be issued as soon as practicable immediately following the Contract award (see Sample 01, Section17.45).

3.7. Federal Aviation Administration Notice to Proceed

On projects funded by the FAA, the NTP cannot be issued until FAA concurrence is obtained. FAA requires assurance that construction will conform to the FAA approved plans and specifications prior to issuing the NTP. The issuance of the NTP requires additional assurances from the sponsor (the Department):

- Conformed copy of the plans and specifications
- Bid tabs
- Good faith effort on DBE requirements
- Force account construction proposal

3.8. Preconstruction Conference

The preconstruction conference must be held before physical construction begins unless this requirement is specifically waived by the Contracting Officer.

The PM schedules the time and location of the preconstruction conference. The following key attendees should be contacted before scheduling the time for the preconstruction conference.

- Client representative
- Contractor
- Project Engineer
- Respective consultant(s)
- FAA PM (FAA Projects only)
- Alaska Department of Labor & Workforce Development
- Special inspection consultant (if required)

When a date for the preconstruction conference has been set, the PM sends an invitation with attached agenda (via letter, email or outlook invite, etc) which notifies all interested parties of the date, time and location of the conference. In addition to the above, the following should be on the distribution list for this invitation.

- Chief
- Client's maintenance supervisor
- Department environmental staff (if applicable)
- Civil Rights Office

The Project Engineer drafts the preconstruction conference agenda (see sample 02, Section 17.46). Ideally the agenda should be transmitted with the meeting notice, but may be transmitted separately if timing constraints make it necessary.

The agenda should be structured to allow parties with limited involvement to be excused early in the meeting.

The following items should be given to the Contractor at the preconstruction conference.

Delegation of Authority Letter (see sample 03)

EEO Poster (see sample 04)

Blank Forms

- Contractor delegation (BLDG-Form 02)
- Subcontractor certification (BLDG-Form 05)
- Alaska forest products cert. (BLDG-Form 08)
- Substitution request (BLDG-Form 10)
- Submittal log (BLDG-Form 11)
- Request for information (BLDG-Form 14)
- Change notice (BLDG-Form 16)
- Cost of work (BLDG-Form 19)
- Schedule of values (BLDG-Form 23)
- Periodic est. for partial payment (BLDG-Form 25)
- Stored materials worksheet (BLDG-Form 26)
- Contractor's civil rights rep. (BLDG-Form 30)
- EEO-1 certification (BLDG-Form 31)
- Time impact evaluation form (BLDG-Form 37)

The PM should chair the meeting and the notes for the minutes should be kept by the Project Engineer. The meeting may be tape recorded on very large or complex projects at the discretion of the PM. It is generally best practice to have a significant portion of the discussion come from the Project Engineer to help establish the single point of contact concept. After the meeting, the Project Engineer drafts the minutes and submits them to the PM for approval. The minutes are distributed to each attendee by method acceptable to PM (email or transmittal letter for example).

3.9. Contractor's Progress Schedule

The contractor must submit a construction progress schedule to Project Engineer by deadline established in contract. The Department may attempt to secure the schedule early, prior to the preconstruction conference, so the PM can develop a timely and meaningful staffing plan and field engineering budget. Prior to the issuance of the NTP on FAA funded projects, the FAA will review the PM's construction management plan, which should be prepared based on the contractor's progress schedule. Early submittal of the progress schedule on FAA funded projects is very important.

The contract specifies the type of progress schedule the contractor is to submit; critical path method (CPM) or bar chart (for example). The schedule should show beginning and ending dates for the principal items of work, periods of multiple shift work, and periods of anticipated shutdown.

The PM reviews the schedule for adequacy and returns a signed and dated copy to the contractor if acceptable. The Project Engineer will post a copy of the accepted schedule in the field office.

The Project Engineer annotate actual schedule on the original accepted schedule as work progresses. This information is essential when analyzing the validity of any delay claims long after the fact. The Department's position will be significantly weakened if accurate records of actual vs. scheduled work are not maintained on an ongoing basis.

3.10. Project Staffing & the Construction Engineering Budget

The PM will establish the project staffing plan and construction engineering budget. SWPF projects are typically staffed with a small contract administration team that often includes consultants. The Chief is responsible for assigning SWPF staff to each project.

3.11. Conflict Resolution

At a minimum every project should include a discussion of how conflicts will be resolved. This discussion should include the parties who have primary responsibility and address how unresolved conflicts will be elevated.

3.12. Partnering Conference

Partnering conferences are encouraged as appropriate for the size and complexity of the project. Partnering can very beneficial to the Department and the contractor on large, complex or high risk projects since it creates a forum for better communications and information sharing. Potential challenges can often be discussed and mutually resolved before disputes arise.

Partnering should only be attempted if both parties share a sincere interest in it. The PM should contact

the contractor shortly after contract award and inquire if the contractor is interested in the partnering process. Excess pressure should not be placed upon the contractor to partner. If the verbiage in the information to bidders clearly calls for sharing the costs of partnering, there will be no question regarding which party pays. If not, a change order is necessary which pays the full cost of partnering.

The principles of partnering may be applied to any contract between two parties. However, in the context of Department construction contracts, formal partnering is the use of an impartial third party facilitator in a neutral setting to formulate a project partnering agreement which sets forth a methodology for day to day project administration. This partnering agreement is outside the contract and depends on the cooperation of all parties. It is a "contract" in the sense that all parties sign a summary statement, but it is only bound by the personal integrity of the signers.

3.13. Pollution Prevention Plans

The Department requires the contractor to:

- Prepare a storm water pollution and prevention plan (SWPPP) for all projects that disturb ground
- File a NOI with DEC for projects disturbing one or more acres of ground (and other selected projects)
- Prepare a hazardous materials control plan (HMCP) for all projects
- Prepare a spill prevention control and countermeasure plan if required by contract

Timelines for contractor submittals and Department reviews are identified in the contract. This subject is covered in more detail in Section 9.4.

3.14. Preconstruction Site Inspection

The Project Engineer should make an on-site inspection with the client's M&O representative after contract award and prior to or concurrent with contractor mobilization to the site. During this inspection the following should be discussed:

- Project scope and schedule
- What M&O expects to gain from the project
- How the facility should be maintained during construction

The contract dictates when maintenance becomes the contractor's responsibility.

The Project Engineer should document all site conditions prior to start of construction using a video or still camera. The maintained condition of the facility and any Department furnished materials should be documented. (This page intentionally left blank)

4. Field Office Set-Up & Record Keeping

- 4.1. Field Office
- 4.2. Vehicles
- 4.3. Housing, Travel and Per Diem
- 4.4. Equipment
- 4.5. Supplies
- 4.6. Required Postings
- 4.7. Meeting Minutes
- 4.8. Telephone Records and e-mail
- 4.9. Project Records
- 4.10. Central Office Records
- 4.11. Records Systems
- 4.12. Records Management
- 4.13. Source Documents
- 4.14. Materials Certification List (MCL)
- 4.15. Qualified Products List (QPL)
- 4.16. Disclosure of Records
- 4.17. Reference Books/Material

4.1. Field Office

The field office should be located at a site acceptable to the Project Engineer and convenient to the project as a whole. Not all projects have a field office.

The field office is usually provided by the contractor as part of the contract, if needed. The Project Engineer should review the contract for details on what is being provided. The Project Engineer and PM need to determine what additional furnishings, equipment and supplies are needed. Anything not in the contract as contractor provided is the responsibility of SWPF.

Some projects located within commuting distance of SWPF administrative offices may be administered out of those offices. Projects may also be administered out of a room in a public facility being renovated or even on occasion out of a vehicle. When in doubt check the contract and talk to the PM.

4.2. Vehicles

Vehicles are usually not provided for SWPF administered projects. The job site is often the duty station and the Project Engineer and staff provide their own private transportation to and from home, or home office, to the duty station.

For remote sites, the contract may require the contractor to provide a vehicle for the Project Engineer. As with the field office, check the contract and talk to the PM to determine what is or is not being provided. For projects administered out of SWPF home offices, the Project Engineer and project staff may use a state vehicle if one is available. In some cases it may be appropriate to use a privately owned vehicle to go to and from the project site and home office.

The state is self-insured by the Alaska Office of Risk Management and state vehicles are owned and controlled by the Statewide Equipment Fleet (SEF) and governed by state statutes, regulations and Department policies and procedures. There are also travel rules under the Alaska Administrative Manual (AAM) concerning reimbursement for use of private vehicles for official business.

Be cautious making assumptions about the use of state vehicles or use of a privately owned vehicle for official business. There are potential personal liability and personal tax consequences (commuting) to the individual employee. The laws, regulations, rules, policies and procedures are available on the state and Department web sites. The best course of action to stay out of trouble and avoid unanticipated out of pocket cost is to clearly and carefully communicate and coordinate travel/vehicle needs with the SWPF administrative staff and the PM.

4.3. Housing, Travel and Per Diem

Project Engineer's and other project staff working at sites beyond commuting may have to find housing or use state furnished housing near the project site. The rules regarding temporary or permanent change in duty station and reimbursements for various cost associated with housing and allowable living expenses can be complex. The job site is often the temporary duty station.

There are tax responsibilities that Project Engineers should be aware of for both long term and short term per diem. Best practice is to discuss the details of potential housing arrangements, travel and per diem with the SWPF administrative staff and the PM as far in advance of physical project construction start up as possible. Sometimes this may occur on short notice.

4.4. Equipment

Equipment (including vehicles) is defined by the state as any item (excluding construction projects) costing over \$1,000 or any item having an assigned sensitive item class code, regardless of cost. All equipment is given a mandatory inventory control number. If in doubt, talk to SWPF administrative staff to find out if the item in question has an inventory control number.

The Project Engineer is responsible for all assigned state equipment used on the project. In the case of loss or damage of assigned equipment, coordinate with SWPF administrative staff to ascertain the correct reporting procedures to reconcile the property control inventory.

4.5. Supplies

Supplies needed on the project for contract administration are expendable items and are not on the controlled property inventory. Each Project Engineer's purchase authorization limit may vary depending on delegated authority. SWPF administrative staff should be consulted for purchasing and stock request procedures to ensure compliance with Department policy and procedure.

4.6. Required Postings

Depending on the type of project and the funding source, the Project Engineer is responsible for displaying a number of posters at the field office. The specific posting requirements are shown in Section 18.2 of the ACM.

4.7. Meeting Minutes

Project meetings are often required by contract or by mutual agreement by both parties. They may include regular periodic progress meetings (monthly or weekly) pre-installation conferences and special agenda meetings like claims presentations, change order negotiations, or design clarification meetings.

All such meetings should be run similar to the Preconstruction Conference (see Section 3.8); i.e., sufficient time allotment, preparation of an agenda, and a documenting of the proceeding. In some cases the contract may specify that the contractor prepare the agenda, chair the meetings, and record and distribute minutes of the meetings. If the contract does not specify who is to chair the meetings, the PM or the Project Engineer shall reach an agreement with the contractor on this before the meeting is held.

Some basic guidelines regarding meetings are as follows:

- Scheduled in advance three day's notice should be given, unless all parties agree otherwise
- Meetings should not last more than one hour, or as mutually agreed

- If the meeting cannot be concluded in one hour, a continuation meeting should be scheduled
- Designate someone to take notes in advance of meeting starting (not the chairperson)
- Transcribe notes into meeting minutes and distributed to all attendees within two work days
- Minutes should summarize all agreements reached, required action items, schedule for resolution, and time/ place for next meeting (s)
- Transmittal should state that minutes will become part of the project records unless corrections are received within two work days

Meetings are expensive for the contractor and the Department. Therefore, maximize efficient use of meeting time by adhering to the agenda and discouraging idle conversation.

4.8. Telephone Records and E-mail

Important telephone conversations and e-mail messages often take place on a project wherein decisions are made or directions are given. Not all telephone conversations are sufficiently important to warrant a permanent record. However, when it is anticipated that the content of the conversation will be important at a future date, a record should be made and sent to the other party. This should be handled similar to meeting minutes, i.e. opportunity to respond in a specified time. A Telephone Log can never substitute for a Directive, a Request for Information or an Interim Work Authorization. A blank Telephone Log is can be found in Section 17, BLDG-Form 03. Print e-mail and place in file when appropriate.

4.9. Project Records

The Project Engineer is responsible for maintaining project records. Records that originate or terminate at the project field office should be filed there with copies made and transmitted to the SWPF central office for their files. This includes hard copies of email correspondence.

4.10. Central Office Records

In addition to the records maintained on the project site, records are maintained in the SWPF central office in Anchorage. Records that originate or terminate at the central office should be filed there with copies made and transmitted to the project field office for their files. When the project field office is closed, the Project Engineer blends the project files with the central office files by discarding duplicate copies.

4.11. Records Systems

SWPF has developed a project filing system (See Section 18.4). The filing system is the general framework within which project staff store the documents generated by contract administration.

The Project Engineer and project staff are responsible for establishing and maintaining a system of accurate and complete records covering all project activities. Administrative staff can help create these files. These records must substantiate the acceptability and the quantity of the contractor's work and certify the disbursement of funds. In addition to covering quality, quantity, and payment, project documentation must cover all of the important administrative matters including contract modifications (time, money, and contract language), differing site conditions and their resolutions, and contractor compliance with all of the administrative aspects of the contract (labor and payroll, DBE, EEO, origin-of-manufacture requirements). The importance of developing and maintaining proper records is basic to successful construction contract administration.

The Project Engineer must tailor the filing system to meet the needs of each project. On any given project, some elements of that system may be used hardly at all, while others will be developed extensively; the extent and direction of development is largely a matter of the Project Engineer's judgment. For the filing system to be effective, project records must be sufficiently clear and complete and must be filed in such a manner that they are readily accessible, either manually or electronically. Hard copies of all records are required at the project field office for ready access by PM's or another Project Engineer who has to take over the project unexpectedly for any reason.

The filing system for each project should include the basic elements shown in Section 18.4.

Accomplishing these organizational steps prior to the start of construction will make it much easier to document the work as it is being performed. It will also allow more time to be focused on the primary job of ensuring that the project is constructed in accordance with the contract.

4.12. Records Management

Accurate and well organized project records are critical to ensuring a successful project. When the Department becomes involved in a claim or a lawsuit accurate and well organized project records are the most vital tool the Department has to protect itself.

Records developed during the course of the project consist of both loose leaf records (which may be hand written, typed, or computer-stored, and which may include the Project Engineer's diary, inspector's daily reports, specialized daily reports, photographic records, materials test results, correspondence, progress summary, progress payments, change documents, construction progress reports) and bound book records (hand written records which may include the Engineer's diary, inspector's daily reports, specialized daily reports, field books, progress summary). All project records, particularly loose-leaf records, must contain the project name and project number for identification purposes.

Project records are used to support payments to the contractor, determine the acceptability of materials, verify conformance of the work to the contract, develop a record of the completed project, and, on federally-funded projects or under reimbursable agreements, substantiate the eligibility for reimbursement of construction phase expenses. On contracts with multiple projects or funding sources, the project records must account for the separation of charges to each project or source.

Computers may be used to record and store the records of project progress. The master index, as well as the Project Engineer's diary, inspector's daily reports, and the Construction Progress Report all may be prepared on a computer and the records stored in computer files. Computers may also be used to calculate quantities and prepare progress estimates, prepare change documents, calculate and prepare materials test results and reports, and prepare general project correspondence. Computer-generated forms may be used in place of any form listed in this manual as long as the computer form contains the same information, in the same or in a different format, and maintains the essential integrity and legal requirements, if any, of the original form.

Computer records used as source documents must be printed, signed and dated by the person creating the record.

All documentation recorded on a computer bank must be downloaded onto data storage devices for backup and storage no less frequently than once each week; depending on the volume of data being generated on the project, more frequent backup may be advisable. The Project Engineer should maintain two sets of portable hard drives for all project documentation; one of those sets should be stored at a location other than the project office.

Loose-leaf records may contain field notes, calculations, transcriptions of audiotape records (such as the Project Engineer's diary or the minutes of meetings), and other information necessary to document the progress and acceptance of the work. Project name and number must identify each looseleaf record. Signature and dating requirements vary for loose leaf records, depending on the type of record: calculation sheets and records serving as pay quantity source documents must be signed and dated by both the author and the checker, if applicable, on the front page with initials and dates used on subsequent pages. If it is necessary to change an entry on any written project record, the original entry should be lined out and initialed, with the corrected entry immediately following.

Bound book records may contain survey measurements, field notes, staking data, calculations and other information necessary to document the progress and acceptance of the work. Certain Department forms may also be available in bound book form, as well as loose-leaf form, including inspector's daily reports and scales diary forms. The number, type and content of field and computation books will vary with the type of project. Each book should have its own index on the first pages, and each project staff member making entries in a book should print and sign their name and initials near the front of the book. The pages in bound books should be numbered as they are used, for ease in crossreferencing the contents. Calculations made in bound books must be initialed and dated by both the person who calculates and the person who checks. If it is necessary to change an entry on any written project record, the original entry should be lined out and initialed, with the corrected entry immediately following.

Photographic records, including video are usually kept electronically and backed up with portable hard drive.

The following are typical items requiring photographic documentation:

- Unusual construction techniques
- Accidents or damages
- Unsafe or hazardous working conditions
- Job visits by prominent personnel
- Areas or activities where claims or change orders are anticipated (photo or video.)
- Work that is to be concealed. i.e.; rebar, electrical conduit, and piping in walls and slabs
- Monthly progress photos

The photographer should set the digital camera/video recorder with the date/time feature turned on. The Project Engineer is responsible for sending photos/video segments to central office for filing at the end of the project.

4.13. Source Documents

Source documents are required for certain federally funded project (FHWA and FAA for example) and State funded projects that contain unit price pay items. Source document are the basis for determining that work on a unit price pay item in the SOV (See Section 8.7) has been acceptably performed and is eligible for payment. To be complete and valid, the source document must:

- Identify the project by name and number
- Identify the pay item and the location of the installation, placement, or acceptance
- Be made on the site at the time the action (acceptance or rejection of the item) is taken, and by the person taking the action
- Contain a validation or acceptance statement, indicating that the item substantially conforms to the plans and specifications and was incorporated into the project
- Be dated and signed by the person creating or receiving it

Source documents that are used in determining contract quantities may include materials certifications, field notes, calculations, receipts, invoices, or time equipment records, survey measurements, and reports.

The Project Engineer should never destroy an original source document; if the Project Engineer must replace one (to clarify the information or to correct an error), the Project Engineer should line out the original information and label it as original, and label the replacement as a copy. Cross-reference and retain both documents in the project records; add an explanatory note to the original record along with the date and the signature of the person making the change.

4.14. Materials Certification List (MCL)

A MCL is a listing of all the material certifications required by the contract for certain federally funded projects; primarily projects funded by the FHWA or FAA.

SWPF typically uses special inspections and submittal schedules to accomplish the same result. These processes are discussed in Sections 5.2 and 8.3.

If applicable, the MCL requirements will be included in the PDC. For more information consult chapter four of the ACM.

4.15. Qualified Products List (QPL)

The QPL identifies products that meet the Department's standard specifications for highway, aviation projects. The QPL only applies to SWPF projects that incorporate elements of highway or aviation standard specifications.

Chapter four of the ACM and the SWDES Materials web site should be consulted for more information.

4.16. Disclosure of Records

All project records are available for review by the contractor and the public (under AS 09.25.110 – AS 09.25.220), except for personnel files, labor compliance interviews (Section 7.4), and correspondence between the Department and their attorneys that is marked CONFIDENTIAL – ATTORNEY CLIENT PRIVILEGE. Attorney client privilege correspondence should be kept in a separate file to make its inadvertent release less likely. The Project Engineer should keep a record of all requests to review the project records and should coordinate all reviews in advance with the PM.

4.17. Reference Books/Material

The Project Engineer should equip the field office with a small library of reference material that may be useful during construction. The Project Engineer and PM should discuss which reference materials are needed at the field office to meet specific project requirements. (This page intentionally left blank)

5. Field Lab Laboratory and Special Inspections

- 5.1. Field Laboratory
- 5.2. Special Inspections General
- 5.3. International Building Code Special Inspections
- 5.4. Third Party Inspections

5.1. Field Laboratory

SWPF rarely sets up field laboratories, but relies instead on special inspections performed by consultants working for SWPF under a PSA. The field laboratory, if required, is set up at approximately the same time as the project office. The ACM contains additional details and should be consulted if the need for a field laboratory arises (FHWA or FAA funded projects for example).

5.2. Special Inspections - General

Materials to be incorporated into the project must meet the quality standards that are established in the contract. Some materials are accepted based on manufacturer's certifications and the results of tests or inspections performed off-site.

Other materials or construction methods require onsite special inspections to demonstrate that they meet quality standards as established by the technical specifications in the contract and the international building code (IBC) requirements as adopted by the authority having jurisdiction (AHJ). **Special inspection requirements in adopted building codes apply even if not specifically called out in the plans and technical specifications.**

The Project Engineer should carefully review the plans, technical specifications and adopted building codes to confirm the total number of and detailed requirements for special inspections. Special Inspections are an owner (not a contactor) expense and responsibility and the PM must include them in the construction engineering budget.

Unless the Project Engineer or the design consultant is qualified to perform specific special inspection(s), the PM shall execute a PSA for the services of special inspector(s), or use a term PSA if one is in place. The PM procures these services and provides contact information to the Project Engineer in order to coordinate inspections.

At the start of a project, it is important to have a prespecial inspection meeting. The contractor is responsible for setting up this meeting, which should include the contractor, any relevant subcontractors, Project Engineer, special inspector(s), designer(s) of record and AHJ. Discuss procedures for inspections and re-inspections, time lines for notifications, and special conditions with respect to the project.

5.3. International Building Code Special Inspections

The IBC does not allow this responsibility to be passed on to the construction contractor. The IBC does not allow the special inspector(s) to be employed by or under the contract to the construction contractor, including DB contracts. The design consultant is responsible for identifying required special inspections and the PM is responsible for procuring the required consulting services for special inspections that cannot be performed by the Project Engineer or the design consultant.

Special inspections are required for such things as (but not limited to):

- Steel construction
- Welding
- Reinforcing steel
- High strength bolts
- Concrete
- Masonry
- Soils
- Foundations
- Wind requirements
- Seismic resistance

The special inspector(s) shall prepare a special inspection report for each special inspection. Copies of each report must be provided to:

- Project Engineer
- AHJ
- Designer of record
- Contractor

The AHJ official will typically not visit the job site to perform acceptance inspections until the special inspection report(s) have been received.

The AHJ's in Alaska are (list may not be all inclusive):

- City and Borough of Juneau
- City and Borough of Sitka
- City of Fairbanks

- City of Kenai
- City of Ketchikan
- City of Kodiak
- City of Seward
- City of Wasilla
- City of Soldotna
- Municipality of Anchorage
- University of Alaska Fairbanks
- State Fire Marshall (if not covered above)

5.4. Third Party Inspections

In addition to the special inspections required by the IBC as adopted by the State and amended by AHJ, there are additional inspections required by the technical specifications. These inspections are referred to as "third party inspections". The third party inspector may be an agent of an AHJ unaffiliated with the SWPF, the contractor or the client. Other types of third party inspections include independent testing firms hired by either the contractor (as called for in the technical specifications) or hired by the SWPF directly.

One typical example would be where the contractor or the Department pays for permit reviews, the permit itself and ultimately the third party acceptance inspection by the AJH. This could include a municipal permitting office that is verifying compliance with all local building permit requirements as issued.

Another example would be State or local fire marshal inspections for life safety issues, including, but not limited to: egress, fire alarms, and fire suppression systems. At remote sites outside the limits of the AJH's listed above, the State Fire Marshall's office may perform this function at its discretion.

Other examples may include:

- DEC inspections for permitted storm drains or water systems or to check compliance with approved SWPPP
- DEC inspections for permitted operations, such as commercial kitchens
- DOL Wage & Hour Inspections
- DOL State Plumbing Inspections
- DOL State Electrical Inspections
- DOL Mechanical Inspections
- DOL Elevator Inspections
- AKOSH
- OSHA

Federal funding agencies, State and federal safety offices, the State Ombudsman's office, federal office of the Inspector General, bonding companies and others with legal jurisdiction to do so could conceivably enter the work site and conduct 3rd party inspections to ensure compliance with contract, State and federal law, including implementing regulations.

The Project Engineer should contact the PM if unable to determine if the third party inspector has jurisdiction. The Project Engineer should ask for identification and record the name of the inspector and who the inspector is representing in the daily log.

- 6.1. Project Staff Administration
- 6.2. Staff Logistics
- 6.3. Authority and Duties
- 6.4. Channels of Authority
- 6.5. Personal Safety
- 6.6. Emergencies
- 6.7. Accident Reporting
- 6.8. Employee Safety Concerns Program
- 6.9. Contractor Safety

6.1. Project Staff Administration

The on-site contract administration team typically consists of the Project Engineer, with full time or intermittent support from design and special inspection consultants. On large or complex projects the Project Engineer may have one subordinate Office Engineer and one or more subordinate inspectors on a more a less full time basis.

The Project Engineer's personnel administration duties, when staff is assigned, include assigning duty and shift assignments, managing overtime and leave, monitoring ethics and conflicts of interest, accident reporting and approving time sheets.

6.2. Staff Logistics

The logistics of setting up a field office and transporting, housing, equipping and supplying the on-site contract administration team are covered in Section 4. The rules, policies and procedures related to staff logistics planning should be discussed with the PM and administrative staff as far in advance of the physical construction start up as possible.

6.3. Authority and Duties

The Contracting Officer will delegate specific contract administration authority to project staff (including consultants) in writing based on their position, assignment, level of experience and expertise. The specific delegated authority is identified in a letter to the contractor (Section 17.47, Sample 03).

6.4. Channels of Authority

Decision making is the most important element of contract administration. SWPF staffs at every level are responsible for making decisions within their delegated authority. Consequently, all SWPF staff involved in contract administration is expected to follow the channels of authority as outlined herein. An immediate supervisor will not be bypassed except in case of a contract administration emergency and then only in the event the immediate supervisor cannot be readily located. Channels of authority will likewise apply in the descending order in the SWPF chain of command.

Instructions, comments, suggestions, or criticisms directed at contract administration staff during a site visit by an official outside the SWPF chain of command should be redirected to the SWPF official with the appropriate delegated authority to respond. Typically inspectors should direct all such communications to the Project Engineer. The Project Engineer may further redirect the official up the SWPF chain of command if the issue is beyond the Project Engineer's delegated authority. It is important not give an official outside the SWPF chain of command the impression that you personally will respond to or even accept receipt of or responsibility for, an issue that is above the Project Engineer's delegated level of authority.

6.5. Personal Safety

Personal safety and safe working conditions are the top priority on construction project sites, where the exposure to potential accident and injury is higher than in most work environments. Assigned staff should maintain safe working conditions and bring safety concerns to the Project Engineer's attention. The Project Engineer should hold monthly safety meetings with assigned staff (if any). The topics of discussion should fit the type of project and the particular construction activities under way at the time. Safety meetings should be documented.

All necessary safety equipment, required for the particular field conditions, must be made available to any employee who needs it (AS 18.60.075). The Departments Safety Manual references personal protective equipment and required assessments. Check with the PM and SWPF administrative staff concerning safety equipment purchases to avoid unauthorized expenditures since not all items are covered (steel toe boots are not covered - for one example). Department policy and procedure 10.01.022 Unauthorized Expenditures/Purchases provides additional guidance.

Each employee should familiarize themselves with the contents of the Safety Manual that applies to their working conditions. The manual is available on the
Department's internal website. Section 5.3 of the ACM covers safety precautions that must be taken around toxic and hazardous substances that may be present on the project site.

6.6. Emergencies

A list of emergency contact telephone numbers should be posted on the wall of the Project Engineer's office. At a minimum, police, fire department, paramedics, PM, AKOSH, contractor and client contact numbers should be listed.

6.7. Accident Reporting

The ultimate responsibility for reporting job site accidents to proper legal authorities rests with the person or entity directly paying the employee involved. SWPF is not responsible for reporting job site accidents on behalf of contractors (including subcontractors or consultants) for accidents involving any loss time on-the-job injury or fatality to a contractor employee, or any fatality, injury or property damage to a third party within project limits. However, the Project Engineer should notify the PM as soon as possible and record the accident in the inspector's daily log with as much detail as personally witnessed. The PM may provide additional guidance depending on the situation.

For accidents involving State employees, the Project Engineer must notify the employee's supervisor as soon as possible and provide as much information that is known at the time, and record the information in the daily inspection log. A "Supervisor's Accident Investigation Report" must be completed by the employees supervisor and submitted to the Chief for any on-the-job fatality, injury or property damage accident involving a state employee. The supervisor may contact the Project Engineer for additional information to complete the report or assist in the investigation. For more information, guidance, and forms visit the Safety, Security & Emergency Management Office on the Department's internal web site.

6.8. Employee Safety Concerns Program

The Department's employee safety concerns program is managed by the Statewide Safety Officer. The program is intended to handle safety concerns from employees who do not choose to raise concerns with their immediate supervisors. For more information visit the Safety, Security & Emergency Management Office on the Department's internal web site and read the Employee Concerns Manual.

6.9. Contractor Safety

Safety of the contractor's work force is the responsibility of the contractor. The contract requires the contractor to obey all laws and regulations. State safety laws and regulations are enforced by AKOSH. Enforcement of the federal Occupational Health and Safety Act is the responsibility of OSHA. The Project Engineer has no contractual or legal obligation to administer any safety plans or laws for the contractor or OSHA, and the Project Engineer should refrain from doing so in anyway.

Notwithstanding the above, it is prudent for the Project Engineer to be familiar with 29 CFR 1910, section 1926 of the federal Occupational Health and Safety Act, the Alaska Department of Labor safety regulations, and the Department's own Safety Office guidance. If the contractor is observed ignoring or violating the Act or regulations, the Project Engineer should discuss this verbally with the contractor. If the contractor continues to ignore or violate the Act or regulations, the Project Engineer should notify AKOSH. AKOSH will not respond unless they receive a formal complaint, phone calls do not constitute a formal complaint.

Above all, if the Project Engineer or inspector observes a condition where there is an imminent danger of serious injury or loss of life, the Project Engineer should immediately report this to the PM. If, in the judgment of the Project Engineer, there is not sufficient time to report the condition to the PM, the Project Engineer should write a directive to the contractor to stop work in the affected area.

7. Program Administration

- 7.1. General
- 7.2. External Affirmative Action Program
- 7.3. Internal Reporting Requirements
- 7.4. Labor Compliance
- 7.5. Buy American
- 7.6. Buy America
- 7.7. Alaska Product Preferences

7.1. General

Federal and state mandated administrative programs fall into two groups:

- External affirmative action programs
- All other administrative programs

The following is a summary of these administrative programs. Consult the ACM for more detailed guidance.

7.2. External Affirmative Action Program

The Civil Rights Office (CRO) is the Department's program authority (ref. policy and procedure 01.02.010). The Project Engineer should contact the CRO with questions concerning program administration.

External affirmative action has three major components:

- Equal employment opportunity (EEO)
- Disadvantaged business enterprise (DBE)
- On-the job training (OJT)

The **EEO program** applies to state and federally funded projects. The contract provides specific:

- Goals
- Good faith effort definition
- Reporting requirements

The **DBE program** applies to federally funded projects. The contract provides specific:

- DBE goals
- Requirements and definitions
- Reporting requirements

The **OJT program** applies to select FHWA funded projects. The contract provides specific:

- Program requirements
- Contractor obligations

7.3. Internal Reporting Requirements

The Project Engineer will collect information and provide reports to the CRO as required.

For contracts with DBE requirements, a commercially useful function (CUF) monitoring report, Form 25A-298, is needed regardless of the amount of the established DBE goal.

The Project Engineer (or designee) will interview each DBE's representative the first time they come onto the job site. A CUF report must be completed for each construction season, on a multi season project. Each CUF report must be signed and dated by the interviewer.

A CUF report should also be completed whenever there are significant changes to the DBE's day-to-day operations: such as a change in, or the lack of, an onsite representative. The Project Engineer will verify that the DBE on-site representative is a key employee.

The CRO should be immediately notified if the interview reveals a potentially adverse finding. Some examples of potentially adverse findings include:

- A "Yes" answer to the two-party check question
- Employee working for both DBE and prime contractor
- DBE is renting or leasing equipment
- No DBE on-site representative present

Discuss findings and significant changes with the CRO.

A copy of the report(s) may be provided to the contractor upon request. The Project Engineer will notify the contractor of potentially adverse findings and discuss ways to resolve issues.

The Project Engineer will send a copy of all reports to the CRO. They may be paper copies or electronic PDF files.

7.4. Labor Compliance

All contracts require the contractor to pay workers not less than the laborers and mechanics minimum rate of pay. These rates are bound into each project manual. The general provisions require the contractor and all subcontractors to submit weekly certified payrolls to the Alaska Department of Labor (DOL). Submitting certified payrolls to the Contracting Officer is discretionary unless required by the supplemental conditions.

DOL is responsible for enforcing minimum rates of pay on state funded projects. The Project Engineer may rely on DOL or chose to review the certified payroll (optional).

7.5. Buy American

Steel and manufactured products produced in the United States have a preference on FAA funded. Other federally (non FHWA) funded projects may also have this requirement.

7.6. Buy America

This applies only to FHWA funded contracts. The terms of Public Law 98-229 require that under most conditions only certain domestic materials may be incorporated into the project (23 CFR 635.410).

7.7. Alaska Product Preferences

Under the provisions of the Alaska product preferences in AS 36.15.050, the use of Alaska agricultural and fisheries products, including Alaskan timber and products manufactured in the state from timber and lumber, is required on state-funded contracts when the Alaskan items are priced no more than seven percent above similar outside products. Additionally, under AS 36.30.324, the Department encourages the use of Alaskan products and recycled Alaskan products in all Department procurements. Bidding preferences and monetary penalties for the use of or for the failure to use such products are established for all products except timber, lumber, and manufactured lumber products. The Alaska product preferences are not acceptable for federally funded projects.

The Alaska Department of Commerce and Economic Development (DCED) maintain a list of all Alaskan products eligible for the program. Contracts containing Alaska product preferences reference the availability of the "Alaska Product Preference Program Preparation Pamphlet" in the Special Notice to Bidders. The Project Engineer and assigned staff should review this pamphlet. It contains complete information on the program including: instructions to bidders for completing the Alaska product preferences worksheet; required product specification and installation schedule submittals; inspection procedures and procedures for correcting absent, nonconforming or not substantiable Alaskan products; documentation required to substantiate the declared value of Alaskan products (3AAC 92.050); and instructions for calculating applicable preferences and penalties.

8. Contract Administration in the Office

- 8.1. Subcontract Process
- 8.2. Subcontract Approval Process
- 8.3. Submittal Schedule
- 8.4. Substitution Request
- 8.5. Shop Drawings, Material Certifications, Product Submittals, Warranties, O&M Manuals, Spare Parts, and Training
- 8.6 Schedule Assurance
- 8.7. Schedule of Values
- 8.8 Recording As-built Changes
- 8.9 Other Administrative Approvals
- 8.10 Administrative Reviews & Inspections by Others

8.1. Subcontract Process

Most contracts prohibit subcontracting work without the Contracting Officer's prior written approval. Except for DB and Small Procurement contracts, AS 36.30.115 requires the contractor to submit a list of first tier subcontractors within five days of being notified of being apparent successful bidder. DB RFP's sometimes require major subcontractors to be listed in the contractor's proposal.

Listed first tier subcontractors may only be changed for the special circumstances listed in the contract. The contractor is thus obligated to a subcontractor well before being allowed to enter into a subcontract.

The Department recognizes this contractual situation and allows the contractor to sign a subcontract and obtain approval from the Contracting Officer after being notified of being apparent low bidder. In order for the Contracting Officer to retain the ability to reject a subcontract, subcontractors are not allowed to work on site until their subcontract is approved by the Contracting Officer. This includes all (first, second, third, etc.) tiers of subcontractors. This must be made clear to the contractor at the pre-construction conference.

Subcontractors may attempt to begin work without an approved subcontract. The Project Engineer will verbally notify the contractor if this situation is observed. If a contractor does not take immediate corrective action and uses or attempts to use a subcontractor not on the approved subcontractor list, the Project Engineer should write a letter advising the contractor that doing so is in violation of AS 36.30.115 and subject to penalty.

8.2. Subcontract Approval Process

There are two acceptable processes for approving subcontracts. The PM may review each subcontract and all subordinate documentation and then draft and sign a subcontract approval letter; or the PM may sign the contractor's Subcontractor Certification Form. The later process is the most commonly used process.

The Contracting Officer typically delegates authority to approve subcontracts to the PM. The PM may in turn delegate this authority to the Project Engineer.

The following requirements must be met before the subcontract is approved.

OPTION 1

1. A first tier subcontractor must be on the subcontractor list; not required if subcontract is less than $\frac{1}{2}$ of 1% of contract amount.

2. Subcontract must contain the required EEO document; BLDG-Form 30 (25A302) and BLDG-Form 31 (25A304) for federal projects.

3. Subcontractor must have insurance coverage in amounts required by the contract documents or that the subcontractor is covered on the general contractor's insurance policy.

4. Subcontract must provide documentation of the required electrical or mechanical administrators licenses if they are electrical or mechanical subcontractors.

5. Subcontract must have a provision for payment of subcontractor within 7 days of being paid by the Department.

6. Subcontractor must have a current Alaska business license.

7. Subcontractor must have a current Alaska contractor's license.

8. Amount of the subcontract must be clearly identified in the subcontract.

The PM is responsible for drafting and signing subcontract approval letters. The approval letter must name the subcontractor and the effective date of the approval. More than one subcontract may be approved in the same letter (Sample 08).

OPTION 2

The preferred and most commonly utilized method is to have the contractor fill out and sign a

Subcontractor Certification Form (BLDG-Form

05); the contractor, not the subcontractor, is to make this certification and sign this form. The PM is responsible for accepting the contractor's certification by signing the form after the contractor (no letter required).

8.3. Submittal Schedule

The specifications require the contractor to submit and maintain a schedule detailing submission dates for shop drawings, product data, and samples. The schedule should also indicate the date submittals are required to be returned by the Department and list decision dates for selection of finishes. Unless amended by supplemental conditions, the contractor is required to deliver a submittal schedule within fifteen days after the effective date of the NTP; this should be communicated in writing and at the pre-construction conference. The schedule should be checked for completeness (ensure that each submittal required by the contract documents is scheduled) and practicality (the design consultant should be consulted on this) and the contractor notified in writing (see sample 07) of its acceptability or need for revision. Like the progress schedule, the submittal schedule must be accepted by the PM prior to processing the contractor's first application for payment.

A properly prepared submittal schedule is a valuable tool for planning and tracking the submittal process. It should be discussed regularly at progress meetings and revised by the contractor as needed to reflect accurately the contractor's actual submission progress. Adherence to the schedule should be required of the consultants since shop drawing approval delays can result in impact claims by the contractor.

8.4. Substitution Request

Substitution requests will be permitted during the period identified in the contract, typically a set number of days after the NTP. Only one substitution will be considered for each item. The Project Engineer should verify these requirements and deadlines by reviewing Division 1 of the contract (not applicable to DB contracts).

All substitution requests must be made on the substitution request form (BLDG-Form 10). Use of this form ensures that the proper certifications required by the GC's and Division 1.

8.5. Shop Drawings, Material Certifications, Product Submittals,

Warranties, O&M Manuals, Spare Parts, and Training

Prior to the pre-construction conference, the Project Engineer is responsible for reading the technical specifications and making a list of all required submittals, e.g., shop drawings, product data, samples, manufacturer's instructions, material certifications, operation and maintenance manuals, warranties, spare materials, training, etc. The Department's design consultant may be tasked with preparing the list.

This list shall be used in reviewing the contractor's submittal schedule and as a checklist to monitor actual submittal activity. Each item on the list is assigned a consecutive submittal number and a designated reviewer (usually the A/E of Record).

The contractor will submit all copies of each submittal directly to the Project Engineer. Submittals accepted by the Project Engineer shall be logged on the submittal log (BLDG-Form 42).

The GC's require the contractor to stamp or otherwise indicate in writing that each submittal has been reviewed by the contractor and is in compliance with the contract, except as may be noted otherwise. It is the Project Engineer's responsibility to check for compliance with this requirement and to ensure that the submittal is sufficiently complete for review. Any submittal failing this test must be logged and immediately returned to the contractor with a note explaining the rejection. The log entries for "To A/E" and "From A/E" are skipped. The status is "rejected" and requires resubmission.

Upon receipt of a submittal, the Project Engineer will give the submittal to the designated reviewer with notice that the submittal has been received for review. This transmittal/notification needs to be documented. The date that the designated reviewer is notified is recorded on the log in the "To A/E" column. The submittal number shall be marked on the corresponding submittal item (the submittal number shall be marked on each copy in the event of multiple copies of the same submittal).

The designated reviewer will recommend action (usually by means of checking a box on the Department's submittal stamp) on each copy of the submittal, retain one copy and send the remainder to the Project Engineer.

The Project Engineer receives the submittal, logs the receipt date under "From A/E". The Project Engineer

reviews the reviewer's recommended action and decides to either accept the submittal or return the submittal to the contractor for further action. The Project Engineer will stamp each copy of the submittal, check the appropriate box, and retain one copy of the submittal for field.

The Project Engineer will retain one copy for the permanent record, one copy for the owner's facility maintenance personnel and update the submittal log and send the remaining copies to the contractor.

8.6 Schedule Assurance

The specifications may require the contractor to submit an anticipated CPM schedule for review at the Preconstruction Conference. The anticipated CPM schedule will cover the contractor's activities in detail for up to the first 60 days after issuance of the NTP, and in summary form through the milestone of final completion. The contractor is required to submit a finalized CPM schedule prior to submitting the first application for payment.

The specifications may call for a bar chart or a network analysis schedule. Detailed instructions for the preparation of the schedules are included in Division 1 and should be referenced in the review of the schedules. Schedules that do not meet the format required should be immediately returned for correction in strict accordance with the contract. There should also be a correlation between the progress schedule and the payment SOV for ease of reviewing payment requests.

The Department "**accepts**" rather than "approves" progress schedules. The progress schedule should realistically represent the contractor's labor, equipment, and materials projections; indicate any periods during which no work will be performed; and allow sufficient contingency for long lead items and equipment maintenance and repair. Pay items on progress schedule should match identical items on the SOV.

If it appears in light of all considerations that the work could reasonably be completed as shown, the Project Engineer shall draft a letter (see sample 06) for the PM's signature (Unless PM delegates responsibility to Project Engineer) notifying the contractor that DOT&PF has received and reviewed the schedule and that the schedule appears reasonable, contingent upon the furnishing of adequate materials, labor, and equipment to carry out the schedule. If, however, the proposed schedule appears overly optimistic, unnecessarily protracted, or otherwise unreasonable, the Project Engineer should seek the guidance of the PM before further action is taken.

The contractor may be required on some projects to submit a revised progress schedule with each Application for Payment. Detailed requirements regarding this are included in the Division 1 specifications (01310, 01311). These schedules should be carefully reviewed just like the original schedule to be sure they realistically represent actual conditions. As with the original submittal, any unacceptable schedule should be formally returned to the contractor and the contractor put on notice that the current Application for Payment will not be processed until the schedule has been corrected. The contractor should be advised to resubmit before the next pay estimate to preclude unnecessary delay in processing that payment.

If it becomes apparent that the contractor may not be able to complete work on time or is otherwise failing to make satisfactory progress, a letter should be written alerting the contractor of the probability of having funds withheld (retained) on the next progress payment for falling behind schedule and/or incurring liquidated damages and requesting a plan for improving the rate of progress. This letter should be prepared by the Project Engineer and signed by the PM with a copy sent to the Contracting Officer. No funds will be withheld (retained) without written approval of the Contracting Officer.

The current schedule should be filed in the project office for ready reference and actively used for scheduling inspections, staff assignments, and marking key construction activity dates.

8.7. Schedule of Values

The contractor is required to submit a schedule of values (SOV) on a BLDG-Form 23 or a contractor furnished form that clearly depicts the required information. The deadline is usually tied to the NTP and is defined in Division 1 of the Contract Documents. No payment can be made to the contractor until the SOV has been submitted and accepted.

The PM accepts the SOV. The Project Engineer is responsible for reviewing the SOV and recommending acceptance or recommending revisions required for

acceptance. The Project Engineer should review the SOV for the following conditions.

- Total work must be separated into pay items that can be easily evaluated for degree of completion
- Pay items on SOV should match identical items on the progress schedule
- Value of early pay items cannot be exaggerated at the expense of later items (front loaded)
- Submittals may be included as a pay item
- Subcontract work must be in separate pay items
- Stored Materials cannot be included as pay items
- Contract closeout must be included as a pay item with a reasonable amount specified
- Contingent Sum pay items must be included consistent with the bid schedule
- Total scheduled amount must equal the total contract amount
- The Project Engineer may use cost estimate prepared during design as a tool to truth the value of specific items in the SOV

If the SOV is acceptable, the Project Engineer drafts a letter (see sample 05) for the PM's signature accepting it for the limited purpose of approximating progress payments and disclaiming any determination that it represents the contractor's actual costs.

8.8 Recording As-Built Changes

Although the contractor is required by contract to keep a set of red line drawings to document current as-built conditions, the Project Engineer should clearly identify to project staff the Department's set of drawings set aside for recording red-line changes. Throughout the project, as changes occur, project staff must revise and update the designated set of red-line drawings in the field office on a timely basis. The Project Engineer should check the contractor's red line drawings against Department's red line drawings at each pay estimate.

The Project Engineer should enter all corrections, revisions, or additions to the work on the red-line drawings. New drawings or sketches should be added to the set as appropriate. Certain information on the drawings does not need to be updated, particularly information of no significance to the finished project like temporary construction features, staged construction schedules, or temporary traffic control measures. Any change made during construction to a permanent feature of the project, should be correctly shown on the final record drawings.

8.9 Other Administrative Approvals

If the Project Engineer receives notice of the loss of a contractor's insurance coverage or bonding coverage, through cancellation or insolvency, the contractor must immediately be notified of the requirement to completely restore the lost coverage. The contract specifies the time frames, if any, that apply and the procedures the contractor must follow in replacing the coverage.

If a contractor wishes to designate a third party to receive the payments on the contract or wishes to transfer the remaining work to another contractor, this is known as an assignment. The approvals of the Contracting Officer and of the contractor's bonding agent are both required. The contractor must present a written request to the Project Engineer, in accordance with the contract. The request will be subject to the review of the Contracting Officer. If an assignment of payments is approved, it is for the contractor's convenience only, and does not relieve the contractor of any contract obligations. When applicable, if payments and/or liquidated damages are withheld, it is the same as if the assignment had not occurred.

8.10 Administrative Reviews & Inspections by Others

The Project Engineer and project staffs are subject to inspections and reviews by numerous groups. Periodically the PM will visit the project site, as may the Contracting Officer and client.

8.10.1 Visitors

Generally, casual visits to the various projects should be discouraged due to safety considerations. Preferably, official visits will be scheduled and arranged through the PM. Safety is your primary concern. Do not allow visitors on-site if the project area is not safe. If visitors are not allowed on-site, the Project Engineer needs to inform the visitors of the safety concerns.

All visitors on site must receive a safety briefing by either the Project Engineer or the contractor's safety officer prior to entering the work site.

When visitors do visit the project, the Project Engineer will extend all courtesies and cooperation, provide visitors' hard-hats, vests, etc. as necessary, and personally escort or provide escort for all visitors to the project. Records, charts and reports will be current and available for review of visitors, as approved by the PM. The Project Engineer will maintain a register that visitors are to sign.

8.10.2 Regional Quality Reviews

On FHWA and FAA funded projects, the regional quality assurance/review unit may make periodic field reviews to check project documentation, record keeping and progress payment quantity calculation procedures, as well as to inspect field laboratory equipment, record keeping, and testing procedures.

8.10.3 Other State Reviews and Audits

Auditors from the Department and the Legislature may review project's records related to financial matters such as contractor and consulting engineering contract payments and reimbursement requests to federal and other agencies. DOLWD may conduct AKOSH safety inspections. DEC may conduct SWPPP inspections.

8.10.4 Federal Reviews

On federally funded projects, federal agencies can inspect the contractor's operations and the field operations of the Department (14 CFR 151.49a). The funding agency, the Office of Management and Budget, and the Inspector General may inspect the project's records. (This page intentionally left blank)

9. Contract Administration in the Field

- 9.1. Request for Information
- 9.2. Directives
- 9.3. Contractor's Equipment
- 9.4. Erosion, Sediment, and Pollution Control
- 9.5. Environmental Permits and Commitments

9.1. Request for Information

The contractors will periodically ask verbal and written questions (including email) regarding contract requirements. Verbal questions best answered by directing the contractor to a specific statement or drawing in the contract will be answered verbally and recorded in daily inspection report. Email questions will be treated in the same manner as verbal questions, answered verbally and recorded in the daily inspection report.

If the contractor desires a written response to questions, the Project Engineer should remind the contractor to submit a completed and signed request for information (RFI) form (BLDG-Form 14) as discussed in preconstruction conference.

The filled out RFI form may be transmitted back and forth as a PDF file via email. Original signatures are not required.

RFI's received by other construction management team members must be forwarded to Project Engineer as soon as possible. All RFI's must flow through the Project Engineer.

Logging RFI's

- Establish RFI log (BLDG-Form 42)
- Assign every RFI a sequential number starting with 001 and log it
- Don't re-use numbers even if the RFI is later rescinded, withdrawn or modified and resubmitted
- The contractor may assign numbers to the RFI form, if so, note the contractors number in log under description
- Put sequential number on RFI form above or below the contractor's number (if applicable) before sending RFI to designer of record or returning RFI to the contractor

Evaluating RFI's

- Return unclear, incomplete or ambiguous RFI forms to the contractor with request for clarification or more information
- Return RFI forms requesting change or substitution to the contractor with request to submit change notice or substitution request
- Log RFI's returned to the contractor in comments column

Answering technical RFI's

- Forward RFI regarding drawings or technical specifications to respective designer of record
- Project Engineer prepares response after designer of record comments are received

Answering RFI's dealing with Division 1, General and Supplemental Conditions or field conditions

• Project Engineer prepares response immediately and designer of record review is discretionary

Transmittal to the contractor

- Project Engineer signs and dates RFI form when response is complete
- Log reply in comments column
- Signed RFI is sent to the contractor

9.2. Directives

Directives are written communications to the contractor from Contracting Officer interpreting or enforcing a contract requirement or ordering commencement of an item of work. Directives provide "no cost" written clarification or interpretation of the contract.

Contractually, directives can take on any form so long as they constitute formal written direction from an authorized representative of Contracting Officer to the contractor. Authority to issue directives is limited to delegations contained in authorities and limitation letter issued to the contractor at pre-construction conference. Project Engineers should use BLDG-Form 36 when issuing directives.

Logging directives

- Establish directive log (BLDG-Form 42)
- Assign every directive a sequential letter starting with A. After 26 directives, use double letters

9.3. Contractor's Equipment

When the contractor first mobilizes equipment to project site and as each additional piece of equipment arrives on site, the Project Engineer and project staff should inventory equipment. The contract, with a few exceptions, only requires the contractor to provide equipment spread capable of completing contract within contract time; the choice of equipment is left up to the contractor. Contractor vehicles and equipment requiring licensing must be licensed in Alaska at all times during their use.

When Project Engineer and project staff inventory equipment, they should gather basic information on each piece. Information should include the classification, make, model, year of manufacture, horsepower, attachments and optional features, capacity, engine fuel, serial number, and the contractor's number. This information will help Project Engineer establish a rental rate for each piece of equipment, if necessary. The project staff should use still photographs and videotape to document the initial condition of the contractor's equipment.

9.4. Erosion, Sediment, and Pollution Control

The magnitude of work required by the contractor and Project Engineer to comply with erosion, sediment and pollution control contractual and permitting requirements depend on many factors, but two are particularly important.

- Is there any soil disturbing activity associated with the construction?
- If so, is the total soil disturbance one acre or more in area?

If there is no known potential for soil disturbance during construction, an erosion and sediment control plan (ESCP) is not required to be part of the contract. If there is known potential for soil disturbance during construction, the PM is responsible for including an ESCP in the contract indicating location and estimated area (in acres or fraction thereof) of soil disturbance.

There are subtle differences in contractual and contract administration requirements for projects with less than an acre or soil disturbance and projects with one or more acres of disturbance. The PM must ensure contract adequately addresses these requirements.

The PM is responsible for ensuring the contract includes:

- Latest version of Section 01 57 10 Erosion, Sediment and Pollution Control
- ESCP in Drawings (if potential for soil disturbing activities exists)
- Reference ESCP in Drawing index
- Reference Section 01 57 10 in
 - Summary of work need to tell the contractor if construction general permits applies (1 acres or more) or not
 - Work restrictions
 - Project meetings
 - \circ Submittals
 - o Quality control
 - Construction facilities & temporary controls if applicable
 - Contract closeout

If the ESCP estimates less than one acre of soil disturbance, but the contractor does something unexpected, like lease, clear and grub an adjacent lot for a project lay down area, for example, the more stringent contractual and contract administration requirements may apply if the total disturbed area equals or exceeds one acre.

The Project Engineer must carefully read and understand Section 01 57 10 of the contract. The Project Engineer is responsible for reviewing and approving the SWPPP and performing other SWPPP related duties. The Project Engineer must be qualified in conformance with the contract requirements and certification shall be current prior to performing any duties related to the SWPPP. The Project Engineer is also responsible for reviewing and approving hazardous material control plan (HMCP) which may be an appendix to the SWPPP (if required) or a standalone document.

There are significant potential penalties for both the Department and the contractor for failure to properly implement and maintain pollution prevention plans. The Project Engineer must be thoroughly versed in contractually required pollution prevention for each project before the contractor begins work on site.

Additional guidance is available on the Departments web site under SWDES under Resources:

- Construction: ACM Chapters 3 & 9
- Environmental: Storm Water & Water Quality
- Bridge: Alaska Highway Drainage Manual, Chapter 16

While the above guidance may have a highway and aviation construction focus, the information within has broad application useful to SWPF as applicable.

Any penalties accumulated by the contractor under Section 01 57 10 must be dealt with by a deductive change order at the end of the project or in the form of a billing to the contractor. FHWA and FAA (and perhaps other federal aid providers) will not participate in these deductive change orders, so the only option in these cases is to bill the contractor.

9.5. Environmental Permits and Commitments

The contractor must comply with all environmental permits and commitments required to construct a project. The PM is responsible for ensuring that environmental permits and commitments obtained or agreed to by the Department are included in the contract.

The entity granting the permit generally has enforcement authority. The Project Engineer's role is to verbally notify the contractor if permit violations are observed, followed by written notification if corrective action is not taken in a timely manner.

Additional guidance is available on the Departments web site under SWDES, Environmental Resources: Alaska Environmental Procedures Manual. (This page intentionally left blank)

10. Quality Control and Quality Assurance

- 10.1. General
- 10.2. Quality Control
- 10.3. Quality Assurance
- 10.4. Warranty and Guarantee
- 10.5. Defective Work
- 10.6. Minor Non-Compliance
- 10.7. Non-Compliance Notification (NCN)
- 10.8. Failed Test Results
- 10.9. Corrective Action Proposal
- 10.10. Corrective Action Proposal Approval
- 10.11. NCN Close Out
- 10.12. NCN Log / Payments
- 10.13. Nonresponsive Contractor
- 10.14. Other Potential Remedies
- 10.15. Detailed Records of Disputes
- 10.16. Deviations From Contract

10.1. General

There are subtle differences between quality control (QC) and quality assurance (QA) as defined in contract. The PM will ensure QC and QA are correctly defined in contract. The Project Engineer must understand the difference between QC and QA and seek guidance from the PM if confusion arises about correct application of the two concepts.

10.2. Quality Control

QC is defined in the contract in several places. Division 0 of contract defines QC as "Tests and inspections by the CONTRACTOR to insure the acceptability of materials incorporated into the work. QC test reports are used as a basis upon which to determine whether the Work conforms to the requirements of the Contract Documents and to determine its acceptability for payment".

The contract technical specifications sometimes use the term QA interchangeably with the term QC, which can be confusing. Division 0 of the contract compensates for this by defining QA as "Where referenced in the technical specifications (Division 2 through 16), Quality Assurance refers to measures to be provided by the CONTRACTOR as specified".

QC is further defined in Division 1; Section 01400. The term "QC Program" may also be defined in the contract as a supplementary condition to the GC's.

The contract does not establish any obligation for the Department to assist the contractor with QC. Failure

of the Department to inspect or observe work does not excuse or waive any requirement of the contract. The Project Engineer must not allow the contractor's contractual QC obligation to be performed by the contract administration team at the Department's or client's expense.

10.3. Quality Assurance

QA is a program comprised of tests and inspections performed to evaluate the methods, accuracy and precision of the contractor's QC tests. SWPF is responsible for implementing its QA program. QA is done by SWPF at its expense to verify the contractor's QC measures are adequate and to confirm the contractor is performing work in accordance with the contract. As such, QA does not duplicate or replace QC.

The PM is responsible for retaining under a PSA the services for QA testing and inspection, which will include but not be limited to IBC special inspections. During construction the Project Engineer must obtain the contractor's QC plan and use it to help develop a QA plan to schedule the type and frequency of QA tests and inspections.

10.4. Warranty and Guarantee

The contractor must warranty and guarantee all work will be in accordance with the contract and will not be defective. The Project Engineer is responsible only for approving payment for work acceptably completed in accordance with the contract.

10.5. Defective Work

Work deviating from the contract is defective work. The Project Engineer should bring defective work to the contractor's attention.

Deviations include:

- Unauthorized extra work
- Unacceptable materials
- Unacceptable workmanship

10.6. Minor Non-Compliance

In general, a minor non-compliance may be verbally communicated to the contractor and correction observed and confirmed. Where verbal notification does not produce correction within 24 hours, written notification of non-compliance will be issued referencing previous verbal notification.

10.7. Non-Compliance Notification (NCN)

If the contractor is non-responsive to verbal notification after 24 hours, or a major non-compliance issue is observed, written notification should be issued immediately. The Project Engineer will notify the contractor (other than tests corrected on the same day) using a non-compliance notification form (NCN), BLDG-Form 12. The NCN will identify nonconforming work or non-compliance and if re-work is extensive or complicated or time consuming, the contractor is required to submit a corrective action proposal.

10.8. Failed Test Results

If QC or QA test results indicate work does not meet specified minimum requirements, the test report is the written NCN for work represented by the test result.

The failed test will be noted on NCN form for ease and consistency of record keeping and logged as a non-compliance notice. The effective date of NCN is the time and date of failed test.

10.9. Corrective Action Proposal

For extensive or complicated NCNs, the contractor must provide a corrective action proposal to resolve a non-compliance issue. The Project Engineer (and respective consultant if applicable) will review the contractor's corrective action proposal.

If the contractor's corrective action proposal (page 2 of BLDG-Form 12) is not acceptable, the Project Engineer (and A/E of record as required) will sign the NCN as unapproved and annotate additional contractor action required.

10.10. Corrective Action Proposal Approval

If the contractor's corrective action proposal is acceptable, the Project Engineer will sign NCN as approved. The PM's or design A/E's approval may also be required depending on the nature of the noncompliance issue. The contractor's actual proposal will either be on NCN form or noted as an attachment. A copy of signed NCN will be given to the contractor.

10.11. Non-Compliance Notice (NCN) Close Out

When the contractor completes corrective action and work is accepted, the PM signs the bottom line of NCN and gives it to the contractor. The Project Engineer may sign the form if delegated this authority. Acceptance of work should be recorded promptly in the NCN log to ease review and ensure accuracy of contractor's next payment requests.

10.12. Non-Compliance Notice (NCN) Log / Payments

Whether a NCN is handed, faxed, Emailed or mailed to a contractor it must be logged in NCN Log, including failed test results. The Project Engineer is responsible for maintaining the NCN Log (BLDG-Form 42).

The Project Engineer must review the NCN log when analyzing each request for contractor payment. The **Project Engineer will not recommend payment for any work covered by an unresolved NCN.**

10.13. Nonresponsive Contractor

If the contractor disregards an NCN and continues to work, The Project Engineer should inspect work. The Department's decision to inspect and measure defective or unauthorized extra work does not constitute acceptance of work or commitment to pay the contractor for work.

The Project Engineer should issue a directive to the contractor to correct or remove defective work and notify the PM that a directive was issued. Unless the situation is critical or the PM is unavailable, the Project Engineer should seek verbal concurrence from the PM in advance of issuing a directive.

If the contractor disregards a directive to correct or remove defective work, the Contracting Officer is authorized to stop the contractor's work. Stopping the contractor's work is a very drastic and potentially costly decision requiring coordination with the PM and the Contracting Officer prior to preparing a stop work letter.

If the Contracting Officer decides to stop the contractor's work, the Project Engineer will prepare a draft stop work letter for review by the PM prior to submitting the letter to the Contracting Officer for signature.

10.14. Other Potential Remedies

The Contracting Officer may accept defective work with (or without) a decrease in the contract price. This option is usually undesirable and should only be considered after the Project Engineer and PM have explored and evaluated all other options. The Contracting Officer may also elect to correct defective work with state forces or by separate the contract and deduct payment from the contract. Again, this option is usually undesirable and should only be considered after the Project Engineer and PM have explored and evaluated all other options.

10.15. Detailed Records of Disputes

The Project Engineer must keep detailed records of any disputes in the daily report. If the Project Engineer is unable to resolve the situation the PM must be notified.

10.16. Deviations From Contract

The Project Engineer should notify the PM immediately if the contractor encounters physical conditions different from those described in the contract. The PM should also be immediately notified if permit modifications or additional permits appear necessary. (This page intentionally left blank)

11. Claims

- 11.1. Contractor Claims
- 11.2. Claims Against the Contractor for Damage
- 11.3. Claims Against the Contractor for Money

11.1. Contractor Claims

The contract requires the contractor immediately bring to the Department's attention in writing any act or occurrence which may become the basis of a claim for additional compensation or time. Under some circumstances, the contractor may not believe timely notice is in the contractor's best interest and this requirement will be ignored. Therefore, the Project Engineer should always be watching for potential claims.

The contractor is required to provide notice before beginning any work upon which a claim may be based, insofar as possible, or as soon as the contractor encounters such circumstances, as to when differing site conditions are found. The specifications require the contractor to continue diligent performance of the work.

The PM will immediately acknowledge receipt of the contractor's notice with a letter and will forward a copy of the notice to the Contracting Officer. At this point the contract administration team will make every effort to equitably solve the problem, by contract change document, or whatever means may be correct and proper within the policies, procedures, and specifications.

If after seven days no resolution has been reached, the contractor has fourteen days to submit a formal written notice of intention to claim. The intent to claim must be addressed to the PM and should include the reasons for requesting additional compensation or time, substantiating facts, and an understandable derivation of the amount of money and/or time requested.

The PM should immediately acknowledge receipt in writing of the intent to claim. The written receipt should state the deadline for submission of the claim. The PM should also request any missing information needed to support the contractor's intended claim, but must not make reference to the validity of the claim.

The contractor has 60 days from the intent letter to file the formal claim with the PM. During this period, before the dispute becomes a formal claim, negotiations between the contractor and the contract administration team may continue, in an effort to resolve the matter at the lowest possible level.

A letter acknowledges receipt of the formal claim. If necessary, additional information can be requested during this time to fully review the claim. Meetings should be held to ensure both parties clearly understand each other's positions.

These informational meetings should follow an agenda. In the event that negotiations are entered into, those meetings should also follow a general agenda but should not be tape recorded in order to maintain confidentiality of the negotiations.

It should be emphasized that maximum effort must be exerted to resolve the claim below the Contracting Officer level. No claim is to be passed on to the Contracting Officer for a Contracting Officer's Decision until the PM has exhausted all research into the claim and has reached an impasse in negotiations. If all efforts do prove futile during the 60 days allotted, a finding of fact letter shall be prepared by the PM denying the claim (or portion thereof if a partial settlement was reached) and informing the contractor that the only recourse is to submit the claim to the Contracting Officer. The PM will then prepare a report of the facts and circumstances, documented with all the data relative to the claim. The data must not be edited and shall include all correspondence, contract documents, test reports, diary entries, etc., that have any bearing on the matter. This report shall be transmitted to the Contracting Officer for consideration prior to the formal Contracting Officer's decision.

11.2. Claims Against the Contractor for Damage

Claims received by the Department for alleged damage to third party property or injury resulting from the contractor's operations should be investigated, and referred to the contractor for settlement, if considered by the PM to have been the result of the contractor's operations.

Copies of correspondence pertaining to impending claims should be transmitted to the Contracting Officer. The Attorney General's office may be asked for advice if the responsibility of the State or contractor is not clearly defined.

11.3. Claims Against the Contractor for Money

When the Department receives claims for money owed by the contractor, the claimant should be advised to file a lien against the contractor's payment bond in accordance with AS 36.25.020(c). A copy of the contractor's payment bond should be included with the correspondence. If the claim has not been satisfied by the time the final estimate is submitted by the contractor, the contractor should provide written acknowledgment of the existence of outstanding claims by subcontractors, suppliers, etc. when submitting certification of payment.

Wage or tax complaints received from the State Departments of Labor or Revenue should be handled as detailed in Section 12.8.

12. Contractor Payments

- 12.1. General
- 12.2. Pay Estimate
- 12.3. Payment Verification Process
- 12.4. Retainage
- 12.5. Payment for Stored Materials and Equipment
- 12.6. Withholding Payment
- 12.7. Interest
- 12.8. Assignment of Payments

12.1. General

A primary duty of the Project Engineer and PM is to see that the contractor receives timely progress payments for work acceptably completed. Complementary to this duty is the requirement to prevent overpayment by ensuring that the contractor is not inadvertently paid for work that is unacceptable, not yet acceptably completed, or for deductions that may apply in compliance with contract requirements. SWPF has 30 days to process pay estimate for State funded and 21 days for Federal funded projects. However, it is good practice to review and notify the contractor within 7 days if there are any issues. Alaska Statute 36.90.200 (c) requires this notification to be made in writing within eight working days after receipt of the payment request.

12.2. Pay Estimate

The contractor is allowed to submit a pay estimate each month, or twice a month with approval of the PM. The contractor must use the periodic estimate for partial payment (BLDG-Form 25) unless the PM approves the use of a contractor generated form. Any substitute form must have all of the same information as the SWPF form and be based on total work completed to date, not work performed this period.

The pay estimate is prepared and signed by the contractor and then transmitted to the Project Engineer. There is no requirement for the contractor to coordinate the pay estimate with the Project Engineer prior to submission, but it may be worth reminding the contractor that prior coordination usually expedites the process.

12.3. Payment Verification Process

Due to the high importance of this task, dedicating sufficient time and attention to the effort is essential. The Project Engineer is responsible for reviewing or confirming the following aspects of pay estimates submitted by the contractor.

- Original SOV must be accepted by PM (or Project Engineer if delegated this authority) before approving first pay estimate.
- SOV must be amended and accepted by Project Engineer if a change order adds new pay items to SOV and / or changes the amount of existing pay items prior to approving payment for change order work.
- Verify the contractor's estimate of percentage complete for each work item and each change order. Discuss apparent irregularities with the contractor and seek agreement. Discuss with PM if agreement cannot be reached.
- For FHWA or FAA projects complete a Progress Summary form (BLDG-Form 24) for each item and each change order, for every pay estimate.
- Do not approve payment for any change order work without a fully executed change order and an amended SOV approved by PM (or Project Engineer if delegated this authority).
- Change Orders for non-participating (not eligible for federal funding) work should be separated and totaled/referenced to the correct line of coding before sending it to Region (for FHWA/FAA work).
- Check the cost of completed work extensions for mathematical accuracy.
- "Stored Material or Equipment" must be verified by physical inventory (See Section 12.5)
- Verify payment for materials stored on site by checking contractor submitted documentation (See Section 12.5).
- Deduct from "Stored Material or Equipment" any materials previously paid on this line which have subsequently been incorporated into the work. (See Section 12.5). Use BLDG-Form 26.
- Verify "Less Previous Payments" by checking accounting records.
- Verify "Amount Payable this estimate" by checking all math.
- Verify that a progress schedule update has been submitted since the last pay estimate if required by the contract.
- Verify that the contractor's red line record drawings have been updated since the last pay estimate

- For federally funded projects, verify certified payroll is up to date in project files
- For federally funded projects, verify DBE monthly summary reports have been submitted

When the Project Engineer is satisfied that the pay estimate accurately reflects a reasonable estimate of the work performed and accepted, the Project Engineer signs it and forwards it to the PM, typically by Email as a PDF attachment. The PM completes the pay estimate by entering the encumbrance number and amount to be paid in the appropriate lines and signs it. The PM delivers the payment request to the SWPF Financial Coordinator.

The SWPF Financial Coordinator is responsible for checking math, encumbrances, obtaining the Chief's signature, forwarding the original to the Finance Section for payment, and forwarding a copy of the signed pay estimate to the contractor.

Due to the time sensitive nature of contractor payments, it is considered best practice for each person processing a pay estimate keep their own log indicating the date they processed and forwarded it. Pay applications shall be processed by the Project Engineer within seven days of receipt. Processed may mean returning to the contractor for corrections and resubmitting. Every effort should be taken to process the application for payment immediately upon receipt.

12.4. Retainage

The contract GC's permit the Department to retain up to 10% of payments due the contractor when the Department finds that satisfactory progress is not being made. This is intended to protect the State from making overpayment in the event the contractor fails to complete the job. It is not intended to be a penalty against the contractor. Because it is not a penalty, the State is required by statute to pay interest which accrues from the date of approval of the pay request until the date of payment to the contractor on all retainage. At the time the statue was written, the interest rate was specified as 10.5% per annum. Therefore, retainage should only be considered when it is absolutely necessary to protect the State's best interests.

The procedures shown below are to be followed when contemplating any retainage action:

• The PM, upon finding cause for withholding retainage shall prepare justification with

supporting documentation such as progress schedules, etc. for forwarding to the Chief

- Documentation should include a draft encumbrance memorandum for the 10.5% per annum interest on the proposed retainage until scheduled substantial completion
- Approval of the Chief to retain contractor payments shall be for one month only and shall be renewed only if the PM demonstrates that prior justification is still valid
- Approval authority for retainage shall not be redelegated

12.5. Payment for Stored Materials and Equipment

Progress payments may include allowance for materials and equipment not yet incorporated in the work, or deposit payments for manufacturers per the contract GCs Articles 13.2 and 13.5. The PM is responsible for ensuring that the contract supplementary conditions specify the minimum amounts that will be considered for payment.

The material and/or equipment must meet contract requirements and be stored on the project site or other location accessible to and approved in writing by the Project Engineer. Unless stated otherwise in the PDC or approved by the PM, the contractor must produce evidence of payment or other documentation that warrants that the Department has received the materials free and clear of all charges, security interests, and encumbrances. The contractor must also produce evidence of property insurance sufficient to protect the Department's interest. Test reports, certifications, approved shop drawings, and other necessary literature must also be on file.

When payment is made for stored material or equipment delivered and suitably stored, the contractor is no longer free to dispose of it in any manner chosen. Any transfers, waste, etc. must be noted and debited out. Similarly, when material is removed for incorporation in the project an appropriate reduction in stored material or equipment allowance must be made on the next application for payment.

Allowance is normally given for the invoice price of material or equipment plus freight charges as delivered to the project. Occasionally, stockpiling of material or equipment at a location other than the project site may be approved. In such cases, the allowance should include the invoice price of the materials plus freight charges to the approved stockpile location.

The value of stored material or equipment paid must provide a reasonable allowance for sufficient funds to cover installation the items based on the SOV. As a general rule, an item in the SOV may be expected to be about 50% materials and 50% labor. If the contractor presents a request for payment of stockpiled materials or equipment that appears to be unbalanced, the contractor should be asked to provide evidence of sufficient remaining funds to install the item, or be given the option of modifying the SOV.

If the accepted schedule indicates an item is to be installed within the next 60 days, payment requests for stockpile materials should usually be disallowed. Minimum thresholds for payment of stored material or equipment (dollar amount or percent of contract) may be established in the contract; if so, requests for payment below these thresholds must be disallowed.

Stockpiled payment will not be made for the following:

- Materials that do not meet the specifications
- Materials valued below minimum threshold established in contract supplementary conditions
- Materials without necessary documentation of suitability, evidence of payment, and insurance
- Materials that have not been personally inventoried by an employed or contracted representative of the State
- Materials which will not become a permanent part of the completed facility (such materials are eligible for payment under mobilization costs or as a percentage of completion on a given item of work; however, they are not considered stockpiled materials per se for the purpose of this section). Examples would be lumber for falsework, visqueen for concrete curing, and temporary lighting materials.
- Perishable materials, such as Portland cement, epoxies and seed, unless properly stored to prevent loss of these materials due to weather or moisture intrusion. Living plants will not be paid for until planted.
- Small warehouse items such as nails, screws, and miscellaneous shelf items

Materials that are damaged, but which are repairable may be paid for with an appropriate reduction for repair costs, providing the Client is in agreement; otherwise no payment will be made until repairs are satisfactorily completed.

If materials are stored at a location other than on site, the contractor shall pay for Department to inspect. This can include airfare, car rental, hotel, etc.

12.6. Withholding Payment

The contract GCs allow the Department to withhold payment for:

- Defective work
- Department having to correct defective work
- Evidence of the contractor being in default of the contract
- Claims against the Department on account of the contractor's actions
- Nullifying previous payment for work subsequently discovered to be defective
- Nullifying previous payment for work subsequently discovered to have been overpaid on previous pay estimate
- Other violations of the contract

If payment is withheld for any reason, the PM should bring this to the attention of all parties by attaching an explanatory memorandum to the first pay estimate from which money is withheld.

12.7. Interest

Alaska statutes provide for payment of interest on amounts due a contractor if payment is not made within 30 days after receipt of a pay estimate from the contractor that complies with the contract. Interest accumulates from the 31st day through the payment date. Therefore, all progress and final estimates must show the date received from the contractor and the date approved for payment. The date paid can be found in the Alaska State Accounting System.

Statutory interest is 10.5% per annum.

Payment of interest is not automatic; the contractor must request interest payment in a letter to the Project Engineer. Such a letter will be treated as a change notice.

12.8. Assignment of Payments

Do not assign any contractor payments to another party unless specifically directed in writing by the Contracting Officer. The Contracting Officer will require consent of Surety before the request will be considered. Requests from the contractor, Alaska Department of Labor or by an Officer of the Alaska Court System may be forwarded to the Contracting Officer for consideration.

Subcontractors, suppliers and lenders should be notified of the existence of the payment bond and the performance bond before their request for assignment is accepted. If after being so advised a request for assignment is received, it should be forwarded to the Contracting Officer for reply. Most sureties will not consent to assignments where a bond claim is more appropriate.

13. Contract Changes and Supplemental Agreements

- 13.1. General
- 13.2. Interim Work Authorization
- 13.3. Requests for Changes
- 13.4. Evaluating Change Request
- 13.5. Supplemental Agreements
- 13.6. Change Orders
- 13.7. Funding and Encumbrance
- 13.8. Requests for Proposals
- 13.9. Contract Changes and Change Order Procedures
- 13.10. Requirements for Professional Seals
- 13.11. Procurement of Supplies vs. Procurement of Construction

13.1. General

Contract changes may include modifications to:

- Material requirements
- Specifications
- Contract time
- Details of construction

Contract changes may also be used for:

- Resolution of disputes
- Equitable adjustments
- Other deviations from the original contract

Changes are authorized differently depending on type of contract. The Project Engineer must review change procedures in the contract.

The change is part of the contract once executed.

13.2. Interim Work Authorization

Under some circumstances, an interim work authorization (IWA) may be used to initiate work until a subsequent contract change is executed.

Contract changes outside the scope of original contract are made according to the procurement code (AS 36.30). If the work is awarded to the current prime contractor, a supplemental agreement to the contract will be executed (see Section 13.7).

For changes within the scope of the original contract, the PM and Project Engineer can initiate work, within their delegated authority through an:

- IWA
- Change Order
- Directive (for contingent sum items only)

• Contingency authorizations for CMGC contracts

The change document is considered executed when the Department signs and issues the written order. No payment for proposed changes will be made to the contractor until after the change document is executed.

In some cases the change document or the supplemental agreement related to a federal-aid project requires federal agency authorization prior to execution. PM's are responsible for being aware of, and communicating these project specific requirements to the Project Engineer. Additional information concerning FHWA or FAA funded projects is available in the ACM.

Contracts administered for a client may require client approval prior to execution of a change document. PM's will refer to the individual project agreements.

When emergency conditions occur that threaten the safety, health, welfare, or sanitary conditions of the public, DOT&PF infrastructure, or the environment, the Project Engineer may verbally initiate changes to the contract with change documents to follow on the same day. The Department employee with delegated authority must approve the verbal authorization prior to beginning work, unless communications are unavailable or delayed. In this case, the Project Engineer may assume this responsibility and will notify the Department employee with delegated authority as soon as practicable.

An issue should not be separated into multiple change documents in order to avoid circumventing delegated authority limits. **Unless an emergency exists, the Project Engineer must inform the PM of any pending action which may increase or decrease the contract amount or may increase or decrease the contract time.**

13.3. Requests for Changes

Requests for changes may be made by:

- Client
- Contractor
- Designer(s)
- Regulatory agencies
- Department

All requests must be in writing and be routed through the Project Engineer. **The Project Engineer must forward the request to the PM for a determination concerning availability of funding and the correct procurement method.**

Contractor requested changes, including those originating with a subcontractor, must be submitted on a Change Notice (BLDG-Form 16).

13.4. Evaluating Change Request

A change order must meet all three conditions:

- Compelling reason for changing contract instead of issuing a separate contract for added work.
- Must be within the general scope and result in substantially same end product as original contract.
- Must be within the project limits of the original contract.

Any change not meeting all three criteria is a supplemental agreement.

13.5. Supplemental Agreements

Supplemental agreements are a negotiated written agreement between the Department and the contractor authorizing performance of work beyond the general scope of, but in conjunction with, the original contract. Supplemental agreements are new procurement under the State procurement code, AS 36.30.

Supplemental agreements cover changes outside the scope of the contract. The Chief Contracting Officer determines whether the proposed additional work falls within or outside the scope of the contract.

Supplemental agreements are awarded to the current prime contractor. All supplemental agreements are bilateral agreements.

Supplemental agreements for federally funded projects usually require funding agencies approval before adding the work. Depending on federal funding source, send:

- A cover letter and a copy of the waiver request for alternate procurement methods and the draft supplemental agreement to the FHWA for approval.
- A cover letter and the draft Supplemental Agreement to the FAA for approval.

13.6. Change Orders

Change orders are written by the Project Engineer, reviewed and approved by the Project Engineer if within the Project Engineer's delegated authority or the PM (under \$25,000), or the Contracting Officer (over \$25,000). Change orders are consecutively numbered in the order of issuance.

13.7. Funding and Encumbrance

The PM must ensure funding is available and encumbered prior to change document or IWA being executed.

The project's change order reserve (if any) should not be used to fund client requested program changes.

If the PM has set up a program contingency fund to cover client directed discretionary changes, funding for program changes should come from the project's program contingency funds. In cases where there is no program contingency and it is anticipated that the change order reserve is not sufficient for "extra" work, the client should be advised that additional funds will be necessary to fund the work and all related design, inspection and administration costs. A contract change should not be issued prior to a funding commitment by the client.

13.8. Requests for Proposals

The Department uses a RFP (BLDG-Form 17) to request price proposal from the contractor for extra work. The Project Engineer drafts the RFP and sends it to the contractor with a copy to the PM. The RFP usually results from one of the many forums of a request for a change. The Project Engineer processes the RFP or CN as follows.

- Log item on the RFP/CN Log (BLDG-Form 42).
- A contractor generated CN must be submitted to the Project Engineer before any work is performed. The Project Engineer and PM need the opportunity to mitigate costs for the perceived "change". A RFP may need to be issued or a change document may be required.
- For CN's, the Project Engineer and PM confirm that the issue is a change to the contract. If it is not, the Project Engineer prepares a letter for signature by the PM to the contractor rejecting the CN. If the issue is a legitimate change to the contract documents, proceed to the next step.

- The Project Engineer prepares a draft RFP.
- The Project Engineer circulates the draft RFP for review by the PM and the design consultant if applicable.
- If applicable, the Project Engineer circulates the draft to CRO or Regional Environmental Sections if DBE goals or environmental commitments are affected (federal funds only).
- The Project Engineer establishes and communicates a specific due date for comments, stating that if no comments are received by the due date, processing will proceed without modification.
- The Project Engineer prepares final RFP by resolving/incorporating all comments, establishing deadline for response.
- Transmit the RFP to the contractor and distribute copies to the PM, and if appropriate, the design consultant.
- The Project Engineer requests an estimate from the respective consultant or prepares one himself
- Upon receipt of estimate and contractor's proposal, Project Engineer resolves any scope differences with the contractor so that both estimates cover the same scope of work.
- The Project Engineer schedules a change order negotiation meeting with Contractor.
- The PM (or Project Engineer if delegated this authority) negotiates with the contractor and the Project Engineer records the negotiations.
- If an agreement can be reached on both price and time, the Project Engineer drafts a change order in accordance with the procedures below.
- If an agreement cannot be reached, the Project Engineer may prepare a unilateral change document. It is executed when the Department signs it. If the contractor refuses to do the work – a directive is issued. After the unilateral change document is executed it is part of the contract and therefore a directive can be used.
- If an agreement cannot be reached, the Project Engineer may also consider not doing the work or doing the work under separate contract when the job is done.

13.9. Contract Changes and Change Order Procedures

There are two parts to every change order, the change document itself and the change order backup. The change order backup is not part of the contract change document, but is very important for other reasons. **Change Document:** The change order is prepared on a BLDG-Form 20. The text of the change order describes the work to be done in terms of plan, specification, quantity changes (if any), references any related RFP's or RFI's and summarizes changes in contract time and cost. Any necessary attachments (drawings, catalog cuts, specifications, etc.) are identified as such by reference in the narrative. The change order may also reference documents that are not attached; e.g., building codes, existing contract specifications, previously transmitted drawings, and directives. However, it is recommended for clarity that each change order be as self contained as possible. The complete assembly constitutes the revision to the contract.

Change Order Backup: Documentation for every change order **must be sufficient to justify** the amount of compensation agreed upon and the necessity for the change. Personnel preparing back up must realize that the change order **must stand up to review**, sometimes **years after it is written**, and that almost any change is a potential dispute which can take years to settle. Documentation must contain information such as the following:

- Origin and necessity of the change
- Description of the change (supplementary to that described on the change document) as needed to fully explain the work
- Copies of, or reference to, all correspondence to and from the contractor that is pertinent to the change
- RFP's and RFI's pertinent to the change
- Copies of the designer and/or Project Engineer's estimate, or copies of the contractor's proposal with Project Engineer's initials signifying review and concurrence

It is not necessary that a formal document be written to summarize all the above information. It is essential, however, that all change order backup, in whatever form, be consolidated into a single file that can be easily reviewed.

IWA's are used to establish entitlement to be compensated, not to establish change to the contract price. IWA's give the contractor assurance to proceed with changed work with the understanding the Department will not dispute the contractor's right to be paid for the work.

The IWA shall be used as an exception when time is of the essence and it is not possible to negotiate a

change order before the work is performed. The Project Engineer shall endeavor to negotiate the change order in a timely manner and shall not use IWA's as a routine way of managing contract changes.

13.9.1 Procedures

To avoid disputes, a contractor should not be allowed to commence work on any contemplated change until after a change order is fully executed for that work. However, it is recognized that in certain cases the parties to the contract cannot afford to wait until a formal document is signed for necessary work. In such cases an IWA is issued to get the work started on a Cost of the Work basis while the two parties enter into negotiations to settle the time and cost adjustments to the contract. In accordance with the GC's, only a change order formalizes the settlement and changes the contract price.

The IWA must stipulate:

- The not-to-exceed amount of the work
- The Scope of the work
- That the IWA shall be converted into a change order based upon T&M backup
- The basis of compensation for the change order, i.e. lump sum, or time and material (T&M)

The PM shall encumber the amount of the IWA and shall disencumber the amount when encumbering the amount for the associated change order.

It may be necessary in some instances where impasse is reached in the negotiations to authorize payment for the work on a Cost of the Work (T&M) basis in the change order. In the event the work is completed prior to agreement on price, use of Cost of the Work is again the practical approach since T & M records will already have been generated to support payment, or the negotiation of a lump sum change order. The negotiation of a lump sum change order based upon T&M records may result in fewer complications during project closeout and is often a preferred approach.

If a contractor is issued an IWA to perform specific work in accordance with a Cost of the Work, <u>a Cost of</u> <u>the Work Report (BLDG-Form 19) must be filled out</u>

<u>each day from the date of the IWA until the work is</u> complete. The Cost of the Work report may be filled out by the Project Engineer, but it is generally best practice to have the contractor fill out the report daily and provide it to the Project Engineer each day for signature. <u>A Report must be completed even on</u> <u>workdays that no work is performed on the IWA</u>. The Project Engineer and contractor must sign the Cost of the Work report each day. If the contractor's representative will not sign the report, this fact must be reported immediately to the PM.

The cost of the work report will provide all of the information needed for executing the change order when the work is complete. Requiring agreement each day on labor, materials and equipment will eliminate the need for negotiations later.

The normal procedure for processing change orders is as follows:

- After review of the RFP and subsequent negotiations, the Project Engineer drafts the change order and forwards two originals on yellow paper and all necessary backup information to the person who will sign the approval block (approving authority.) In the case of federally funded projects three copies are forwarded. It is best practice to retain one extra original change order until the contractor returns one of the signed originals. The extra original can be destroyed once the original signed by the contractor is received.
- The approving authority reviews and signs all originals of the change order.
- For FAA funded projects, the Project Engineer transmits all three originals to the FAA. The FAA generally will retain one of the copies for their files. After FAA approval, the Project Engineer sends a transmittal letter to the contractor with copies to the Office Engineer, Chief and PM. The Project Engineer requests the SWPF Financial Coordinator encumber the change order amount. The contractor retains one original; the other is returned to the Project Engineer. On a project by project basis, the FAA may allow change orders to be approved electronically (e-mail.) If this procedure is used, only two originals are routed. The e-mail approval is filed with the change order back up.
- For state funded projects the Project Engineer sends a transmittal letter to the contractor with copies to the PM. The PM requests the SWPF Financial Coordinator encumber the change order amount, unless this duty has been delegated to the Project Engineer. The contractor retains one

original; the other is returned to the Project Engineer.

• The returned signed original document is kept in the project files.

The change order is effectively executed when signed by the Department, i.e. it becomes a unilateral change order. The change order form has two boxes next to the contractor's signature block. The contractor checks "accepted" in order to indicate concurrence and acceptance of the terms of the change order, the work ordered, as well as the compensation allowed. Occasionally a contractor may not agree with the terms of a change order, in which case the contractor may check "acknowledged". This preserves the contractor's right to file an "Intent to Claim", provided that the contractor follows the claims and disputes clauses of the contract (including timely notice).

Every effort should be made to reach accord regarding price and time on every change order. However, if negotiations reach an agreement on price, but not time, the unilateral change order allows the contractor to be paid for the work on the next pay estimate and continue to dispute the time extension. This removes costly interest payments when the time extension dispute is settled.

13.10. Requirements for Professional Seals

Policy and Procedure 70-1003 requires that plans, drawings, plats, and all reports or similar documents that the public relies on for the design or construction of a project must be sealed by the designer of record or by the person under whose direct supervision they were prepared. This requirement can be found at the SWDES Construction Standards website.

Technical change orders made during construction that fall within the practice of architecture, engineering, or land surveying must be sealed by the designer of record or shall bear the seal, date and signature of those making the design change or under whose direct supervision the change was made. See AS 08.48.341 (9, 10, and 11) for the definitions of the practice of architecture, engineering, or land surveying.

Seal Required

Some examples of technical change orders that require a professional seal are:

• Mechanical design changes to heating and ventilation systems, piping systems, pumps, etc.

- Structural design changes to a building, column, piling, footing, retaining wall, structural member, etc.
- Changes related to type or quality of material requirements.
- Revisions in geometric design (width, length, height).
- Revisions of pavement structural section.
- Changes to safety appurtenances.
- Technical specification changes.
- Typical section modifications.

Seal Not Required

Some examples of nontechnical change orders are:

- Administrative matters, such as quantities and payment amounts.
- Extension of contract time.
- Changes to methods of measurement and basis of payment.
- Changes to specifications not related to structural elements (seed specifications, color selections, temporary facilities, etc.)
- Changes to utilities requested by the utility owner, or repairs to utilities, that do not affect the public facility structure.
- Changes to drainage features that do not affect the function of the facility or impact adjacent property owners.
- Temporary erosion, sediment and pollution control best management practices (BMP).

The seal must comply with 12 AAC 36.180. The regulation allows for a similar electronic or digital representation of the seal.

If other registered professionals prepare portions of plans, documents, or other professional work, a registrant may seal only the portion of the work for which it has direct professional knowledge and direct supervisory control (12 AAC 36.185.7[b], Use of Seals).

The Project Engineer, in consultation with the PM, should decide early in the change order process if the change is technical and if it is necessary for the change to be sealed.

The change order form does not have an area for a seal to be applied or inserted. If required, the seal must be affixed to an attachment. Note on the change order form that the attachment is sealed.

13.11. Procurement of Supplies vs. Procurement of Construction

Items that normally would be procured as supplies (furniture, technology, service agreement, etc.) are often incorporated into a contract as part of the procurement for construction. Sometimes towards the end of a construction contract a client may request additional "supplies" if the project still has remaining funds.

The Project Engineer needs to be aware that procurement of these requested "supplies" may or may not be eligible for procurement as part of the construction contract. As with all changes, the **Project Engineer must forward the request to the PM for a determination concerning availability of funding and the correct procurement method.**

14. Contract Time

- 14.1. General
- 14.2. Temporary Suspension of Work
- 14.3. Seasonal Suspension of Work
- 14.4. Extension of Contract Time
- 14.5. Liquidated Damages

14.1. General

The contractor must complete the project within time specified in the contract. The contract establishes the completion time or date based on the designers estimate of the time reasonably required to complete the work. Some contracts contain interim completion dates for portions of the work.

The most commonly specified completion times are:

- Fixed completion date
- Set number of calendar days

A contractor failing to complete the work on time may be assessed liquidated damages. These damages are meant to compensate the Department for additional construction engineering costs and / or loss of use impacts to client or the public.

The liquidated damages are calculated during design and shown in the contract.

On a calendar day contract, the count of contract time starts on the day stated in the NTP. Time is not counted during designated shut down periods (if any) specified in the contract. The count of contract time ceases upon substantial completion.

14.2. Temporary Suspension of Work

The Contracting Officer may temporarily suspend work for reasons specified in the contract. Contract time may continue to be charged during those periods.

If the temporary suspension impacts work on a pay item that is on the contractor's critical path schedule and it is a controlling factor in project progress, the suspension may entitle the contractor to an extension of contract time.

The Contracting Officer (or designee with delegated authority) will issue all temporary suspension orders and orders to resume work in writing. The directive (BLDG-form 36) or a letter to the contractor will be used. Orders to resume work will state the remaining contract time. When the temporary suspension of work changes the completion date, or adds calendar days to the contract time, a change document must be issued. Only whole days of contract time are charged, beginning and ending at midnight.

14.3. Seasonal Suspension of Work

On calendar day contracts, the count of contract time stops only during the calendar dates specified in the contract (if any). Seasonal suspension of work is rarely a factor in SWPF projects.

The timing of the seasonal shutdown, if allowed in the contract, as well as the resumption of work, is dependent on the weather, the nature of the project, the contractor's plans, and the concurrence of the PM.

Depending on the language in the contract, either the contractor or the Department may be responsible for maintenance during the seasonal suspension.

It is incumbent on the Project Engineer, contractor, and client's maintenance and operations representative to work together in advance of the shutdown to document the condition of a partially-completed facility and to assure that it is in safe maintainable condition before the contractor suspends work.

Prior to the work suspension, the Project Engineer should record the condition of the facility using a video camera (if available) or a still camera. Project Engineer should repeat the recording following the seasonal suspension.

With approval of the PM, the Project Engineer will issue the seasonal suspension order and the resume work order in writing. The directive (BLDG-form 36) or a letter to the contractor will be used.

The order to resume work should state the remaining contract time, and should provide notice to the contractor that the client will be terminating seasonal maintenance if applicable.

14.4. Extension of Contract Time

If additional work is added by change order or supplement agreement, contract time may be increased based on the amount and difficulty of the additional work and/or the estimated time to complete it. If the Department suspends work that is a controlling factor in job progress and the contractor request an equitable extension of contract time; it should be granted using a change document.

The time impact evaluation form (BLDG Form 37) should be used to calculate an equitable extension of contract time. The primary evaluation factor is how the contractor's critical path schedule, as accepted by the Department, has been impacted.

14.5. Liquidated Damages

A contractor's failure to complete the project by the completion date or within the allotted contract time, establishes the basis for the assessment of liquidated damages. These damages, shown in the contract, are meant to compensate the Department for its additional construction engineering costs and / or loss of use impacts to client or the public, resulting from the contractor's failure to complete the project in the time allowed.

If it becomes apparent the contractor may not be able to complete the work on time or is otherwise failing to make satisfactory progress, **the Project Engineer prepares and PM signs a letter alerting the contractor of the probability of being assessed retainage for falling behind schedule and/or incurring liquidated damages and requesting a plan for improving the rate of progress.** The Contracting Officer will be sent a copy of the letter. No retainage will be assessed without written approval of the Contracting Officer. When the Department must assess liquidated damages, it calculates them in accordance with the contract, using the established daily charge.

Before assessing liquidated damages, the Project Engineer will discuss the situation with the PM and then the contractor. The Project Engineer must give the contractor written notice. The PM may contact the bonding agent only after Contracting Officer consultation and approval.

Liquidated damages are shown as deductions on all subsequent progress payments, including the final estimate. Contracts that contain intermediate completion dates may require the assessment of liquidated damages at specified rates for failure to complete by that intermediate date. These liquidated damages are shown in the same manner on all subsequent progress payments, including the final estimate.

15. Contract Completion

- 15.1. Start-up, Commissioning, and System Demonstration
- 15.2. Partial Acceptance
- 15.3. Requirements for Substantial Completion Inspection
- 15.4. Substantial Completion
- 15.5. Inspection Procedures
- 15.6. Verifying Substantial Completion
- 15.7. Certificate of Substantial Completion
- 15.8. Final Completion Inspection
- 15.9. Final Completion

15.1. Start-up, Commissioning, and System Demonstration

The Project Engineer coordinates with the contractor and client to arrange for start-up, operations training, and systems demonstration required by contract. The Project Engineer also attends meetings called by the PM and client relating to tenant move-in.

15.2. Partial Acceptance

The Department may partially accept completed usable units or portions of the work, as allowed by contract.

Partial acceptances permit early occupancy of units and allow different timelines for warranty periods.

The Project Engineer should follow procedures below for substantial completion and final inspections. The certificate of substantial completion and final completion acceptance letter should include statements as to the limitations of the acceptance. A conditional certificate of occupancy must be obtained for each unit partially accepted.

15.3. Requirements for Substantial Completion Inspection

The Project Engineer receives the following from the contractor prior to scheduling substantial completion inspection:

- Written request for substantial completion inspection.
- Written list of items not complete or needing correction.
- All operation and maintenance manuals received and accepted by Department.
- All commissioning requirements have been met.
- All equipment and systems tested, adjusted, balanced and fully operational.

- All demonstration and training requirements have been met.
- All automated and manual controls are fully operational.
- Operation of all equipment and systems have been demonstrated to the Department.
- Certificate of occupancy is submitted.
- Certificate of inspection for required inspections have been submitted.
- Project record documents for work or portion of the work being accepted are submitted and approved.
- Spare parts and maintenance materials are turned over to the Department.
- All keys are turned over to the Department.
- All warranties and bonds are submitted and approved.
- Final cleaning has been completed to the satisfaction of the Department.

15.4. Substantial Completion

The contractor may request inspection and acceptance of project or portion of project as being "substantially complete". This means there is still unfinished work, but work is complete enough for facility to be put to its intended use (i.e., occupied and operated). All mechanical, electrical, and architectural features must be completed to the extent that work on punch list items will not adversely affect or disrupt the occupancy and use of the facility or the life and safety of the occupants of the facility.

Substantial completion is contractually important because it establishes cutoff date for assessing liquidated damages, if any, and starts the warranty period for equipment and systems not previously turned over to the Department. All operational function tests must be complete in compliance with the contract requirements before substantial completion.

15.5. Inspection Procedures

The contractor must request substantial completion inspection **in writing** and list all items that are not complete. Sufficient time (per contract) must be allowed to notify all attendees; 14 days advance notice is typically specified.

The Project Engineer, inspectors (if any) and contractor jointly conduct walk through to verify work

is sufficiently complete for occupancy. The Project Engineer also verifies all special inspection reports are complete and in hand before scheduling substantial completion inspection.

The Project Engineer should invite the following people in writing:

- Chief
- PM
- Inspectors
- Contractor's representative
- Critical subcontractors
- Respective design consultant
- Critical design sub-consultants
- Client designee with authority to make decisions concerning issues relating to occupancy
- FAA PM (FAA funded projects only)
- Client maintenance personnel

The Project Engineer creates a punch list of known deficiencies prior to inspection and provides list to inspection party. The Project Engineer organizes and leads inspection party.

Operational tests of all systems should be conducted for inspection party even though the contractor previously tested individual systems for Project Engineer.

All members of inspection party should compile own punch lists and transmit lists to the Project Engineer for consolidation. The Project Engineer sends consolidated punch list to the PM.

Consolidated punch list item should include:

- Deficiency
- Location
- Specific instruction on required correction

The Project Engineer transmits consolidated punch list to contractor with or before issuance of the certificate of substantial completion.

15.6. Verifying Substantial Completion

The Project Engineer and client must mutually concur on acceptability of the facility. When accepted, the Project Engineer prepares and issues a certificate of substantial completion (BLDG-Form 27) within 14 days of the inspection. The PM and contractor sign the form. The acceptable date is the date of the inspection. If unacceptable, the Project Engineer issues a letter to the contractor including:

- Reason(s) work isn't substantially complete
- Reminder one re-inspection allowed at no charge to the contractor
- Reminder Department's cost for all subsequent re-inspections are borne by the contractor
- Consolidated punch list as attachment

The Project Engineer recovers Department's cost for re-inspections (2rd re-inspection and subsequent) through a deductive change order.

15.7. Certificate of Substantial Completion

The certification serves a threefold purpose:

- Establishes date project (or portion thereof) was ready for beneficial occupancy
- Documents the contractor's agreement to rectify deficient and uncompleted punch list work
- Establishes both parties' responsibilities for security, operation, safety, maintenance, heat, utilities, insurance, and warranties pending final completion of entire project

The PM and contractor each sign two original certificates. The contractor retains one original and other is kept in project file.

15.8. Final Completion Inspection

The Contractor notifies the Project Engineer in writing that work (or portion thereof) is complete, including all punch list items previously identified. The contractor's certification of final completion (either a form or letter) must state work is ready for final inspection. Upon such notice the PM and Project Engineer make the inspection.

If deficiencies are found on final completion inspection, the Project Engineer gives the contractor a letter stating project is not accepted for final completion and the contractor is responsible for all reinspection costs until the work is done.

15.9. Final Completion

Once the Project Engineer verifies the contractor satisfactorily completed all physical construction on project, including all punch list items and final clean up, the project is ready for project completion. The Project Engineer prepares final completion letter (Sample 09) for the PM's signature.

16. Project Closeout

- 16.1. Overview
- 16.2. Checklist for State Funded Projects Closeout
- 16.3. Federally Funded Projects (FHWA & FAA) Closeout
- 16.4. Federally Funded Projects (Other) Closeout
- 16.5. Building Facilities Form
- 16.6. Final Acceptance
- 16.7. Obligations to Client
- 16.8. Bonds
- 16.9. Warranties
- 16.10. Final Construction Completion Report

16.1. Overview

The project closeout process has two primary goals:

- Verification that contractual obligations have been met
- Timely final payment to Contractor

The following steps should be followed upon receipt of contractor's application for final payment.

16.2. Checklist for State Funded Projects Closeout

The Project Engineer and PM will jointly:

- Review checklist (see section 17.35)
- Initial all acceptable items
- Notify contractor of missing or unacceptable items (if any)
- Review final pay estimate when checklist is compete
- Forward checklist, documents and final pay estimate to Senior PM when complete

The Senior PM will review the documents for accuracy and completeness regarding:

- Liquidated damages (if any)
- Statement of accounts
- Notice of completion (Dept. of Labor)
- Original Contractor's Release

The Senior PM then does the following:

- Requests corrections (if required)
- Initials-off on checklist when complete
- Initials-off on final pay estimate

• Submits final pay estimate to the SWPF Financial Coordinator for processing

16.3. Federally Funded Projects (FHWA & FAA) Closeout

The Project Engineer will:

- Complete the closeout checklist (see section 17.35)
- Review contract for other requirements
- Submit checklist along with all required documents to Central Region Quality Assurance Engineer (QAE) for review. Documents must be submitted with the appropriate transmittals.
- Make any requested corrections and re-submit to QAE
- Receive Certification of Final Estimate (BLDG-Form 29) from QAE and obtain necessary signatures. Return the signed form to QAE.
- Receive the Final Acceptance letter prepared by QAE and obtain signature of the Contracting Officer. Mail the original signed letter to the contractor and distribute copies to all necessary persons.
- Receive project documents returned from QAE and prepare them for archiving.
- Receive the final pay estimate assembly from QAE

The PM will:

• Submit final pay estimate to the SWPF Financial Coordinator for processing

16.4. Federally Funded Projects (Other) Closeout

The PM should develop a checklist that includes the closeout requirements for the funding type.

The Project Engineer will:

- Receive and review items on the PM's checklist (if available)
- Review contract for any additional required documentation
- Submit checklist along with all required documents to Supervisor for review
- Make corrections requested by Supervisor
- Submit final pay estimate assembly to PM

16.5. Building Facilities Form

The State of Alaska is self insured. The Office of Risk Management maintains an inventory of state owned facilities for insurance purposes.

For new construction or project adding space to existing state facility, the Project Engineer will:

- Complete the Building Facilities Form used by the particular client agency. Confirm with the Facility Manager that the form being used is the appropriate form.
- Do not complete the AKSAS Coding section of the form.
- Send the completed form to the Facility Manager for signature, completion of the AKSAS Coding section and submission to the Office of Risk Management.
- Obtain a copy of the completed form for the project files. (Rev. 12-8-14)

16.6. Final Acceptance

After the PM signs the final pay estimate, the Project Engineer prepares the Final Acceptance letter (see section 17.56) and obtains the Contracting Officer's signature. The Project Engineer then mails the original signed letter to the contractor, and distributes copies to all necessary persons.

16.7. Obligations to Client

The PM and Project Engineer will review the RSA and ensure all obligations to the client are being met.

The Project Engineer will:

- Transmit original certifications, O&M Manuals, Warranties & Bonds (retain one for file) to client
- Arrange for drafting of Record Drawings using existing PSA if possible, or new PSA if necessary
- Transmit copies of contractor's as-built drawings and Record Drawings to client (retain originals for SWPF archives).

The PSA PM must draft a consultant performance evaluation(s) and submit to the Chief.

16.8. Bonds

The PM must ensure contract specifications are clear on format and manner contractor prepares individual warranties and bonds. The contract secures one-year correction period by requiring contractor's performance

and payment bonds to remain in effect for one year after date of Final Acceptance.

16.9. Warranties

The Project Engineer must ensure contractor responds to all warranty deficiencies noted during warranty period unless specifically waived by client in writing. The PM (or Project Engineer) should communicate with client regularly to confirm warranty issues are being resolved and no new issues have arisen.

The Project Engineer should set up and conduct a warranty inspection with client approximately one month prior to expiration of warranty period.

Contracts require contractor to correct defective work for one year after date of substantial completion. The one year correction period does not relieve the contractor from fixing defective work discovered after one year correction period.

In addition to the one-year correction period, the specifications may require certain equipment and work items to be guaranteed for a longer period. Certain portions of the work may also have their warranty periods start earlier than the substantial completion date if that work has been taken over and put into use by the department or client before the substantial completion date.

Each warranty in effect before the final/substantial completion date should have its beginning date filled in; otherwise, the date used will be the date of the final/substantial completion inspection.

16.10. Final Construction Completion Report

The PM and Project Engineer jointly complete the project closeout data sheet (BLDG-Form 32). This form is given to the Administrative Assistant for entry into the SWPF data base.

17. Exhibits – Index, Forms, Worksheets, Letters, and Memos

- 17.1. Meeting Sign In: BLDG-Form 01
- 17.2. Contractor Delegation of Authority: BLDG-Form 02
- 17.3. Telephone Log: BLDG-Form 03
- 17.4. Site Visit Sign-in: BLDG-Form 04
- 17.5. Subcontractor Certification: BLDG-Form 05
- 17.6. Labor Compliance: BLDG-Form 06
- 17.7. Permit Log: BLDG-Form 07
- 17.8. Alaska Forest Products Certification: BLDG-Form 08
- 17.9. Daily Inspection Report: BLDG-Form 09
- 17.10. Substitution Request: BLDG-Form 10
- 17.11. Submittal Log: BLDG Form 11
- 17.12. Non Compliance Notice: BLDG Form 12
- 17.13. Non-Compliance Notice Log: BLDG-Form 13
- 17.14. Request for Information: BLDG-Form 14
- 17.15. Request for Information Log: BLDG-Form 15
- 17.16. Change Notice: BLDG-Form 16
- 17.17. Request for Proposal: BLDG-Form 17
- 17.18. Request for Proposal/Change Notice Log: BLDG-Form 18
- 17.19. Cost of Work: BLDG-Form 19
- 17.20. Change Order: BLDG-Form 20
- 17.21. Supplemental Agreement: BLDG-Form 21
- 17.22. Interim Work Authorization: BLDG-Form 22
- 17.23. Schedule of Values: BLDG-Form 23
- 17.24. Progress Summary: BLDG-Form 24
- 17.25. Periodic Estimate for Partial Payment: BLDG Form 25
- 17.26. Stored Materials: BLDG-Form 26
- 17.27. Certificate of Substantial Completion: BLDG-Form 27
- 17.28. Contractor's Release: BLDG-Form 28
- 17.29. Certification of Final Estimate: BLDG-Form 29
- 17.30. Contractors Civil Rights Representatives: BLDG-Form 30
- 17.31. EEO-1 Certification: BLDG-Form 31
- 17.32. Project Closeout Data: BLDG-Form 32
- 17.33. Insurance Memorandum: BLDG-Form 33 Deleted 12-8-14
- 17.34. Final Estimate Funding Breakout: BLDG-Form 34
- 17.35. Construction Contract Closeout Checklists: BLDG-Form 35 and FAA & FHWA Checklist
- 17.36. Directive: BLDG-Form 36
- 17.37. Time Impact Evaluation: BLDG-Form 37
- 17.38. Project Completion Form Certification Design: BLDG-Form 38
- 17.39. Project Completion Form Certification Construction: BLDG-Form 39
- 17.40. CSI Division 1 Checklist: BLDG-Form 40
- 17.41. Project Engineer Responsibility Checklist: BLDG-Form 4
- 17.42. Contractors Log: BLDG Form 42 (Option to Replace Multiple Forms)
- 17.43. Project Budget: BLDG-Form 43
- 17.44. Project Status Report
- 17.45. Notice to Proceed Letter: Sample 01
- 17.46. Preconstruction Conference Agenda: Sample 02
- 17.47. Authorizations and Limitations Letter: Sample 03
- 17.48. EEO Poster: Sample 04
- 17.49. Schedule of Values Acceptance Letter: Sample 05
- 17.50. Progress Schedule Acceptance Letter: Sample 06
- 17.51. Submittal Schedule Acceptance Letter: Sample 07
- 17.52. Subcontract Approval Letter: Sample 08
- 17.53. Final Completion Letter: Sample 09
- 17.54. Labor Tax Clearance Memo: Sample 10
- 17.55. Revenue Tax Clearance Memo: Sample 11
- 17.56. Final Acceptance Letter: Sample 12
- 17.57. Flow of Information Diagram: Sample 13 For Preconstruction Meeting Handout

17.1. Meeting Sign In: BLDG-Form 01

DO STATEW	OF ALASKA IT & PF /IDE PUBLIC CILITIES	DATE: LOCATION:		
Print Name	Firm	Phone	email	

BLDG-Form 01 H:/BUILDDOC/OFFICE/FORMS/FR01.MEETING.SIGNIN

REV 5/01

17.2. Contractor Delegation of Authority: BLDG-Form 02

STATE OF ALASKA DOT & PF PUBLIC FACILITIES BRANCH	CONTRACTOR DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY	
Contractor:		
Project Name:	Project #	
The contract documents contain several from the various authorities and/or responsibilineeting the requirements common to n efferenced paragraphs in General Provision Contracts. Please complete the applicable portions of the value of the furnished to you that defines the applicable portions of the provide the provide the provided the provide	lities. This form is provided nost contracts. Other requi n (00700) sections do not ap this form and return it to the	for your convenience in rements may exist. The ply to Small Procurement Project Manager. A letter
a genev and Constiliant personnel		
Agency and Consultant personnel.		
Agency and Consultant personnel.	<u>t</u>	
	Sample Signature	
Authority to sign Applications for Payment	Sample Signature	
Authority to sign Applications for Payment Printed Name Printed Name Authority to Sign Change Orders and Chan	Sample Signature Sample Signature	
Authority to sign Applications for Payment Printed Name Printed Name	Sample Signature	
Authority to sign Applications for Payment Printed Name Printed Name Authority to Sign Change Orders and Chan	Sample Signature Sample Signature	
Authority to sign Applications for Payment Printed Name Authority to Sign Change Orders and Chan Printed Name Printed Name Printed Name	Sample Signature Sample Signature Sample Signature Sample Signature	

Project Superintendent	
Printed Name	Telephone Number
Local Address	
Shop Drawing/Submittals	
Printed Name	Sample Initials
Sample Stamp:	
I certify that the above personn referenced in the contract documen	el have been delegated the authorities and responsi
referenced in the contract documen	its:
referenced in the contract documen Signature of Owner, Partner or Cor	its:
	its:
referenced in the contract documen Signature of Owner, Partner or Cor	its:

STATE OF ALASKA DOT & PF STATEWIDE PUBLIC FACILITIES	TELEPHONE LOG	ALLSH
Project:	Date:	Time:
Call To:	With:	
Call From:	With:	

STATE OF ALASKA DOT & PF STATEWIDE PUBLIC FACILITIES		Project I	Statewide Project Name & Number SITE VISIT SIGN-IN			
Date	Name	Firm	Time In	Time Out		

17.4. Site Visit Sign-in: BLDG-Form 04

BLDG Form 4

Draft Rev 4/13

17.5. Subcontractor Certification: BLDG-Form 05

ST	STATE OF ALASKA DOT & PF TATEWIDE PUBLIC FACILITIES	SUBCONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION		
	e: The Contractor shall provide this form f cable to all projects, including Small Procurem			This form is
PRO	JECT:	PR	OJ. #:	
PRIN	IE CONTRACTOR:			
	uant to the Contract Documents, we hereb Subcontractor on the following list:	y stipulate the following concerning	the award of V	Vork to the
1.	First Tier Subcontractor:	DBE?	Yes	No
	Second Tier:	DBE?	Yes	No
	Third Tier:	DBE?	Yes	No
	Fourth Tier:	DBE?	Yes	No
2.	Date of Subcontract:			
3.	Amount of Subcontract: \$			
4.	Scope of Work:			
				(abaak tha
5.	Are the following documents kept on fi appropriate answer)? EEO-1 Certification (Form 25A304), fed Contract Minimum Wage Schedule	ile by both the Contractor and the lerally funded projects only	Subcontractor (Yes Yes	No No
5.	Are the following documents kept on fi appropriate answer)? EEO-1 Certification (Form 25A304), fed Contract Minimum Wage Schedule Civil Rights Representative (Form 25A3	ile by both the Contractor and the lerally funded projects only 02)	Subcontractor (Yes Yes Yes	No No No
5.	Are the following documents kept on fi appropriate answer)? EEO-1 Certification (Form 25A304), fed Contract Minimum Wage Schedule	ile by both the Contractor and the lerally funded projects only 02) ns for prompt payment, release of	Subcontractor (Yes Yes Yes	No No No
	Are the following documents kept on fi appropriate answer)? EEO-1 Certification (Form 25A304), fed Contract Minimum Wage Schedule Civil Rights Representative (Form 25A3 Does the Subcontract contain provisior	ile by both the Contractor and the lerally funded projects only 02) ns for prompt payment, release of to AS 36.90.210? the Subcontractor to the applicabl of the Department and does it con	Subcontractor (Yes Yes Yes retainage, and i Yes e terms and co	No No No interest on No nditions of
5.	Are the following documents kept on fi appropriate answer)? EEO-1 Certification (Form 25A304), fed Contract Minimum Wage Schedule Civil Rights Representative (Form 25A3 Does the Subcontract contain provisior late payment and retainage conforming Does the Subcontract specifically bind the Contract Documents for the benefit	ile by both the Contractor and the lerally funded projects only 02) ns for prompt payment, release of to AS 36.90.210? the Subcontractor to the applicabl of the Department and does it con	Subcontractor (Yes Yes Yes retainage, and i Yes e terms and co	No No No interest on No nditions of
5.	 Are the following documents kept on fi appropriate answer)? EEO-1 Certification (Form 25A304), fed Contract Minimum Wage Schedule Civil Rights Representative (Form 25A3 Does the Subcontract contain provision late payment and retainage conforming Does the Subcontract specifically bind the Contract Documents for the benefit termination provisions as required by the a. Does the Subcontractor have ade 	ile by both the Contractor and the lerally funded projects only 02) ns for prompt payment, release of to AS 36.90.210? the Subcontractor to the applicabl of the Department and does it con e Contract Documents?	Subcontractor (Yes] Yes] retainage, and i Yes] e terms and co tain waiver prov Yes]	No No No interest on No nditions of <i>r</i> isions and No
5. 6. 7.	Are the following documents kept on fi appropriate answer)? EEO-1 Certification (Form 25A304), fed Contract Minimum Wage Schedule Civil Rights Representative (Form 25A3 Does the Subcontract contain provision late payment and retainage conforming Does the Subcontract specifically bind the Contract Documents for the benefit termination provisions as required by the	ile by both the Contractor and the lerally funded projects only 02) ns for prompt payment, release of to AS 36.90.210? the Subcontractor to the applicabl of the Department and does it con e Contract Documents?	Subcontractor (Yes] Yes] retainage, and i Yes] e terms and co tain waiver prov Yes]	No No No interest on No nditions of <i>r</i> isions and No
5. 6. 7.	 Are the following documents kept on fi appropriate answer)? EEO-1 Certification (Form 25A304), fed Contract Minimum Wage Schedule Civil Rights Representative (Form 25A3 Does the Subcontract contain provision late payment and retainage conforming Does the Subcontract specifically bind the Contract Documents for the benefit termination provisions as required by the a. Does the Subcontractor have ade 	ile by both the Contractor and the lerally funded projects only (02) ns for prompt payment, release of to AS 36.90.210? the Subcontractor to the applicabl of the Department and does it con e Contract Documents? equate insurance coverages as	Subcontractor (Yes] Yes] retainage, and i Yes] e terms and co tain waiver prov Yes] specified in the Yes] ontractor are acc	No No No interest on No nditions of risions and No e Contract No ceptable to
5. 6. 7.	 Are the following documents kept on fi appropriate answer)? EEO-1 Certification (Form 25A304), fed Contract Minimum Wage Schedule Civil Rights Representative (Form 25A3 Does the Subcontract contain provision late payment and retainage conforming Does the Subcontract specifically bind the Contract Documents for the benefit termination provisions as required by the a. Does the Subcontractor have ade Documents? If not, does the Contractor stipulate tha the Contractor and that he has notified here. 	ile by both the Contractor and the lerally funded projects only (02) ns for prompt payment, release of to AS 36.90.210? the Subcontractor to the applicabl of the Department and does it con e Contract Documents? equate insurance coverages as at the insurance limits of the Subco his insurance carrier of the reduced	Subcontractor (Yes] Yes] retainage, and i Yes] e terms and co tain waiver prov Yes] specified in the Yes] ontractor are acc insurance limits Yes]	No No No interest on No nditions of risions and No e Contract No ceptable to s? No
5. 6. 7.	Are the following documents kept on fi appropriate answer)? EEO-1 Certification (Form 25A304), fed Contract Minimum Wage Schedule Civil Rights Representative (Form 25A3 Does the Subcontract contain provision late payment and retainage conforming Does the Subcontract specifically bind the Contract Documents for the benefit termination provisions as required by the a. Does the Subcontractor have ade Documents?	ile by both the Contractor and the lerally funded projects only (02) ns for prompt payment, release of to AS 36.90.210? the Subcontractor to the applicabl of the Department and does it con e Contract Documents? equate insurance coverages as at the insurance limits of the Subco nis insurance carrier of the reduced ify that the policies described there	Subcontractor (Yes] Yes] retainage, and i Yes] e terms and co tain waiver prov Yes] specified in the Yes] ontractor are acc insurance limits Yes] on comply with a	No No No interest on No nditions of risions and No e Contract No ceptable to s? No all aspects
5. 6. 7.	 Are the following documents kept on fi appropriate answer)? EEO-1 Certification (Form 25A304), fed Contract Minimum Wage Schedule Civil Rights Representative (Form 25A3 Does the Subcontract contain provision late payment and retainage conforming Does the Subcontract specifically bind the Contract Documents for the benefit termination provisions as required by the a. Does the Subcontractor have ade Documents? If not, does the Contractor stipulate that the Contractor and that he has notified for the insurance requirements for this provision for the base of the insurance requirements for this provision for the base of the insurance requirements for this provision for the base of the insurance requirements for this provision for the base of the insurance requirements for this provision for the base of the insurance requirements for this provision for the provision for	ile by both the Contractor and the lerally funded projects only 202) ns for prompt payment, release of to AS 36.90.210? the Subcontractor to the applicabl of the Department and does it con e Contract Documents? equate insurance coverages as at the insurance limits of the Subco- nis insurance carrier of the reduced ify that the policies described there roject?	Subcontractor (Yes] Yes] retainage, and i Yes] e terms and co tain waiver prov Yes] specified in the Yes] ontractor are acc insurance limits Yes] on comply with a Yes]	No No No No Inditions of risions and No e Contract No ceptable to s? No all aspects No
5. 6. 7.	 Are the following documents kept on frappropriate answer)? EEO-1 Certification (Form 25A304), fed Contract Minimum Wage Schedule Civil Rights Representative (Form 25A3 Does the Subcontract contain provisior late payment and retainage conforming Does the Subcontract specifically bind the Contract Documents for the benefit termination provisions as required by the a. Does the Subcontractor have ade Documents? If not, does the Contractor stipulate that the Contractor and that he has notified for the box of the subcontract of the base of the ba	ile by both the Contractor and the lerally funded projects only 202) ns for prompt payment, release of to AS 36.90.210? the Subcontractor to the applicabl of the Department and does it con e Contract Documents? equate insurance coverages as at the insurance limits of the Subco- nis insurance carrier of the reduced ify that the policies described there roject?	Subcontractor (Yes] Yes] retainage, and i Yes] e terms and co tain waiver prov Yes] specified in the Yes] ontractor are acc insurance limits Yes] on comply with a Yes]	No No No No Inditions of risions and No e Contract No ceptable to s? No all aspects No

	JECT: PROJ. #:	
Subco	ontractor Name:	
	d. Does the evidence of insurance commit to providing written notice in accordan policy provisions before cancellation or reduction of any coverage or reduction in a liability?	
	Yes	No
	e. Insurance Expiration dates: Comprehensive or Commercial General Liability:	
	Automobile: Workers' Compensation:	
	(Other):	
9.	Does the Contractor certify firms or individuals debarred or suspended by the Departme FHWA are not employed or subcontracted under this construction project?	ent, FAA, c
	Yes	No
10.	Copies of the following professional certifications, licenses, and registrations are attache that apply):	ed (circle a
	Business License (mandatory) Contractor License (mandatory) Land Surveyor's License Electrical Administrator's License (mandatory for electrical subs) Mechanical Administrator's License (mandatory for mechanical subs) Engineer/Architect Other:	
11. CERT	Exceptions to any of the above are explained as follows:	
CERT true al Signat	TIFICATION (to be completed and signed by PRIME CONTRACTOR): I certify all the and correct.	
CERT true at Signat	TIFICATION (to be completed and signed by PRIME CONTRACTOR): I certify all the and correct.	
CERT true al Signat Printe Comp	TIFICATION (to be completed and signed by PRIME CONTRACTOR): I certify all the and correct. ture:	
CERT true al Signat Printe Comp	TIFICATION (to be completed and signed by PRIME CONTRACTOR): I certify all the and correct.	
CERT true al Signat Printe Comp	TIFICATION (to be completed and signed by PRIME CONTRACTOR): I certify all the and correct. ture:	
CERT true al Signat Printe Comp Date: The si Contra	TIFICATION (to be completed and signed by PRIME CONTRACTOR): I certify all the and correct. ture: d Name: pany:	above to b
CERT true al Signat Printe Comp Date: The si Contra Depar	TIFICATION (to be completed and signed by PRIME CONTRACTOR): I certify all the and correct. ture:	above to b ng the Prim right of the
CERT true al Signat Printe Comp Date: Date: Contra Depar SIGNA	TIFICATION (to be completed and signed by PRIME CONTRACTOR): I certify all the and correct. ture:	above to b ng the Prim right of th
CERT true al Signat Printe Comp Date: Date: Contra Depar SIGNA	TIFICATION (to be completed and signed by PRIME CONTRACTOR): I certify all the and correct. ture:	above to b ng the Prim right of th
CERT true al Signat Printe Comp Date: Depar SIGNA The si	TIFICATION (to be completed and signed by PRIME CONTRACTOR): I certify all the and correct. ture:	above to b
CERT true al Signat Printe Comp Date: Date: Depar SIGNA The si	TIFICATION (to be completed and signed by PRIME CONTRACTOR): I certify all the and correct. ture:	above to b

PROJECT NO. (Federal/AKSAS)	
PROJECT NAME:	
NAME OF EMPLOYEE INTERVIEWED:	
PRESENT ADDRESS:	
PERMANENT ADDRESS:	
If a subcontractor, check files for an a	approved subcontract. If there is no subcontract, notify Project Engineer
VORK PERFORMED BY EMPLOYEE:	
e specific as to type and size of equipment used or duties perform	ed so work can be correctly classified.
	a a pro la visua manalema un partarecen adopticiente
	O YOU MAKE AN HOUR?
PAID FOR AL	L HOURS WORKED? Yes No
ARE STRAIGHT TIME AND OVERTIME	
	E HOURS CORRECT? Yes No
(Paid time & 1/2 over 8 hours per day or 40 h	E HOURS CORRECT? Yes No hours per week?)
(Paid time & 1/2 over 8 hours per day or 40 h	hours per week?)
(Paid time & 1/2 over 8 hours per day or 40 h ARE YOU PAID WEEKLY & PAYROLL DEI	hours per week?)
(Paid time & 1/2 over 8 hours per day or 40 h ARE YOU PAID WEEKLY & PAYROLL DEI	hours per week?) DUCTIONS PROPER? Yes No
(Paid time & 1/2 over 8 hours per day or 40 h ARE YOU PAID WEEKLY & PAYROLL DED	hours per week?) DUCTIONS PROPER? Yes No
(Paid time & 1/2 over 8 hours per day or 40 h ARE YOU PAID WEEKLY & PAYROLL DED	hours per week?) DUCTIONS PROPER? Yes No
(Paid time & 1/2 over 8 hours per day or 40 h ARE YOU PAID WEEKLY & PAYROLL DED COMMENTS:	hours per week?) DUCTIONS PROPER? Yes No
(Paid time & 1/2 over 8 hours per day or 40 h ARE YOU PAID WEEKLY & PAYROLL DED COMMENTS:	hours per week?) DUCTIONS PROPER? Yes No
(Paid time & 1/2 over 8 hours per day or 40 h ARE YOU PAID WEEKLY & PAYROLL DED COMMENTS:	hours per week?) DUCTIONS PROPER? Yes No
(Paid time & 1/2 over 8 hours per day or 40 h ARE YOU PAID WEEKLY & PAYROLL DEE COMMENTS: NTERVIEWED BY:	hours per week?) DUCTIONS PROPER? Yes No Date:
(Paid time & 1/2 over 8 hours per day or 40 h ARE YOU PAID WEEKLY & PAYROLL DEE COMMENTS: NTERVIEWED BY: nformation from contract and wage bulletins: State	hours per week?) DUCTIONS PROPER? Yes No Date: e Minimum Wage Federal Minimum
(Paid time & 1/2 over 8 hours per day or 40 h ARE YOU PAID WEEKLY & PAYROLL DEE COMMENTS: NTERVIEWED BY: nformation from contract and wage bulletins: State Pacie Hourthy Pate:	e Minimum Wage
(Paid time & 1/2 over 8 hours per day or 40 h ARE YOU PAID WEEKLY & PAYROLL DEE COMMENTS: NTERVIEWED BY: nformation from contract and wage bulletins: State Pacie Hourthy Pate:	e Minimum Wage
(Paid time & 1/2 over 8 hours per day or 40 h ARE YOU PAID WEEKLY & PAYROLL DEE COMMENTS: NTERVIEWED BY: nformation from contract and wage bulletins: State Basic Hourly Rate: Fringe Benefit Rate: Total State Rate: Information from payrolls:	hours per week?) DUCTIONS PROPER? Yes No Date: e Minimum Wage Federal Minimum Basic Hourly Rate: Fringe Benefit Rate: Total Federal Rate:
(Paid time & 1/2 over 8 hours per day or 40 h ARE YOU PAID WEEKLY & PAYROLL DEE COMMENTS: NTERVIEWED BY: nformation from contract and wage bulletins: State Basic Hourly Rate: Fringe Benefit Rate: Total State Rate: Information from payrolls:	hours per week?) DUCTIONS PROPER? Yes No Date: e Minimum Wage Federal Minimum Basic Hourly Rate: Fringe Benefit Rate: Total Federal Rate:
(Paid time & 1/2 over 8 hours per day or 40 h ARE YOU PAID WEEKLY & PAYROLL DEE COMMENTS: NTERVIEWED BY: nformation from contract and wage bulletins: State Basic Hourly Rate: Fringe Benefit Rate: Total State Rate: Job Class (stated on payroll):	e Minimum Wage
(Paid time & 1/2 over 8 hours per day or 40 h ARE YOU PAID WEEKLY & PAYROLL DEE COMMENTS: Information from contract and wage bulletins: Information from contract and wage bulletins: Information from payrolls:	bours per week?) DUCTIONS PROPER? Yes No Date: e Minimum Wage Federal Minimum Basic Hourly Rate: Fringe Benefit Rate: Total Federal Rate: (ex., laborer II, operator IV, truck driver I, etc.)
(Paid time & 1/2 over 8 hours per day or 40 h ARE YOU PAID WEEKLY & PAYROLL DEE COMMENTS: Information from contract and wage bulletins: Information from contract and wage bulletins: Information from payrolls: Payroll # or date: Job Class (stated on payroll): Is Job Classification from Interview Correct?	bours per week?) DUCTIONS PROPER? Yes No Date: e Minimum Wage Federal Minimum Basic Hourly Rate: Fringe Benefit Rate: Total Federal Rate: (ex., laborer II, operator IV, truck driver I, etc.)
(Paid time & 1/2 over 8 hours per day or 40 hours per day or 40 hours PARE YOU PAID WEEKLY & PAYROLL DED COMMENTS: NTERVIEWED BY:	hours per week?) DUCTIONS PROPER? Yes No Date: e Minimum Wage Federal Minimum Basic Hourly Rate: Fringe Benefit Rate: Total Federal Rate: (ex., laborer II, operator IV, truck driver I, etc.)
(Paid time & 1/2 over 8 hours per day or 40 ho	hours per week?) DUCTIONS PROPER? Yes No Date: e Minimum Wage Federal Minimum Basic Hourly Rate: Fringe Benefit Rate: Total Federal Rate: (ex., laborer II, operator IV, truck driver I, etc.) (ex., laborer II, operator IV, truck driver I, etc.)
(Paid time & 1/2 over 8 hours per day or 40 h ARE YOU PAID WEEKLY & PAYROLL DEE COMMENTS: NTERVIEWED BY: Information from contract and wage bulletins: State Basic Hourly Rate: Fringe Benefit Rate: Job Class (stated on payroll): Is Job Classification from Interview Correct? Basic Hourly Rate: Overtime Rate: Fringe Benefit Rate:	hours per week?) DUCTIONS PROPER? Yes No Date: e Minimum Wage Federal Minimum Basic Hourly Rate: Fringe Benefit Rate: Total Federal Rate: (ex., laborer II, operator IV, truck driver I, etc.)
(Paid time & 1/2 over 8 hours per day or 40 ho	hours per week?) DUCTIONS PROPER? Yes No Date: e Minimum Wage Federal Minimum Basic Hourly Rate: Fringe Benefit Rate: Total Federal Rate: (ex., laborer II, operator IV, truck driver I, etc.)
(Paid time & 1/2 over 8 hours per day or 40 hours per day of 40 ho	hours per week?) DUCTIONS PROPER? Yes No Date: e Minimum Wage Federal Minimum Basic Hourly Rate: Fringe Benefit Rate: Total Federal Rate: (ex., laborer II, operator IV, truck driver I, etc.) (ex., laborer II, operator IV, truck driver I, etc.) Checked by: Date:

				13
			COMMENTS	Draft Rev 4/13
			DATE OF RECEIPT IN OFFICE	
CONSTRUCTION RELATED PERMIT LOG		ier:	DATE OF APPLICATION	
ON RELATED	Project Name:	Project Engineer:	SCHEDULED START DATE OF WORK ITEM	
CONSTRUCT			FIRST SCHEDULED WORK ITEM ON PERMIT ON PERMIT	
J			PARTY RESPONSIBLE FOR PERMIT APPLICATION	
STATE OF ALASKA DOT & PF STATEWIDE PUBLIC FACILITIES	Project No.:	Contractor:	DESCRIPTION	BLDG-Form 07
STA'	Proje	Cont		BLDG-1

17.7. Permit Log: BLDG-Form 07

17.8. Alaska Forest Products Certification: BLDG-Form 08

STATE OF ALASKA DOT & PF STATEWIDE PUBLIC FACILITIES	ALASKA FOREST PRODUCTS CERTIFICATIO (State Funded Projects Only)	ON
Project Name:	F	Project No.:
In accordance with AS 36.30.322 an certify the following: Check One No wood products will be used in All Alaska forest product supplie Economic Development have been of specified by this contract.	n the permanent construction of t rs listed by the Alaska Departme	this project. ent of Commerce and
 Specified by this contract within a contract within a contract within a contract within a contract product supplied Economic Development have been contract of qualifying products shall be us not available or in excess of seven p 	contacted and none is able to sup at of seven percent of the price of rs listed by the Alaska Department contacted and the Alaska wood p ed in this contract. The remainin ercent higher in the cost of the p	oply the wood products as f open market woods. Int of Commerce and products and the following g wood products are eithe
 All Alaska forest product supplie Economic Development have been of specified by this contract within a cost All Alaska forest product supplied Economic Development have been of list of qualifying products shall be us not available or in excess of seven p List Alaska Wood Products to be us Product 	contacted and none is able to sup at of seven percent of the price of rs listed by the Alaska Department contacted and the Alaska wood p ed in this contract. The remainin ercent higher in the cost of the p	oply the wood products as f open market woods. Int of Commerce and products and the following g wood products are eithe
Economic Development have been of specified by this contract within a con- All Alaska forest product supplied Economic Development have been of list of qualifying products shall be us not available or in excess of seven p List Alaska Wood Products to be us	contacted and none is able to sup at of seven percent of the price of rs listed by the Alaska Department contacted and the Alaska wood p ed in this contract. The remainin ercent higher in the cost of the p red in this project:	oply the wood products as f open market woods. Int of Commerce and products and the following g wood products are eithe
Economic Development have been of specified by this contract within a con- a All Alaska forest product supplied Economic Development have been of list of qualifying products shall be us not available or in excess of seven p List Alaska Wood Products to be us	sontacted and none is able to sup at of seven percent of the price of rs listed by the Alaska Department contacted and the Alaska wood p ed in this contract. The remainin ercent higher in the cost of the p ed in this project: Supplier	oply the wood products as f open market woods. In tof Commerce and products and the following ig wood products are eithe roduct.

17.9. Daily Inspection Report: BLDG-Form 09

	OF ALASKA DT & PF DUBLIC FACILITIES		JECT NO: JECT NAMI					
CONTRACTOR:		INSF	ECTOR:		0	DATE:		
		PRO	JECT ENG	INEER:	V	VEATHER:		
			RT TIME:			INISH TIME:		
	Manpower (Note if			ntractor)				
Contractors/Sub								
Contractors Superintendent						_		
Foreman						+	+ +	
Operators						-		
Carpenters								
Ironworkers								
Laborers								
Other								
							↓ ↓	
	<u> </u>						<u> </u>	
Agreements:								
- greeniente.								
	to Site:							
Material Delivered	s Recommended:							

Additional Contract Activities or Contract Chang	ge Order Activities this date. (Indicate which)	
Activities Inspected or Observed this Data (Nate	e activity number and associated start/stop time):	
Activities inspected of Observed this Date (Note		
	Continue on Attached Sheet if Nece	SSA
Follow-Up Actions		
Notices Issued/Received:		
Checklists Prepared:		
CPM Scheduled Activities Started and Ended to	oday	
Distribution Original - Project Engineer Engineer	Inspector	
Copy - Contract File	Signature	
	Project Engineer Signature	
BLDG-Form 09 R:\STWD Forms\Updated Forms	Page 2 of Rev 5/01	3

	DAILY INSPECTION RI		~)
Activities Inspected or Observed this Da	ate (Continued):		
Distribution	Inspector		
Original - Project Engineer Copy- Central Office File	Inspector	Signature	
	Project Engineer	Signature	
		Signature	
BLDG-Form 09 R:\STWD Forms\Updated Forms			Page 3 of Rev 5/01

17.10. Substitution Request: BLDG-Form 10

ST		ATE OF ALASKA DOT & PF DE PUBLIC FACILITIES	SUBSTITUTION REQUEST FORM (after Award)	
Projec	:t:		P	roject No.:
Contra	actor:			
		for which substitution is reque cation section and paragraph)	ested:	
(describ affects c	e propose dimension		pecified item; attach complete technical, performance, and test data a drawings or affects other trades, and include complete information	
l certify	y the fol	lowing:		
Yes	No D	The substitute will perform a	adequately and achieve the results called for by the ge	eneral design.
	ā		equal substance, suited to the same use, and will prov	
		An equivalent source of rep		
		The evaluation and approva of the project.	I of the proposed substitute will not delay the Substan	tial or Final Completion
			ecessitated by the proposed substitution will not delay	the Substantial or Final
		The cost of any change in the	ne design necessitated by the proposed substitution, in ction costs caused by the substitution will be paid by the	
			or royalty necessitated by the proposed substitution w State.	ill be paid by the
The un	dersigne	d states that the function, appear	ance and quality are equivalent or superior to the specified	item.
Signed	d:	Authorized Contractor Cizza	Date:	
		Authorized Contractor Signa	ature	

	eer Recommendation:			
Accepted	Accepted as Noted	Not Accepted	Received Too Late	
Remarks:				
Signed:	Architect/Engineer	Date:		
		Date: Resident Engineer		
Recommend A	cceptance / Rejection (circle one)			
	cceptance / Rejection (circle one) f		Date:	

17.11. Submittal Log: BLDG Form 11

STAT	TE OF ALASKA DOT & PF FEWIDE PUBLIC FACILITIES			SUB№	IITTAL I	_OG				
PROJECT NO):		PRO	IECT:						
PROJECT MA	NAGER:		RESI	DENTE	ENGINEE	R:				
CONTRACTO	R:									
SUBMITTAL #	DESCRIPTION & SPECIFICATION REFERENCE	CONTR TRANS NO.	DATE REC'D	TO A/E	FROM A/E	Mar	oject lager FROM		TO RACTOR	STATUS
1. No excep	tions taken 2.	Make correcti	ons noted		3.	Revise a	and resu	omit	4.	Rejected
BLDG-Form 11										Rev 5

17.12. Non Compliance Notice: BLDG Form 12

STATE OF ALASKA DOT & PF STATEWIDE PUBLIC FACILITIES	NON-COMPLIANCE NOTICE No.:	A LIE
PROJECT:	PROJECT NO.:	
CONTRACTOR:	VERBAL NOTICE DATE/TIME:	
то:	FROM:	
immediately. If applicable, until the corrective of all corrective action shall be borne by the C	with the Contract Documents. Corrective action is to be taken action is completed, no monies may be paid for the item(s) and the pontractor.	he cos
Spec. Ref.:	Plan Ref.:	

CUNTRACTOR'S CORRECT	IVE ACTION PROPOSAL:	
Date:		
		Contractor's Project Manager
		Project Engineer
Design Engineer Comments: Proposal is Acceptable:	Is not Acceptable-Resubmit	
Need More Back-up Data	Submit Sketch/Drawings/	
See Attached Comments	Materials/Calculations	
		Architect/Engineer of Record
for payment.	with corrective action proposals. The	remedial work has been inspected and accept
Date:		Project Manager
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

17.13. Non-Compliance Notice Log: BLDG-Form 13

STATE OF ALASKA DOT & PF STATEWIDE PUBLIC FACILITIES	REQUEST FOR INFORMATION	
PROJECT NO:	PROJECT:	
To:	FROM:	
RFI #: DATE REQ'D:	CONTRACTOR:	
Contractor Signature:	Date:	
Contractor Signature: RESPONSE:	Date:	
	Date:	

RESPONSE:		
	Deter	
Project Engineer Signature:		
COPY: Prime Design Consultant/Project Manager	ATTACHMENTS:	
BLDG-Form 14		

17.15. Request for Information Log: BLDG-Form 15

	DC	OF ALASKA DT&PF ILITIES BRANCH	REC	QUES	T FOR INFOR	MATION	ILOG		
PROJECT	NO:			PRO	JECT:				
PROJECT	MANAC	GER:		RES	DENT ENGINE	ER:			
CONTRA	CTOR:								
DATE	RFI #	DESCRIPTION				TO REV	VIEWER RET'D	TO CONT	RACTO
REC'D	#	DESCRIPTION			REVIEWER	SENT	REID	RET'D	RFI
								<i>.</i>	
						-			
							-		
						-		<i></i>	
	-								

BLDG-Form 15 H:/BUILDDOC/OFFICE/FORMS/FR15.RFI.LOG

17.16. Change Notice: BLDG-Form 16

STATE OF ALASKA DOT & PF STATEWIDE PUBLIC FACILITIES	CHANGE NOTICE	
TO: (PROJECT ENGINEER) DATE: PROJECT NO.:	FROM: (Contractor)	
DATE: PROJECT NO.:	PROJECT NAME:	
DRAWING(s) NO.(s):	SPEC(S) NO(S) .:	
CONTRACTOR SIGNATURE:		DATE:

17.17. Request for Proposal: BLDG-Form 17

STATE OF ALASKA DOT & PF STATEWIDE PUBLIC FACILITIES	REQ PJ Name:	No: UEST FOR PROPOS PJ Nւ		
To: (Contractor) Address:		From: (Project Manage	er)	
Please provide a proposal for the following o	description of v	vork:		
Justification for Change:				
Signed: Project Manager				
CONTRACTOR RESPONSE: COST IMPACT: (submit breakdown of cost	on separate sl	neet if necessary.)		
SCHEDULE IMPACT: (time extension, if ne	cessary)			
SCHEDULE IMPACT: (time extension, if ne Per Alaska Statute 36.30.400 I hereby certif accurate, complete and current and is the a additional materials. Authorization to Proce	y that to the be ctual cost of pe	erforming the additional v	work and/or	supplying the
Per Alaska Statute 36.30.400 I hereby certif accurate, complete and current and is the a	y that to the be ctual cost of pe ed needed by	erforming the additional to avoid addi	work and/or	supplying the
Per Alaska Statute 36.30.400 I hereby certif accurate, complete and current and is the a additional materials. Authorization to Proce	y that to the be ctual cost of pe ed needed by	erforming the additional v to avoid addi Date:	work and/or itional costs	supplying the and time
Per Alaska Statute 36.30.400 I hereby certif accurate, complete and current and is the a additional materials. Authorization to Proce Contractor Signature:	y that to the be ctual cost of pe ed needed by	erforming the additional v to avoid addi Date:	work and/or itional costs	supplying the and time

LUBLIC	DOT & PF FACILITIES	DOT & PF PUBLIC FACILITIES BRANCH					,		
			_						
PROJECT NO:	2		PROJECT:						
PROJECT MANAGER:	NAGER:		RESIDENT ENGINEER:						
CONTRACTOR:	ж.								
CN DATE	ATE RFP				RFP	AUTH.	cco	cco	
			DESCRIPTION	To Con- Tractor	FROM CON- TRACTOR	IO INITIATE	Ö	AMOUNI	REMARKS
_	_								
_									
+									

17.18. Request for Proposal/Change Notice Log: BLDG-Form 18

17.19. Cost of Work: BLDG-Form 19

Image: state in the state		TATE OF ALASKA DOT & PF WIDE PUBLIC FACILITIES	cos	t of th	HE WORK	(FORM		
AUTHORIZING DOCUMENT::	PROJECT	NAME:			PROJEC	CT NO.:		
WEATHER: a.m. p.m. TEMPERATURE:								
No. Workers Work Classification Hours Rate Wages Worker's Comp & Ins. TOTA Image: Comp & Ins. Image: Com					m	_ .p.m. RAINF/	ALL:	
No. Workers Work Classification Hours Rate Wages Worker's Comp & Ins. TOTA Image: Comp & Ins. TOTA Image: Comp & Ins. TOTA Image: Comp & Ins. TOTA Image: Comp & Ins. Image: Comp & Ins. Image: Comp & Ins. TOTA Image: Comp & Ins. TOTA Image: Comp & Ins. Image:	L Contr	actor's Force (to include all pe	reone used o	n this out	tra work):			
Item Description Use NET COS Image: Second sec	No.					Wages		
Item Description Use NET COS Image: Second se								
Item Description Use NET COS Image: Second sec								
Item Description Use NET COS Image: Second se								
Item Description Use NET COS Image: Second se	II. Mater	ials and Supplies (attach certif	ied invoices a	as applica	able):		I	
Type Use Hours Used AMOUN Image: Imag						Use		NET COST
Type Use Hours Used AMOUN Image: Imag								
Type Use Hours Used AMOUN Image: Imag								
Type Use Hours Used AMOUN Image: Imag								
Type Use Hours Used AMOUN Image: Imag								
Type Use Hours Used AMOUN Image: Imag								
IV. Description of Work Accomplished:	III. Mach	inery and Equipment (only for	time used on	this worl	k).			
IV. Description of Work Accomplished:	III. Mach		time used on	this work		Ηοι	Irs Used	AMOUN
IV. Description of Work Accomplished:	III. Mach		time used on	this worl		Hou	Irs Used	AMOUN
IV. Description of Work Accomplished:	III. Mach		time used on	this work		Ноц	ırs Used	AMOUN
IV Description of Work Accomplished:	III. Mach		time used on	this work		Hou	Irs Used	AMOUN
IV Description of Work Accomplished	III. Mach		time used on	this work		Hou	ırs Used	AMOUN
TV. Description of Work Accompliance.	III. Mach		time used on	this work		Hou	ırs Used	AMOUNT
			time used on	this work			ırs Used	AMOUN
		Туре	time used on	this work		Hou	ırs Used	AMOUN
		Туре	time used on	this work			ırs Used	AMOUN
V Description of Original Work That Will Not Be Performed (if any):	IV. Descr	Type			Use	Hou	ırs Used	AMOUN
V. Description of Original Work That Will Not Be Performed (if any):	IV. Descr	Type			Use		ırs Used	AMOUN
V. Description of Original Work That Will Not Be Performed (if any):	IV. Descr	Type			Use		ırs Used	
V. Description of Original Work That Will Not Be Performed (if any):	IV. Descr	Type			Use	Hou	ırs Used	AMOUN
V. Description of Original Work That Will Not Be Performed (if any):	IV. Descr	Type			Use	Hou	ırs Used	AMOUN
V. Description of Original Work That Will Not Be Performed (if any):	IV. Descr	Type			Use		ırs Used	AMOUN
V. Description of Original Work That Will Not Be Performed (if any):	IV. Descr	Type			Use		Irs Used	AMOUN

17.20. Change Order: BLDG-Form 20

	ATE OF ALAS DOT&PF STATEWIDE IBLIC FACILITI		CHANGE ORDER NO.:		
Project Numl	ber:				
Project Name and Location					
Contractor: Address:			SUMMARY OF CONTRACT ORIGINAL CONTRACT AM PREVIOUS CHANGES AM ESTIMATE THIS CHANGE:	OUNT:	
			ADJUSTED CONTRACT A	MOUNT:	\$0.00
Recommer	nded by:		DATE:		
Approved I	by:		DATE:		
Accepted by Acknowledg	aed by:	CONTRACTO	DATE:		
AS 36.30.400c.	This document sh	all become an am DESCR	ng from inaccurate cost and pricing data are subject to the pro endment to the Contract and all provisions of the Contract wi RIPTION OF CHANGE	ll be applicable.	
	E WITH THE GEN	ERAL CONTRACT	PROVISIONS, THE FOLLOWING CHANGE TO THE CONTRAC	T IS MADE:	- · · · · ·
ITEM No.			Description		Price Change
AMOUNT SH	OWN INCLUDE	ES ALL IMPAC	Includes all materials, equipment, and lab	or TOTAL:	\$0.00
End of Chang	e Order #				
	Form 20 /D forms/Updated fe	orms/FR20.CCO			Rev 6/12/13

STATE OF ALASKA DOT & PF STATEWIDE PUBLIC FACII	NO	AL AGREEMENT	
Project No.:			
Project Name And Location:			
Contractor:		SUMMARY OF CONT	
Address:		Estimate of This Cha	Changes:
Recommended By:		Date	
Approved By:		Date	
Accepted By:		Date	
The following change(s) in the abov terms and conditions stated below. hereof. Price adjustments resulting	f the contract is unchanged unc	creased decreased per or ordance with the terms of the the above Contract which is ata are subject to the provis	description below. e Contract, and under the s, by reference, made a pa ions of AS 36.30.400c.
The time provided for completion o The following change(s) in the abov terms and conditions stated below, hereof. Price adjustments resulting	f the contract is □ unchanged □ in re Contract are hereby made in acco This agreement is supplemental to	creased decreased per or ordance with the terms of the the above Contract which is ata are subject to the provis visions of the Contract will	description below. e Contract, and under the s, by reference, made a pa ions of AS 36.30.400c.
The time provided for completion o The following change(s) in the abov terms and conditions stated below. hereof. Price adjustments resulting This document shall become an am	f the contract is unchanged in accorn This agreement is supplemental to from inaccurate cost and pricing d endment to the Contract and all pro	creased decreased per or ordance with the terms of the the above Contract which is ata are subject to the provis visions of the Contract will HANGE	description below. e Contract, and under the s, by reference, made a pa ions of AS 36.30.400c. be applicable.
The time provided for completion o The following change(s) in the abov terms and conditions stated below. hereof. Price adjustments resulting This document shall become an am	f the contract is unchanged interest of the contract are hereby made in accorrect are hereby made in accorrect and a supplemental to from inaccurate cost and pricing d endment to the Contract and all pro	creased decreased per or ordance with the terms of the the above Contract which is ata are subject to the provis visions of the Contract will HANGE	description below. e Contract, and under the s, by reference, made a pa ions of AS 36.30.400c. be applicable.
The time provided for completion o The following change(s) in the above terms and conditions stated below. hereof. Price adjustments resulting This document shall become an amount In accordance with Article 9 of the	f the contract is in unchanged in inverse Contract are hereby made in accord This agreement is supplemental to from inaccurate cost and pricing dendment to the Contract and all problem DESCRIPTION OF CH General contract Provisions, the for DESCRIPTION	creased decreased per or ordance with the terms of the the above Contract which is ata are subject to the provis visions of the Contract will HANGE	description below. e Contract, and under the s, by reference, made a pa ions of AS 36.30.400c. be applicable. tract is made: PRICE CHANGE
The time provided for completion o The following change(s) in the abov terms and conditions stated below. hereof. Price adjustments resulting This document shall become an am In accordance with Article 9 of the ITEM NO.	f the contract is in unchanged in inverse Contract are hereby made in accord This agreement is supplemental to from inaccurate cost and pricing dendment to the Contract and all problem DESCRIPTION OF CH General contract Provisions, the for DESCRIPTION	Is, equipment, and labor —	description below. e Contract, and under the s, by reference, made a pa ions of AS 36.30.400c. be applicable. tract is made: PRICE CHANGE
The time provided for completion o The following change(s) in the abov terms and conditions stated below. hereof. Price adjustments resulting This document shall become an am In accordance with Article 9 of the ITEM NO.	f the contract is in unchanged in interverse in the contract are hereby made in accord This agreement is supplemental to a from inaccurate cost and pricing dendment to the Contract and all probability of the Co	Is, equipment, and labor —	description below. e Contract, and under the s, by reference, made a pa ions of AS 36.30.400c. be applicable. tract is made: PRICE CHANGE
The time provided for completion o The following change(s) in the abov terms and conditions stated below. hereof. Price adjustments resulting This document shall become an am In accordance with Article 9 of the ITEM NO.	f the contract is in unchanged in interverse in the contract are hereby made in accord This agreement is supplemental to a from inaccurate cost and pricing dendment to the Contract and all probability of the Co	Is, equipment, and labor —	description below. e Contract, and under the s, by reference, made a pa ions of AS 36.30.400c. be applicable. tract is made: PRICE CHANGE

17.21. Supplemental Agreement: BLDG-Form 21

17.22. Interim Work Authorization: BLDG-Form 22

ALASSA A	DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND PUBLIC FACILITIES STATEWIDE PUBLIC FACILITIES	
	Interim V	Work Authorization
Project No.:		IWA No.
Project Name:		
Contractor:	1	Estimated dollar amount of the
A	1	IWA is:
Issued By:	Date: Date:	
Acknowledged By:	: Date: Date:	
Permission for previ	iously approved subcontractor(s) to perform all or portions of the work described herein i	is as checked: \Box Yes \Box No \Box N/A.
stated below. Price ad shall become an interir	e(s) in the above Contract are hereby made in accordance with the terms of the Contra- djustments resulting from inaccurate cost and pricing data are subject to the provisions m amendment to the Contract and all provisions of the Contract will be applicable. Items occument shall be superseded by a subsequent Change Order, which will address any adjust	of AS 36.30.400(c). This documen not mentioned shall not be affected by
Basis of Payment	(Check One)	
	e following work will be paid per Section 10.3.2 or 10.3.3 and10.3.4 of the Gene	
Payment for the	e following work will be paid the following unit prices and method of measurem	ent stated herein.
	I.W.A. #	∉ Page 1 of

DOT&PF DOT&PF Public Facilities Branch	PF Search	SCHEDULE OF VALUES FOR CONTRACT PAYMENTS	DF VALUE R	vy vy	Name:	
Name and Address of Contractor.	tor:				sneet of	
Contract Description. Item No.	Description of Item	Quantity	Unit of Measure	Cost per Unit	Total Cost of Item	
(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(2)	(6)	
	TOTALS					
Submitted by:			Approved:			
	Contractor Note; If a lump sum bid, contractor to complete columns 1, 2 & 6. for the unit orice items		or if some ite	Project Manager ems are unit price,	Date Project Manager Date Date If unit price bid or if some items are unit price, contractor to complete all columns	all columns

17.23. Schedule of Values: BLDG-Form 23

17.24. Progress Summary: BLDG-Form 24

STATE OF ALASKA DOT & PF STATEWIDE PUBLIC FACILITIES	 ROGRESS SUMMARY	
	1	
Project No.:	Project Name:	
Item No./CCO No.:	Item Name:	
Percentage Complete Requested:	Percentage Complete Allow	red:

Required for Any Payment:

Yes	No	N/A	
			Shop Drawings Approved for this item
			Material Certifications are on file for this item
			Product Submittal Approved for this item
			Manufacturer's Installation Instructions for this item are on file
			Alaska Products listed by Contractor for this item were used
			Record Drawings updated to show this work
			Permits required for this work are on file

Required for >95% Payment:

	O&M Manuals have been submitted & approved
	Warranties have been submitted & approved
	Spare Materials have been received
	Training has been provided

Basis for Percentage Complete Allowed:

- Counted or measured units. Source document attached.
- Reviewed completed work on record documents.
- No change from last pay estimate.

Project Engineer

All physical work complete.

Signed: _

_____ Date:____

BLDG-Form 24

Rev 5/01

	D	E OF ALASKA OT & PF PUBLIC FACILI	TIES			IODIC ESTIN FOR TIAL PAYMI
Name o	f Project:			Name	of Contractor	
Locatior	n of Project:			Contra	ctor Address:	
Project	No.:					
	No.: : Estimate No.:				through	
Periodic	Estimate No.: ST OF THE COMPI Columns (1)-(5): Er under change order Value for Contracto Columns (6) and (7 Column (8): Enter ti	for Period LETED WORK TO htries must be limite rs is to be shown on	DATE UNDER to work and costs sheet 2.). Line ite appleted to date und en columns (5) and	19 THE OF s under f ems and der origin d (7).	RIGINAL CC the original co values must	ONTRACT ON
Periodic	Estimate No.: ST OF THE COMPI Columns (1)-(5): Er under change order Value for Contracto Columns (6) and (7 Column (8): Enter ti	for Period LETED WORK TO htries must be limiters is to be shown on or Payments.): Show all work cor he difference betwe	DATE UNDER to work and costs sheet 2.). Line ite appleted to date und en columns (5) and nn (7) to column (_ 19 THE OF s under f ems and der origin d (7). (5).	RIGINAL CC the original cc values must nal contract. LETE TO DATE	ONTRACT ON

17.25. Periodic Estimate for Partial Payment: BLDG Form 25

Project No	.:							
Periodic E	stimate No.:	for Per	iod		19	through	19	
	Columns (1)-(5): Er	ntries mus rs is to be r Paymen	t be limited to shown on sh ts.	o work and costs neet 2.). Line ite	s under th ms and v	ne original co /alues must	DNTRACT ONLY ontract only, (Work and match approved Sched	
C	Columns (6) and (7 Column (8): Enter th Column (9): Show p	he differer	ice between	columns (5) and	1 (7).	al contract.		
			CONTRACT		COMPLE	ETE TO DATE		
Item No. (1)	Description of item (2)	Quantity (3)	Cost per Unit (4)	Total Cost of Item (5)	Quantity (6)	Total Cost (7)	Cost of Uncompleted Work (8)	% Complete (9)
		_						
		_						
		_						
	Totals:							
BLDG-	Form 25			Draft Rev 4/13	3		Page	1 of 2

TOJECT N	0			Pay Estimate No.:	
	C	CHANGE ORD	ERS		
C.O.		(1)	(2)	(3) AMOUNT DUE FOR	%
NO.	DESCRIPTION	INCREASE	DECREASE	COMPLETED ITEMS CO	
	TOT	TALS:			
	Contract Amount to Date				
Total Col.	5, Sheet 1,plus 1 and less 2 above)				
		Analysis of Work P	erformed		
a.	Total Work completed to date (Col.	7)			
b.	Material Stored on Site				
C.	Change Orders Performed (3 minus	s 2 above)			
	Subtotal				
	Less Previous Payments				
f	Amount Payable this estimate				
l certify th	at all items and amounts are in accorda	CERTIFICATION OF CC ance with the contract requ		e undersigned have complied w	ith the
abor prov	visions of said contract, or that there is a	an honest dispute with res	pect to the provisions	3.	
ONTRA	CTOR'S SIGNATURE			DATE	
or State use o	only) rance #				
	ED AND APPROVED FOR PAYME			***************************************	
Project En	gineer			DATE:	
Project M	lanager			DATE:	
	Chief			DATE:	
	9-Form 25	Rev 5/01		Page 2 of	F 2

STATE OF ALASKA STORED DOT & PF MATERIALS STATEWIDE PUBLIC FACILITIES WORKSHEET	Name and Address of Contractor: Contract Description: Pav Estimate	Description Stored Materials From New Material Previous Pay This Pay Request Period Period	(1) a b								Submitted by:	Contractor
Project Number: Project Name: Sheetof		Materials Incorporated M Into Work During This Pay Request Period	o							Total Stored This Pay Request	Date:	
		Materials Incorporated In Previous Pay Estimate	p							(last sheet only)		
		Stored Ending This Pay Request Period	(a+b)-c(-d)							۰ ج		

17.26. Stored Materials: BLDG-Form 26
17.27. Certificate of Substantial Completion: BLDG-Form 27

ST	STATE OF ALASKA DOT & PF ATEWIDE PUBLIC FACILITIES	CERTIFICATE OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION	
	of Inspection: ect or Specified Part Shall Include:	Project No.: Project Name and Location:	
		Contractor:	
		Address:	
decla	The Wor where, in DEPARTI accordan	DEFINITION OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION ((or a specified part thereof) has progressed to the poir the opinion of the Contracting Officer, as evidenced by th MENT'S written notice, it is sufficiently complete, i ce with the Contract Documents, so that the Work (or	ie in pr
does r The (of items to be completed or corrected is a not relieve the CONTRACTOR of its response	part) can be utilized for the purposes for which it was ppended hereto. This list may not be exhaustive, and the fai onsibility to complete all the Work in accordance with the Con Certificate of Substantial Completion and agrees to con hits indicated.	ilure to include an item on it tract Documents.
does r The (ppended hereto. This list may not be exhaustive, and the fai onsibility to complete all the Work in accordance with the Con Certificate of Substantial Completion and agrees to conits indicated.	ilure to include an item on it tract Documents.
does r The (of items to be completed or corrected is a not relieve the CONTRACTOR of its respo CONTRACTOR accepts the above (ppended hereto. This list may not be exhaustive, and the fai onsibility to complete all the Work in accordance with the Con Certificate of Substantial Completion and agrees to conits indicated.	ilure to include an item on it tract Documents.
The (tems The [wher respo	intended. of items to be completed or corrected is a not relieve the CONTRACTOR of its respo CONTRACTOR accepts the above of on the attached list within the time lin Authorized Contractor Sign DEPARTMENT accepts the project of hupon the Using Agency shall ass	ppended hereto. This list may not be exhaustive, and the fai onsibility to complete all the Work in accordance with the Con Certificate of Substantial Completion and agrees to contrain indicated. Date: nature Date: specified area of the project as substantially complete ume full possession of the project or specified area d insurance under the contract documents, unless specified Date:	ilure to include an item on it tract Documents. omplete and correct the e at , on , of the project, and the
The (tems The [wher respo	intended. of items to be completed or corrected is a not relieve the CONTRACTOR of its respo CONTRACTOR accepts the above of on the attached list within the time lin Authorized Contractor Sign DEPARTMENT accepts the project of hupon the Using Agency shall ass onsibility for heat, utilities, security and larks" below. DOT&PF Project Manager	ppended hereto. This list may not be exhaustive, and the fai onsibility to complete all the Work in accordance with the Con Certificate of Substantial Completion and agrees to contrain indicated. Date: nature Date: specified area of the project as substantially complete ume full possession of the project or specified area d insurance under the contract documents, unless specified Date:	ilure to include an item on it tract Documents. omplete and correct the e at , on , of the project, and the
fhe (tems fhe I wher espo Rem	intended. of items to be completed or corrected is a not relieve the CONTRACTOR of its respo CONTRACTOR accepts the above of on the attached list within the time lin Authorized Contractor Sign DEPARTMENT accepts the project of hupon the Using Agency shall ass onsibility for heat, utilities, security and larks" below. DOT&PF Project Manager	ppended hereto. This list may not be exhaustive, and the fai onsibility to complete all the Work in accordance with the Con Certificate of Substantial Completion and agrees to contrain indicated. Date: nature Date: specified area of the project as substantially complete ume full possession of the project or specified area d insurance under the contract documents, unless specified Date:	ilure to include an item on it tract Documents. omplete and correct the e at , on , of the project, and the

CONTR	ACTOR'S RELEASE	
RE: Project No(s) Project Name	Final Amount Less Liquidation Damag Total Final Sum Estimate(s), 1 thru Final Payment Due	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$
Pursuant to the terms of the written contract d	ated, 20	for the construction of
Project No(s).	and in consideration of	the total final sum of
	has been an is to be self and a	17 1 0 01 0
Dollars (\$) which	has been or is to be paid under	the contract to
	tor's Name and Address) ees, if any, the Contractor, upon p and discharge the STATE OF Al tions, claims, and demands whats whether or not ascertainable at t d amounts or in estimated amou	bayment of the said sum l LASKA, its officers, agen oever under or arising fro the time of the execution
(Contrac (hereinafter called the Contractor) or its assign the STATE OF ALASKA, does remise, release and employees, of and from all liabilities, obliga said contract, whether known or unknown and this instrument except specified claims in state not susceptible of exact statement by the Contra The Contractor agrees, in connection with the will comply with all the provisions of the said co	tor's Name and Address) ees, if any, the Contractor, upon p and discharge the STATE OF Al tions, claims, and demands whats whether or not ascertainable at t ed amounts or in estimated amou- ictor, as follows:	bayment of the said sum b LASKA, its officers, agen oever under or arising fro the time of the execution nts where the amounts a set forth above, that (s) on those provisions relatin
(hereinafter called the Contractor) or its assign the STATE OF ALASKA, does remise, release and employees, of and from all liabilities, obliga said contract, whether known or unknown and this instrument except specified claims in state not susceptible of exact statement by the Contra The Contractor agrees, in connection with the	tor's Name and Address) ees, if any, the Contractor, upon p and discharge the STATE OF Al tions, claims, and demands whats whether or not ascertainable at t ed amounts or in estimated amou- ictor, as follows: claims which are not released as ntract, including without limitatic ating to the prosecution of claims.	bayment of the said sum b LASKA, its officers, agen oever under or arising fro the time of the execution nts where the amounts a set forth above, that (s) on those provisions relatin
(Contrac (hereinafter called the Contractor) or its assign the STATE OF ALASKA, does remise, release and employees, of and from all liabilities, obliga said contract, whether known or unknown and this instrument except specified claims in state not susceptible of exact statement by the Contra The Contractor agrees, in connection with the will comply with all the provisions of the said co to notification of the Contracting Officer and rel	tor's Name and Address) ees, if any, the Contractor, upon p and discharge the STATE OF Al tions, claims, and demands whats whether or not ascertainable at t ed amounts or in estimated amou- ictor, as follows: claims which are not released as ntract, including without limitatic ating to the prosecution of claims.	bayment of the said sum l LASKA, its officers, agen oever under or arising fro the time of the execution nts where the amounts a set forth above, that (s) on those provisions relatin
(Contrac (hereinafter called the Contractor) or its assign the STATE OF ALASKA, does remise, release and employees, of and from all liabilities, obliga said contract, whether known or unknown and this instrument except specified claims in state not susceptible of exact statement by the Contra The Contractor agrees, in connection with the will comply with all the provisions of the said co to notification of the Contracting Officer and rel IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this release has beer	tor's Name and Address) ees, if any, the Contractor, upon p and discharge the STATE OF Al tions, claims, and demands whats whether or not ascertainable at t ed amounts or in estimated amou- ictor, as follows: claims which are not released as ntract, including without limitatic ating to the prosecution of claims.	bayment of the said sum l LASKA, its officers, agen oever under or arising fro the time of the execution nts where the amounts a set forth above, that (s) on those provisions relatin , 20

CERTIFICATE

[, certify that I am the(Official Title)	of the
corporation name	(Official Title) d as Contractor in the foregoing release; that	
vito signed said iv	elease on behalf of the Contractor was then(Official Title)	
f said corporation	n; that said release was duly signed for and in behalf of said corporation by	
uthority of its go	verning body and is within the scope of its corporate powers.	
	Signature	
	Print Name	
	Lillir Instite	
N WITNERO WI	HEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal this	
	на поре и полочен про иссе иссер полагона инструкции салот. Алексии наронализировалист инструкций населени нарона	
day of	, 20	
My Commission		
Expires:	Notary Public	
	Total Fueld	
Note: The above igns the Control	ve Certificate must be completed by a corporate officer <u>other than</u> t actor's Release form).	ine one who
igns the contra	actor's Release form).	
	2	

	DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND PUBLIC FACILITIES	N
	CERTIFICATION OF FINAL ESTIMAT	E
Project No.:	Total Amoun	t of Project:
Project Name:		
	DEPARTMENT CERTIFICATION	
Alaska for this proje supervision, that to t	tifies that (s)he was in charge of the construction erect and that the foregoing final estimate was prepa the best of her/his knowledge and belief the work set ince with the plans and specifications and that the quarect.	red under her/his direction forth in said estimate has b
	Project Engineer	Date
	tifies that (s)he has reviewed the foregoing final est rein conforms with the contract and is true and correct	
and belief. The undersigned cert authorized represent	Regional Reviewer tifies that the construction engineering for this proje tatives of her/his office, that the foregoing final es	stimate has been prepared
The undersigned cer- authorized represent reviewed by such au- work has been perfo- amounts shown in the	tifies that the construction engineering for this project tatives of her/his office, that the foregoing final est thorized representatives that (s)he has reviewed the rmed in substantial conformance with the specification e estimate are true and correct to the best of her/his km	ect was under the supervisio stimate has been prepared work and the estimate, that ons and that the quantities lowledge and belief.
The undersigned cer- authorized represent reviewed by such au- work has been perfo- amounts shown in the	tifies that the construction engineering for this project tatives of her/his office, that the foregoing final est thorized representatives that (s)he has reviewed the rmed in substantial conformance with the specification e estimate are true and correct to the best of her/his known	ect was under the supervisio stimate has been prepared work and the estimate, that ons and that the quantities
The undersigned cer- authorized represent reviewed by such au- work has been perfo- amounts shown in the	tifies that the construction engineering for this project tatives of her/his office, that the foregoing final est thorized representatives that (s)he has reviewed the rmed in substantial conformance with the specification e estimate are true and correct to the best of her/his km	ect was under the supervisio stimate has been prepared work and the estimate, that ons and that the quantities lowledge and belief.
The undersigned cer- authorized represent reviewed by such au- work has been perfo- amounts shown in the 	tifies that the construction engineering for this project tatives of her/his office, that the foregoing final est thorized representatives that (s)he has reviewed the rmed in substantial conformance with the specificati e estimate are true and correct to the best of her/his km Chief, Statewide Public CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION reby certifies that (s)he was the contractor on the abo ich payment is being included in this final estimate has and due, and has not been made in full; and that her	ect was under the supervisio stimate has been prepared work and the estimate, that ons and that the quantities owledge and belief. Facilities Date ve named project, that the v ave been performed or furnisi
The undersigned cert authorized represent reviewed by such aut work has been perfor amounts shown in the mounts shown in the m	tifies that the construction engineering for this project tatives of her/his office, that the foregoing final est thorized representatives that (s)he has reviewed the rmed in substantial conformance with the specificati e estimate are true and correct to the best of her/his km Chief, Statewide Public CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION reby certifies that (s)he was the contractor on the abo ich payment is being included in this final estimate has and due, and has not been made in full; and that her	ect was under the supervisio stimate has been prepared work and the estimate, that ons and that the quantities lowledge and belief. Facilities Date ve named project, that the w ave been performed or furnish this signature hereon author ade to property owners and of its of any nature, have been f pontractor, subcontractor, or of id and discharged; and that n whatsoever to any employe
The undersigned cert authorized represent reviewed by such aut work has been perfor amounts shown in the mounts shown in the m	tifies that the construction engineering for this project tatives of her/his office, that the foregoing final est thorized representatives that (s)he has reviewed the rmed in substantial conformance with the specificati e estimate are true and correct to the best of her/his km 	ect was under the supervisio stimate has been prepared work and the estimate, that ons and that the quantities lowledge and belief. Facilities Date ve named project, that the v ave been performed or furnish this signature hereon author adde to property owners and of ints of any nature, have been for intractor, subcontractor, or of id and discharged; and that n whatsoever to any employee.

17.30. Contractors Civil Rights Representatives: BLDG-Form 30

STATE OF ALASKA DOT & PF statewide public facilities	CONTRACTOR'S CIVIL RIGHTS REPRESENTATIVES	
In accordance with equal employment opportunity information is furnished to the Alaska Department o 1. Home Office Representative Responsible for O	f Transportation and Public Facilities:	
Name	Title or Position i	n Firm
Mailing Address (Include zip code)	Telephone Nun	iber
2. Home Office Representative responsible for Ov Business Enterprise Program:	verall Administration and Promotion of the Fi	rm's Minority
Name	Title or Position i	n Firm
Mailing Address (Include zip code) 3. Project Site Representative Responsible for Equisite:	Telephone Nun ual Employment Opportunity Contract Provis	
Name	Title or Position i	n Firm
Mailing Address (Include zip code)	Telephone Nun	ıber
4. Check One:Contractor	SubcontractorConsultant	
Contract/Project	Company Name	
Contract/Project	Address	
Dollar Value	Title	
DOT&PF Region	Date	
The Contractor must submit three copies of this for the time any subcontract documents are submitted information within 10 days after a personnel change	for approval. All contractors and subcontra	ractors are required to
	er	
XC: DOT&PF Regional Contract Compliance Offic		

17.31. EEO-1 Certification: BLDG-Form 31

STATE OF ALASKA DOT & PF STATEWIDE PUBLIC FACILITIES	EEO-1 CERTIFICATION (Federal Aid Contracts Only	
This certification is required by the E Labor [41 CFR 60-1.7 (b) (1)] and mus participating in this contract		
PLEASE CHECK APPROPRIATE BO	XES	
The Bidder proposed Su	abcontractor hereby CERTIFIE	S:
amounting to \$50,000 or more are reeach year the two conditions (50 emp	loyees and a \$50,000 federal contract	d Report Form 100 during t) exist.
The company named below (Part C) is Report Form 100 this year.	s exempt from the requirements of su	bmitting the Standard
NO (go to PAR	T B) YES (go	o to PART C)
Instructions and blank Standard Rep Labor office, or by writing to:	ort Form 100's may be obtained from	a local U.S. Department of
P.O. Bo	nt Reporting Committee x 779 Virginia 23501	
P.O. Bo Norfolk,	x 779	
P.O. Bo	x 779 Virginia 23501	Form 100 this year.
P.O. Bo Norfolk, Telephone number: (757) 461-1213 PART B. The company named below	x 779 Virginia 23501 v has submitted the Standard Report NO tors who have not filed the required Standard be awarded this contract or subcontra	dard Report Form 100 and are
P.O. Bo Norfolk, Telephone number: (757) 461-1213 PART B. The company named below YES Note: Bidders and proposed Subcontrac not exempt from filing requirements will n	x 779 Virginia 23501 v has submitted the Standard Report NO tors who have not filed the required Standard be awarded this contract or subcontra	dard Report Form 100 and are
P.O. Bor Norfolk, Telephone number: (757) 461-1213 PART B. The company named below YES Note: Bidders and proposed Subcontrac not exempt from filing requirements will n filed for the current year ending June 30.	x 779 Virginia 23501 w has submitted the Standard Report NO tors who have not filed the required Stand not be awarded this contract or subcontra	dard Report Form 100 and are
P.O. Bo Norfolk, Telephone number: (757) 461-1213 PART B. The company named below YES Note: Bidders and proposed Subcontrac not exempt from filing requirements will n filed for the current year ending June 30. PART C.	x 779 Virginia 23501 w has submitted the Standard Report NO tors who have not filed the required Stand not be awarded this contract or subcontra	dard Report Form 100 and are act until Form 100 has been
P.O. Box Norfolk, Telephone number: (757) 461-1213 PART B. The company named below YES Note: Bidders and proposed Subcontrac not exempt from filing requirements will n filed for the current year ending June 30. PART C. Signature of Authorized Representation	x 779 Virginia 23501 w has submitted the Standard Report NO tors who have not filed the required Stand not be awarded this contract or subcontra	dard Report Form 100 and are act until Form 100 has been
P.O. Bor Norfolk, Telephone number: (757) 461-1213 PART B. The company named below YES Note : Bidders and proposed Subcontrace not exempt from filing requirements will n filed for the current year ending June 30. PART C. Signature of Authorized Representation Name of Company	x 779 Virginia 23501 w has submitted the Standard Report NO tors who have not filed the required Stand not be awarded this contract or subcontra	dard Report Form 100 and are act until Form 100 has been Date
P.O. Bor Norfolk, Telephone number: (757) 461-1213 PART B. The company named below YES Note : Bidders and proposed Subcontrac not exempt from filing requirements will n filed for the current year ending June 30. PART C. Signature of Authorized Representation Name of Company Address of Company	x 779 Virginia 23501 v has submitted the Standard Report NO tors who have not filed the required Standard this contract or subcontration we of Company	dard Report Form 100 and are act until Form 100 has been Date

٦

17.32. Project Closeout Data: BLDG-Form 32

PROJECT CLOSEOUT DATA SHEET

Project Name: .ocation: Project Ledger Code	es:	Project Number:				
Brief Project Description:						
Eastlith One Eastern	Deneviation	Onumer Fristerer				
Facility Square Footage:		Square Footage:				
OT&PF Project Manager:		Client Agency:				
OT&PF Other Key Staff:						
A		DED Data:		N.I		
Design Consultant Name:	2	RFP Date:	2	N	TP Date:	
Jame 6 Major Sub's. 1 4	 5		3			
	(二)	¢	150			
Driginal Design Contract: \$	+Ph2 Amends	\$=	TOTAL \$			-
Jumber of Amendments:			Total D	esign Col	nsultant contra	ct (57213)
Date Design Completed:	Basic Bid:		Alt.#1:			
Sumaled Construction Cost.	Alt.#2:	¢	Alt.#1:			
	Alt.#4:		Alt.#5: \$			
	/ \tt. // +.	Total Est. Const. C				
OT&PF Design Administration costs (57210):		fotal Est. Const. C	porturione	-		
OT&PF Overhead Costs (57201):			Y2			
Advertise, Bid & Award (57271,57274,57275,57277,57	279):			- DO	OT&PF Total D	esian cost
OT&PF Other Design costs (57214,57232,57252,57				- 9		-
Design Phase TOTAL:		200,07201).	A	-		
DESIGN COMMENTS:		4	, ,			
LOIGIN COMMILINIS.						
CONSTRUCTION						
Contractor's Name:	2	Bid Date:	3	0		
ACTIVITY OF DESCRIPTION DESCRIPTION	2	Bid Date:	3			
Contractor's Name: Six Major Sub's <u>1</u> 4		Bid Date:				
Contractor's Name:	5	Bid Date:	6			
Contractor's Name: Six Major Sub's <u>1</u> <u>4</u> Jumber of Bid Addendums:	5 \$-	Alt.#1:_\$ Alt.#3:_\$	6			
Contractor's Name: Six Major Sub's <u>1</u> 4 Jumber of Bid Addendums: Construction Bid: Basic Bid: _	5 \$ - \$ -	Alt.#1:_\$	6			
Contractor's Name: Six Major Sub's <u>1</u> Jumber of Bid Addendums: Construction Bid: Basic Bid: Alt.#4: Alt.#4:	5 \$- \$- \$-	Alt.#1:_ <u>\$</u> Alt.#3:_ § Alt.#5:_ §	6			
Contractor's Name: Six Major Sub's <u>1</u> 4 Jumber of Bid Addendums: Construction Bid: Basic Bid: Alt.#2:	5 \$- \$- \$-	Alt.#1: <u>\$</u> Alt.#3: \$ Alt.#5: \$ Award Date:	6		TP Date:	
Contractor's Name: Six Major Sub's <u>1</u> Jumber of Bid Addendums: Construction Bid: Basic Bid: Alt.#2: Alt.#4: TOTAL AWARDED CONTRACT =	5 \$- \$- \$- \$-	Alt.#1: <u>\$</u> Alt.#3: § Alt.#5: § Award Date: Total Number of Ch	6		0	
Contractor's Name: Six Major Sub's <u>1</u> Jumber of Bid Addendums: Construction Bid: Basic Bid: Alt.#4: Alt.#4:	5 \$- \$- \$- \$-	Alt.#1: <u>\$</u> Alt.#3: § Alt.#5: § Award Date: Total Number of Ch C.O.due to unfores	6 5 5 nange Orders: een condition	#	0 \$	
Contractor's Name: Six Major Sub's <u>1</u> Jumber of Bid Addendums: Construction Bid: Basic Bid: Alt.#2: Alt.#4: TOTAL AWARDED CONTRACT = TOTAL COST of CHANGE ORDERS =	5 \$- \$- \$- \$- \$- \$-	Alt.#1: <u>\$</u> Alt.#3: <u>\$</u> Alt.#5: <u>\$</u> Award Date: Total Number of Ch C.O.due to unfores C.O.due to Scope (6 5 5 hange Orders: een condition Change	#	0\$	e =
Contractor's Name: Six Major Sub's <u>1</u> Jumber of Bid Addendums: Construction Bid: Basic Bid: Alt.#2: Alt.#4: TOTAL AWARDED CONTRACT =	5 \$- \$- \$- \$- \$- \$-	Alt.#1: <u>\$</u> Alt.#3: <u>\$</u> Alt.#5: <u>\$</u> Award Date: Total Number of CH C.O.due to unfores C.O.due to Scope (C.O.due to Errors &	6 5 5 6 6 7 8 8 7 8 8 7 8 8 7 8 8 7 8 8 7 8 8 7 8 8 7 8 8 7 8 8 7 8	# #	0\$ \$ \$	e =
Contractor's Name: Six Major Sub's <u>1</u> Jumber of Bid Addendums: Construction Bid: Basic Bid: Alt.#2: Alt.#4: TOTAL AWARDED CONTRACT = TOTAL COST of CHANGE ORDERS =	5 \$- \$- \$- \$- \$- \$-	Alt.#1: <u>\$</u> Alt.#3: <u>\$</u> Alt.#5: <u>\$</u> Award Date: Total Number of Cl C.O.due to unfores C.O.due to Scope (C.O.due to Scope (C.O.due to Scope (C.O.due to Suppler	6 hange Orders: een condition Change & Omissions mental Agree	# # #	0\$ \$ \$ \$	
Contractor's Name: Six Major Sub's 1 Jumber of Bid Addendums: Construction Bid: Basic Bid: Alt.#2: Alt.#4: TOTAL AWARDED CONTRACT = TOTAL COST of CHANGE ORDERS = TOT.CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT(57450)=	5 \$- \$- \$- \$- \$- \$-	Alt.#1: <u>\$</u> Alt.#3: <u>\$</u> Alt.#5: <u>\$</u> Award Date: Total Number of Cf C.O.due to unfores C.O.due to Scope (C.O.due to Scope (C.O.due to Suppler C.O.due to Suppler C.O.due to other co	6 hange Orders: een condition Change & Omissions mental Agree	# #	0	
Contractor's Name: Six Major Sub's <u>1</u> Jumber of Bid Addendums: Construction Bid: Basic Bid: Alt.#2: Alt.#4: TOTAL AWARDED CONTRACT = TOTAL COST of CHANGE ORDERS =	5 \$- \$- \$- \$- \$- \$-	Alt.#1: <u>\$</u> Alt.#3: <u>\$</u> Alt.#5: <u>\$</u> Award Date: Total Number of Cl C.O.due to unfores C.O.due to Scope (C.O.due to Scope (C.O.due to Scope (C.O.due to Suppler	6 hange Orders: een condition Change & Omissions mental Agree	# # #	0\$ \$ \$ \$	
Contractor's Name: Six Major Sub's 1 4 Jumber of Bid Addendums: Construction Bid: Basic Bid: Alt.#2: Alt.#4: TOTAL AWARDED CONTRACT = TOTAL COST of CHANGE ORDERS = TOT.CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT(57450)= COMPLETION DATES: Scheduled:	5 \$- \$- \$- \$- \$- \$-	Alt.#1: <u>\$</u> Alt.#3: <u>\$</u> Alt.#5: <u>\$</u> Award Date: Total Number of Ch C.O.due to unfores C.O.due to Scope (C.O.due to Scope (C.O.due to Suppler C.O.due to Suppler C.O.due to other co Substantial:	6 hange Orders: een condition Change & Omissions mental Agree	# # #	0	
Contractor's Name: Six Major Sub's 1 Jumber of Bid Addendums: Construction Bid: Basic Bid: Alt.#2: Alt.#4: TOTAL AWARDED CONTRACT = TOTAL COST of CHANGE ORDERS = TOT.CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT(57450)= COMPLETION DATES: Scheduled: DOT&PF Construction Administration (57403):	5 \$- \$- \$- \$- \$- \$-	Alt.#1: <u>\$</u> Alt.#3: <u>\$</u> Alt.#5: <u>\$</u> Award Date: Total Number of Cf C.O.due to unfores C.O.due to Scope (C.O.due to Scope (C.O.due to Suppler C.O.due to Suppler C.O.due to other co Substantial:	6 hange Orders: een condition Change & Omissions mental Agree	# # #	0	
Contractor's Name: Six Major Sub's 1 4 Jumber of Bid Addendums: Construction Bid: Basic Bid: Alt.#2: Alt.#4: TOTAL AWARDED CONTRACT = TOTAL COST of CHANGE ORDERS = TOT.CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT(57450)= COMPLETION DATES: Scheduled: COMPLETION DATES: Scheduled: DOT&PF Construction Administration (57403): DOT&PF On-site Inspections (57402):	5 \$- \$- \$- \$- \$- \$-	Alt.#1: <u>\$</u> Alt.#3: <u>\$</u> Alt.#5: <u>\$</u> Award Date: Total Number of Cf C.O.due to unfores C.O.due to Scope (C.O.due to Scope (C.O.due to Suppler C.O.due to Suppler C.O.due to other co Substantial: <u>\$</u>	6 hange Orders: een condition Change Monissions mental Agree handitions	# # #	0 \$ \$ \$ 5 Final:	
Contractor's Name: Six Major Sub's 1 4 Jumber of Bid Addendums: Construction Bid: Basic Bid: Alt.#2: Alt.#4: TOTAL AWARDED CONTRACT = TOTAL COST of CHANGE ORDERS = TOT.CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT(57450)= COMPLETION DATES: Scheduled: COMPLETION DATES: Scheduled: DOT&PF Construction Administration (57403): DOT&PF On-site Inspections (57402): DOT&PF Overhead Costs (ICAP) (57406):	5 \$- \$- \$- \$- \$- \$-	Alt.#1: <u>\$</u> Alt.#3: <u>\$</u> Alt.#5: <u>\$</u> Award Date: Total Number of Cf C.O.due to unfores C.O.due to Scope (C.O.due to Scope (C.O.due to Suppler C.O.due to Suppler C.O.due to other co Substantial: <u>\$</u> \$	6 hange Orders: een condition Change Monissions mental Agree onditions	# # #	0	
Contractor's Name: Six Major Sub's 1 4 Jumber of Bid Addendums: Construction Bid: Basic Bid: Alt.#2: Alt.#4: TOTAL AWARDED CONTRACT = TOTAL COST of CHANGE ORDERS = TOT.CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT(57450)= COMPLETION DATES: Scheduled: DOT&PF Construction Administration (57403): DOT&PF On-site Inspections (57402): DOT&PF Overhead Costs (ICAP) (57406): DOT&PF Other Costs (57430,57437,57490,57494):	5 \$- \$- \$- \$- \$- \$-	Alt.#1: <u>\$</u> Alt.#3: <u>\$</u> Alt.#5: <u>\$</u> Award Date: Total Number of Cf C.O.due to unfores C.O.due to Scope (C.O.due to Scope (C.O.due to Suppler C.O.due to Suppler C.O.due to other co Substantial: <u>\$</u> \$ \$ \$	6 hange Orders: een condition Change Monissions mental Agree onditions	# # #	0	
Contractor's Name: Six Major Sub's 1 4 Jumber of Bid Addendums: Construction Bid: Basic Bid: Alt.#2: Alt.#4: TOTAL AWARDED CONTRACT = TOTAL COST of CHANGE ORDERS = TOT.CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT(57450)= COMPLETION DATES: Scheduled: DOT&PF Construction Administration (57403): DOT&PF On-site Inspections (57402): DOT&PF Overhead Costs (ICAP) (57406): DOT&PF Other Costs (57430,57437,57490,57494): Consultant Bid & Construction Services (57497):	5 \$- \$- \$- \$- \$- \$-	Alt.#1: <u>\$</u> Alt.#3: <u>\$</u> Alt.#5: <u>\$</u> Award Date: Total Number of Cf C.O.due to unfores C.O.due to Scope (C.O.due to Scope (C.O.due to Suppler C.O.due to Suppler C.O.due to other co Substantial: <u>\$</u> \$ \$ \$ \$	6 hange Orders: een condition Change Monissions mental Agree bonditions	# # #	0	
Contractor's Name: Six Major Sub's 1 4 Jumber of Bid Addendums: Construction Bid: Basic Bid: Alt.#2: Alt.#4: TOTAL AWARDED CONTRACT = TOTAL COST of CHANGE ORDERS = TOT.CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT(57450)= COMPLETION DATES: Scheduled: DOT&PF Construction Administration (57403): DOT&PF On-site Inspections (57402): DOT&PF On-site Inspections (57402): DOT&PF Overhead Costs (ICAP) (57406): DOT&PF Other Costs (57430,57437,57490,57494): Consultant Bid & Construction Services (57497): art in Public Places (57455):	5 \$- \$- \$- \$- \$- \$-	Alt.#1: <u>\$</u> Alt.#3: <u>\$</u> Alt.#5: <u>\$</u> Award Date: Total Number of Cf C.O.due to unfores C.O.due to Scope (C.O.due to Scope (C.O.due to Suppler C.O.due to Suppler C.O.due to other co Substantial: <u>\$</u> \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	6 hange Orders: een condition Change	# # #	0	
Contractor's Name: Six Major Sub's 1 4 Jumber of Bid Addendums: Construction Bid: Basic Bid: Alt.#2: Alt.#4: TOTAL AWARDED CONTRACT = TOTAL COST of CHANGE ORDERS = TOT.CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT(57450)= COMPLETION DATES: Scheduled: DOT&PF Construction Administration (57403): DOT&PF On-site Inspections (57402): DOT&PF Overhead Costs (ICAP) (57406): DOT&PF Other Costs (57430,57437,57490,57494): Consultant Bid & Construction Services (57497): Art in Public Places (57455): Permits and Special Inspections (57422):	5 \$- \$- \$- \$- \$- \$-	Alt.#1: <u>\$</u> Alt.#3: <u>\$</u> Alt.#5: <u>\$</u> Award Date: Total Number of CH C.O.due to unfores C.O.due to Scope (C.O.due to Scope (C.O.due to Suppler C.O.due to Suppler C.O.due to other co Substantial: <u>\$</u> <u>\$</u> <u>\$</u> <u>\$</u> <u>\$</u> <u>\$</u> <u>\$</u> <u>\$</u> <u>\$</u> <u>\$</u>	6 hange Orders: een condition Change Monissions mental Agree bonditions	# # #	0	
Contractor's Name: Six Major Sub's 1 4 Jumber of Bid Addendums: Construction Bid: Basic Bid: Alt.#2: Alt.#4: TOTAL AWARDED CONTRACT = TOTAL COST of CHANGE ORDERS = TOT.CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT(57450)= COMPLETION DATES: Scheduled: DOT&PF Construction Administration (57403): DOT&PF On-site Inspections (57402): DOT&PF Other Costs (ICAP) (57406): DOT&PF Other Costs (57430,57437,57490,57494): Consultant Bid & Construction Services (57497): Art in Public Places (57455): Permits and Special Inspections (57422): Construction TOTAL	5 <u>\$</u> - <u>\$</u> - <u>\$</u> - <u>\$</u> - <u>\$</u> -	Alt.#1: <u>\$</u> Alt.#3: <u>\$</u> Award Date: Total Number of CH C.O.due to unfores C.O.due to Scope (C.O.due to Scope (C.O.due to Suppler C.O.due to Suppler C.O.due to other co Substantial: <u>\$</u> <u>\$</u> <u>\$</u> <u>\$</u> <u>\$</u> <u>\$</u> <u>\$</u> <u>\$</u> <u>\$</u> <u>\$</u>	6 hange Orders: een condition Change	# # #	0	
Contractor's Name: Six Major Sub's 1 4 Jumber of Bid Addendums: Construction Bid: Basic Bid: Alt.#2: Alt.#4: TOTAL AWARDED CONTRACT = TOTAL COST of CHANGE ORDERS = TOT.CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT(57450)= COMPLETION DATES: Scheduled: DOT&PF Construction Administration (57403): DOT&PF On-site Inspections (57402): DOT&PF Overhead Costs (ICAP) (57406): DOT&PF Other Costs (57430,57437,57490,57494): Consultant Bid & Construction Services (57497): Art in Public Places (57455): Permits and Special Inspections (57422):	5 <u>\$</u> - <u>\$</u> - <u>\$</u> - <u>\$</u> - <u>\$</u> -	Alt.#1: <u>\$</u> Alt.#3: <u>\$</u> Alt.#5: <u>\$</u> Award Date: Total Number of CH C.O.due to unfores C.O.due to Scope (C.O.due to Scope (C.O.due to Suppler C.O.due to Suppler C.O.due to other co Substantial: <u>\$</u> <u>\$</u> <u>\$</u> <u>\$</u> <u>\$</u> <u>\$</u> <u>\$</u> <u>\$</u> <u>\$</u> <u>\$</u>	6 hange Orders: een condition Change	# # #	0	

17.33. (Deleted 12-8-14)

17.34. Final Estimate Funding Breakout: BLDG-Form 34

Name of Project N	Project: lo:			Na	me of Co	ntractor:		
	OF THE COMPLET Columns (1) - (5): Ent data under change or of Amounts for Contra Columns (6) and (7): 3 Column (8): Enter the Column (9): Show per	ries must ders is to actor Payr Show all v difference	be limited t be shown o nents. work comple e between	o work and co on Sheet 2). L eted to date u columns (5) a	osts unde _ine items nder origi nd (7).	r the original o s and values n	CT ONLY contract only, (Work ar nust match approved S	nd cost Schedule
			CONTRACT	-)	СОМРІ	LETE TO DATE		
ltem No. (1)	Description of Item (2)	Quantity (3)	Cost Per Unit (4)	Total Cost of Item (5)	Quantity (6)	Total Cost (7)	Cost of Uncompleted Work (8)	% Complete (9)
								<u> </u>
								-
			-					
								+
		_					_	
								-
								1
								<u> </u>
тс	TALS THIS PAGE:							

	r:				Pay Estimate No.:	
		CHANG	E ORDERS			
C.O. NO.	DESCRIPTION		(1) INCREASE	(2) DECREASE	(3) AMOUNT DUE FOR COMPLETED ITEMS	% Comp
		Totals:				
Adjusted Contrac						
(Total Col.5, Sheet	1, plus 1 and less 2 above) \$					
a Total I	Non-Participating Original Contract (Col.		Work Perforn			
	ge Orders Non-Participating (3 minus 2 a					
	Non-Participating Work					
c. Total N		****			*****	****
c. Total N	Non-Participating Work	****	****			****
c. Total N	Non-Participating Work	****	****	*****		****
c. Total N	Non-Participating Work	****	****	*****		***
c. Total N Total Contract Less Non-Particip	Non-Participating Work	****	****	\$		*****
c. Total N Total Contract Less Non-Particip Non-Participating	Non-Participating Work	****	****	s s s s s s		***
c. Total N Total Contract Less Non-Particip Non-Participating Reimburseable RS State Funded Proje	Non-Participating Work	****	****	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$		*****
c. Total N Total Contract Less Non-Particip Non-Participating Reimburseable RS	Non-Participating Work	****	****	s s s s s s		
c. Total N Total Contract Less Non-Particip Non-Participating Reimburseable RS State Funded Proje	Non-Participating Work	****	****	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$		*****
c. Total N Total Contract Less Non-Particip Non-Participating Reimburseable RS State Funded Proje	Non-Participating Work	****	****	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$		
c. Total N Total Contract Less Non-Particip Non-Participating Reimburseable RS State Funded Proje	Non-Participating Work	****	****	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$		
c. Total N Total Contract Less Non-Particip Non-Participating Reimburseable RS State Funded Proje	Non-Participating Work	****	****	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$		
c. Total N Total Contract Less Non-Particip Non-Participating Reimburseable RS State Funded Proje	Non-Participating Work	****	****	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$		
c. Total N Total Contract Less Non-Particip Non-Participating Reimburseable RS State Funded Proje	Non-Participating Work	****	****	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$		
c. Total N Total Contract Less Non-Particip Non-Participating Reimburseable RS State Funded Proje	Non-Participating Work	****	****	\$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$		

17.35. Construction Contract Closeout Checklists: BLDG-Form 35 and FAA & FHWA Checklist

PROJECT NO.:	
PROJECT NAME:	
PROJECT MANAGER:	
PROJECT ENGINEER	
REQUIRED FOR FINAL PAYMENT:	
Copy of Contract Award for Small Procurements (<\$100,000)	
All Contract Change Orders and Pay Estimates	
Notice to Proceed Letter Statement of Adjustment of Accounts (Proof of Payments from AKSAS	or ALDER)
Final Change Order (unexecuted; if applicable)	
Certificate of Substantial Completion	
Copy of Final Completion Letter Record Showing Payment of All SWPPP Fines	
Final Pay Estimate	
Original Contractor's Release (must be original)	
Department of Labor /Revenue Tax Clearances	
Department of Labor Notice of Completion (NOC)	
PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENT:	
Certificate of Occupancy or Permit Completion	
Contractor's Transmittal Letter: O&M Manuals	
Contractor's Transmittal Letter: Warranty/Bonds	
Contractor's Transmittal Letter: As-Built Record Documents Spare Parts, Maintenance Materials Receipts	
Contractor's Transmittal Letter: Keys & Schedule	
Contractor's Certification of Insurance	
Submittals and Misc. Registers	
EXPLANATIONS (needed for every N/A):	
. ,	

FAA and FHWA Funded:

PROJECT FINAL CLOSEOUT CHECKLIST

Facilities Projects

Cons	y of Contract Award for Small Procurements (<\$100,000) ¹
	Contract Change Orders and Pay Estimates ²
	ce to Proceed Letter ¹
	ficate of Occupancy ¹
	ractor's Transmittal Letter: O&M Manuals ¹
	ractor's Transmittal Letter: Warranty/Bonds ¹
	ractor's Transmittal Letter: As-Built Record Documents ¹
	e Parts, Maintenance Materials Receipts ¹
	ractor's Transmittal Letter: Keys & Schedule ¹
	ractor's Delegation of Authority
	ractor's Certification of Insurance ¹
	ment of Adjustment of Accounts (Proof of Payments from AKSAS or ALDER) ¹
	Compliance Certification ¹
	Compliance Continuation Change Order <i>(unexecuted; if applicable)</i> ¹
	nittals and Misc. Registers ¹
	ficate of Substantial Completion ¹
Con	y of Final Completion Letter ¹
	inal Final Pay Estimate ¹
	ractor's Release ¹
	artment of Labor /Revenue Tax Clearances ¹
Dens	arment of Labor Notice of Completion (NUL)
	artment of Labor Notice of Completion (NOC) ¹
¹ Include in	ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR FEDERAL-AID PROJECTS
¹ Include in ² Include in	a "green" folder a "green" folder if project is "closeout only" ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR FEDERAL-AID PROJECTS
¹ Include in ² Include in Certi	a "green" folder a "green" folder if project is "closeout only" ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR FEDERAL-AID PROJECTS fication of Final Estimate
¹ Include in ² Include in Certi Mate	a "green" folder a "green" folder if project is "closeout only" ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR FEDERAL-AID PROJECTS affication of Final Estimate prials Certificate
¹ Include in ² Include in Certi Mate As-b	a "green" folder a "green" folder if project is "closeout only" ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR FEDERAL-AID PROJECTS affication of Final Estimate prials Certificate uilt plans (FHWA ³ -funded projects)
¹ Include in ² Include in Certi Mate As-b 1446	a "green" folder a "green" folder if project is "closeout only" ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR FEDERAL-AID PROJECTS fication of Final Estimate trials Certificate uilt plans (FHWA ³ -funded projects) ic Final Inspection form (FHWA ³ -funded projects)
¹ Include in ² Include in Certi Mate As-b 1446 Final	a "green" folder a "green" folder if project is "closeout only" ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR FEDERAL-AID PROJECTS fication of Final Estimate trials Certificate uilt plans (FHWA ³ -funded projects) ic Final Inspection form (FHWA ³ -funded projects) I Construction Report Summary
¹ Include in ² Include in Certi Mate As-b 1446 Final Alasi	a "green" folder a "green" folder if project is "closeout only" ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR FEDERAL-AID PROJECTS fication of Final Estimate trials Certificate uilt plans (FHWA ³ -funded projects) ic Final Inspection form (FHWA ³ -funded projects)
¹ Include in ² Include in Mate As-b 1446 Final Alasi Proje	a "green" folder a "green" folder if project is "closeout only" ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR FEDERAL-AID PROJECTS fication of Final Estimate trials Certificate uilt plans (FHWA ³ -funded projects) ic Final Inspection form (FHWA ³ -funded projects) I Construction Report Summary ka Railroad Release, if applicable
¹ Include in ² Include in Mate As-b 1446 Final Alasi Proje Repo	a "green" folder a "green" folder if project is "closeout only" ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR FEDERAL-AID PROJECTS fication of Final Estimate strials Certificate uilt plans (FHWA ³ -funded projects) iC Final Inspection form (FHWA ³ -funded projects) IC Construction Report Summary ka Railroad Release, if applicable set History (AIP ⁴ -funded projects) orts (as required): Report on Design Recommendations (required)
¹ Include in ² Include in ² Mate As-b 1446 Final Alasl Proje Repo	a "green" folder a "green" folder if project is "closeout only" ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR FEDERAL-AID PROJECTS ification of Final Estimate erials Certificate uilt plans (FHWA ³ -funded projects) C Final Inspection form (FHWA ³ -funded projects) C Final Inspection form (FHWA ³ -funded projects) C onstruction Report Summary ka Railroad Release, if applicable eet History (AIP ⁴ -funded projects) orts (as required): Report on Design Recommendations (required) Report on Claims (if a claim was submitted) anation of Overruns, Underruns and Change Documents. List only contract major bid items whose final quantity ed more than 25% from the estimated quantity and an explanation of all change document items.
¹ Include in ² Include in ² Certi Mate As-b 1446 Final Alasi Proje Repo Expl varie Proo	a "green" folder a "green" folder if project is "closeout only" ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR FEDERAL-AID PROJECTS ification of Final Estimate brials Certificate uilt plans (FHWA ³ -funded projects) C Final Inspection form (FHWA ³ -funded projects) I Construction Report Summary ka Railroad Release, if applicable bet History (AIP ⁴ -funded projects) orts (as required): Report on Design Recommendations (required) Report on Claims (if a claim was submitted) anation of Overruns, Underruns and Change Documents. List only contract major bid items whose final quantity ad more than 25% from the estimated quantity and an explanation of all change document items. f of Construction for Right-of-Way (Form 25D-173) Completed only if the right-of-way involves public land.
¹ Include in ² Include in Mate As-b6 I446 Final Alasi Proje Repc Expl varie Proo Proo Proo	a "green" folder a "green" folder if project is "closeout only" ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR FEDERAL-AID PROJECTS ification of Final Estimate erials Certificate uilt plans (FHWA ³ -funded projects) C Final Inspection form (FHWA ³ -funded projects) I Construction Report Summary ka Railroad Release, if applicable ext History (AIP ⁴ -funded projects) orts (as required): Report on Design Recommendations (required) Report on Claims (if a claim was submitted) anation of Overruns, Underruns and Change Documents. List only contract major bid items whose final quantity ed more than 25% from the estimated quantity and an explanation of all change document items. f of Construction for Right-of-Way (Form 25D-173) Completed only if the right-of-way involves public land. f of Use for Material Sources (Form 25D-174) with Material Site Record Completed only if sites are State furnished
¹ Include in ² Include in ² Include in Mate As-b6 1446 Final Alasi Proje Repo Expl varie Proo Proo Proo Or cco	a "green" folder a "green" folder if project is "closeout only" ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR FEDERAL-AID PROJECTS ification of Final Estimate brials Certificate uilt plans (FHWA ³ -funded projects) C Final Inspection form (FHWA ³ -funded projects) I Construction Report Summary ka Railroad Release, if applicable beet History (AIP ⁴ -funded projects) orts (as required): Report on Design Recommendations (required) Report on Claims (if a claim was submitted) anation of Overruns, Underruns and Change Documents. List only contract major bid items whose final quantity ed more than 25% from the estimated quantity and an explanation of all change document items. f of Construction for Right-of-Way (Form 25D-173) Completed only if the right-of-way involves public land. f of Use for Material Sources (Form 25D-174) with Material Site Record Completed only if sites are State furnished metrolled.
¹ Include in ² Include in ² Include in Mate As-b 1446 Final Alasi Proje Repo Expl varie Proo Proo Or co 3 Federal H	a "green" folder a "green" folder if project is "closeout only" ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR FEDERAL-AID PROJECTS ification of Final Estimate brials Certificate uilt plans (FHWA ³ -funded projects) iC Final Inspection form (FHWA ³ -funded projects) iC construction Report Summary ka Railroad Release, if applicable ext History (AIP ⁴ -funded projects) orts (as required): Report on Design Recommendations (required) Report on Claims (if a claim was submitted) anation of Overruns, Underruns and Change Documents. List only contract major bid items whose final quantity id more than 25% from the estimated quantity and an explanation of all change document items. f of Construction for Right-of-Way (Form 25D-173) Completed only if the right-of-way involves public land. f of Use for Material Sources (Form 25D-174) with Material Site Record Completed only if sites are State furnished introlled. Ighway Administration
¹ Include in ² Include in ² Include in Mate As-b 1446 Final Alasi Proje Repo Expl varie Proo Proo Or co 3 Federal H	a "green" folder a "green" folder if project is "closeout only" ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR FEDERAL-AID PROJECTS ification of Final Estimate brials Certificate uilt plans (FHWA ³ -funded projects) C Final Inspection form (FHWA ³ -funded projects) I Construction Report Summary ka Railroad Release, if applicable bect History (AIP ⁴ -funded projects) orts (as required): Report on Design Recommendations (required) Report on Claims (if a claim was submitted) anation of Overruns, Underruns and Change Documents. List only contract major bid items whose final quantity ed more than 25% from the estimated quantity and an explanation of all change document items. f of Construction for Right-of-Way (Form 25D-173) Completed only if the right-of-way involves public land. f of Use for Material Sources (Form 25D-174) with Material Site Record Completed only if sites are State furnished metrolled.
¹ Include in ² Include in ² Include in Mate As-b 1446 Final Alasi Proje Repo Expl varie Proo Proo Or co 3 Federal H	a "green" folder a "green" folder if project is "closeout only" ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR FEDERAL-AID PROJECTS ification of Final Estimate brials Certificate uilt plans (FHWA ³ -funded projects) iC Final Inspection form (FHWA ³ -funded projects) iC construction Report Summary ka Railroad Release, if applicable ext History (AIP ⁴ -funded projects) orts (as required): Report on Design Recommendations (required) Report on Claims (if a claim was submitted) anation of Overruns, Underruns and Change Documents. List only contract major bid items whose final quantity id more than 25% from the estimated quantity and an explanation of all change document items. f of Construction for Right-of-Way (Form 25D-173) Completed only if the right-of-way involves public land. f of Use for Material Sources (Form 25D-174) with Material Site Record Completed only if sites are State furnished introlled. Ighway Administration
¹ Include in ² Include in ² Include in Mate As-b 1446 Final Alasi Proje Repo Expl varie Proo or cc ³ Federal H ⁴ Airport In	a "green" folder a "green" folder if project is "closeout only" ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR FEDERAL-AID PROJECTS fication of Final Estimate trials Certificate uilt plans (FHWA ³ -funded projects) C Final Inspection form (FHWA ³ -funded projects) C Construction Report Summary ka Railroad Release, if applicable thistory (AIP ⁴ -funded projects) orts (as required): Report on Design Recommendations (required) Report on Claims (if a claim was submitted) anation of Overruns, Underruns and Change Documents. List only contract major bid items whose final quantity and more than 25% from the estimated quantity and an explanation of all change document items. f of Construction for Right-of-Way (Form 25D-173) Completed only if the right-of-way involves public land. f of Use for Material Sources (Form 25D-174) with Material Site Record Completed only if sites are State furnished introlled. lighway Administration mprovement Program
¹ Include in ² Include in ² Include in Mate As-b 1446 Final Alasi Proje Repo Expl varie Proo or cc ³ Federal H ⁴ Airport In FAA	a "green" folder a "green" folder if project is "closeout only" ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR FEDERAL-AID PROJECTS fication of Final Estimate trials Certificate uilt plans (FHWA ³ -funded projects) C Final Inspection form (FHWA ³ -funded projects) C Construction Report Summary ka Railroad Release, if applicable tert History (AIP ⁴ -funded projects) orts (as required): Report on Design Recommendations (required) Report on Claims (if a claim was submitted) anation of Overruns, Underruns and Change Documents. List only contract major bid items whose final quantity ed more than 25% from the estimated quantity and an explanation of all change document items. f of Construction for Right-of-Way (Form 25D-173) Completed only if the right-of-way involves public land. f of Use for Material Sources (Form 25D-174) with Material Site Record Completed only if sites are State furnished introlled. lighway Administration mprovement Program

12 29 - 2014			STATE OF ALASKA DOT & PF	DIRECTIVE NO.:
		STAT	EWIDE PUBLIC FACILITIES	PROJECT NO.:
			DIRECTIVE	CONTRACT NO.:
PROJECT:			SCOPE OF THIS	DIRECTIVE
LOCATED AT:				
CONTRACTOR:				
ADDRESS:				
		ł		
Directive Issued Bv:		I		ate:
Dirocito locada Dy.				
			MENT Representative	
Receipt Acknowledged By:			D	ate:
and shall not serve to authoriz condition in this document may	nd is used in a e a change in y effect Contra	accordanc Contractu act Time,	CTOR's Representative e with the terms and provisions of th ual responsibility. If the CONTRAC Price, or Requirement the CONTRA t Performance is required as follow	OR believes that any CTOR shall immediately
and shall not serve to authoriz condition in this document may notify the DEPARTMENT of su	nd is used in a e a change in y effect Contra uch conditions	accordanc Contractu act Time, s. Contrac	e with the terms and provisions of the second se Price, or Requirement the CONTRA	OR believes that any CTOR shall immediately s:
and shall not serve to authoriz condition in this document may notify the DEPARTMENT of su	nd is used in a e a change in y effect Contra uch conditions	accordanc Contractu act Time, s. Contrac	e with the terms and provisions of th ual responsibility. If the CONTRACT Price, or Requirement the CONTRA ct Performance is required as follow	OR believes that any CTOR shall immediately s:

STATE OF ALASKA DOT & PF STATEWIDE PUBLIC FACILITIES		PACT EVALUATION (TIE) EDULE DELAYS AND TIME EXTENSIONS	
PROJECT NO:		PROJECT:	
CONTRACTOR:		TIE NUMBER:	
To:		FROM:	
DATE OF THIS TIE:		DATE OF DISCOVERY:	
Change Order Interim Work Authoriza Other (Describe :) List of Activities Affected by the Changed N		OT&PF/Owner Delays ☐ Section	00700, Article 11.5
Attach Additional Sheets as Needed			
Attach Additional Sheets as Needed Describe how CONTRACTOR proposes to ways to recover lost time:) incorporate (changed work into the schedule an	d address possible
Describe how CONTRACTOR proposes to) incorporate (changed work into the schedule an	d address possible
Describe how CONTRACTOR proposes to) incorporate o	changed work into the schedule an	d address possible
Describe how CONTRACTOR proposes to) incorporate o	changed work into the schedule an	d address possible
Describe how CONTRACTOR proposes to) incorporate o	changed work into the schedule an	d address possible
Describe how CONTRACTOR proposes to	o incorporate o	changed work into the schedule an	d address possible
Describe how CONTRACTOR proposes to) incorporate (changed work into the schedule an	d address possible
Describe how CONTRACTOR proposes to) incorporate (changed work into the schedule an	d address possible
Describe how CONTRACTOR proposes to) incorporate (changed work into the schedule an	d address possible
Describe how CONTRACTOR proposes to) incorporate o	changed work into the schedule an	d address possible
Describe how CONTRACTOR proposes to) incorporate (changed work into the schedule an	d address possible

17.37. Time Impact Evaluation: BLDG-Form 37

PROJECT NO:	PROJECT:
CONTRACTOR:	TIE NUMBER:
Analysis of the change on the accept	ed Current Schedule and the Contract durations and milestones:
Attach Additional Sheets as Needed	
nclude a schedule diagram that:	
nclude a schedule diagram that: Depict how the changed Work Schedule and the CONTRACT	affects other schedule activities and impacts the accepted Current T durations and milestones.
Depict how the changed Work Schedule and the CONTRACT	affects other schedule activities and impacts the accepted Current T durations and milestones. schedule activities to enable ADOT&PF to evaluate the impact of changed
 Depict how the changed Work Schedule and the CONTRACT Tie into the main sequence of Work to the schedule. 	T durations and milestones.
 Depict how the changed Work Schedule and the CONTRACT Tie into the main sequence of Work to the schedule. 	T durations and milestones. schedule activities to enable ADOT&PF to evaluate the impact of changed e delay, including information from Subcontractors, Vendors, Suppliers, and
 Depict how the changed Work Schedule and the CONTRACT Tie into the main sequence of Work to the schedule. ttach all documentation to support the lanufacturers. ERTIFICATION: I certify all the above 	T durations and milestones. schedule activities to enable ADOT&PF to evaluate the impact of changed e delay, including information from Subcontractors, Vendors, Suppliers, and re to be true and correct.
Depict how the changed Work Schedule and the CONTRACT Tie into the main sequence of Work to the schedule. ttach all documentation to support the lanufacturers. ERTIFICATION: I certify all the above ignature:	T durations and milestones. schedule activities to enable ADOT&PF to evaluate the impact of changed e delay, including information from Subcontractors, Vendors, Suppliers, and te to be true and correct.
Depict how the changed Work Schedule and the CONTRACT Tie into the main sequence of Work to the schedule. ttach all documentation to support the lanufacturers. ERTIFICATION: I certify all the above ignature:	T durations and milestones. schedule activities to enable ADOT&PF to evaluate the impact of changed e delay, including information from Subcontractors, Vendors, Suppliers, and re to be true and correct.
 Depict how the changed Work Schedule and the CONTRACT Tie into the main sequence of Work to the schedule. ttach all documentation to support the 	T durations and milestones. schedule activities to enable ADOT&PF to evaluate the impact of changed e delay, including information from Subcontractors, Vendors, Suppliers, and re to be true and correct.

17.38. Project Completion Form Certification – Design: BLDG-Form 38

Phase 2 - Design Movement of the following phase to completed and/or closed status has been initiated your signature certifies that all activity related to this phase is complete. * Indicate a resubmit date, if phase cannot be closed now. * Liquidate all encumbrances. * Please return the completed PCF within three days of receipt. Project Name: AKSAS Project Number: Ledger Code: Contract Award Date:	;
your signature certifies that all activity related to this phase is complete. * Indicate a resubmit date, if phase cannot be closed now. * Liquidate all encumbrances. * Please return the completed PCF within three days of receipt. Project Name: AKSAS Project Number: Ledger Code:	;
* Liquidate all encumbrances. * Please return the completed PCF <u>within three days</u> of receipt. Project Name: AKSAS Project Number: Ledger Code:	
* Please return the completed PCF <u>within three days</u> of receipt. Project Name: AKSAS Project Number: Ledger Code:	
Project Name: AKSAS Project Number: Ledger Code:	
AKSAS Project Number: Ledger Code:	
AKSAS Project Number: Ledger Code:	
Ledger Code:	
-	
Contract Award Date:	
Project Manager:	
*Attach Final NTP & Billing Summary for Design Consultant.	
[]Complete Design Section []Complete Utilities	Section
Sign/date: Sign/date: N/A	
Phase 2 unobligated funding balance as of:	
н — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —	
Encumbrance Balance: \$ Encumbrance Balance: \$	0
Note Date to Resubmit:	
이 Outstanding Outstanding Tasks/Remarks Tasks/Remarks	
는 Tasks/Remarks Tasks/Remarks	
Cost to Complete: \$ Cost to Complete: \$	
Phase 2 Funding balance as of:	
Encumbrance Balance: \$ Encumbrance Balance: \$ Note Date to Resubmit: Note Date to Resubmit:	
Note Date to Resubmit:	
Tasks/Remarks Tasks/Remarks	

Γ

17.39. Project Completion Form Certification – Construction: BLDG-Form 39

	MPLETION FORM (PCF) CERTIFICATION Phase 4 - Construction
	ollowing phase to completed and/or closed status has been initiated; ares certifies that all activity related to this phase is complete.
* Liquidate all encu	, if phase cannot be closed now. umbrances. eted PCF <u>within three days</u> of receipt.
Project Name: AKSAS Project Number: FAA Grant Number(s): Ledger Code(s):	
Construction Final Acceptance Da	te:
[] Construction Contract Final Est	imate Paid - Date:
[] AS-Built on CD received for FAA	A Final Bill package - Date:
[] AS-Built ALP Complete - Date:	
[] 5010 Update Complete - Date:	
[] Right of Way Closeout Checklis	t & PCF Complete - Date:
[] All Consultants Paid in Full and	all ENs Zeroed out - Date:
[] Leasing Occupancy map update	d-all T&E charges processed - Date: (<u>n/a</u> if LO not part of this phase)
[] Phase Complete	
*Attach Final NTP & Billing Summary for Cons	sultant.
Sign/date:	
Printed Name:	
	Phase 4 Funding balance as of:
Encumbrance Balance: \$	
	Cost to Complete:
Note Date to Resubmit:	LOSE to Complete: 5
Note Date to Resubmit:	Cost to Complete: \$
Note Date to Resubmit: Outstanding Tasks/Remarks:	Cost to complete: \$
	Phase 4 Funding balance as of:
Outstanding Tasks/Remarks:	Phase 4 Funding balance as of:
Outstanding Tasks/Remarks:	



Rev 6/13

PROJECT ENGINEER RESPONSIBILITIES CHECKLIST

The PM may assume a number of the responsibilities listed in Appendix B or the PM may assign responsibility to the Project Engineer. The PM and Project Engineer should agree to division of responsibilities prior to the start of project to avoid confusion and delays.

Pre-Construction Phase Services:

- Review the project design and scope of construction. Provide recommendations for construction sequencing, scheduling and temporary controls to minimize impact on using agency operations, minimize construction cost, and assure quality construction.
- Review construction budgets. (Project Engineer budgets, Consultant budgets, Special Inspections budget, etc.)
- Prepare a detailed construction implementation plan for each construction contract. Address temporary facilities access and staging, haul routes, site development, construction sequencing, utilities, logistical plans and schedule for the main elements of the work including impact or changes to using agency operations.
- Review bidding and contract requirements, Division One, and Technical Specifications for each set of Bidding Documents. Provide comments and recommendations for changes.
- Review construction documents for constructability.
- Review testing requirements and responsibilities.
- Review permit requirements and status.
- Review requirements for IBC Special Inspectors.
- Prior to advertising, review the construction duration in calendar days and provide interim milestone completion dates for inclusion in the bid documents.
- Verify utility agreements are in place

Bid/Award Phase Services:

- Assist the PM in the preparation of contract documents including general and supplementary conditions, contract formats and technical specifications. Review bidding documents for completeness, contractual terms and conditions.
- Review all plans and specifications before advertising for bids and addenda as issued.
- Assist in preparation and administration of pre-bid conferences and evaluation of bids received.

Construction Phase Services:

- Monitor and administer assigned prime construction contracts.
- Draft a Notice to Proceed for review by PM and signature by Chief.
- Monitor Contractor compliance with Alaska Product Preference program (State funded)
- Monitor Contractor compliance with Alaska Forest Product program by submission of form ALASKA.FOREST.PRODUCTS (State funded)
- Schedule date, time and location of Pre-construction Conference.
- Draft Pre-construction Conference notification letter and agenda for PM's review and signature.

1

• Assemble Pre-Construction forms and instruction package.

Rev 9/13

PROJECT ENGINEER RESPONSIBILITIES CHECKLIST

- Draft Delegation Letter for review by PM and signature by Chief.
- Draft Pre-construction Conference minutes and transmittal letter for PM's review and signature. (Tape Record Meeting)
- Review Progress Schedule and draft letter to Contractor accepting or rejecting schedule. The PM signs this letter.
- Attend scheduled progress meetings with the Contractor and PM.
- Review Submittal Schedule and draft letter to Contractor accepting or rejecting schedule. The PM signs this letter.
- List all required submittals and assign a number to each.
- Review and process submittals as received by the Contractor, per Section 8.3
- Review Schedule of Values and draft letter to Contractor accepting or rejecting schedule. The PM signs this letter.
- Review and approve or reject subcontracts certified by the Contractor, per Section 8.2
- Draft and sign subcontractor approval letter
- Schedule special inspections or other consultant inspections as required
- Ensure that no subcontractor works on the job without approved subcontract
- Conduct labor compliance interview (federal aid contracts only)
- Maintain Construction Related Permit Log with copies of permits
- Ensure that no construction work is started without applicable permits
- Monitor Contractor compliance with all required permits
- Perform SWPPP inspections if project requires coverage under the APDES storm water permits
- Supervise and direct subordinate Inspectors and Office Engineer as assigned.
- Verify that all materials and workmanship meet contract requirements (ongoing)
- Issue Non-compliance Notices (NCN), if necessary, per Section 10.8 and maintain NCN log
- Discuss defective work with Contractor management.
- Maintain/prepare project daily reports (diary) of daily construction activities summarizing significant events, directions given, disputes, etc.
- Review and sign Inspector Daily Reports.
- Submit Report of Accident for on-the-job accidents.
- Review and process Requests for Information (RFI). Send RFI's to design consultants for response as necessary
- Coordinate and Process Change Notices (CN) and Requests for Proposals (RFP).
- Document labor, material and equipment for Cost of the Work Directives or IWA's
- Prepare change orders for approval.
- Prepare supplemental agreements for PM review and Contracting Officer approval
- Maintain construction management logs, including RFI's, RFP's, Directives, IWA's, and Change Orders
- Document prime construction contract disputes and claims. Submit a recommendation for resolution to the PM and Contracting Officer for review.
- Monitor contractor progress, monitor schedule control and make schedule reports with recommendations to the PM when contractual action is required to avoid schedule slippage.
- Complete a Progress Summary for each pay item at each pay estimate (federal contracts only)

2

Rev 9/13

PROJECT ENGINEER RESPONSIBILITIES CHECKLIST

- Review and check pay estimates and recommend payment to PM.
- Perform quality assurance inspections and maintain quality assurance records and reporting system
- Prepare special reports for the PM of urgent or immediate actions required on problems that arise from actions or inaction on the part of prime construction contractors, subcontractors or suppliers.
- Verify that the construction contractor's redline record drawings are maintained. Review monthly progress of redline record drawings are maintained. Review monthly progress of redlined asbuilts in coordination with pay request approvals. Review final redlined as-builts prior to transmittal to Design Consultant.
- Assure completed as-built documents and discs/CD-Roms are received back from Design Consultants and distributed to the administrative file clerk.
- Maintain records and accountability system for contractor-supplied spare parts, if applicable
- Provide photographic coverage of construction activities properly identified and dated for assistance in claims determinations, and to provide a pictorial record of construction progress.
- Perform walk through inspection in response to Contractor request for Substantial Completion Inspection.
- Schedule the Substantial Completion Inspection (and re-inspections as necessary). Issue invitations to the appropriate persons.
- Prepare a final completion punch list from inspection team notes and supervise completion of it.
- Draft a Certificate of Substantial Completion for PM signature.
- Assemble all written guarantees, warranties, and O&M manuals from prime construction contractors, subcontractors, material suppliers and equipment suppliers and deliver to the Client
- Verify that Contractor has coordinated and conducted systems demonstrations and training
- Perform Final Completion Inspection with Client
- Verify that all Contractor deliverables have been received
- Draft a Letter of Final Completion for PM.

Post Construction Phase Services:

- Assemble contract close out package for submission to Concurrent Review, or Office Engineer
- Resolve Concurrent Review recommendations or obtain waiver.
- Prepare Final Acceptance letter for Contracting Officer's signature.
- · Coordinate and expedite the resolution of any post construction related problems
- Process Contractor's final pay estimate
- Assist Client/Owner in coordinating move-ins and occupancy.
- Closeout construction contracts.
- Prepare a Project Closeout Data Sheet.
- Deliver permanent files to administrative file clerk for storage.

Rev 9/13

	AppToved Comments																	
	Auto									+	+						+	
	Worker's Comp																	
	General									_	_		_				_	
	Amount									_	-			_			_	
	Scope of Work	GENERAL CONTRACTOR																
actors	Expiration Date																	
Subcontractors	Business Expiration Contractor's License Date License																	
	: Expiration Date																	
										_	_		_	-			_	
	City City City City City City City City	۱ŀ																
	Address																	
	SUBCONTRACTOR LOG: PROJECT NAME: PROJECT NUMBER: CONTRACTOR: COMDANV																	

17.42. Contractors Log: BLDG Form 42 (Option to Replace Multiple Forms)

Г

Airport
for the
This is
(Note: `

		Data of		Data of	
 	from	Finger Print	ш	Badge	Commonte
fundamoo		רפוופו	CINCALI	حدررجا	

Design Memos

DESIGN MEMO / INFORMATION BULLITINS/ARCHITECTURAL SUPPLEMENTAL INSTRUCTIONS

۱ • :	:	Date	: i		
Number	Number Description	Received	Directive	RFP	Attachments / Comments

Request for Information (RFI) LOG

l Returned to to A/F From A/F Contractor Comments																			
PROJECT NUMBER: CONTRACTOR: Received from Number Description	002	003	004	005	000	200	008	600	010	011	012	013 013							

									1			1	\top		
	Directive Comments														
	Directive														
	CA														
	000														
ន្ទរ	Approved														
Costs	Submitted														
RFP	From Contractor														
	Io From Contractor Contractor														
Request For Proposal (RFP) LOG PROJECT NAME: PROJECT NUMBER: CONTRACTOR:	lescription														
Request For PROJECT N PROJECT N CONTRACTO	Number Description	0 6 4	5												

PROJECT NUMBER: CONTRACTOR: Number Description 2 3 4 5 5	Sent	Date Returned	e Costs Returned Submitted Approved	Costs ed Approved	а а	S	Comments

ΜM

PROJECT NAME PROJECT NAME PROJECT NUME CONTRACTOR:	DIRECTIVE LOG PROJECT NAME: PROJECT NUMBER: CONTRACTOR:								
					Scope	e			
Number	Number Description	Sent	Received	noitsoitinsl3	on- Conformance	tnemeonemmo	noiznaquzuð	Contractor Notification	Comments
A						╏	╢─		
: œ									
							t		
ء د		+				+	+		
		+				+	+		
ш									
L.									
σ									
Ξ						t	t		
_									
_ ۲						t	t		
×		 				t	t		
							t		
Þ							t		
z									
. 0									
, a							\dagger		
: 0									
						+	+		
-									
n									
>									
M							\mid		
×						-	-		
7						t	t		
~				ļ					

த	
Comments	
Intent to Claim Received	
IWA	
Directive	
RF	
Date of DOP/PF Response	
Date Received	
Da	
ription	
CHANGE NOTICE PROJECT NUMBER: CONTRACTOR: Number Description	
CHANG PROJE PROJE CONTR	001 002 005 005 006 007 007



	Comments																			
	Copy to Contractor																			
	Date to Accounting																			
	Amount Paid to Date	┣─																		
	Amount A Approved																			
	Amount Billed																			
ATE LOG: AME: UMBER: DR:	Date Received																			
PAY ESTIMATE LOG: PROJECT NAME: PROJECT NUMBER: CONTRACTOR:	Number	-	2	د ۲	2 4	9	1	8	0	10	5	12								-

Г

٦

PROJECT SUMMARY (Last Updated: xx/xx/xxxx) PROJECT NAME:	(NOTE: This is for CMGC)	ł
PROJECT NUMBER:		
CONTRACTOR:		
CHANGE ORDERS		
Change Orders to Date (1-?)	\$	•
CONTINGENCY		
Total Contract Contingency		
Change Orders that increase or decrease amount	\$	-
Change Orders that increase or decrease amount	\$	-
Change Orders that increase or decrease amount	\$	-
Change Orders that increase or decrease amount	\$	-
Subtotals	\$	-
Contingency Authorizations to Date	\$	<u>. </u>
Contingency Amount Available to Date	\$	-
RFPs		
RFPs received but not negotiated	\$	-
RFPs issued but not received (ROM)	\$	-
Total Outstanding RFP Costs	\$	-
Potential Costs		
Potential Costs to Date (ROM)	\$	-
Contingency Amount Available to Date	¢	_
Total Outstanding RFP Costs		-
Potential Costs		•
TOTAL AMOUNT LEFT TO DATE		

PROJECT SUMMARY (Last Updated: xx/xx/xxxx) PROJECT NAME: PROJECT NUMBER: CONTRACTOR:	(NOTE: This is for Design/Bid/Build)
CHANGE ORDERS	
Change Order Contingency Amount	
Change Orders to Date (1-?)	\$
Remaining Change Order amount	\$-
RFPs	
RFPs received but not negotiated	\$ -
RFPs issued but not received (ROM)	\$ -
Total Outstanding RFP Costs	\$ -
Potential Costs	
Potential Costs to Date (ROM)	\$-
Remaining Change Order Amount	\$ -
Total Outstanding RFP Costs	
Potential Costs	
TOTAL AMOUNT LEFT TO DATE	\$ -

17.43. Project Budget: BLDG-Form 43

dditional Services	
DNSTRUCTON MANAGER: INT AGENCY DNTACT: "One of PPOJECT: Construction DocumentBid PeriodAwardConstruction (% Complete)Close out ISSIGN PMASE: ISSIGN PMA	Client Concurrence:
LIENT ACENCY: DATACT: TAGE OF PROJECT: 	(initials)
ONTACT: StartupProgrammingSchematic Design DevelopmentCloseout ESIGN PHASE: BUDGET Expenditures Encumbrances ITD EXPEnc. COMME esign Aces administration Bidg administration Stigg administration S	
TAGE OF PROJECT: 	
ESIGN PHASE: BUDGET Expenditures Encumbrances ITD EXP+Enc. COMME esign Fees esign Administration Bidg esign Administration Bidg re-award Audit ditional Services Septic Design Camput HVAC Controls Utilities Utilities Contracts Contracts Design Amanbal Local Reviews Bubget APPROVED : BUDGET APPROVED : BUDGET APPROVED : Design Manager's Signature) COMMET Construction Administration Construction Assistance onstruction Administration Concurrent Review Projec Control Guesent An P 2.9 BUDGET APPROVED : BUDGET APPROVED : Construction Manager's Signature) Construction Administration Concurrent Review Projec Control ONSTRUCTION THALS BUDGET APPROVED : BUDGET APPROVED : BUDGET APPROVED : Construction Manager's Signature) Construction Administration Concurrent Review Projec Control Construction Manager's Signature) Construction Manager's Signatu	
esign Fees esign Administration Bidg esign Administration Bidg in e-ward Audit difficianal Services difficianal Services difficianal Services difficianal Services difficient Services difficient Services doministration State Fire Marshal Local Reviews Other doministration State Fire Marshal Local Reviews Other doministration State Fire Marshal Local Reviews Other doministration DA PROGRAMMED ANNT. ROJECTION PHASE: BUDGET APPROVED : (Design Manager's Signature) ONSTRUCTION PHASE: BUDGET APPROVED : (Construction Aministration Closeout AP (2 1.2%) (Construction Manager's Signature) (Construction Manager's Signature) BUDGET APPROVED : (Construction Manager's Signature) RAND TOTALS S0 S0 S0 S0 S0 S0 S0 S0 S0 S0 S0 S0	
esign Administration Bidg 0 50 re-ward Audt 0 50 Septic Design 0 50 Campus HVAC Controls 0 60 Utilities 0 50 Contracts 0 50 Project Control 0 50 Egulatory Reviews 0 50 Other 0 50 Local Reviews 0 50 Other 0 50 State Fire Marshal 0 50 Local Reviews 0 50 Other 0 50 State Fire Marshal 0 50 Local Reviews 0 50 Other 0 50 State Stricksers 0 50 State Stricksers 0 50 DA PROGRAMMED AMNT. 50 50 COSTRUCTION PHASE: BUDGET Expenditures Incumbrances State of the serve 0 0 0 <t< th=""><th>NTS:</th></t<>	NTS:
esign Administration Bidg re-sward Audt ditional Services Septic Design Campus HVAC Controls Utilities Contracts Septic Dorol Egglatory Reviews Contracts Contracts Contracts Local Reviews Other State Fire Marshal Local Reviews Other State Strips Marshal Local Reviews Other State Strips Marshal State Strips	
re-sward Audit i	
Vaditional Services	
Septic Survey 90 Septic Survey 90 Campus HVAC Controls 90 Utilities 90 Contracts 90 Project Control 90 State Fire Marshal 90 Local Reviews 90 Other 90 State Fire Marshal 90 Local Reviews 90 Other 90 Septil Survey 90 DAP ROSEAMED AMNT. 90 ROJECTED SURPLUS(DEFIOT) 50 BUGGET APPROVED : 100 Expression CONSTRUCTION PHASE: BUGGET Expenditures Encumbrances CONSTRUCTION PHASE: BUGGET Construction Contract 90 did Att #1 - 90 did Att #2 - 90 otal Construction Aministration 90 Construction Aministration 90 Concurrent Review 90 Project Control 90 Concurrent Review 90 Project Control <	
Campus HVAC Controls Utilities Image: State	
Utilities i	
Contracts Project Control i <td></td>	
Project Control 50 Regulatory Reviews 50 State Fire Marshal 50 Local Reviews 50 Other 50 Site Purchase 50 CAP 1.39% 50 Solice Purchase 50 BUDGET APPROVED : 100 CONSTRUCTION PHASE: BUDGET BUDGET APPROVED : 100 Construction Contract 50 Vial A th 1 50 Solid Construction 50 Construction Assistance 50 Construction Administration 50 SC Req 4 Special Inspections 50 Project Control 50 Construction Administration 50 Concurrent Review 50 Project Control 50 Construction Total 50 Solita Construction Total 50 Sol Sol 50 <	
tegulatory Reviews image: state Fire Marshal image: state Fire Marshal image: state Fire Marshal Local Reviews image: state Fire Marshal image: state Fire Marshal image: state Fire Marshal Other image: state Fire Marshal image: state Fire Marshal image: state Fire Marshal Other image: state Fire Marshal image: state Fire Marshal image: state Fire Marshal Other image: state Fire Marshal image: state Fire Marshal image: state Fire Marshal Other image: state Fire Marshal image: state Fire Marshal image: state Fire Marshal Dord PCGRAMMED AMNT. image: stignature) Total De PROFERANCED S Image: stignature) Image: stignature CONSTRUCTION PHASE: Image: stignature Image: stignature Construction Contract image: stignature image: stignature Construction Contract image: stignature image: stignature Construction Administration image: stignature image: stignature Construction Administration image: stignature image: stignature Concurrent Review image: stignature image: stignature Project Control image: stignature image: stignature Construction Total image: stignature image: stignature D	
State Fire Marshal Local Reviews Other i <	
Other Image: State of the s	
Not Processes Store Store Store Store Store Store Total De Optimisency Store Store Store Store Total De OPA PROGRAMMED AMNT. Store Store Store Total De ROJECTED SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) Store Store Store Total De Store Image Stignature) Store COMME Construction Contract Store Store Store Store Construction Contract Store	
CAP 1.29% 50 DOR PROGRAMMED AMMT. 50 PROJECTED SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 50 BUDGET APPROVED : (Design Manager's Signature) CONSTRUCTION PHASE: BUDGET EXEMPTION Contract 50 Vidd Alt #1 - 50 Vidd Alt #2 - 50 Subtotal 50 Darrection Contract 50 Vidd Alt #2 - 50 Subtotal 50 Donstruction Assistance 50 Donstruction Assistance 50 Construction Assistance 50 Construction Assistance 50 Concurrent Review 50 Project Control 50 Closeout 50 Construction To TAL 50 Sonstruction To TAL 50 Concurrent Review 50 Project Control 50 Closeout 50 Construction Manager's Signature) 50 Sonstruction To TAL 50 Dot PROCRAMMED AMNT. 50 ROJECT APPROVED : 50 BUDGET APPROVED :<	
Dontingency i <td< td=""><td></td></td<>	
DA PROGRAMMED AMNT. ROJECTED SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) BUDGET APPROVED : (Design Manager's Signature) CONSTRUCTION PHASE: BUDGET BUDGET Expenditures Encumbrances ITD EXP.+Enc. COMME Sonstruction Contract dd Alt #1	
BUDGET APPROVED : S0 DUDGET APPROVED : CONSTRUCTION PHASE: BUDGET Expenditures Encumbrances ITD EXP.+Enc. COMME Construction Contract Vide Att #1 - Vide Att #1 - Vide Att #2 - Vide Att #3 - Vide Construction Assistance Onstruction Assistance Construction Administration Concurrent Review Project Control Concurrent Review Project Control Construction Manager's Signature) Construction Manager's Signature) Construction Manager's Signature)	esign Phase Costs
BUDGET APPROVED : (Design Manager's Signature) CONSTRUCTION PHASE: BUDGET Expenditures Encumbrances ITD EXP.+Enc. COMME Construction Contract Sonstruction Contract Sonstruction Contract Sonstruction Contract Vide Alt #2 - 0	
(Design Manager's Signature) CONSTRUCTION PHASE: BUDG ET Expenditures Encumbrances ITD EXP.+Enc. COMME Construction Contract \$0	
(Design Manager's Signature) CONSTRUCTION PHASE: BUDG ET Expenditures Encumbrances ITD EXP.+Enc. COMME Construction Contract \$0 <td></td>	
DONSTRUCTION PHASE: BUDGET Expenditures Encumbrances ITD EXP.+Enc. COMME Construction Contract \$0	
Construction Contract Add Alt #1 - Add Alt #2 - Subtotal Change Order Reserve Construction Construction Assistance Construction Administration BC Req'd Special Inspections Furnishings, fixtures and equipment Attwork Legal Concurrent Review Project Control Closeout CAP @ 1.29% Construction TOTAL PROJECTED SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) BUDGET APPROVED : Construction Manager's Signature) CONSTRUCTION TOTALS State State Sta	NTS:
Add Ait. #1 - \$0 \$0 Add Ait. #2 - \$0 \$0 Subtotal \$0 \$0 Subtotal \$0 \$0 Subtotal \$0 \$0 Sonstruction Administration \$0 \$0 BC Req'd Special Inspections \$0 \$0 Survishings, fixtures and equipment \$0 \$0 Autwork \$0 \$0 .egal \$0 \$0 Internal Services \$0 \$0 Concurrent Review \$0 \$0 Project Control \$0 \$0 Closeout \$0 \$0 Construction Manager's Signature) \$0 \$0 BUDGET APPROVED : \$0 \$0 \$0 Stantor Total. \$0 \$0 \$0	
Add Alt #2 - \$0 Subtotal \$0 \$0 Change Order Reserve \$0 \$0 Change Order Reserve \$0 \$0 Construction \$0 \$0 Construction Assistance \$0 \$0 Construction Administration \$0 \$0 BC Req'd Special Inspections \$0 \$0 Furnishings, fixtures and equipment \$0 \$0 Litwork \$0 \$0 Legal \$0 \$0 Concurrent Review \$0 \$0 Project Control \$0 \$0 Closeout \$0 \$0 Construction Manager's Signature) \$0 \$0 Stope Creater Support Creater Support Creater Support Supp	
Subtotal Change Order Reserve For Subtotal Subtotal Change Order Reserve For Subtotal Change Order Reserve Subtotal Subt	
Change Order Reserve \$0 Construction \$0 Construction Administration \$0 BC Req'd Special Inspections \$0 "urnishings, fixtures and equipment \$0 Artwork \$0	
Total Construction \$0 Construction Assistance \$0 Construction Administration \$0 BC Req'd Special Inspections \$0 "urnishings, fixtures and equipment \$0 htwork \$0 .egal \$0 ntemal Services \$0 Concurrent Review \$0 Project Control \$0 Closeout \$0 Construction Total \$0 >PROJECTED SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) \$0 BUDGET APPROVED : \$0 (Construction Manager's Signature) \$0	
Construction Administration S0 BC Req'd Special Inspections \$0 Furnishings, fixtures and equipment \$0 Attwork \$0 .egal \$0 Attwork \$0 .egal \$0 Project Control \$0 Closeout \$0 CAP @ 1.29% \$0 Contingency \$0 SONTRUCTION TOTAL \$0 POGRAMMED AMNT. \$0 PROJECTED SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) \$0 BUDGET APPROVED : \$0 Construction Manager's Signature) \$0	
BC Req'd Special Inspections	
Structures and equipment \$0 Lutwork \$0 Legal \$0 Internal Services \$0 Concurrent Review \$0 Project Control \$0 Closeout \$0 CAP @ 1.29% \$0 Construction ToTAL \$0 DOA PROGRAMMED AMMT. \$0 PROJECTED SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) \$0 BUDGET APPROVED : \$0 Construction Manager's Signature)	
Artwork Legal Lega	
Legal \$0 Internal Services \$0 Concurrent Review \$0 Project Control \$0 Closeout \$0 Construction TOTAL \$0 POA PROGRAMMED AMNT. \$0 PROJECTED SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) \$0 BUDGET APPROVED : (Construction Manager's Signature)	
Concurrent Review \$0 Project Control \$0 Closeout \$0 CAP @ 1.29% \$0 Construction TOTAL \$0 DA PROGRAMMED AMNT. \$0 PROJECTED SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) \$0 BUDGET APPROVED : (Construction Manager's Signature)	
Concurrent Review Project Control Closeout \$0 \$0 CaP @ 1.29% \$0 \$0 \$0 CAP @ 1.29% \$0 \$0 \$0 Contingency \$0 \$0 \$0 CONSTRUCTION TO TAL DOA PROGRAMMED AMNT. \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 BUDGET APPROVED : \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 SRAND TOTALS \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0	
Closeout \$0 CAP @ 1.29% \$0 Contingency \$0 CONSTRUCTION TOTAL \$0 PDA PROGRAMMED AMNT. \$0 PROJECTED SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) \$0 BUDGET APPROVED : (Construction Manager's Signature)	
CAP @ 1.29% \$0 Contingency \$0 CONSTRUCTION TOTAL \$0 DA PROGRAMMED AMNT. \$0 PROJECTED SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) \$0 BUDGET APPROVED : (Construction Manage's Signature)	
Contingency \$0 \$0 CONSTRUCTION TOTAL \$0 \$0 \$0 DOA PROGRAMMED AMNT. \$0 \$0 \$0 PROJECTED SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) \$0 \$0 BUDGET APPROVED : (Construction Manager's Signature)	
SONSTRUCTION TOTAL \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 Total Co DA PROGRAMMED AMNT. \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 Total Co PROJECTED SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 BUDGET APPROVED : (Construction Manager's Signature) \$0 \$0 \$0 SRAND TOTALS \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0	
DA PROGRAMMED AMNT. S0 PROJECTED SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) \$0 BUDGET APPROVED : (Construction Manager's Signature) SRAND TOTALS \$0 \$0 SURRENT CFA AMOUNT \$0 \$0	onstruction Phase Costs
SROJECTED SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) \$0 BUDGET APPROVED : (Construction Manager's Signature) (Construction Manager's Signature)	
BUDGET APPROVED : (Construction Manager's Signature) GRAND TOTALS SURRENT CFA AMOUNT	
(Construction Manager's Signature)	
SRAND TOTALS \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 SURRENT CFA AMOUNT	
URRENT CFA AMOUNT	
URRENT CFA AMOUNT	
CURRENT CFA AMOUNT	
PROJECTED SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) \$0	
	Project No.:
	File No.: 003

MEMORANDUN	1					DEPARTMENT		STATE RTATION & PUB TATEWIDE PUB	
MONTHLY PROJECT STATU	S REPORT - DO	T&PF						TATEWDE FOR	
TO:							DATE: FILE NO.:		30
FROM: Project	Manager								
PROJECT NO.: PROJECT NAME:	manager								
CONSULTANT: Contractor:									
SCOPE:									
SCHEDULE SUMMARY		Scheduled	Schedule	Actual				Comments	
ASK		Start	End	End				Comments	
esign RFP									
ask 1 - site investigation/plan ask 2 - Conceptual Design/C									
ask 3 - Schematic Design	0007-1101/010								
esign Completion									
Construction									
ontract Closeout									
COMMENTS:									
BUDGET SUMMARY									
			1						
	Anticipated Budget	FY XX	FY XX	Total Budget Appropriated	amount of remaining	Proposed Funding	Total	Contract	Balance of current
TASK	TBD	Appropriation	Appropriation		required funds	in RSA	Expenses	Encumbrance	funding
Design Phase					TBD				
OT&PF Design Admin Services			1	\$ -	100		I		
onsultant Firm Design				\$ -					
Conceptual Design				\$ -					
Design Expenses				\$-					
Meetings&Presentations				\$ -					
Environmental Services				\$ -					
Surveying Geotechnical evaluation				\$ - \$ -					
Energy and Life Cycle Design			<u> </u>	\$ -					
Design Team Travel				\$ -					
Demolition Design				\$ -					
Schematic Design				\$ -					
Design Development				\$ - \$ -					
Construction Documents									
onsultant Firm Design subtotal				\$ -					
Plan Review/Permitting fees Project Contingency				\$ - ¢					
CAP				\$ - \$ -					
esign Phase subtotal	\$-	\$-	\$ -	\$ -	\$-	\$-	\$ -	\$-	\$ -
Construction Estimate									
Construction Estimate							1	1	
Construction Estimate Consultant Services DOTPF Services ontingency									
Construction Estimate Consultant Services IOTPF Services ontingency	\$-	\$-		\$ -		\$ -			
Construction Estimate Consultant Services OOTPF Services Ontingency Demo Phase Subtotal	\$ - TBD	\$ -		\$ -	TBD	\$ -			
Construction Estimate Consultant Services OOTPF Services Ontingency Demo Phase Subtotal		\$-		\$-	TBD	\$ -			
Construction Estimate Consultant Services OOTPF Services ontingency Jemo Phase Subtotal Construction Phase		\$ -		\$-	TBD	\$ - 			
Consultant Services ODTPF Services ODTPF Services ODTPF Services Ontingency Demo Phase Subtotal Construction Phase	TBD	\$ -			TBD				
Construction Estimate Consultant Services COTPF Services COTPF Services Construction Phase Subtotal Construction Phase Construction Phase subtotal FOTAL Comments: Total budget will I	TBD TBD TBD	(0	TBD TBD	0			
Construction Estimate Consultant Services ODTPF Services ODTPF Services Construction Phase Subtotal Construction Phase Construction Phase subtotal COTAL Comments: Total budget will b cc Cnuer, SWPF	TBD TBD TBD	(0	TBD TBD	0			
onstruction Estimate onsultant Services OTPF Services ontingency emo Phase Subtotal onstruction Phase onstruction Phase subtotal OTAL omments: Total budget will I	TBD TBD TBD	(0	TBD TBD	0			
Construction Estimate Consultant Services DOTPF Services contingency Demo Phase Subtotal Construction Phase Construction Phase subtotal CONSTRUCTION Phase Subtotal CONSTR	TBD TBD TBD	(0	TBD TBD	0			

Date

Re: Project Name DOT&PF Project Number

NOTICE TO PROCEED

Contractor Name Contractor Street City, State Zip

You are authorized to proceed in accordance with the Contract Documents effective (Date – spell out date).

The contract stipulates that the project be substantially completed by (Date, spelled out). The Final Completion date will be (Date, spelled out).

If you have any questions regarding this Notice to Proceed, please contact me at (Project Manager phone number).

Sincerely,

(Project Manager Name) Project Manager

cc: David M. Kemp, P.E., PMP, Director of Statewide Public Facilities and Tribal Relations Liaison _______, Project Engineer File

File: 050
Preconstruction Conference Agenda

Project Name

Project Number

Date

PRECONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE

- I. Opening Remarks Project Manager
- Introductions each person name and position or responsibility
 Ex. Alaska Dept. of Labor, Wage Reporting Requirements, Administrative Items

CONTRACTING AGENCY: PROJECT MANAGER: PROJECT MANAGER PHONE NUMBER:

RESIDENT ENGINEER: RESIDENT ENGINEER PHONE NUMBER:

USER AGENCY: USER AGENCY REPRESENTATIVE:

PROJECT CONSULTANT:

NOTICE TO PROCEED DATE: CONTRACT AMOUNT: \$ CONTRACT COMPLETION DATE: LIQUIDATED DAMAGES:

- III.
 SCOPE OF WORK

 Provide a brief description of the scope. This is often copied from the Invitation for Bids.
- IV. <u>CONTRACTOR</u> Contractor Name Contractor Address City, State Zip Contacts: Name – Project Manager (Phone #) Name – Field Superintendent

1

Preconstruction Conference Agenda

- V. MEETING OVERVIEW
 - a. Notice to Proceed
 - b. A discussion of lines and limitation of authority for the contractor, the construction management team, the client agency and the DOT&PF
 - c. Submittal and RFI procedures
 - d. Change Notices, Change Proposal Requests and Change Order procedures
 - e. Progress schedule and updating procedures
 - f. Client operations and emergencies
 - g. Security issues
 - h. Badging requirements
 - i. Parking limitations
 - j. Wage reporting requirements and labor compliance interviews
 - k. Subcontractor approvals
 - I. DBE requirements
 - m. Liquidated damages
 - n. Pay request procedures
 - o. Safety requirements
 - p. Special Inspection schedules
 - q. Environmental concerns
 - r. Unusual conditions, potential construction difficulties or specialty items
 - s. Other items pertinent to the project
 - t. Questions and Answers

17.47. Authorizations and Limitations Letter: Sample 03

Date

(Contractor Name) (Contractor Address) Phone: FAX:

Gentlemen:

Re: (Project Name) ADOT&PF Project No. Delegation of Authority

The persons listed below are delegated to act for the Contracting Officer in the administration of this contract. Names, titles, and extent of authority are as follows:

Contracting Officer David Kemp, P.E., PMP, Director of Statewide Public Facilities and Tribal Relations Liaison

Full authority to decide all questions, which may arise as to quality and acceptability of materials furnished and work performed, compliance with the progress schedule and interpretation of the contract documents. Authority for execution of change orders over \$50,000. Negotiation and execution of change orders and interim work authorizations. Co-approval on pay estimates. Involvement on higher-level contract administrative matters, claims, and interpretation of the Contract Documents.

[Name], Project Manager

Overall supervisory capacity of the design and construction effort. Secondary contact point for all correspondence and communications pertaining to the administration of the construction contract. Coordination of inspection and quality control. Full authority to decide all questions that may arise as to quality and acceptability of materials furnished and work performed, compliance with the progress schedule and interpretation of the contract documents. Authority to issue directives. Negotiation and execution of change orders and interim work authorizations up to \$50,000. Co-approval on pay estimates. Involvement on higher-level contract administrative matters, claims, and interpretation of the Contract Documents.

[Name], Project Engineer

Primary contact point for all correspondence and communications pertaining to the administration of construction contract. Coordination of inspection and quality control. Full authority to decide all questions that may arise as to quality and acceptability of materials furnished and work performed, compliance with the progress schedule, and interpretation of the contract documents. Authority to issue directives. Negotiate and execute change orders and interim work authorizations up to \$10,000. Co-approval on pay estimates.

[Consultant Company Name], Design Consultant

Authority to determine acceptability of shop drawings/submittals/tests for compliance with the contract documents. Assist in quality control and interpretation of the design documents. Consultants have no authority to decide matters involving changes of contract time or cost.

User Agency Personnel

Contractual matters and requests emanating from Using Agency personnel are to be referred to the DOT&PF project management team. Site visits and inspections by Using Agency personnel will be coordinated through the Project Manager.

Clarifications to the contract documents or changes to the contract documents are only valid if issued by the DOT&PF project management team as delegated above. Any changes or directives issued by others have no contractual standing. Any requests by others must be forwarded to the DOT&PF project management team.

We will advise you of any changes in the delegated authority. Please acknowledge the receipt and reading of this letter, by signing the acknowledgement line below, and returning a signed copy to the project manager. Please call [Project Manager name] at [number] if you have any questions.

Dave Kemp, P.E., PMP Director of Statewide Public Facilities and Tribal Relations Liaison, ADOT&PF

Acknowledged:

Date:

[Contractor Company Name]

Cc: [Name], P.E., ADOT&PF Project Manager [Name], ADOT&PF Project Engineer [Consultant Point of Contact, Company Name] [User Agency Point of Contact, User Agency Name]

Statewide Public Facilities Construction Manual



Employers Holding Federal	Employers Holding Federal Contracts or Subcontracts
Applicants to and employces of companies wil are protected under Pederal law from	Applicants to and employces of companies with a Federal government contract or subcontract are protected under Pederal law from discrimination on the following bases:
RACE, COLOR, RELIGION, SEX, NATIONAL ORIGIN Executive Order 11246, as amended, prohibits job discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex or national origin, and requires affirmative action to ensure equality of opportunity in all aspects of employment. INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES	three years of discharge or release from active duty), olher protected veterans (veterans who served during a war or in a campaign or expedition for which a campaign badge has been authorized), and Armed Forces service medal veterans (veterans who, while on active duty, participated in a U.S. military operation for which an Armed Forces service medal was awarded).
Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, protects qualified individuals from discrimination on the basis of disability in hiring, promotion, discharge, pay, fringe benefits, job training, classification, referral, and other aspects of employment. Disability discrimination includes not making reasonable accommodation the known obsciral on mental limitations of an	RETALIATION Retaliation is problibited against a person who files a complaint of discrimination, participates in an OFCCP proceeding, or otherwise opposes discrimination under these Federal laws.
otherwise qualified individual with a disability who is an applicant or employee, barring undue hardship. Section 503 also requires that Federal contractors take affituative action to employ and advance in employment qualified individuals	Any person who believes a contractor has violated its nondiscrimination or affirmative action obligations under the authorities above should contact immediately:
with discontance at all reverse of employment, including the executive level. DISABLED, RECENTLY SEPARATED, OTHER PROTECTED, AND ARMED FORCES SERVICE MEDAL VETEPANS The Vietnam Era Veterans' Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974, as amended, 38 U.S.C. 4212, prohibits job discrimination and requires affirmative action to employ and advance in employment disabled veterans, recently separated veterans (within	The Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs (OFCCP), U.S. Department of Labor, 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20210, 1-800-397-6251 (toll-free) or (202) 693-1337 (TTTy). OFCCP may also be contacted by e-mail at OFCCP-Public@dol.gov, or by calling an OFCCP regional or district office, listed in most telephone directories under U.S. Government, Department of Labor.
Programs or Activities Receivir	Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance
RACE, COLOR, NATIONAL ORIGIN, SEX In addition to the protections of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. Employment discrimination is covered by Title VI if the primary objective of the financial assistance is provision of employment, or where employment discrimination causes or may cause discrimination in providing services under such programs. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 prohibits employment discrimination on the basis of sex in educational programs or activities which receive Federal financial assistance.	INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES Section 504 of the Rchabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, profuibits employment discrimination on the basis of disability in any program or activity which receives Federal financial assistance. Discrimination is prohibited in all aspects of cmployment against persons with disabilities who, with or without reasonable accommodation, can perform the essential functions of the job. If you believe you have been discriminated against in a program of any institution which receives Federal financial assistance, you should immediately contact the Federal agency providing such assistance.
EEOC 9/02 and OFCCP 8/08 Versions Useable With 11/09 Supplement	REACDELL (Posiced 11/00)

Re: Project Name: Project Number: <u>Schedule of Values</u>

Contractor Project Manager Name Contractor Name Contractor Address City, State zip

Dear Mr. Name:

The Schedule of Values dated [date] is accepted as the basis for progress payments during construction.

The Department makes no assurance that items can be performed profitably for the amounts shown.

Sincerely,

Name Project Manager

Attachment: Schedule of Values

Xc: Project Engineer w/attachment Design Consultant w/attachment

Re: Project Name: Project Number: <u>Progress Schedule</u>

Contractor Project Manager Name Contractor Name Contractor Address City, State zip

Dear Mr. Name:

The Progress Schedule submitted and dated [date] is accepted subject to the following conditions:

- 1. Materials ordered before the date of the Notice to Proceed are at the contractor's sole risk.
- 2. Materials ordered before submittals are approved are at the contractor's sole risk.
- 3. The progress of the work is dependent on the application of resources over which the Contractor, not the Department, has control.

Sincerely,

Name Project Manager

Attachment: Progress Schedule

Xc: Project Engineer w/attachment Design Consultant w/attachment

Re: Project Name: Project Number: <u>Submittal Schedule</u>

Contractor Project Manager Name Contractor Name Contractor Address City, State zip

Dear Mr. Name:

The Submittal Schedule submitted and dated [date] is accepted subject to the following conditions:

1. Materials ordered before the date of the Notice to Proceed are at the contractor's sole risk.

2. Materials ordered before submittals are approved are at the contractor's sole risk.

Sincerely,

Name Project Manager

Attachment: Submittal Schedule

Xc: Project Engineer w/attachment Design Consultant w/attachment

Re: Project Name: Project Number: <u>Subcontractor Approval</u>

Contractor Project Manager Name Contractor Name Contractor Address City, State zip

Dear Mr. Name:

The following subcontractor is approved for work on the above project. The signed original Subcontractor Certification is transmitted for your files.

Subcontractor	Effective Date
Subcontractor Name	[date]
The following subcontractors were previously	approved.
Subcontractor	
Subcontractor Name	[date]

Sincerely,

Name, Project Engineer

Xc: Name, Project Manager

Alaska Department of Labor and Workforce Development Sample 08

Re: Project Name: Project Number: <u>Final Completion</u>

Contractor Project Manager Name Contractor Name Contractor Address City, State zip

Dear Mr. Name:

The Final Completion inspection was held on [DATE] and the project was found to have been completed in substantial conformance with the approved contract documents and all contract change orders.

The project is therefore accepted for Final Completion effective the date of the inspection.

Sincerely,

Name, Project Manager

Xc: Name, Project Engineer Name, Design Consultant Name, Chief, Statewide Public Facilities Name, Title, User Agency

	MORANDUM	STATE OF ALASKA Department of Transportation and STW Public Facilities
Division of Anchorage Phone: 269 From: Karol Co Statewid Anchora	ld: Department of Labor Employment Security Field Tax Office 4838 Fax: 269-4845 ollyer le Public Facilities ge Office/Central Region 269-0810 Fax: 269-0805	Date: File: Green Closeout Folder Subject: Labor Tax Clearance Project Name: Project:
"p Contractor: Tax I.D. EIN:		of Administration's accounting regulation, Article 6824, on Projects", we request clearance for the following: te] to [End Date]
		ed Contractor

MEMORANDUN	Department of Transportation and STW Public Facilities			
To: Bill Thompson Department of Revenue	Date:			
Tax Division Phone: 465-2385 Fax: 465-2375	File: Green Closeout Folder			
From: [Name]	Subject: Revenue Tax Clearance			
Statewide Public Facilities Anchorage Office/Central Region	Project Name:			
Phone: 269-0810 Fax: 269-0805	Project:			
Tax I.D. EIN: Tax Clearance is Requested From: [Start I	Date] to [End Date]			
	TO PRIME CONTRACTORS ska Statue 23.20.265)			
The Department of Revenue/Income & Excis	e Audit Division hereby:			
() County Tay Classes as to the share as				
() Grants Tax Clearance to the above nau () Deny Tax Clearance to the above nam				
() Deny Tax Clearance to the above nam				
() Deny Tax Clearance to the above nam Through the period:				
() Deny Tax Clearance to the above nam Through the period: By:				

[Month, Day, Year]

[Contractor] [Address] [City, State Zip]

RE: Project Name Project No. FINAL ACCEPTANCE

Gentlemen:

This letter serves as Final Acceptance for the above-referenced project. All contract requirements have been satisfied.

Sincerely,

David M. Kemp, P.E., PMP Director of Statewide Public Facilities and Tribal Relations Liaison

cc: [Name], Project Manager
 David M. Kemp, P.E., PMP, Director of Statewide Public Facilities and Tribal Relations Liaison
 Sandra Barzilay, Engineering Assistant II
 Sharon Smith, P.E., Chief of Contracts
 Wage and Hour Division, State of Alaska, Dept. of Labor
 Regina Sellers, Accounting Technician II
 Karen Kristy, Aviation/Misc. Program Mgr.
 File



17.57. Flow of Information Diagram: Sample 13 – For Preconstruction Meeting Handout

18. Appendix

- 18.1. General Conditions for Design-Bid-Build Contracts
- 18.2. General Conditions Modified for CM/GC Contracts
- 18.3. RESERVED (General Conditions Modified for Design Build Contracts)
- 18.4. Statewide Public Facilities (SWPF) Filing System
- 18.5. Commissioner Leo von Scheben Memorandum

This page intentionally left blank.

18.1. General Conditions for Design-Bid-Build Contracts



- 6.17 Safety and Protection
- 6.18 Safety Representative
- 6.19 Emergencies
- 6.20 Shop Drawings and Samples
- 6.21 Shop Drawing and Sample Review
- 6.22 Maintenance During Construction
- 6.23 Continuing the Work
- 6.24 Consent to Assignment
- 6.25 Use of Explosives
- 6.26 CONTRACTOR's Records
- 6.27 Load Restrictions

ARTICLE 7 - LAWS AND REGULATIONS

- 7.1 Laws to be Observed
- 7.2 Permits, Licenses, and Taxes
- 7.3 Patented Devices, Materials and Processes
- 7.4 Compliance of Specifications and Drawings
- 7.5 Accident Prevention
- 7.6 Sanitary Provisions
- 7.7 Business Registration
- 7.8 Professional Registration and Certification
- 7.9 Local Building Codes
- 7.10 Air Quality Control
- 7.11 Archaeological or Paleontological Discoveries
- 7.12 Applicable Alaska Preferences
- 7.13 Wages and Hours of Labor
- 7.14 Overtime Work Hours and Compensation

ARTICLE 8- OTHER WORK

- 8.1 Related Work at Site
- 8.2 Access, Cutting, and Patching
- 8.3 Defective Work by Others
- 8.4 Coordination

ARTICLE 9- CHANGES

- 9.1 DEPARTMENT's Right to Change
- 9.2 Authorization of Changes within the General Scope
- 9.3 Directive
- 9.4 Change Order
- 9.5 Shop Drawing Variations
- 9.6 Changes Outside the General Scope; Supplemental Agreement
- 9.7 Unauthorized Work
- 9.8 Notification of Surety
- 9.9 Differing Site Conditions
- 9.10 Interim Work Authorization

ARTICLE 10- CONTRACT PRICE; COMPUTATION AND CHANGE

- 10.1 Contract Price
- 10.2 Claim for Price Change
- 10.3 Change Order Price Determination
- 10.4 Cost of the Work
- 10.5 Excluded Costs
- 10.6 CONTRACTOR's Fee
- 10.7 Cost Breakdown
- 10.8 Cash Allowances

00700-ii

- 10.9 Unit Price Work
- 10.10 Determinations for Unit Prices

ARTICLE 11- CONTRACT TIME, COMPUTATION AND CHANGE

- 11.1 Commencement of Contract Time; Notice to Proceed
 - 11.2 Starting the Work
 - 11.3 Computation of Contract Time
 - 11.4 Time Change
 - 11.5 Extension Due to Delays
 - 11.6 Essence of Contract
 - 11.7 Reasonable Completion Time
 - 11.8 Delay Damages

ARTICLE 12 - QUALITY ASSURANCE

- 12.1 Warranty and Guaranty
- 12.2 Access to Work
- 12.3 Tests and Inspections
- 12.4 Uncovering Work
- 12.5 DEPARTMENT May Stop the Work
- 12.6 Correction or Removal of Defective Work
- 12.7 One Year Correction Period
- 12.8 Acceptance of Defective Work
- 12.9 DEPARTMENT may Correct Defective Work

ARTICLE 13- PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR AND COMPLETION

- 13.1 Schedule of Values
 - 13.2 Preliminary Payments
 - 13.3 Application for Progress Payment
 - 13.4 Review of Applications for Progress Payments
- 13.5 Stored Materials and Equipment
- 13.6 CONTRACTOR's Warranty of Title
- 13.7 Withholding of Payments
- 13.8 Retainage
- 13.9 Request for Release of funds
- 13.10 Substantial Completion
- 13.11 Access Following Substantial Completion
- 13.12 Final Inspection
- 13.13 Final Completion and Application for Payment
- 13.14 Final Payment
- 13.15 Final Acceptance
- 13.16 CONTRACTOR's Continuing Obligation
- 13.17 Waiver of Claims by CONTRACTOR
- 13.18 No Waiver of Legal Rights

ARTICLE 14- SUSPENSION OF WORK AND TERMINATION

- 14.1 DEPARTMENT May Suspend Work
- 14.2 Default of Contract
- 14.3 Rights or Remedies
- 14.4 Convenience Termination

Revised: December 2011

00700-iii

ARTICLE 15- CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

- 15.1 Notification
- 15.2 Presenting the Claim
- 15.3 Claim Validity, Additional Information & DEPARTMENT's Action
- 15.4 Contracting Officer's Decision
- 15.5 Fraud and Misrepresentation in Making Claims

00700-iv

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

"The State of Alaska, General Conditions of the Construction Contract for Buildings" is based on the "Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract" as published by the National Society of Professional Engineers (document number 1910-8, 1983 edition) on behalf of the Engineers Joint Construction Documents Committee. Portions of the NSPE General Conditions are reprinted herein by the express permission of NSPE. Modifications to the NSPE text are made to provide for State laws, regulations, and established procedures.

The granting of permission by NSPE to allow the State of Alaska to preprint portions of the NSPE document 1910-8, 1983 edition does not constitute approval of the State of Alaska General Conditions of the Construction Contract for Buildings.

Revised: December 2011

00700-v

ARTICLE 1 - DEFINITIONS

Wherever used in the Contract Documents the following terms, or pronouns in place of them, are used, the intent and meaning, unless a different intent or meaning is clearly indicated, shall be interpreted as set forth below.

The titles and headings of the articles, sections, and subsections herein are intended for convenience of reference.

Terms not defined below shall have their ordinary accepted meanings within the context which they are used. Words which have a well-known technical or trade meaning when used to describe work, materials or equipment shall be interpreted in accordance with such meaning. Words defined in Article 1 are to be interpreted as defined.

Addenda - All clarifications, corrections, or changes issued graphically or in writing by the DEPARTMENT after the Advertisement but prior to the opening of Proposals.

Advertisement - The public announcement, as required by law, inviting bids for Work to be performed or materials to be furnished.

Application for Payment - The form provided by the DEPARTMENT which is to be used by the CONTRACTOR in requesting progress or final payments and which is to include such supporting documentation as is required by the Contract Documents.

Approved or Approval - 'Approved' or 'Approval' as used in this contract document shall mean that the Department has received a document, form or submittal from the contractor and that the Department has taken "No exceptions" to the item submitted. Unless the context clearly indicates otherwise, approved or approval shall not mean that the Department approves of the methods or means, or that the item or form submitted meets the requirements of the contract or constitutes acceptance of the Contractor's work. Where approved or approval means acceptance, then such approval must be set forth in writing and signed by the contracting officer or his designee.

Architect - Where used in the contract documents, "ARCHITECT" shall mean the DEPARTMENT'S ENGINEER.

Architect/Engineer - Where used in the contract documents, "ARCHITECT/ENGINEER" shall mean the DEPARTMENT'S ENGINEER.

A.S - Initials which stand for Alaska Statute.

Award - The acceptance, by the DEPARTMENT, of the successful bid.

Bid Bond - A type of Proposal Guaranty.

Bidder - Any individual, firm, corporation or any acceptable combination thereof, or joint venture submitting a bid for the advertised Work.

Calendar Day - Every day shown on the calendar, beginning and ending at midnight.

Change Order - A written order by the DEPARTMENT directing changes to the Contract Documents, within their general scope.

Consultant - The person, firm, or corporation retained directly by the DEPARTMENT to prepare Contract Documents, perform construction administration services, or other Project related services.

Contingent Sum Work Item - When the bid schedule contains a Contingent Sum Work Item, the Work covered shall be performed only upon the written Directive of the Project Manager. Payment shall be made as provided in the Directive.

Contract - The written agreement between the DEPARTMENT and the CONTRACTOR setting forth the obligations of the parties and covering the Work to be performed, all as required by the Contract Documents.

Revised: December 2011

Contract Documents - The Contract form, Addenda, the bidding requirements and CONTRACTOR's bid (including all appropriate bid tender forms), the bonds, the Conditions of the Contract and all other Contract requirements, the Specifications, and the Drawings furnished by the DEPARTMENT to the CONTRACTOR, together with all Change Orders and documents approved by the Contracting Officer, for inclusion, modifications and supplements issued on or after the Effective Date of the Contract.

Contracting Officer - The person authorized by the Commissioner to enter into and administer the Contract on behalf of the DEPARTMENT. He has authority to make findings, determinations and decisions with respect to the Contract and, when necessary, to modify or terminate the Contract. The Contracting Officer is identified on the construction Contract.

CONTRACTOR - The individual, firm, corporation or any acceptable combination thereof, contracting with the DEPARTMENT for performance of the Work.

Contract Price - The total moneys payable by the DEPARTMENT to the CONTRACTOR under the terms of the Contract Documents.

Contract Time - The number of Calendar Days following issuance of Notice-to-Proceed in which the project shall be rendered Substantially Complete, or if specified as a calendar date, the Substantial Completion date specified in the Contract Documents

Controlling Item - Any feature of the Work on the critical path of a network schedule.

Defective - Work that is unsatisfactory, faulty or deficient, or does not conform to the Contract Documents.

DEPARTMENT - The Alaska Department of Transportation and Public Facilities. References to "Owner", "State", "Contracting Agency", mean the DEPARTMENT.

Directive - A written communication to the CONTRACTOR from the Contracting Officer interpreting or enforcing a Contract requirement or ordering commencement of an item of Work.

Drawings - The Drawings which show the character and scope of the Work to be performed and which have been furnished by the DEPARTMENT or the DEPARTMENT's Consultant and are by reference made a part of the Contract Documents.

ENGINEER - The DEPARTMENT'S authorized representative of the Contracting Officer, as defined in the DEPARTMENT'S *delegation of authority letter* to be issued after notice-to-proceed, who is responsible for administration of the contract.

Equipment - All machinery together with the necessary supplies for upkeep and maintenance, and also tools and apparatus necessary for the proper construction and acceptable completion of the work.

Final Acceptance - The DEPARTMENT's written acceptance of the Work following Final Completion and the performance of all Contract requirements by the CONTRACTOR.

Final Completion - The Project (or specified part thereof) has progressed to the point that all required Work is complete as determined by the Contracting Officer.

Furnish - To procure, transport, and deliver to the project site materials, labor, or equipment, for installation or use on the project.

General Requirements - Sections of Division 1 of the Specifications which contain administrative and procedural requirements as well as requirements for temporary facilities which apply to Specification Divisions 2 through 16.

00700-2

Holidays - In the State of Alaska, Legal Holidays occur on:

- l. New Years Day January l
- 2. Martin Luther King's Birthday Third Monday in January
- 3. President's Day Third Monday in February
- 4. Seward's Day Last Monday in March
- 5. Memorial Day Last Monday in May
- 6. Independence Day July 4
- 7. Labor Day First Monday in September
- 8. Alaska Day October 18
- 9. Veteran's Day November 11
- 10. Thanksgiving Day Fourth Thursday in November
- ll. Christmas Day December 25
- 12. Every Sunday
- 13. Every day designated by public proclamation by the President of the United States or the Governor of the State as a legal Holiday.

If any Holiday listed above falls on a Saturday, Saturday and the preceding Friday are both legal Holidays. If the Holiday should fall on a Sunday, except (12) above, Sunday and the following Monday are both legal Holidays. See Title 44, Alaska Statutes.

Inspector - The Engineer's authorized representative assigned to make detailed observations relating to contract performance.

Install - Means to build into the Work, ready to be used in complete and operable condition and in compliance with Contract Documents.

Interim Work Authorization - A written order by the Engineer initiating changes to the Contract, within its general scope, until a subsequent Change Order is executed.

Invitation for Bids - A portion of the bidding documents soliciting bids for the Work to be performed.

Laboratory - The official testing laboratories of the DEPARTMENT or such other laboratories as may be designated by the Engineer or identified in the contract documents.

Materials - Any substances specified for use in the construction of the project.

Notice of Intent to Award - The written notice by the DEPARTMENT to all Bidders identifying the apparent successful Bidder and establishing the DEPARTMENT's intent to execute the Contract when all conditions required for execution of the Contract are met.

Notice to Proceed - A written notice to the CONTRACTOR to begin the Work and establishing the date on which the Contract Time begins.

Payment Bond - The security furnished by the CONTRACTOR and his Surety to guarantee payment of the debts covered by the bond.

Performance Bond - The security furnished by the CONTRACTOR and his Surety to guarantee performance and completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract.

Preconstruction Conference - A meeting between the CONTRACTOR and the Engineer, and other parties affected by the construction, to discuss the project before the CONTRACTOR begins work.

Project - The total construction, of which the Work performed under the Contract Documents is the whole or a part, where such total construction may be performed by more than one CONTRACTOR.

Revised: December 2011

Project Manager - The authorized representative of the Contracting Officer who is responsible for administration of the Contract.

Proposal - The offer of a Bidder, on the prescribed forms, to perform the Work at the prices quoted.

Proposal Guaranty - The security furnished with a Proposal to guarantee that the bidder will enter into a Contract if his Proposal is accepted by the DEPARTMENT.

Quality Assurance (QA) - Where referred to in the technical specifications (Divisions 2 through 16), Quality Assurance refers to measures to be provided by the CONTRACTOR as specified.

Quality Control (QC) - Tests and inspections by the CONTRACTOR to insure the acceptability of materials incorporated into the work. QC test reports are used as a basis upon which to determine whether the Work conforms to the requirements of the Contract Documents and to determine its acceptability for payment.

Regulatory Requirements - Laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, codes and/or orders.

Schedule of Values - The DEPARTMENT's document, submitted by the CONTRACTOR and reviewed by the Contracting Officer, which shall serve as the basis for computing payment and for establishing the value of separate items of Work which comprise the Contract Price.

Shop Drawings - All drawings, diagrams, illustrations, schedules and other data which are specifically prepared by or for the CONTRACTOR to illustrate some portion of the Work and all illustrations, brochures, standard schedules, performance charts, instructions, diagrams and other information prepared by a Supplier and submitted by the CONTRACTOR to illustrate material, equipment, fabrication, or erection for some portion of the Work. Where used in the Contract Documents, "Shop Drawings" shall also mean "Submittals".

Specifications - Those portions of the Contract Documents consisting of written technical descriptions of materials, equipment, construction systems, standards and workmanship as applied to the Work and certain administrative and procedural details applicable thereto.

Subcontractor - An individual, firm, or corporation to whom the CONTRACTOR or any other Subcontractor sublets part of the Contract.

Substantial Completion - Although not fully completed, the Work (or a specified part thereof) has progressed to the point where, in the opinion of the Contracting Officer, as evidence by the DEPARTMENT's written notice, it is sufficiently complete, in accordance with the Contract Documents, so that the Work (or specified part) can be utilized for the purposes for which it is intended. The terms "Substantially Complete" and "Substantially Completed" as applied to any Work refer to Substantial Completion thereof.

Supplemental Agreement - A written agreement between the CONTRACTOR and the DEPARTMENT covering work that is not within the general scope of the Contract.

Supplementary Conditions - The part of the Contract Documents which amends or supplements these General Conditions.

Supplier - A manufacturer, fabricator, distributor, materialman or vendor of materials or equipment.

Surety - The corporation, partnership, or individual, other than the CONTRACTOR, executing a bond furnished by the CONTRACTOR.

Traffic Control Plan (TCP) - A drawing of one or more specific plans that detail the routing of pedestrian, and/or vehicular traffic through or around a construction area. **Unit Price Work** - Work to be paid for on the basis of unit prices.

00700-4

Using Agency - The entitiv who will occupy or use the completed Project.

Utility - The privately, publicly or cooperatively owned lines, facilities and systems for producing, transmitting or distributing communications, power, electricity, light, heat, gas, oil, crude products, water, steam, waste, storm water not connected with highway or street drainage, and other similar commodities, including publicly owned fire and police signal systems, street lighting systems, and railroads which directly or indirectly serve the public or any part thereof. The term "utility" shall also mean the utility company, inclusive of any wholly owned or controlled subsidiary."

Work - Work is the act of, and the result of, performing services, furnishing labor, furnishing and incorporating materials and equipment into the Project and performing other duties and obligations, all as required by the Contract Documents. Such Work, however incremental, will culminate in the entire completed Project, or the various separately identifiable parts thereof.

Revised: December 2011

ARTICLE 2 - AUTHORIZATION AND LIMITATIONS

2.1 Authorities and Limitations

- 2.1.1 The Contracting Officer alone, shall have the power to bind the DEPARTMENT and to exercise the rights, responsibilities, authorities and functions vested in the Contracting Officer by the Contract Documents. The Contracting Officer shall have the right to designate in writing authorized representatives to act for him. Wherever any provision of the Contract Documents specifies an individual or organization, whether governmental or private, to perform any act on behalf of or in the interest of the DEPARTMENT that individual or organization shall be deemed to be the Contracting Officer's authorized representative under this Contract but only to the extent so specified.
- 2.1.2 The CONTRACTOR shall perform the Work in accordance with any written order (including but not limited to instruction, direction, interpretation or determination) issued by an authorized representative in accordance with the authorized representative's authority to act for the Contracting Officer. The CONTRACTOR assumes all the risk and consequences of performing the Work in accordance with any order (including but not limited to instruction, direction, interpretation or determination) of anyone not authorized to issue such order, and of any order not in writing.
- 2.1.3 Should the Contracting Officer or his authorized representative designate Consultant(s) to act for the DEPARTMENT as provided for in Paragraph 2.1.1, the performance or nonperformance of the Consultant under such authority to act, shall not give rise to any contractual obligation or duty of the Consultant to the CONTRACTOR, any Subcontractor, any Supplier, or any other organization performing any of the Work or any Surety representing them.

2.2 Evaluations by Contracting Officer:

- 2.2.1 The Contracting Officer will decide all questions which may arise as to:
 - a. Quality and acceptability of materials furnished;
 - b. Quality and acceptability of Work performed;
 - c. Compliance with the schedule of progress;
 - d. Interpretation of Contract Documents;
 - e. Acceptable fulfillment of the Contract on the part of the CONTRACTOR.
- 2.2.2 In order to avoid cumbersome terms and confusing repetition of expressions in the Contract Documents the terms "as ordered", "as directed", "as required", "as approved" or terms of like effect or import are used, or the adjectives "reasonable", "suitable", "acceptable", "proper" or "satisfactory" or adjectives of like effect or import are used it shall be understood as if the expression were followed by the words "the Contracting Officer".

When such terms are used to describe a requirement, direction, review or judgment of the Contracting Officer as to the Work, it is intended that such requirement, direction, review or judgment will be solely to evaluate the Work for compliance with the Contract Documents (unless there is a specific statement indicating otherwise).

2.2.3 The use of any such term or adjective shall not be effective to assign to the DEPARTMENT any duty of authority to supervise or direct the furnishing or performance of the Work or any duty or authority to undertake responsibility contrary to the provisions of paragraphs 2.3 or 2.4.

00700-6

2.3 Means & Methods:

The means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of construction, or safety precautions and the program incident thereto, and the failure to perform or furnish the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents are the sole responsibility of the CONTRACTOR.

2.4 Visits to Site/Place of Business:

The Contracting Officer will make visits to the site and approved remote storage sites at intervals appropriate to the various stages of construction to observe the progress and quality of the executed Work and to determine, in general, if the Work is proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents. The Contracting Officer may, at reasonable times, inspect that part of the plant or place of business of the CONTRACTOR or Subcontractor that is related to the performance of the Contract. Such observations or the lack of such observations shall in no way relieve the CONTRACTOR from his duty to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

Revised: December 2011

ARTICLE 3 - CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: INTENT, AMENDING, REUSE

3.1 Incomplete Contract Documents:

The submission of a bid by the Bidder is considered a representation that the Bidder examined the Contract Documents to make certain that all sheets and pages were provided and that the Bidder is satisfied as to the conditions to be encountered in performing the Work. The DEPARTMENT expressly denies any responsibility or liability for a bid submitted on the basis of an incomplete set of Contract Documents.

3.2 Copies of Contract Documents:

The DEPARTMENT shall furnish to the CONTRACTOR up to ten copies of the Contract Documents. Additional copies will be furnished, upon request, at the cost of reproduction.

3.3 Scope of Work:

The Contract Documents comprise the entire Contract between the DEPARTMENT and the CONTRACTOR concerning the Work. The Contract Documents are complementary; what is called for by one is as binding as if called for by all. The Contract Documents will be construed in accordance with the Regulatory Requirements of the place of the Project.

It is specifically agreed between the parties executing this Contract that it is not intended by any of the provisions of the Contract to create in the public or any member thereof a third party benefit, or to authorize anyone not a party to this Contract to maintain a suit pursuant to the terms or provisions of the Contract.

3.4 Intent of Contract Documents:

- 3.4.1 It is the intent of the Contract Documents to describe a functionally complete Project to be constructed in accordance with the Contract Documents. Any Work, materials or equipment that may reasonably be inferred from the Contract Documents as being required to produce the intended result will be supplied, without any adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Time, whether or not specifically called for.
- 3.4.2 Reference to standard specifications, manuals or codes of any technical society, organization or association, or to the Regulatory Requirements of any governmental authority, whether such reference be specific or by implication, shall mean the edition stated in the Contract Documents or if not stated the latest standard specification, manual, code or Regulatory Requirements in effect at the time of Advertisement for the Project (or, on the Effective Date of the Contract if there was no Advertisement). However, no provision of any referenced standard specification, manual or code (whether or not specifically incorporated by reference in the Contract Documents) shall be effective to change the duties and responsibilities of the DEPARTMENT and the CONTRACTOR, or any of their consultants, agents or employees from those set forth in the Contract Documents, nor shall it be effective to assign to the DEPARTMENT or any of the DEPARTMENT's Consultants, agents or employees, any duty or authority to supervise or direct the furnishing or performance of the Work or any duty or authority to undertake responsibility contrary to the provisions of paragraphs 2.3 or 2.4.

3.5 Discrepancy in Contract Documents:

3.5.1 Before undertaking the Work, the CONTRACTOR shall carefully study and compare the Contract Documents and check and verify pertinent figures, and dimensions shown thereon and all applicable field measurements. Work in the area by the CONTRACTOR shall imply verification of figures, dimensions and field measurements. If, during the above study or during the performance of the Work, the CONTRACTOR finds a conflict, error, discrepancy or omission in the Contract Documents, or a discrepancy between the Contract Documents and any standard specification, manual, code, or Regulatory Requirement which affects the Work, the CONTRACTOR shall promptly report such discrepancy in writing to the Contracting Officer. The CONTRACTOR shall obtain a written interpretation or clarification from the Contracting Officer before proceeding with any Work affected thereby. Any adjustment made by the CONTRACTOR without this

00700-8

determination shall be at his own risk and expense. However, the CONTRACTOR shall not be liable to the DEPARTMENT for failure to report any conflict, error or discrepancy in the Contract Documents unless the CONTRACTOR had actual knowledge thereof or should reasonably have known thereof.

3.5.2 Discrepancy - Order of Precedence:

When conflicts errors, or discrepancies within the Contract Documents exist, the order of precedence from most governing to least governing will be as follows:

Contents of Addenda Supplementary Conditions General Conditions General Requirements Technical Specifications Drawings Recorded dimensions will govern over scaled dimensions Large scale details over small scale details Schedules over plans Architectural drawings over structural drawings Structural drawings over mechanical and electrical drawings

3.6 Clarifications and Interpretations:

The Contracting Officer will issue with reasonable promptness such written clarifications or interpretations of the requirements of the Contract Documents as the Contracting Officer may determine necessary, which shall be consistent with or reasonably inferable from the overall intent of the Contract Documents.

3.7 Reuse of Documents:

Neither the CONTRACTOR nor any Subcontractor, or Supplier or other person or organization performing or furnishing any of the Work under a direct or indirect contract with the DEPARTMENT shall have or acquire any title to or ownership rights in any of the Contract Documents (or copies thereof) prepared by or for the DEPARTMENT and they shall not reuse any of the Contract Documents on extensions of the Project or any other project without written consent of the Contracting Officer.

Contract Documents prepared by the CONTRACTOR in connection with the Work shall become the property of the DEPARTMENT.

Revised: December 2011

ARTICLE 4 - LANDS AND PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

4.1 Availability of Lands:

The DEPARTMENT shall furnish as indicated in the Contract Documents, the lands upon which the Work is to be performed, rights-of-way and easements for access thereto, and such other lands which are designated for use of the CONTRACTOR in connection with the Work. Easements for permanent structures or permanent changes in existing facilities will be obtained and paid for by the DEPARTMENT, unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents. The CONTRACTOR shall provide for all additional lands and access thereto that may be required for temporary construction facilities or storage of materials and equipment. The CONTRACTOR shall provide all waste and disposal areas, including disposal areas for hazardous or contaminated materials, at no additional cost to the DEPARTMENT.

4.2 Visit to Site:

The submission of a bid by the CONTRACTOR is considered a representation that the CONTRACTOR has visited and carefully examined the site and is satisfied as to the conditions to be encountered in performing the Work and as to the requirements of the Contract Documents.

4.3 Explorations and Reports:

Reference is made to the Supplementary Conditions for identification of those reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at the site that have been utilized by the DEPARTMENT in preparation of the Contract Documents. The CONTRACTOR may for his purposes rely upon the accuracy of the factual data contained in such reports, but not upon interpretations or opinions drawn from such factual data contained therein or for the completeness or sufficiency thereof. Except as indicated in the immediately preceding sentence and in paragraphs 4.4 and 9.9, CONTRACTOR shall have full responsibility with respect to surface and subsurface conditions at the site.

4.4 Utilities:

The horizontal and vertical locations of known underground utilities as shown or indicated by the Contract Documents are approximate and are based on information and data furnished to the DEPARTMENT by the owners of such underground utilities.

4.4.2 The CONTRACTOR shall have full responsibility for:

- a. Reviewing and checking all information and data concerning utilities.
- b. Locating all underground utilities shown or indicated in the Contract Documents which are affected by the Work.
- c. Coordination of the Work with the owners of all utilities during construction.
- d. Safety and protection of all utilities as provided in paragraph 6.17.
- e. Repair of any damage to utilities resulting from the Work in accordance with 4.4.4 and 4.5.
- 4.4.3 If Work is to be performed by any utility owner, the CONTRACTOR shall cooperate with such owners to facilitate the Work.
- 4.4.4 In the event of interruption to any utility service as a result of accidental breakage or as result of being exposed or unsupported, the CONTRACTOR shall promptly notify the utility owner and the Contracting Officer. If service is interrupted, repair work shall be continuous until the service is restored. No Work shall be undertaken around fire hydrants until provisions for continued service has been approved by the local fire

00700-10

authority.

4.5 Damaged Utilities:

When utilities are damaged by the CONTRACTOR, the utility owner shall have the choice of repairing the utility or having the CONTRACTOR repair the utility. In the following circumstances, the CONTRACTOR shall reimburse the utility owner for repair costs or provide at no cost to the utility owner or the DEPARTMENT, all materials, equipment and labor necessary to complete repair of the damage:

- a. When the utility is shown or indicated in the Contract Documents.
- b. When the utility has been located by the utility owner.
- c. When no locate was requested by the CONTRACTOR for utilities shown or indicated in the Contract Documents.
- d. All visible utilities.
- e. When the CONTRACTOR could have, otherwise, reasonably been expected to be aware of such utility.

4.6 Utilities Not Shown or Indicated:

If, while directly performing the Work, an underground utility is uncovered or revealed at the site which was not shown or indicated in the Contract Documents and which the CONTRACTOR could not reasonably have been expected to be aware of, the CONTRACTOR shall, promptly after becoming aware thereof and before performing any Work affected thereby (except in an emergency as permitted by paragraph 6.19) identify the owner of such underground utility and give written notice thereof to that owner and to the Contracting Officer. The Contracting Officer will promptly review the underground utility to determine the extent to which the Contract Documents and the Work should be modified to reflect the impacts of the discovered utility. The Contract Documents will be amended or supplemented in accordance with paragraph 9.2 and to the extent necessary through the issuance of a change document by the Contract Dricer. During such time, the CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the safety and protection of such underground utility as provided in paragraph 6.17. The CONTRACTOR may be allowed an increase in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Time, or both, to the extent that they are directly attributable to the existence of any underground utility that was not shown or indicated in the Contract Documents and which the CONTRACTOR could not reasonably have been expected to be aware of.

4.7 Survey Control:

The DEPARTMENT will identify sufficient horizontal and vertical control data to enable the CONTRACTOR to survey and layout the Work. All survey work shall be performed under the direct supervision of a registered land surveyor when required by paragraph 7.8. Copies of all survey notes shall be provided to the DEPARTMENT at an interval determined by the Project Manager. The Project Manager may request submission on a weekly or longer period at his discretion. Any variations between the Contract Documents and actual field conditions shall be identified in the survey notes.

Revised: December 2011

ARTICLE 5 - BONDS, INSURANCE, AND INDEMNIFICATION

5.1 Delivery of Bonds:

When the CONTRACTOR delivers the executed Contract to the Contracting Officer, the CONTRACTOR shall also deliver to the Contracting Officer such bonds as the CONTRACTOR may be required to furnish in accordance with paragraph 5.2.

5.2 Bonds:

The CONTRACTOR shall furnish Performance and Payment Bonds, each in an amount as shown on the Contract as security for the faithful performance and payment of all CONTRACTOR's obligations under the Contract Documents. These bonds shall remain in effect for one year after the date of Final Acceptance and until all obligations under this Contract, except special guarantees as per 12.7, have been met. All bonds shall be furnished on forms provided by the DEPARTMENT (or copies thereof) and shall be executed by such Sureties as are authorized to do business in the State of Alaska. The Contracting Officer may at his option copy the Surety with notice of any potential default or liability.

5.3 Replacement of Bond and Surety:

If the Surety on any bond furnished in connection with this Contract is declared bankrupt or becomes insolvent or its right to do business is terminated in any state where any part of the Project is located or it ceases to meet the requirements of paragraph 5.2, or otherwise becomes unacceptable to the DEPARTMENT, or if any such Surety fails to furnish reports as to his financial condition as requested by the DEPARTMENT, the CONTRACTOR shall within five days thereafter substitute another bond and Surety, both of which must be acceptable to DEPARTMENT.

An individual Surety may be replaced by a corporate Surety during the course of the Contract period. If the Surety desires to dispose of the collateral posted, the DEPARTMENT may, at its option, accept substitute collateral.

5.4 Insurance Requirements:

- 5.4.1 The CONTRACTOR shall provide evidence of insurance with a carrier or carriers satisfactory to the DEPARTMENT covering injury to persons and/or property suffered by the State of Alaska or a third party, as a result of operations which arise both out of and during the course of this Contract by the CONTRACTOR or by any Subcontractor. This coverage will also provide protection against injuries to all employees of the CONTRACTOR and the employees of any Subcontractor engaged in Work under this Contract. The delivery to the DEPARTMENT of a written 30 day notice is required before cancellation of any coverage or reduction in any limits of liability. Insurance carriers shall have an acceptable financial rating.
- 5.4.2 The CONTRACTOR shall maintain in force at all times during the performance of the work under this agreement the following policies and minimum limits of liability. Failure to maintain insurance may, at the option of the Contracting Officer, be deemed Defective Work and remedied in accordance with the Contract. Where specific limits and coverages are shown, it is understood that they shall be the minimum acceptable. The requirements of this paragraph shall not limit the CONTRACTOR's responsibility to indemnify under paragraph 5.5. Additional insurance requirements specific to this Contract are contained in the Supplementary Conditions, when applicable.
 - a. <u>Workers' Compensation Insurance</u>: The Contractor shall provide and maintain, for all employees of the Contractor engaged in work under this contract, Workers' Compensation Insurance as required by AS 23.30.045. The Contractor shall be responsible for Workers' Compensation Insurance for any subcontractor who provides services under this contract, to include:
 - 1. Waiver of subrogation against the State and Employer's Liability Protection in the amount of \$500,000 each accident/\$500,000 each disease.

00700-12

- 2. If the Contractor directly utilizes labor outside of the State of Alaska in the prosecution of the work, "Other States" endorsement shall be required as a condition of the contract.
- 3. Whenever the work involves activity on or about navigable waters, the Workers' Compensation policy shall contain a United States Longshoreman's and Harbor Worker's Act endorsement, and when appropriate, a Maritime Employer's Liability (Jones Act) endorsement with a minimum limit of \$1,000,000.
- b. <u>Comprehensive or Commercial General Liability Insurance</u>: Such insurance shall cover all operations by or on behalf of the CONTRACTOR and provide insurance for bodily injury and property damage liability including <u>coverage</u> for:

premises and operations; products and completed operations; contractual liability insuring obligations assumed under paragraph 5.5, Indemnification; broad form property damage; and personal injury liability.

The minimum limits of liability shall be:

1. If the CONTRACTOR carries a *Comprehensive General Liability* policy, the limits of liability shall not be less than a Combined Single Limit for bodily injury, property damage and Personal Injury Liability of:

\$1,000,000 each occurrence \$2,000,00 aggregate

2. If the CONTRATOR carries a *Commercial General Liability* policy, the limits of liability shall not be less than:

\$1,000,000 each occurrence (Combined Single Limit for bodily injury and property damage) \$1,000,000 for Personal Injury Liability

\$2,000,000 aggregate for Products-Completed Operations \$2,000,000 general aggregate

The State of Alaska, DEPARTMENT of Transportation and Public Facilities shall be named as an "Additional Insured" under all liability coverages listed above.

c. <u>Automobile Liability Insurance</u>:

Such insurance shall cover all owned, hired and non-owned vehicles and provide coverage not less than that of the Business Automobile Policy in limits not less than the following:

\$1,000,000 each occurrence (Combined Single Limit for bodily injury and property damage.)

d. Builder's Risk Insurance:

Coverage shall be on an "All Risk" completed value basis including "quake and flood" and protect the interests of the DEPARTMENT, the CONTRACTOR and his Subcontractors. Coverage shall include all materials, supplies and equipment that are intended for specific installation in the Project while such materials, supplies and equipment are located at the Project site, in transit from port of arrival to job site and while temporarily located away from the Project site.

In addition to providing the above coverages the CONTRACTOR shall ensure that Subcontractors provide insurance coverages as noted in clauses a., b., and c. of this subparagraph. Builders Risk Insurance will only be required of subcontractors if so stated in the Supplementary Conditions.

e. Other Coverages:

As specified in the Supplementary Conditions.

Revised: December 2011

5.4.3 In addition to providing the above coverages the Contractor shall, in any contract or agreement with subcontractors performing work, require that all indemnities and waivers of subrogation it obtains, and that any stipulation to be named as an additional insured it obtains, also be extended to waive rights of subrogation against the State of Alaska and to add the State of Alaska as additional named indemnitee and as additional insured.

Evidence of insurance shall be furnished to the Department prior to the award of the contract. Such evidence, executed by the carrier's representative and issued to the Department, shall consist of a certificate of insurance or the policy declaration page with required endorsements attached thereto which denote the type, amount, class of operations covered, effective (and retroactive) dates, and dates of expiration. Acceptance by the Department of deficient evidence does not constitute a waiver of contract requirements.

When a certificate of insurance is furnished, it shall contain the following statement:

"This is to certify that the policies described herein comply with all aspects of the insurance requirements of (Project Name and Number)"

5.5 Indemnification:

The CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, save harmless, and defend the DEPARTMENT, its agents and its employees from any and all claims, actions, or liabilities for injuries or damages sustained by any person or property arising directly or indirectly from the construction or the CONTRACTOR's performance of this Contract; however, this provision has no effect if, but only if, the sole proximate cause of the injury or damage is the DEPARTMENT's negligence.

00700-14
ARTICLE 6 - CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES

6.1 Supervision of Work:

The CONTRACTOR shall supervise and direct the Work competently and efficiently, devoting such attention thereto and applying such skills and expertise as may be necessary to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. All Work under this Contract shall be performed in a skillful and workmanlike manner. The CONTRACTOR shall be solely responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures of construction.

6.2 Superintendence by CONTRACTOR:

The CONTRACTOR shall keep on the Work at all times during its progress a competent resident superintendent. The Contracting Officer shall be advised in writing of the superintendent's name, local address, and telephone number. This written advice is to be kept current until Final Acceptance by the DEPARTMENT. The superintendent will be the CONTRACTOR's representative at the site and shall have full authority to act and sign documents on behalf of the CONTRACTOR.

All communications given to the superintendent shall be as binding as if given to the CONTRACTOR. The CONTRACTOR shall cooperate with the Contracting Officer in every way possible.

6.3 Character of Workers:

The CONTRACTOR shall provide a sufficient number of competent, suitably qualified personnel to survey and lay out the Work and perform construction as required by the Contract Documents. The CONTRACTOR shall at all times maintain good discipline and order at the site. The Contracting Officer may, in writing, require the CONTRACTOR to remove from the Work any employee the Contracting Officer deems incompetent, careless, or otherwise detrimental to the progress of the Work, but the Contracting Officer shall have no duty to exercise this right.

6.4 CONTRACTOR to Furnish:

Unless otherwise specified in the General Requirements, the CONTRACTOR shall furnish and assume full responsibility for all materials, equipment and machinery, tools, appliances, fuel, power, light, heat, telephone, water, sanitary facilities, temporary facilities and all other facilities and incidentals necessary for the furnishing, performance testing, start-up and completion of the Work.

6.5 Materials and Equipment:

All materials and equipment shall be of specified quality and new, except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents. If required by the Contracting Officer, the CONTRACTOR shall furnish satisfactory evidence (including reports of required tests) as to the kind and quality of materials and equipment. All materials and equipment shall be applied, installed, connected, erected, used, cleaned, and conditioned in accordance with the instructions of the applicable Supplier except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents; but no provision of any such instructions will be effective to assign to the DEPARTMENT or any of the DEPARTMENT's Consultants, agents or employees, any duty or authority to supervise or direct the furnishing or performance of the Work or any duty or authority to undertake responsibility contrary to the provisions of paragraphs 2.3 or 2.4.

6.6 Anticipated Schedules:

6.6.1 Within fourteen (14) calendar days after the date of the Notice to Proceed, the CONTRACTOR shall submit to the Contracting Officer for review an anticipated progress schedule indicating the starting and completion dates of the various stages of the Work. No individual stage of work shall exceed fourteen (14) calendar days.

Revised: December 2011

- 6.6.2 Within twenty one (21) days after the date of the Notice to Proceed, the CONTRACTOR shall submit to the Contracting Officer for review an anticipated schedule of Shop Drawing submissions
- 6.6.3 Prior to submitting the CONTRACTOR's first Application for Payment, the CONTRACTOR shall submit for review and approval:

Anticipated Schedule of Values for all of the Work which will include quantities and prices of items aggregating the Contract Price and will subdivide the Work into component parts in sufficient detail to serve as the basis for progress payments during construction. Such prices will include an appropriate amount of overhead and profit applicable to each item of Work which will be confirmed in writing by the CONTRACTOR at the time of submission.

6.7 Finalizing Schedules:

Prior to processing the first Application for Payment the Contracting Officer and the CONTRACTOR will finalize schedules required by paragraph 6.6. The finalized progress schedule will be acceptable to the DEPARTMENT as providing information related to the orderly progression of the Work to completion within the Contract Time; but such acceptance will neither impose on the DEPARTMENT nor relieve the CONTRACTOR from full responsibility for the progress or scheduling of the Work. If accepted, the finalized schedule of Shop Drawing and other required submissions will be acknowledgment by the DEPARTMENT as providing a workable arrangement for processing the submissions. If accepted, the finalized Schedule of Values will be acknowledgment by the DEPARTMENT as an approximation of anticipated value of Work accomplished over the anticipated Contract Time. Receipt and acceptance of a schedule submitted by the CONTRACTOR shall not be construed to assign responsibility for performance or contingencies to the DEPARTMENT or relieve the CONTRACTOR of his responsibility to adjust his forces, equipment, and work schedules as may be necessary to insure completion of the Work within prescribed Contract Time. Should the prosecution of the Work be discontinued for any reason, the CONTRACTOR shall notify the Contract Time. Journal of the Work and work schedules as may be necessary to insure completion of the Work within prescribed Contract Time.

6.8 Adjusting Schedules:

Upon substantial changes to the schedule or upon request the CONTRACTOR shall submit to the Contracting Officer for acceptance (to the extent indicated in paragraph 6.7 and the General Requirements) adjustments in the schedules to reflect the actual present and anticipated progress of the Work.

6.9 Substitutes or "Or-Equal" Items:

- 6.9.1 Whenever materials or equipment are specified or described in the Contract Documents by using the name of a proprietary item or the name of a particular Supplier the naming of the item is intended to establish the type, function and quality required. Unless the name is followed by words indicating that substitution is limited or not permitted, materials or equipment of other Suppliers may be accepted by the Contracting Officer only if sufficient information is submitted by the CONTRACTOR which clearly demonstrates to the Contracting Officer that the material or equipment proposed is equivalent or equal in all aspects to that named. The procedure for review by the Contracting Officer will include the following as supplemented in the General Requirements.
- 6.9.2 Requests for review of substitute items of material and equipment will not be accepted by the Contracting Officer from anyone other than the CONTRACTOR.

00700-16

- 6.9.3 If the CONTRACTOR wishes to furnish or use a substitute item of material or equipment, the CONTRACTOR shall make written application to the Contracting Officer for Approval thereof, certifying that the proposed substitute will perform adequately the functions and achieve the results called for by the general design, be similar and of equal substance to that specified and be suited to the same use as the specified. The application will state that the evaluation and Approval of the proposed substitute will not delay the CONTRACTOR's timely achievement of Substantial or Final Completion, whether or not acceptance of the substitute for use in the Work will require a change in any of the Contract Documents (or in the proposed substitute and whether or not incorporation or use of the substitute in connection with the Work is subject to payment of any license fee or royalty.
- 6.9.4 All variations of the proposed substitute from that specified will be identified in the application and available maintenance, repair and replacement service will be indicated. The application will also contain an itemized estimate of all costs that will result directly or indirectly from acceptance of such substitute, including costs of redesign and claims of other contractors affected by the resulting change, all of which shall be considered by the DEPARTMENT in evaluating the proposed substitute. The DEPARTMENT may require the CONTRACTOR to furnish at the CONTRACTOR's expense additional data about the proposed substitute. The DEPARTMENT is not in the best interest of the DEPARTMENT.
- 6.9.5 Substitutions shall be permitted during or after the bid period as allowed and in accordance with Document 00020 Invitation for Bids, Document 00700 General Conditions, and Document 01630 Product Options and Substitutions.

6.10 Substitute Means and Methods:

If a specific means, method, technique, sequence or procedure of construction is indicated in or required by the Contract Documents, the CONTRACTOR may furnish or utilize a substitute means, method, sequence, technique or procedure of construction acceptable to the Contracting Officer, if the CONTRACTOR submits sufficient information to allow the Contracting Officer to determine that the substitute proposed is equivalent to that indicated or required by the Contract Documents. The procedure for review by the Contracting Officer will be similar to that provided in paragraph 6.9 as applied by the Contracting Officer and as may be supplemented in the General Requirements.

6.11 Evaluation of Substitution:

The Contracting Officer will be allowed a reasonable time within which to evaluate each proposed substitute. The Contracting Officer will be the sole judge of acceptability, and no substitute will be ordered, installed or utilized without the Contracting Officer's prior written Approval which will be evidenced by either a Change Order or a Shop Drawing Approved in accordance with Sections 6.20 and 6.21. The Contracting Officer may require the CONTRACTOR to furnish at the CONTRACTOR's expense a special performance guarantee or other Surety with respect to any substitute.

6.12 Dividing the Work:

The divisions and sections of the Specifications and the identifications of any Drawings shall not control the CONTRACTOR in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or Suppliers or delineating the Work to be performed by any specific trade.

6.13 Subcontractors:

The CONTRACTOR may utilize the services of appropriately licensed Subcontractors on those parts of the Work which, under normal contracting practices, are performed by Subcontractors, in accordance with the following conditions:

Revised: December 2011

- 6.13.1 The CONTRACTOR shall not award any Work to any Subcontractor without prior written Approval of the Contracting Officer. This Approval will not be given until the CONTRACTOR submits to the Contracting Officer a written statement concerning the proposed award to the Subcontractor which shall contain required Equal Employment Opportunity documents, evidence of insurance whose limits are acceptable to the CONTRACTOR, and an executed copy of the subcontract. All subcontracts shall contain provisions for prompt payment, release of retainage, and interest on late payment amounts and retainage as specified in A.S. 36.90.210. Contracts between subcontractors, regardless of tier, must also contain these provisions. No acceptance by the Contracting Officer of any such Subcontractor shall constitute a waiver of any right of the DEPARTMENT to reject Defective Work.
- 6.13.2 The CONTRACTOR shall be fully responsible to the DEPARTMENT for all acts and omisions of the Subcontractors, Suppliers and other persons and organizations performing or furnishing any of the Work under a direct or indirect contract with CONTRACTOR just as CONTRACTOR is responsible for CONTRACTOR's own acts and omissions.
- 6.13.3 All Work performed for CONTRACTOR by a Subcontractor will be pursuant to an appropriate written agreement between CONTRACTOR and the Subcontractor which specifically binds the Subcontractor to the applicable terms and conditions of the Contract Documents for the benefit of the DEPARTMENT and contains waiver provisions as required by paragraph 13.17 and termination provisions as required by Article 14.
- 6.13.4 Nothing in the Contract Documents shall create any contractual relationship between the DEPARTMENT and any such Subcontractor, Supplier or other person or organization, nor shall it create any obligation on the part of the DEPARTMENT to pay or to see to the payment of any moneys due any such Subcontractor, Supplier or other person or organization except as may otherwise be required by Regulatory Requirements. The DEPARTMENT will not undertake to settle any differences between or among the CONTRACTOR, Subcontractors, or Suppliers.
- 6.13.5 The CONTRACTOR and Subcontractors shall coordinate their work and cooperate with other trades so to facilitate general progress of Work. Each trade shall afford other trades every reasonable opportunity for installation of their work and storage of materials. If cooperative work of one trade must be altered due to lack of proper supervision, or failure to make proper provisions in time by another trade, such conditions shall be remedied by the CONTRACTOR with no change in Contract Price or Contract Time.
- 6.13.6 The CONTRACTOR shall include on his own payrolls any person or persons working on this Contract who are not covered by written subcontract, and shall ensure that all Subcontractors include on their payrolls all persons performing Work under the direction of the Subcontractor.

6.14 Use of Premises:

The CONTRACTOR shall confine construction equipment, the storage of materials and equipment and the operations of workers to the Project limits and approved remote storage sites and lands and areas identified in and permitted by Regulatory Requirements, rights-of-way, permits and easements, and shall not unreasonably encumber the premises with construction equipment or other materials or equipment. The CONTRACTOR shall assume full responsibility for any damage to any such land or area, or to the owner or occupant thereof or of any land or areas contiguous thereto, resulting from the performance of the Work. Should any claim be made against the DEPARTMENT by any such owner or occupant because of the performance of the Work, the CONTRACTOR shall hold the DEPARTMENT harmless.

6.15 Structural Loading:

The CONTRACTOR shall not load nor permit any part of any structure to be loaded in any manner that will endanger the structure, nor shall the CONTRACTOR subject any part of the Work or adjacent property to stresses or pressures that will endanger it.

00700-18

6.16 Record Documents:

The CONTRACTOR shall maintain in a safe place at the site one record copy of all Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, Directives, Change Orders, Supplemental Agreements, and written interpretations and clarifications (issued pursuant to paragraph 3.6) in good order and annotated to show all changes made during construction. These record documents together with all Approved samples and a counterpart of all Approved Shop Drawings will be available to the Contracting Officer for reference and copying. Upon completion of the Work, the annotated record documents, samples and Shop Drawings will be delivered to the Contracting Officer. Record documents shall accurately record variations in the Work which vary from requirements shown or indicated in the Contract Documents.

6.17 Safety and Protection:

The CONTRACTOR alone shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work. The CONTRACTOR shall take all necessary precautions for the safety of, and shall provide the necessary protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to:

- 6.17.1 All employees on the Work and other persons and organizations who may be affected thereby;
- 6.17.2 All the Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the site; and
- 6.17.3 Other property at the site or adjacent thereto, including trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, structures, and utilities not designated for removal, relocation or replacement in the course of construction.

The CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable Regulatory Requirements of any public body having jurisdiction for the safety of persons or property or to protect them from damage, injury or loss; and shall erect and maintain all necessary safeguards for such safety and protection. The CONTRACTOR shall notify owners of adjacent property and utility owners when prosecution of the Work may affect them, and shall cooperate with them in the protection, removal, relocation and replacement of their property. All damage, injury or loss to any property caused, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, by the CONTRACTOR, any Subcontractor, Supplier or any other person or organization directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform or furnish any of the Work or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, shall be remedied by the CONTRACTOR with no change in Contract Price or Contract Time except as stated in 4.6, except damage or loss attributable to unforeseeable causes beyond the control of and without the fault or negligence of the CONTRACTOR, including but not restricted to acts of God, of the public enemy or governmental authorities. The CONTRACTOR's duties and responsibilities for the safety and protection of the Work shall continue until Final Acceptance (except as otherwise expressly provided in connection with Substantial Completion).

6.18 Safety Representative:

The CONTRACTOR shall designate a responsible safety representative at the site. This person shall be the CONTRACTOR's superintendent unless otherwise designated in writing by the CONTRACTOR to the Contracting Officer.

6.19 Emergencies:

In emergencies affecting the safety or protection of persons or the Work or property at the site or adjacent thereto, the CONTRACTOR, without special instruction or authorization from the DEPARTMENT, is obligated to act to prevent threatened damage, injury or loss. The CONTRACTOR shall give the Contracting Officer prompt written notice if the CONTRACTOR believes that any significant changes in the Work or variations from the Contract Documents have been caused thereby. If the DEPARTMENT determines that a change in the Contract Documents is required because of the action taken in response to an emergency, a change will be authorized by one of the methods indicated in Paragraph 9.2, as determined appropriate by the Contracting Officer.

Revised: December 2011

6.20 Shop Drawings and Samples:

- 6.20.1 After checking and verifying all field measurements and after complying with applicable procedures specified in the General Requirements, the CONTRACTOR shall submit to the Contracting Officer for review and Approval in accordance with the accepted schedule of Shop Drawing submissions the required number of all Shop Drawings, which will bear a stamp or specific written indication that the CONTRACTOR has satisfied CONTRACTOR's responsibilities under the Contract Documents with respect to the review of the submission. All submissions will be identified as the Contracting Officer may require. The data shown on the Shop Drawings will be complete with respect to quantities, dimensions, specified performance and design criteria, materials and similar data to enable the Contracting Officer to review the information as required.
- 6.20.2 The CONTRACTOR shall also submit to the Contracting Officer for review and Approval with such promptness as to cause no delay in Work, all samples required by the Contract Documents. All samples will have been checked by and accompanied by a specific written indication that the CONTRACTOR has satisfied CONTRACTOR's responsibilities under the Contract Documents with respect to the review of the submission and will be identified clearly as to material, Supplier, pertinent data such as catalog numbers and the use for which intended.
- 6.20.3 Before submission of each Shop Drawing or sample the CONTRACTOR shall have determined and verified all quantities, dimensions, specified performance criteria, installation requirements, materials, catalog numbers and similar data with respect thereto and reviewed or coordinated each Shop Drawing or sample with other Shop Drawings and samples and with the requirements of the Work and the Contract Documents.
- 6.20.4 At the time of each submission the CONTRACTOR shall give the Contracting Officer specific written notice of each variation that the Shop Drawings or samples may have from the requirements of the Contract Documents, and, in addition, shall cause a specific notation to be made on each Shop Drawing submitted to the Contracting Officer for review and Approval of each such variation. All variations of the proposed Shop Drawing from that specified will be identified in the submission and available maintenance, repair and replacement service will be indicated. The submittal will also contain an itemized estimate of all costs that will result directly or indirectly from acceptance of such variation, including costs of redesign and claims of other Contractors affected by the resulting change, all of which shall be considered by the DEPARTMENT in evaluating the proposed variation. If the variation may result in a change of Contract Time or Price, or Contract responsibility, and is not minor in nature; the CONTRACTOR must submit a written request for Change Order with the variation to notify the DEPARTMENT of his intent. The DEPARTMENT may require the CONTRACTOR to furnish at the CONTRACTOR's expense additional data about the proposed variation. The CONTRACTOR to furnish at the CONTRACTOR's expense additional data about the proposed variation.

6.21 Shop Drawing and Sample Review:

- 6.21.1 The Contracting Officer will review with reasonable promptness Shop Drawings and samples, but the Contracting Officer's review will be only for conformance with the design concept of the Project and for compliance with the information given in the Contract Documents and shall not extend to means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of construction (except where a specific means, method, technique, sequence or procedure of construction is indicated in or required by the Contract Documents) or to safety precautions or programs incident thereto. The review of a separate item as such will not indicate acceptance of the assembly in which the item functions. The CONTRACTOR shall make corrections required by the Contracting Officer and shall return the required number of corrected copies of Shop Drawings and submit as required new samples for review. The CONTRACTOR shall direct specific attention in writing to revisions other than the corrections called for by the Contracting Officer on previous submittals.
- 6.21.2 The Contracting Officer's review of Shop Drawings or samples shall not relieve CONTRACTOR from responsibility for any variation from the requirements of the Contract Documents unless the CONTRACTOR has in writing advised the Contracting Officer of each such variation at the time of submission as required by paragraph 6.20.4. The Contracting Officer if he so determines, may give written Approval of each such variation by Change Order, except that, if the variation is minor and no Change Order has been requested a

00700-20

specific written notation thereof incorporated in or accompanying the Shop Drawing or sample review comments shall suffice as a modification. Approval by the Contracting Officer will not relieve the CONTRACTOR from responsibility for errors or omissions in the Shop Drawings or from responsibility for having complied with the provisions of paragraph 6.20.3.

- 6.21.3 The DEPARTMENT shall be responsible for all DEPARTMENT review costs resulting from the initial submission and the fors resubmittal. The CONTRACTOR shall, at the discretion of the Contracting Agency, pay all review costs incurred by the DEPARTMENT as a result of any additional re-submittals.
- 6.21.4 Where a Shop Drawing or sample is required by the Specifications, any related Work performed prior to the Contracting Officer's review and Approval of the pertinent submission will be the sole expense and responsibility of the CONTRACTOR.

6.22 Maintenance During Construction:

The CONTRACTOR shall maintain the Work during construction and until Substantial Completion, at which time the responsibility for maintenance shall be established in accordance with paragraph 13.10.

6.23 Continuing the Work:

The CONTRACTOR shall carry on the Work and adhere to the progress schedule during all disputes or disagreements with the DEPARTMENT. No Work shall be delayed or postponed pending resolution of any disputes, disagreements, or claims except as the CONTRACTOR and the Contracting Officer may otherwise agree in writing.

6.24 Consent to Assignment:

The CONTRACTOR shall obtain the prior written consent of the Contracting Officer to any proposed assignment of any interest in, or part of this Contract. The consent to any assignment or transfer shall not operate to relieve the CONTRACTOR or his Sureties of any of his or its obligations under this Contract or the Performance Bonds. Nothing herein contained shall be construed to hinder, prevent, or affect an assignment of monies due, or to become due hereunder, made for the benefit of the CONTRACTOR's creditors pursuant to law.

6.25 Use of Explosives:

- 6.25.1 When the use of explosives is necessary for the prosecution of the Work, the CONTRACTOR shall exercise the utmost care not to endanger life or property, including new Work and shall follow all Regulatory Requirements applicable to the use of explosives. The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for all damage resulting from the use of explosives.
- 6.25.2 All explosives shall be stored in a secure manner in compliance with all Regulatory Requirements, and all such storage places shall be clearly marked. Where no Regulatory Requirements apply, safe storage shall be provided not closer than 1,000 feet from any building, camping area, or place of human occupancy.
- 6.25.3 The CONTRACTOR shall notify each public utility owner having structures in proximity to the site of his intention to use explosives. Such notice shall be given sufficiently in advance to enable utility owners to take such steps as they may deem necessary to protect their property from injury. However, the CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for all damage resulting from the use of the explosives, whether or not, utility owners act to protect their property.

6.26 CONTRACTOR's Records:

6.26.1 Records of the CONTRACTOR and Subcontractors relating to personnel, payrolls, invoices of materials, and any and all other data relevant to the performance of this Contract, must be kept on a generally recognized accounting system. Such records must be available during normal work hours to the Contracting Officer for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with Regulatory Requirements and provisions of the Contract

Revised: December 2011

Documents.

- 6.26.2 Payroll records must contain the name and address of each employee, his correct classification, rate of pay, daily and weekly number of hours of work, deductions made, and actual wages paid. The CONTRACTOR and Subcontractors shall make employment records available for inspection by the Contracting Officer and representatives of the U.S. and/or State Department of Labor and will permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the Project.
- 6.26.3 Records of all communications between the DEPARTMENT and the CONTRACTOR and other parties, where such communications affected performance of this Contract, must be kept by the CONTRACTOR and maintained for a period of three years from Final Acceptance. The DEPARTMENT or its assigned representative may perform an audit of these records during normal work hours after written notice to the CONTRACTOR.
- 6.27 Load Restrictions

The CONTRACTOR shall comply with all load restrictions as set forth in the "Administrative Permit Manual", and Title 17, Chapter 25, of the Alaska Administrative Code in the hauling of materials on public roads, beyond the limits of the project, and on all public roads within the project limits that are scheduled to remain in use upon completion of the project.

Overload permits may, at the discretion of the State, be issued for travel beyond the project limits for purposes of mobilization and/or demobilization. Issuance of such a permit will not relieve the CONTRACTOR of liability for damage which may result from the moving of equipment.

The operation of equipment of such weight or so loaded as to cause damage to any type of construction will not be permitted. No overloads will be permitted on the base course or surface course under construction. No loads will be permitted on a concrete pavement, base or structure before the expiration of the curing period. The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for all damage done by his equipment.

00700-22

ARTICLE 7 - LAWS AND REGULATIONS

7.1 Laws to be Observed

The CONTRACTOR shall keep fully informed of all federal and state Regulatory Requirements and all orders and decrees of bodies or tribunals having any jurisdiction or authority, which in any manner affect those engaged or employed on the Work, or which in any way affect the conduct of the Work. The CONTRACTOR shall at all times observe and comply with all such Regulatory Requirements, orders and decrees; and shall protect and indemnify the DEPARTMENT and its representatives against claim or liability arising from or based on the violation of any such Regulatory Requirement, order, or decree whether by the CONTRACTOR, Subcontractor, or any employee of either. Except where otherwise expressly required by applicable Regulatory Requirements, the DEPARTMENT shall not be responsible for monitoring CONTRACTOR's compliance with any Regulatory Requirements.

7.2 Permits, Licenses, and Taxes

- 7.2.1 The CONTRACTOR shall procure all permits and licenses, pay all charges, fees and taxes, and give all notices necessary and incidental to the due and lawful prosecution of the Work. As a condition of performance of this Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall pay all federal, state and local taxes incurred by the CONTRACTOR, in the performance of this Contract. Proof of payment of these taxes is a condition precedent to final payment by the DEPARTMENT under this Contract.
- 7.2.2 The CONTRACTOR's certification that taxes have been paid (as contained in the *Release of Contract*) will be verified with the Department of Revenue and Department of Labor, prior to final payment.
- 7.2.3 If any federal, state or local tax is imposed, charged, or repealed after the date of bid opening and is made applicable to and paid by the CONTRACTOR on the articles or supplies herein contracted for, then the Contract shall be increased or decreased accordingly by a Change Order.

7.3 Patented Devices, Materials and Processes

If the CONTRACTOR employs any design, device, material, or process covered by letters of patent, trademark or copyright, the CONTRACTOR shall provide for such use by suitable legal agreement with the patentee or owner. The CONTRACTOR and the Surety shall indemnify and save harmless the DEPARTMENT, any affected third party, or political subdivision from any and all claims for infringement by reason of the use of any such patented design, device, material or process, or any trademark or copyright, and shall indemnify the DEPARTMENT for any costs, expenses, and damages which it may be obliged to pay by reason of any infringement, at any time during the prosecution or after the completion of the Work.

7.4 Compliance of Specifications and Drawings:

If the CONTRACTOR observes that the Specifications and Drawings supplied by the DEPARTMENT are at variance with any Regulatory Requirements, CONTRACTOR shall give the Contracting Officer prompt written notice thereof, and any necessary changes will be authorized by one of the methods indicated in paragraph 9.2. as determined appropriate by the Contracting Officer. If the CONTRACTOR performs any Work knowing or having reason to know that it is contrary to such Regulatory Requirements, and without such notice to the Contracting Officer, the CONTRACTOR shall bear all costs arising therefrom; however, it shall not be the CONTRACTOR's primary responsibility to make certain that the Specifications and Drawings supplied by the DEPARTMENT are in accordance with such Regulatory Requirements.

7.5 Accident Prevention:

The CONTRACTOR shall comply with AS 18.60.075 and all pertinent provisions of the Construction Code Occupational Safety and Health Standards issued by the Alaska Department of Labor.

Revised: December 2011

7.6 Sanitary Provisions:

The CONTRACTOR shall provide and maintain in a neat and sanitary condition such accommodations for the use of his employees and DEPARTMENT representatives as may be necessary to comply with the requirements of the State and local Boards of Health, or of other bodies or tribunals having jurisdiction.

7.7 Business Registration:

Comply with AS 08.18.011, as follows: "it is unlawful for a person to submit a bid or work as a contractor until he has been issued a certificate of registration by the Department of Commerce. A partnership or joint venture shall be considered registered if one of the general partners or ventures whose name appears in the name under which the partnership or venture does business is registered."

7.8 Professional Registration and Certification:

All craft trades, architects, engineers and land surveyors, electrical administrators, and explosive handlers employed under the Contract shall specifically comply with applicable provisions of AS 08.18, 08.48, 08.40, and 08.52. Provide copies of individual licenses within seven days following a request from the Contracting Officer.

7.9 Local Building Codes:

The CONTRACTOR shall comply with AS 35.10.025 which requires construction in accordance with applicable local building codes to include the obtaining of required permits.

7.10 Air Quality Control:

The CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable provisions of AS 46.03.04 as pertains to Air Pollution Control.

7.11 Archaeological or Paleontological Discoveries:

When the CONTRACTOR's operation encounters prehistoric artifacts, burials, remains of dwelling sites, or paleontological remains, such as shell heaps, land or sea mammal bones or tusks, the CONTRACTOR shall cease operations immediately and notify the Contracting Officer. No artifacts or specimens shall be further disturbed or removed from the ground and no further operations shall be performed at the site until so directed. Should the Contracting Officer order suspension of the CONTRACTOR's operations in order to protect an archaeological or historical finding, or order the CONTRACTOR to perform extra Work, such shall be covered by an appropriate Contract change document.

7.12 Applicable Alaska Preferences:

- 7.12.1 In determining the low bidder for State funded projects, a 5% bid preference has been given to "Alaska bidders", as required under AS 36.30.170. "Alaska bidder" means a person who:
 - (1) holds a current Alaska business license;

(2) submits a bid for goods, services, or construction under the name as appearing on the person's current Alaska business license

(3) has maintained a place of business within the state staffed by the bidder or an employee of the bidder for a period of six months immediately preceding the date of the bid;

(4) is incorporated or qualified to do business under the laws of the state, is a sole proprietorship, and the proprietor is a resident of the state or is a partnership, and all partners are residents of the state; and

- (5) if a joint venture, is composed entirely of ventures that qualify under (1) through (4), above.
- 7.12.2 In determining the low bidder for State funded projects, an "Alaska products" preference has been given as required under AS 36.30.326 36.30.332, when the bidder designates the use of Alaska products. The Bidder shall complete the Alaska Products Preference Worksheet per its instructions and submit it with the Bid

00700-24

Proposal. If the successful Bidder/CONTRACTOR proposes to use an Alaska product and does not do so, a penalty will be assessed against the successful Bidder/CONTRACTOR in an amount equal to the product preference percentage granted to the successful Bidder/CONTRACTOR plus one percent multiplied by the total declared value of the Alaska products proposed but not used.

- 7.12.3 Pursuant to AS 36.15.050 and AS 36.30.322, "agricultural/wood" products harvested in Alaska shall be used in State funded projects whenever they are priced no more than seven percent above agricultural/wood products harvested outside the state and are of a like quality as compared with agricultural/wood products harvested outside the state, when such products are not utilized, the CONTRACTOR shall document the efforts he made towards obtaining agricultural/wood products harvested in Alaska and include in this documentation a written statement that he contacted the manufacturers and suppliers identified on the Department of Commerce and Economic Development's list of suppliers of Alaska forest products concerning the availability of agricultural/wood products that fail to meet the requirements of this section shall be subject to the provisions of paragraphs 12.6 through 12.9 relating to Defective Work.
- 7.12.4 The CONTRACTOR shall maintain records, in a format acceptable to the Contracting Officer, which establish the type and extent of "agricultural/wood" and "Alaska" products utilized. All record keeping and documentation associated with the requirements 7.12.2 and 7.12.3 of this paragraph, must be provided to the DEPARTMENT upon written request or as otherwise provided within the Contract Documents.

7.13 Wages and Hours of Labor:

- 7.13.1 One certified copy of all payrolls shall be submitted weekly to the State Department of Labor and, upon request, to the Contrcting Officer to assure to assure compliance with AS 36.05.040, *Filing Schedule of Employees Wages Paid and Other Information.* The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the submission of certified copies of payrolls of all Subcontractors. The certification shall affirm that the payrolls are current and complete, that the wage rates contained therein are not less than the applicable rates referenced in these Contract Documents, and that the classification set forth for each laborer or mechanic conforms with the Work he performed. The CONTRACTOR and his Subcontractors shall attend all hearings and conferences and produce such books, papers, and documents all as requested by the Department of Labor. Should federal funds be involved, the appropriate federal agency shall also receive a copy of the CONTRACTOR's certified payrolls. Regardless of project funding source, copies of all certified payrolls supplied to the State Department of Labor by the CONTRACTOR shall be supplied also to the Project Manager upon request, including submittals made by, or on behalf of, subcontractors.
- 7.13.2 The following labor provisions shall also apply to this Contract:
 - The CONTRACTOR and his Subcontractors shall pay all employees unconditionally and not less than once a week;
 - b. wages may not be less than those stated under AS 36.05.010, regardless of the contractual relationship between the CONTRACTOR or Subcontractors and laborers, mechanics, or field surveyors;
 - c. the scale of wages to be paid shall be posted by the CONTRACTOR in a prominent and easily accessible place at the site of the Work;
 - d. the DEPARTMENT shall withhold so much of the accrued payments as is necessary to pay to laborers, mechanics, or field surveyors employed by the CONTRACTOR or Subcontractors the difference between
 - 1. the rates of wages required by the Contract to be paid laborers, mechanics, or field surveyors on the Work, and
 - 2. the rates of wages in fact received by laborers, mechanics or field surveyors.

Revised: December 2011	Revised	: Decem	ber 2011
------------------------	---------	---------	----------

7.13.3 Within three calendar days of award of a construction contract, the CONTRACTOR shall file a "Notice of Work" with the Department of Labor and shall pay all related fees. The Contracting Officer will not issue Notice to Proceed to the CONTRACTOR until such notice and fees have been paid to the State Department of Labor. Failure of the CONTRACTOR to file the Notice of Work and pay fees within this timeframe shall not constitute grounds for an extension of contract time or adjustment of contract price.

7.14 Overtime Work Hours and Compensation:

Pursuant to 40 *U.S.C. 327-330* and AS 23.10.060 -.110, the CONTRACTOR shall not require nor permit any laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he is employed on any Work under this Contract to work in excess of eight hours in any Calendar Day or in excess of forty hours in such workweek on Work subject to the provisions of the *Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act* unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one half times his basic rate of pay for all such hours worked in excess of eight hours in any Calendar Day or in excess of forty hours in such workweek whichever is the greater number of overtime hours. In the event of any violation of this provision, the CONTRACTOR shall be liable to any affected employee for any amounts due and penalties and to the DEPARTMENT for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be \$10.00 for each Calendar Day on which such employee was required or permitted to be employed on such Work in excess of eight hours or in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by this paragraph.

00700-26

ARTICLE 8 - OTHER WORK

8.1 Related Work at Site:

- 8.1.1 The DEPARTMENT reserves the right at any time to contract for and perform other or additional work on or near the Work covered by the Contract.
- 8.1.2 When separate contracts are let within the limits of the Project, the CONTRACTOR shall conduct his Work so as not to interfere with or hinder the work being performed by other contractors. The CONTRACTOR when working on the same Project with other contractors shall cooperate with such other contractors. The CONTRACTOR shall join his Work with that of the others in an acceptable manner and shall perform it in proper sequence to that of others.
- 8.1.3 If the fact that other such work is to be performed is identified or shown in the Contract Documents the CONTRACTOR shall assume all liability, financial or otherwise, in connection with this Contract and indemnify and save harmless the DEPARTMENT from any and all damages or claims that may arise because of inconvenience, delay, or loss experienced by the CONTRACTOR because of the presence and operations of other contractors.
- 8.1.4 If the fact that such other work is to be performed was not identified or shown in the Contract Documents, written notice thereof will be given to the CONTRACTOR prior to starting any such other work. If the CONTRACTOR believes that such performance will require an increase in Contract Price or Contract Time, the CONTRACTOR shall notify the Contracting Officer of such required increase within fifteen (15) calendar days following receipt of the Contracting Officer's notice. Should the Contracting Officer find such increase(s) to be justified, a Change Order will be executed.

8.2 Access, Cutting, and Patching:

The CONTRACTOR shall afford each utility owner and any other contractor who is a party to such a direct contract with the DEPARTMENT (or the DEPARTMENT, if the DEPARTMENT is performing the additional work with the DEPARTMENT's employees) proper and safe access to the site and a reasonable opportunity for the introduction and storage of materials and equipment and the execution of such work, and shall properly connect and coordinate the Work with the work of others. The CONTRACTOR shall do all cutting, fitting and patching of the Work that may be required to make its several parts come together properly and integrate with such other work, the CONTRACTOR shall not endanger any work of others by cutting, excavating or otherwise altering their work and will only cut or alter such other work with the written consent of the Contractors to the extent that there are comparable provisions for the benefit of the CONTRACTOR in said direct contracts between the DEPARTMENT and other contractors.

8.3 Defective Work by Others:

If any part of the CONTRACTOR's Work depends for proper execution or results upon the work of any such other contractor, utility owner, or the DEPARTMENT, the CONTRACTOR shall inspect and promptly report to the Contracting Officer in writing any delays, defects or deficiencies in such work that render it unavailable or unsuitable for such proper execution and results. The CONTRACTOR's failure to so report will constitute an acceptance of the other work as fit and proper for integration with CONTRACTOR's Work except for latent or nonapparent defects and deficiencies in the other work.

8.4 Coordination:

If the DEPARTMENT contracts with others for the performance of other work at the site, Contracting Officer will have authority and responsibility for coordination of the activities among the various prime contractors.

Revised: December 2011

ARTICLE 9 - CHANGES

9.1 DEPARTMENT's Right to Change:

Without invalidating the Contract and without notice to any Surety, the DEPARTMENT may, at any time or from time to time, order additions, deletions or revisions in the Work within the general scope of the Contract, including but not limited to changes:

- 9.1.1 In the Contract Documents;
- 9.1.2 In the method or manner of performance of the Work;
- 9.1.3 In State-furnished facilities, equipment, materials, services, or site;
- 9.1.4 Directing acceleration in the performance of the Work.

9.2 Authorization of Changes within the General Scope:

Additions, deletions, or revisions in the Work within the general scope of the Contract as specified in 9.1 shall be authorized by one or more of following ways:

- 9.2.1 Directive (pursuant to paragraph 9.3)
- 9.2.2 A Change Order (pursuant to paragraph 9.4)
- 9.2.3 DEPARTMENT's acceptance of Shop Drawing variations from the Contract Documents as specifically identified by the CONTRACTOR as required by paragraph 6.20.4.

9.3 Directive:

- 9.3.1 The Contracting Officer shall provide written clarification or interpretation of the Contract Documents (pursuant to paragraph 3.6).
- 9.3.2 The Contracting Officer may authorize minor variations in the Work from the requirements of the Contract Documents which do not involve an adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Time and are consistent with the overall intent of the Contract Documents.
- 9.3.3 The Contracting Officer may order the Contractor to correct Defective Work or methods which are not in conformance with the Contract Documents.
- 9.3.4 The Contracting Officer may direct the commencement or suspension of Work or emergency related Work (as provided in paragraph 6.19).
- 9.3.5 Upon the issuance of a Directive to the CONTRACTOR by the Contracting Officer, the CONTRACTOR shall proceed with the performance of the Work as prescribed by such Directive.
- 9.3.6 If the CONTRACTOR believes that the changes noted in a Directive may cause an increase in the Contract Price or an extension of Contract Time, the CONTRACTOR shall immediately provide written notice to the Contracting Officer depicting such increases before proceeding with the Directive, except in the case of an emergency. If the Contracting Officer finds the increase in Contract Price or the extension of Contract Time justified, a Change Order will be issued. If however, the Contracting Officer does not find that a Change Order is justified, the Contracting Officer may direct the CONTRACTOR to proceed with the Work. The CONTRACTOR shall cooperate with the Contracting Officer in keeping complete daily records of the cost of such Work. If a Change Order is ultimately determined to be justified, in the absence of agreed prices and unit prices, payment for such Work will be made on a "cost of the work basis" as provided in 10.4

00700-28

9.4 Change Order:

A change in Contract Time, Contract Price, or responsibility may be made for changes within the scope of the Work by Change Order. Upon receipt of an executed Change Order, the CONTRACTOR shall promptly proceed with the Work involved which will be performed under the applicable conditions of the Contract Documents except as otherwise specifically provided. Changes in Contract Price and Contract Time shall be made in accordance with Articles 10 and 11. A Change Order shall be considered executed when it is signed by the DEPARTMENT.

9.5 Shop Drawing Variations:

Variations by shop drawings shall only be eligible for consideration under 9.4 when the conditions affecting the price, time, or responsibility are identified by the CONTRACTOR in writing and a request for a Change Order is submitted as per 6.20.4.

9.6 Changes Outside the General Scope; Supplemental Agreement:

Any change which is outside the general scope of the Contract, as determined by the Contracting Officer, must be authorized by a Supplemental Agreement signed by the appropriate representatives of the DEPARTMENT and the CONTRACTOR.

9.7 Unauthorized Work:

The CONTRACTOR shall not be entitled to an increase in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Time with respect to any work performed that is not required by the Contract Documents as amended, modified and supplemented as provided in this Article 9, except in the case of an emergency as provided in paragraph 6.19 and except in the case of uncovering Work as provided in paragraph 12.4.2.

9.8 Notification of Surety:

If notice of any change affecting the general scope of the Work or the provisions of the Contract Documents (including, but not limited to, Contract Price or Contract Time) is required by the provisions of any bond to be given to a Surety, the giving of any such notice will be the CONTRACTOR's responsibility, and the amount of each applicable bond will be adjusted accordingly.

9.9 Differing Site Conditions:

- 9.9.1 The CONTRACTOR shall promptly, and before such conditions are disturbed (except in an emergency as permitted by paragraph 6.19), notify the Contracting Officer in writing of: (1) subsurface or latent physical conditions at the site differing materially from those indicated in the Contract, and which could not have been discovered by a careful examination of the site, or (2) unknown physical conditions at the site, of an unusual nature, differing materially from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in work of the character provided for in this Contract. The Contracting Officer shall promptly investigate the conditions, and if the Contracting Officer finds that such conditions do materially so differ and cause an increase or decrease in the CONTRACTOR's cost of, or time required for, performance of this Contract, an adjustment shall be made and the Contract modified in writing accordingly. An adjustment in compensation shall be computed under Article 10.
- 9.9.2 Any claim for additional compensation by the CONTRACTOR under this clause shall be made in accordance with Article 15. In the event that the Contracting Officer and the CONTRACTOR are unable to reach an agreement concerning an alleged differing site condition, the CONTRACTOR will be required to keep an accurate and detailed record which will indicate the actual "cost of the work" done under the alleged differing site condition. Failure to keep such a record shall be a bar to any recovery by reason of such alleged differing site conditions. The Contracting Officer shall be given the opportunity to supervise and check the keeping of such records.

Revised: December 2011

9.10 Interim Work Authorization:

An Interim Work Authorization may be used to establish a change within the scope of the Work; however, only a Change Order shall establish associated changes in Contract Time and Price. Work authorized by Interim Work Authorization shall be converted to a Change Order. The basis of payment shall be as stated in the Interim Work Authorization, unless it states that the basis of payment has not been established and is to be negotiated, in which case the Cost of the Work shall be documented pursuant to Article 10.4, to establish a basis for negotiating a lump sum price for the Change Order.

00700-30

ARTICLE 10 - CONTRACT PRICE; COMPUTATION AND CHANGE

10.1 Contract Price:

The Contract Price constitutes the total compensation (subject to authorized adjustments) payable to the CONTRACTOR for performing the Work. All duties, responsibilities and obligations assigned to or undertaken by the CONTRACTOR shall be at his expense without change in the Contract Price. The Contract Price may only be changed by a Change Order or Supplemental Agreement.

10.2 Claim for Price Change:

Any claim for an increase or decrease in the Contract Price shall be submitted in accordance with the terms of Article 15, and shall not be allowed unless notice requirements of this Contract have been met.

10.3 Change Order Price Determination:

The value of any Work covered by a Change Order for an increase or decrease in the Contract Price shall be determined in one of the following ways:

- 10.3.1 Where the Work involved is covered by unit prices contained in the Contract Documents, by application of unit prices to the quantities of the items involved (subject to the provisions of subparagraphs 10.9.1 through 10.9.3, inclusive).
- 10.3.2 By mutual acceptance of a lump sum (fixed price) which includes overhead and profit. The lump sum (fixed price) shall be negotiated on the basis of the estimated "cost of the work" in accordance with Articles 10.4 and 10.5. The following maximum rates of cost markup (to cover both overhead and profit of the CONTRACTOR) shall be used in the negotiation of a Lump Sum Change Order:
 - a. For costs incurred under paragraphs 10.4.1 and 10.4.2, the CONTRACTOR's fee shall be twenty percent;
 - b. For costs incurred under paragraph 10.4.3, the CONTRACTOR's fee shall be ten percent; and if a subcontract is on the basis of "cost of the work" plus a fee, the maximum allowable to CONTRACTOR on account of overhead and profit for itself and all Subcontractors and multiple tiers thereof shall be fifteen percent of the cost incurred by the subcontractor actually performing the work;
 - c. No fee shall be payable on the basis of costs itemized under paragraphs 10.4.4, 10.4.5 and 10.5;
 - d. The amount of credit to be allowed by the CONTRACTOR to the DEPARTMENT for any such change which results in a net decrease in cost will be the amount of the actual net decrease plus a deduction in CONTRACTOR's fee by an amount equal to twenty percent of the net decrease; and
 - e. When both additions and credits are involved in any one change, the adjustment in CONTRACTOR's fee shall be computed on the basis of the net change in accordance with paragraphs 10.3.2.a through 10.3.2.d, inclusive
- 10.3.3 When 10.3.1 and 10.3.2 are inapplicable, on the basis of the "cost of the work" (determined as provided in paragraphs 10.4 and 10.5) plus a CONTRACTOR's fee for overhead and profit (determined as provided in paragraph 10.6).
- 10.3.4 Before a Change Order or Supplemental Agreement is Approved, the CONTRACTOR shall submit cost or pricing data regarding the changed or extra Work. The CONTRACTOR shall certify that the data submitted is, to his best knowledge and belief, accurate, complete and current as of a mutually determined specified date and that such data will continue to be accurate and complete during the performance of the changed or extra Work.

10.4 Cost of the Work:

The term "cost of the work" means the sum of all costs necessarily incurred and paid by the CONTRACTOR in the proper performance of the Work. Except as otherwise may be agreed to in writing by the DEPARTMENT, such costs shall be in amount no higher than those prevailing in the locality of the Project, shall include only the following items and shall not include any of the costs itemized in subparagraph 10.5:

- 10.4.1 Payroll costs for employees in the direct employ of the CONTRACTOR in the performance of the Work under schedules of job classifications agreed upon by the DEPARTMENT and the CONTRACTOR. Payroll costs for employees not employed full time on the Work shall be apportioned on the basis of their time spent on the Work. Payroll costs shall be limited to, salaries and wages plus the cost of fringe benefits which shall include social security contributions, unemployment, excise and payroll taxes, workers' or workmen's compensation, health and retirement benefits, bonuses, sick leave, vacation and holiday pay applicable thereto. Such employees shall include manual workers up through the level of foreman but shall not include general foremen, superintendents, and non-manual employees. The expenses of performing Work after regular working hours, on Saturday, Sunday or legal holidays, shall be included in the above to the extent authorized by the DEPARTMENT.
- 10.4.2 Cost of all materials and equipment furnished and incorporated or consumed in the Work, including costs of transportation and storage thereof, and Suppliers' field services required in connection therewith. All cash discounts shall accrue to the CONTRACTOR unless the DEPARTMENT deposits funds with the CONTRACTOR with which to make payments, in which case the cash discounts shall accrue to the DEPARTMENT. All trade discounts, rebates and refunds and all returns from sale of surplus materials and equipment shall accrue to the DEPARTMENT, and the CONTRACTOR shall make provisions so that they may be obtained.
- 10.4.3 Payments made by the CONTRACTOR to Subcontractors for Work performed by Subcontractors. If required by the DEPARTMENT, CONTRACTOR shall obtain competitive quotes from Subcontractors or Suppliers acceptable to the CONTRACTOR and shall deliver such quotes to the DEPARTMENT who will then determine which quotes will be accepted. If a subcontract provides that the Subcontractor is to be paid on the basis of "cost of the work" plus a fee, the Subcontractor' "cost of the work" shall be determined in the same manner as the CONTRACTOR's "cost of work" as described in paragraphs 10.4 through 10.5; and the Subcontractor's fee shall be established as provided for under subparagraph 10.6.2 clause b. All subcontracts shall be subject to the other provisions of the Contract Documents insofar as applicable.
- 10.4.4 Costs of special consultants (including but not limited to engineers, architects, testing laboratories, and surveyors) employed for services necessary for the completion of the Work.
- 10.4.5 Supplemental costs including the following:
 - a. The proportion of necessary transportation, travel and subsistence expenses of the CONTRACTOR's employees incurred in discharge of duties connected with the Work.
 - b. Cost, including transportation and maintenance, of all materials, supplies, equipment, machinery, appliances, office and temporary facilities at the site and hand tools not owned by the workers, which are consumed in the performance of the Work, and cost less market value of such items used but not consumed which remain the property of the CONTRACTOR.
 - c. Rentals of all construction equipment and machinery and the parts thereof whether rented from the CONTRACTOR or others in accordance with rental agreements Approved by the DEPARTMENT and the costs of transportation, loading, unloading, installation, dismantling and removal thereof all in accordance with terms of said rental agreements. The rental of any such equipment, machinery or parts shall cease when the use thereof is no longer necessary for the Work.

For any machinery or special equipment (other than small tools) which has been authorized by the Project

00700-32

Manager, the CONTRACTOR shall receive the rental rates in the current edition and appropriate volume of the "Rental Rate Blue Book for Construction Equipment", published by Dataquest, Inc., 1290 Ridder Park Drive, San Jose, CA 95131. Hourly rental rates shall be determined as follows:

The established hourly rental rate shall be equal to the adjusted monthly rate for the basic equipment plus the adjusted monthly rate for applicable attachments, both divided by 176, and multiplied by the area adjustment factor, plus the estimated hourly operating cost.

The adjusted monthly rate is that resulting from application of the rate adjustment formula in order to eliminate replacement cost allowances in machine depreciation and contingency cost allowances.

Attachments shall not be included unless required for the time and materials work.

For equipment not listed in The Blue Book, the CONTRACTOR shall receive a rental rate as agreed upon before such work is begun. If agreement cannot be reached, the DEPARTMENT reserves the right to establish a rate based on similar equipment in the Blue Book or prevailing commercial rates in the area.

These rates shall apply for equipment used during the CONTRACTOR's regular shift of 10 hours per day. Where the equipment is used more than 10 hours per day, either on the CONTRACTOR's normal work or on time and materials, and either on single or multiple shifts, an overtime rate, computed as follows, shall apply:

The hourly overtime rate shall be equal to the adjusted monthly rate for the basic equipment plus the adjusted monthly rate for applicable attachments, both divided by 352, and multiplied by the area adjustment factor, plus the estimated hourly operating cost.

Equipment which must be rented or leased specifically for work required under this section shall be authorized in writing by the Project Manager. The CONTRACTOR shall be paid invoice price plus 15%.

When it is necessary to obtain equipment from sources beyond the project limits exclusively for time and materials, work, the actual cost of transferring the equipment to the site of the work and return will be allowed as an additional item of expense. Where the move is made by common carrier, the move-in allowance will be limited to the amount of the freight bill or invoice. If the CONTRACTOR hauls the equipment with his own forces, the allowance will be limited to the rental rate for the hauling unit plus operator wages. In the event that the equipment is transferred under its own power, the moving allowance will be limited to one-half of the normal hourly rental rate plus operator's wages. In the event that the move-out is to a different location, payment will in no instance exceed the amount of the move-in. Move-in allowance shall not be made for equipment brought to the project for time and materials work which is subsequently retained on the project and utilized for completion of contract items, camp maintenance, or related work.

Equipment ordered to be on a stand-by basis shall be paid for at the stand-by rental rate for the number of hours in the CONTRACTOR'S normal work shift, but not to exceed 8 hours per day. The stand-by rental rate shall be computed as follows:

The hourly stand-by rate shall be equal to the adjusted monthly rate for the basic equipment plus the adjusted monthly rate for applicable attachments, both divided by 352, all multiplied by the area adjustment factor.

Time will be recorded to the nearest one-quarter hour for purposes of computing compensation to the CONTRACTOR for equipment utilized under these rates.

The equipment rates as determined above shall be full compensation, including overhead and profit, for providing the required equipment and no additional compensation will be made for other costs such as, but not limited to, fuels, lubricants, replacement parts or maintenance costs. Cost of repairs, both major and minor, as well as charges for mechanic's time utilized in servicing equipment to ready it for use prior to moving to the project and similar charges will not be allowed.

Revised: December 2011

- d. Sales, consumer, use or similar taxes related to the Work, and for which the CONTRACTOR is liable, imposed by Regulatory Requirements.
- e. Deposits lost for causes other than negligence of the CONTRACTOR, any Subcontractor or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable, and royalty payments and fees for permits and licenses.
- f. Losses and damages (and related expenses), not compensated by insurance or otherwise, to the Work or otherwise sustained by the CONTRACTOR in connection with the performance and furnishing of the Work provided they have resulted from causes other than the negligence of the CONTRACTOR, any Subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable. Such losses shall include settlements made with the written consent and Approval of the DEPARTMENT. No such losses, damages and expenses shall be included in the "cost of the work" for the purpose of determining the CONTRACTOR's fee. If, however, any such loss or damage requires reconstruction and the CONTRACTOR is placed in charge thereof, the CONTRACTOR shall be paid for services a fee proportionate to that stated in paragraphs 10.6.2.a and 10.6.2.b.
- g. The cost of utilities, fuel and sanitary facilities at the site.
- h. Minor expenses such as telegrams, long distance telephone calls, telephone service at the site, expressage and similar petty cash items in connection with the Work.
- I. Cost of premiums for additional bonds and insurance required because of changes in the Work and premiums for property insurance coverage within the limits of the deductible amounts established by the DEPARTMENT in accordance with Article 5.

10.5 Excluded Costs:

The term "cost of the work" shall not include any of the following:

- 10.5.1 Payroll costs and other compensation of CONTRACTOR's officers, executives, principals (of partnership and sole proprietorships), general managers, engineers, architects, estimators, attorneys, auditors, accountants, purchasing and contracting agency, expeditors, timekeepers, clerks and other personnel employed by CONTRACTOR whether at the site or in CONTRACTOR's principal or a branch office for general administration of the Work and not specifically included in the agreed upon schedule of job classifications referred to in paragraph 10.4.1 or specifically covered by paragraph 10.4.4 all of which are to be considered administrative costs covered by the CONTRACTOR's fee.
- 10.5.2 Expenses of CONTRACTOR's principal and branch offices other than CONTRACTOR's office at the site.
- 10.5.3 Any part of CONTRACTOR's capital expenses including interest on CONTRACTOR's capital employed for the Work and charges against CONTRACTOR for delinquent payments.
- 10.5.4 Cost of premiums for all bonds and for all insurance whether or not CONTRACTOR is required by the Contract Documents to purchase and maintain the same (except for the cost of premiums covered by subparagraph 10.4.5.i above).
- 10.5.5 Costs due to the negligence of CONTRACTOR, any Subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable, including but not limited to, the correction of Defective Work, disposal of materials or equipment wrongly supplied and making good any damage to property.
- 10.5.6 Other overhead or general expense costs of any kind and the costs of any item not specifically and expressly included in paragraph 10.4.

00700-34

10.6 CONTRACTOR's Fee:

The CONTRACTOR's fee allowed to CONTRACTOR for overhead and profit shall be determined as follows.

- 10.6.1 A mutually acceptable fixed fee; or if none can be agreed upon.
- 10.6.2 A fee based on the following percentages of the various portions of the "cost of the work":
 - a. For costs incurred under paragraphs 10.4.1 and 10.4.2, the CONTRACTOR's fee shall be fifteen percent;
 - b. For costs incurred under paragraph 10.4.3, the CONTRACTOR's fee shall be ten percent; and if a subcontract is on the basis of "cost of the work" plus a fee, the maximum allowable to CONTRACTOR on account of overhead and profit for itself and all Subcontractors and multiple tiers thereof shall be fifteen percent of the cost incurred by the subcontractor actually performing the work;
 - c. No fee shall be payable on the basis of costs itemized under paragraphs 10.4.4, 10.4.5 and 10.5;
 - d. The amount of credit to be allowed by the CONTRACTOR to the DEPARTMENT for any such change which results in a net decrease in cost will be the amount of the actual net decrease plus a deduction in CONTRACTOR's fee by an amount equal to fifteen percent of the net decrease; and
 - e. When both additions and credits are involved in any one change, the adjustment in CONTRACTOR's fee shall be computed on the basis of the net change in accordance with paragraphs 10.6.2.a through 10.6.2.d, inclusive.

10.7 Cost Breakdown:

Whenever the cost of any Work is to be determined pursuant to paragraphs 10.4 and 10.5, the CONTRACTOR will submit in a form acceptable to the DEPARTMENT an itemized cost breakdown together with supporting data.

10.8 Cash Allowances:

It is understood that CONTRACTOR has included in the Contract Price all allowances so named in the Contract Documents and shall cause the Work so covered to be done by such Subcontractors or Suppliers and for such sums within the limit of the allowances as may be acceptable to the Contracting Officer. CONTRACTOR agrees that:

- 10.8.1 The allowances include the cost to CONTRACTOR (less any applicable trade discounts) of materials and equipment required by the allowances to be delivered at the site, and all applicable taxes; and
- 10.8.2 CONTRACTOR's cost for unloading and handling on the site, labor, installation costs, overhead, profit and other expenses contemplated for the allowances have been included in the Contract Price and not in the allowances. No demand for additional payment on account of any thereof will be valid.

Prior to final payment, an appropriate Change Order will be issued to reflect actual amounts due the CONTRACTOR on account of Work covered by allowances, and the Contract Price shall be correspondingly adjusted.

10.9 Unit Price Work:

10.9.1 Where the Contract Documents provide that all or part of the Work is to be Unit Price Work, initially the Contract Price will be deemed to include for all Unit Price Work an amount equal to the sum of the established unit prices for each separately identified item of Unit Price Work times the estimated quantity of each item as indicated in the Contract. The estimated quantities of items of Unit Price Work are not guaranteed and are solely for the purpose of comparison of bids and determining an initial Contract Price. Determinations of the actual quantities and classifications of Unit Price Work performed by the CONTRACTOR will be made by the

Revised: December 2011

DEPARTMENT in accordance with paragraph 10.10.

- 10.9.2 Each unit price will be deemed to include an amount considered by the CONTRACTOR to be adequate to cover the CONTRACTOR's overhead and profit for each separately identified item. If the "Basis of Payment" clause in the Contract Documents relating to any unit price in the bid schedule requires that the said unit price cover and be considered compensation for certain work or material essential to the item, this same work or material will not also be measured or paid for under any other pay item which may appear elsewhere in the Contract Documents.
- 10.9.3 Payment to the CONTRACTOR shall be made only for the actual quantities of Work performed and accepted or materials furnished, in conformance with the Contract Documents. When the accepted quantities of Work or materials vary from the quantities stated in the bid schedule, or change documents, the CONTRACTOR shall accept as payment in full, payment at the stated unit prices for the accepted quantities of Work and materials furnished, completed and accepted; except as provided below:
 - a. When the quantity of Work to be done or material to be furnished under any item, for which the total cost of the item exceeds 10% of the total Contract Price, is increased by more than 25 percent of the quantity stated in the bid schedule, or change documents, either party to the Contract, upon demand, shall be entitled to an equitable unit price adjustment on that portion of the Work above 125 percent of the quantity stated in the bid schedule.
 - b. When the quantity of Work to be done or material to be furnished under any major item, for which the total cost of the item exceeds 10% of the total Contract Price, is decreased by more than 25 percent of the quantity stated in the bid schedule, or change documents either party to the Contract, upon demand, shall be entitled to an equitable price adjustment for the quantity of Work performed or material furnished, limited to a total payment of not more than 75 percent of the amount originally bid for the item.

10.10 Determinations for Unit Prices:

The Contracting Officer will determine the actual quantities and classifications of Unit Price Work performed by the CONTRACTOR. The Contracting Officer will review with the CONTRACTOR preliminary determinations on such matters before finalizing the costs and quantities on the Schedule of Values. The Contracting Officer's acknowledgment thereof will be final and binding on the CONTRACTOR, unless, within 10 days after the date of any such decisions, the CONTRACTOR delivers to the Contracting Officer written notice of intention to appeal from such a decision.

00700-36

ARTICLE 11 - CONTRACT TIME; COMPUTATION AND CHANGE

11.1 Commencement of Contract Time; Notice to Proceed:

The Contract Time will commence to run on the day indicated in the Notice to Proceed.

11.2 Starting the Work:

No Work on Contract items shall be performed before the effective date of the Notice to Proceed. The CONTRACTOR shall notify the Contracting Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the time actual construction operations will begin. The CONTRACTOR may request a limited Notice to Proceed after Award has been made, to permit him to order long lead materials which could cause delays in Project completion. However, granting is within the sole discretion of the Contracting Officer, and refusal or failure to grant a limited Notice to Proceed shall not be a basis for claiming for delay, extension of time, or alteration of price.

11.3 Computation of Contract Time:

11.3.1 When the Contract Time is specified on a Calendar Day basis, all Work under the Contract shall be completed within the number of Calendar Days specified. The count of Contract Time begins on the day following receipt of the Notice to Proceed by the CONTRACTOR, if no starting day is stipulated therein.

Calendar Days shall continue to be counted against Contract Time until and including the date of Substantial Completion of the Work.

- 11.3.2 When the Contract completion time is specified as a fixed calendar date, it shall be the date of Substantial Completion.
- 11.3.3 The Contract Time shall be as stated on form 25D-9, Proposal.

11.4 Time Change:

The Contract Time may only be changed by a Change Order or Supplemental Agreement.

11.5 Extension Due to Delays:

The right of the CONTRACTOR to proceed shall not be terminated nor the CONTRACTOR charged with liquidated or actual damages because of delays to the completion of the Work due to unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the CONTRACTOR, including, but not restricted to the following: acts of God or of the public enemy, acts of the DEPARTMENT in its contractural capacity, acts of another contractor in the performance of a contract with the DEPARTMENT, floods, fires, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes, unusually severe weather and delays of Subcontractors or Suppliers due to such causes. Any delay in receipt of materials on the site, caused by other than one of the specifically mentioned occurences above, does not of itself justify a time extension, provided that the CONTRACTOR shall within twenty four (24) hours from the beginning of any such delay (unless the Contracting Officer in writing of the cause of delay. The Contracting Officer shall ascertain the facts and the extent of the delay and extend the time for completing the Work when the findings of fact justify such an extension.

11.6 Essence of Contract:

All time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract.

11.7 Reasonable Completion Time:

It is expressly understood and agreed by and between the CONTRACTOR and the DEPARTMENT that the date of

Revised: December 2011

beginning and the time for Substantial Completion of the Work described herein are reasonable times for the completion of the Work.

11.8 Delay Damages:

Whether or not the CONTRACTOR's right to proceed with the Work is terminated, he and his Sureties shall be liable for damages resulting from his refusal or failure to complete the Work within the specified time.

Liquidated and actual damages for delay shall be paid by the CONTRACTOR or his Surety to the DEPARTMENT in the amount as specified in the Supplementary Conditions for each Calendar Day the completion of the Work or any part thereof is delayed beyond the time required by the Contract, or any extension thereof. If a listing of incidents resulting from a delay and expected to give rise to actual or liquidated damages is not established by th Contract Documents, then the CONTRACTOR and his Surety shall be liable to the DEPARTMENT for any actual damages occasioned by such delay. The CONTRACTOR acknowledges that the liquidated damages established herein are not a penalty but rather constitute an estimate of damages that the DEPARTMENT will sustain by reason of delayed completion. These liquidated and actual damages are intended as compensation for losses anticipated to arise, and include those items enumerated in the Supplementary Conditions.

These damages will continue to run both before and after termination in the event of default termination. These liquidated damages do not cover excess costs of completion or DEPARTMENT costs, fees, and charges related to reprocurement. If a default termination occurs, the CONTRACTOR or his Surety shall pay <u>in addition to</u> these damages, all excess costs and expenses related to completion as provided by Article 14.2.5.

00700-38

ARTICLE 12 - QUALITY ASSURANCE

12.1 Warranty and Guaranty:

The CONTRACTOR warrants and guarantees to the DEPARTMENT that all Work will be in accordance with the Contract Documents and will not be Defective. Prompt notice of all defects shall be given to the CONTRACTOR. All Defective Work, whether or not in place, may be rejected, corrected or accepted as provided for in this article.

12.2 Access to Work:

The DEPARTMENT and the DEPARTMENT's representatives, testing agencies and governmental agencies with jurisdiction interests will have access to the Work at reasonable times for their observation, inspecting and testing. The CONTRACTOR shall provide proper and safe conditions for such access.

12.3 Tests and Inspections:

- 12.3.1 The CONTRACTOR shall give the Contracting Officer timely notice of readiness of the Work for all required inspections, tests or Approvals.
- 12.3.2 If Regulatory Requirements of any public body having jurisdiction require any Work (or part thereof) to specifically be inspected, tested or approved, the CONTRACTOR shall assume full responsibility therefor, pay all costs in connection therewith and furnish the Contracting Officer the required certificates of inspection, testing or approval. The CONTRACTOR shall also be responsible for and shall pay all costs in connection with any inspection or testing required in connection with DEPARTMENT's acceptance of a Supplier of materials or equipment proposed to be incorporated in the Work, or of materials or equipment submitted for Approval prior to the CONTRACTOR's purchase thereof for incorporation in the Work. The cost of all inspections, tests and approvals in addition to the above which are required by the Contract Documents shall be paid by the CONTRACTOR. The DEPARTMENT may perform additional tests and inspections which it deems necessary to insure quality control. All such failed tests or inspections shall be at the CONTRACTOR's expense.
- 12.3.4 If any Work (including the work of others) that is to be inspected, tested or Approved is covered without written concurrence of the Contracting Officer, it must, if requested by the Contracting Officer, be uncovered for observation. Such uncovering shall be at the CONTRACTOR's expense unless the CONTRACTOR has given the Contracting Officer timely notice of CONTRACTOR's intention to cover the same and the Contracting Officer has not acted with reasonable promptness in response to such notice.
- 12.3.5 Neither observations nor inspections, tests or Approvals by the DEPARTMENT or others shall relieve the CONTRACTOR from the CONTRACTOR's obligations to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

12.4 Uncovering Work:

12.4.1 If any Work is covered contrary to the written request of the Contracting Officer, it must, if requested by the Contracting Officer, be uncovered for the Contracting Officer's observation and replaced at the CONTRACTOR's expense.

Revised: December 2011

12.4.2 If the Contracting Officer considers it necessary or advisable that covered Work be observed inspected or tested, the CONTRACTOR, at the Contracting Officer's request, shall uncover, expose or otherwise make available for observation, inspection or testing as the Contracting Officer may require, that portion of the Work in question, furnishing all necessary labor, material and equipment. If it is found that such Work is Defective, the CONTRACTOR shall bear all direct, indirect and consequential costs of such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection and testing and of satisfactory reconstruction, (including but not limited to fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys and other professionals) and the DEPARTMENT shall be entitled to an appropriate decrease in the Contract Price. If, however, such Work is not found to be Defective, the CONTRACTOR shall be allowed an increase in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Time, or both, directly attributable to such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection, testing and reconstruction.

12.5 DEPARTMENT May Stop the Work:

If the Work is Defective, or the CONTRACTOR fails to supply suitable materials or equipment, or fails to furnish or perform the Work in such a way that the completed Work will conform to the Contract Documents, the Contracting Officer may order the CONTRACTOR to stop the Work, or any portion thereof, until the cause for such order has been eliminated; however, this right of the Contracting Officer to stop the Work shall not give rise to any duty on the part of the Contracting Officer to exercise this right for the benefit of the CONTRACTOR or any other party.

12.6 Correction or Removal of Defective Work:

If required by the Contracting Officer, the CONTRACTOR shall promptly, as directed, either correct all Defective Work, whether or not fabricated, installed or completed, or, if the Work has been rejected by the Contracting Officer, remove it from the site and replace it with Work which conforms to the requirements of the Contract Documents. The CONTRACTOR shall bear all direct, indirect and consequential costs of such correction or removal (including but not limited to fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys and other professionals) made necessary thereby.

12.7 One Year Correction Period:

If within one year after the date of Substantial Completion of the relevant portion of the work or such longer period of time as may be prescribed by Regulatory Requirements or by the terms of any applicable special guarantee required by the Contract Documents or by any specific provision of the Contract Documents, any Work is found to be Defective, the CONTRACTOR shall promptly, without cost to the DEPARTMENT and in accordance with the Contracting Officer's written instructions, either correct such Defective Work, or, if it has been rejected by the Contracting Officer, remove it from the site and replace it with conforming Work. If the CONTRACTOR does not promptly comply with the terms of such instructions, or in an emergency where delay would cause serious risk of loss or damage, the DEPARTMENT may have the Defective Work corrected or the rejected Work removed and replaced, and all direct, indirect and consequential costs of such removal and replacement (including but not limited to fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys and other professionals) will be paid by the CONTRACTOR. In special circumstances where a particular item of equipment is placed in continuous service for the benefit of the DEPARTMENT before Substantial Completion of all the Work, the correction period for that item may begin on an earlier date if so provided in the Specifications or by Change Order. Provisions of this paragraph are not intended to shorten the statute of limitations for bringing an action.

12.8 Acceptance of Defective Work:

Instead of requiring correction or removal and replacement of Defective Work, the Contracting Officer may accept Defective Work, the CONTRACTOR shall bear all direct, indirect and consequential costs attributable to the Contracting Officer's evaluation of and determination to accept such Defective Work (costs to include but not be limited to fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys and other professionals). If any such acceptance occurs prior to final payment, a Change Order will be issued incorporating the necessary revisions in the Contract Documents with respect to the Work; and the DEPARTMENT shall be entitled to an appropriate decrease in the Contract Price. If the DEPARTMENT has already made final payment to the CONTRACTOR, an appropriate amount shall be paid by the CONTRACTOR or his Surety to the DEPARTMENT.

00700-40

12.9 DEPARTMENT May Correct Defective Work:

If the CONTRACTOR fails within a reasonable time after written notice from the Contracting Officer to proceed to correct Defective Work or to remove and replace rejected Work as required by the Contracting Officer in accordance with paragraph 12.6, or if the CONTRACTOR fails to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, or if the CONTRACTOR fails to comply with any other provision of the Contract Documents, the DEPARTMENT may, after 7 days' written notice to the CONTRACTOR, correct and remedy any such deficiency. In exercising the rights and remedies under this paragraph the DEPARTMENT shall proceed expeditiously. To the extent necessary to complete corrective and remedial action, the Contracting Officer may exclude the CONTRACTOR from all or part of the site, take possession of all or part of the Work, and suspend the CONTRACTOR's services related thereto, take possession of the CONTRACTOR's tools, appliances, construction equipment and machinery at the site and incorporate in the Work all materials and equipment stored at the site or approved remote storage sites or for which the DEPARTMENT has paid the CONTRACTOR but which are stored elsewhere. The CONTRACTOR shall allow the Contracting Officer and his authorized representatives such access to the site as may be necessary to enable the Contracting Officer to exercise the rights and remedies under this paragraph. All direct, indirect and consequential costs of the DEPARTMENT in exercising such rights and remedies will be charged against the CONTRACTOR, and a Change Order will be issued incorporating the necessary revisions in the Contract Documents with respect to the Work; and the DEPARTMENT shall be entitled to an appropriate decrease in the Contract Price. Such direct, indirect and consequential costs will include but not be limited to fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys and other professionals, all court and arbitration costs and all costs of repair and replacement of work of others destroyed or damaged by correction, removal or replacement of the CONTRACTOR's Defective Work. The CONTRACTOR shall not be allowed an extension of time because of any delay in performance of the work attributable to the exercise, by the Contracting Officer, of the DEPARTMENT's rights and remedies hereunder.

Revised: December 2011

ARTICLE 13 - PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR AND COMPLETION

13.1 Schedule of Values:

The Schedule of Values established as provided in paragraph 6.6 will serve as the basis for progress payments and will be incorporated into a form of Application for Payment acceptable to the Contracting Officer. Progress payments on account of Unit Price Work will be based on the number of units completed.

13.2 Preliminary Payments:

Upon approval of the Schedule of Values the CONTRACTOR may be paid for direct costs substantiated by paid invoices and other prerequisite documents required by the General Requirements. Direct costs shall include the cost of bonds, insurance, approved materials stored on the site or at approved remote storage sites, deposits required by a Supplier prior to fabricating materials, and other approved direct mobilization costs substantiated as indicated above. These payments shall be included as a part of the total Contract Price as stated in the Contract.

13.3 Application for Progress Payment:

The CONTRACTOR shall submit to the Contracting Officer for review an Application for Payment filled out and signed by the CONTRACTOR covering the Work completed as of the date of the Application for Payment and accompanied by such supporting documentation as is required by the Contract Documents. Progress payments will be made as the Work progresses on a monthly basis.

13.4 Review of Applications for Progress Payment:

Contracting Officer will either indicate in writing a recommendation of payment or return the Application for Payment to the CONTRACTOR indicating in writing the Contracting Officer's reasons for refusing to recommend payment. In the latter case, the CONTRACTOR may make the necessary corrections and resubmit the Application for Payment.

13.5 Stored Materials and Equipment:

If payment is requested on the basis of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work but delivered and suitably stored at the site or at another location agreed to in writing, the Application for Payment shall also be accompanied by a bill of sale, paid invoice or other documentation warranting that the DEPARTMENT has received the materials and equipment free and clear of all charges, security interests and encumbrances and evidence that the materials and equipment are covered by appropriate property insurance and other arrangements to protect the DEPARTMENT's interest therein, all of which will be satisfactory to the Contracting Officer. No payment will be made for perishable materials that could be rendered useless because of long storage periods. No progress payment will be made for living plant materials until planted.

13.6 CONTRACTOR's Warranty of Title:

The CONTRACTOR warrants and guarantees that title to all Work, materials and equipment covered by any Application for Payment, whether incorporated in the Project or not, will pass to the DEPARTMENT no later than the time of payment free and clear of any claims, liens, security interests and further obligations.

13.7 Withholding of Payments:

The DEPARTMENT may withhold or refuse payment for any of the reasons listed below provided it gives written notice of its intent to withhold and of the basis for withholding:

13.7.1 The Work is Defective, or completed Work has been damaged requiring correction or replacement, or has been installed without Approval of Shop Drawings, or by an unapproved Subcontractor, or for unsuitable storage of materials and equipment.

00700-42

- 13.7.2 The Contract Price has been reduced by Change Order,
- 13.7.3 The DEPARTMENT has been required to correct Defective Work or complete Work in accordance with paragraph 12.9.
- 13.7.4 The DEPARTMENT's actual knowledge of the occurrence of any of the events enumerated in paragraphs l4.2.1.a through l4.2.1.k inclusive.
- 13.7.5 Claims have been made against the DEPARTMENT or against the funds held by the DEPARTMENT on account of the CONTRACTOR's actions or inactions in performing this Contract, or there are other items entitling the DEPARTMENT to a set off.
- 13.7.6 Subsequently discovered evidence or the results of subsequent inspections or test, nullify any previous payments for reasons stated in subparagraphs 13.7.1 through 13.7.5.
- 13.7.7 The CONTRACTOR has failed to fulfill or is in violation of any of his obligations under any provision of this Contract.

13.8 Retainage:

At any time the DEPARTMENT finds that satisfactory progress is not being made it may in addition to the amounts withheld under 13.7 retain a maximum amount equal to 10% of the total amount earned on all subsequent progress payments. This retainage may be released at such time as the Contracting Officer finds that satisfactory progress is being made.

13.9 Request for Release of Funds:

If the CONTRACTOR believes the basis for withholding is invalid or no longer exists, immediate written notice of the facts and Contract provisions on which the CONTRACTOR relies, shall be given to the DEPARTMENT, together with a request for release of funds and adequate documentary evidence proving that the problem has been cured. In the case of withholding which has occurred at the request of the Department of Labor, the CONTRACTOR shall provide a letter from the Department of Labor stating that withholding is no longer requested. Following such a submittal by the CONTRACTOR, the DEPARTMENT shall have a reasonable time to investigate and verify the facts and seek additional assurances before determining whether release of withheld payments is justified.

13.10 Substantial Completion:

When the CONTRACTOR considers the Work ready for its intended use the CONTRACTOR shall notify the Contracting Officer in writing that the Work or a portion of Work which has been specifically identified in the Contract Documents is substantially complete (except for items specifically listed by the CONTRACTOR as incomplete) and request that the DEPARTMENT issue a certificate of Substantial Completion. Within a reasonable time thereafter, the Contracting Officer, the CONTRACTOR and appropriate Consultant(s) shall make an inspection of the Work to determine the status of completion. If the Contracting Officer does not consider the Work substantially complete, the Contracting Officer will notify the CONTRACTOR in writing giving the reasons therefor. If the Contracting Officer considers the Work substantially complete, the Contracting Officer substantially complete, the Contracting Officer substantially complete, the Contracting Officer will notify the CONTRACTOR in writing giving the reasons therefor. If the Contracting Officer considers the Work substantially complete, the Contracting Officer will notify the CONTRACTOR a certificate of Substantial Completion with tentative list of items to be completed or corrected. At the time of delivery of the certificate of Substantial Completion the Contracting Officer will deliver to the CONTRACTOR a written division of responsibilities pending Final Completion with respect to security, operation, safety, maintenance, heat, utilities, insurance and warranties which shall be consistent with the terms of the Contract Documents.

The DEPARTMENT shall be responsible for all DEPARTMENT costs resulting from the initial inspection and the first re-inspection, the CONTRACTOR shall pay all costs incurred by the DEPARTMENT resulting from re-

Revised: December 2011

inspections, thereafter.

13.11 Access Following Substantial Completion:

The DEPARTMENT shall have the right to exclude the CONTRACTOR from the Work after the date of Substantial Completion, but the DEPARTMENT shall allow CONTRACTOR reasonable access to complete or correct items on the tentative list.

13.12 Final Inspection:

Upon written notice from the CONTRACTOR that the entire Work or an agreed portion thereof is complete, the Contracting Officer will make a final inspection with the CONTRACTOR and appropriate Consultant(s) and will notify the CONTRACTOR in writing of all particulars in which this inspection reveals that the Work is incomplete or Defective. The CONTRACTOR shall immediately take such measures as are necessary to remedy such deficiencies. The CONTRACTOR shall pay for all costs incurred by the DEPARTMENT resulting from re-inspections.

13.13 Final Completion and Application for Payment:

After the CONTRACTOR has completed all such corrections to the satisfaction of the Contracting Officer and delivered all schedules, guarantees, bonds, certificates of payment to all laborers, Subcontractors and Suppliers, and other documents - all as required by the Contract Documents; and after the Contracting Officer has indicated in writing that the Work has met the requirements for Final Completion, and subject to the provisions of paragraph 13.18, the CONTRACTOR may make application for final payment following the procedure for progress payments. The final Application for Payment shall be accompanied by all remaining certificates, warranties, guarantees, releases, affidavits, and other documentation required by the Contract Documents.

13.14 Final Payment:

- 13.14.1 If on the basis of the Contracting Officer's observation of the Work during construction and final inspection, and the Contracting Officer's review of the final Application for Payment and accompanying documentation all as required by the Contract Documents; and the Contracting Officer is satisfied that the Work has been completed and the CONTRACTOR's other obligations under the Contract Documents have been fulfilled, the DEPARTMENT will process final Application for Payment. Otherwise, the Contracting Officer will return the Application for Payment to the CONTRACTOR, indicating in writing the reasons for refusing to process final payment, in which case the CONTRACTOR shall make the necessary corrections and resubmit the final Application for Payment.
- 13.14.2 If, through no fault of the CONTRACTOR, Final Completion of the Work is significantly delayed, the Contracting Officer shall, upon receipt of the CONTRACTOR's final Application for Payment, and without terminating the Contract, make payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed and accepted. If the remaining balance to be held by the DEPARTMENT for Work not fully completed or corrected is less than the retainage provided for in paragraph 13.9, and if bonds have been furnished as required in paragraph 5.1, the written consent of the Surety to the payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed and accepted and accepted shall be submitted by the CONTRACTOR to the DEPARTMENT with the application for such payment. Such payment shall be made under the terms and conditions governing final payment, except that it shall not constitute a waiver of claims.

13.15 Final Acceptance:

Following certification of payment of payroll and revenue taxes, and final payment to the CONTRACTOR, the DEPARTMENT will issue a letter of Final Acceptance, releasing the CONTRACTOR from further obligations under the Contract, except as provided in paragraph 13.17.

00700-44

13.16 CONTRACTOR's Continuing Obligation:

The CONTRACTOR's obligation to perform and complete the Work and pay all laborers, Subcontractors, and materialmen in accordance with the Contract Documents shall be absolute. Neither any progress or final payment by the DEPARTMENT, nor the issuance of a certificate of Substantial Completion, nor any use or occupancy of the Work or any part thereof by the DEPARTMENT or Using Agency, nor any act of acceptance by the DEPARTMENT nor any failure to do so, nor any review and Approval of a Shop Drawing or sample submission, nor any correction of Defective Work by the DEPARTMENT will constitute an acceptance of Work not in accordance with the Contract Documents or a release of the CONTRACTOR's obligation to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

When it is anticipated that restarting, testing, adjusting, or balancing of systems will be required following Final Acceptance and said requirements are noted in Section(s) 01650, such Work shall constitute a continuing obligation under the Contract.

13.17 Waiver of Claims by CONTRACTOR:

The making and acceptance of final payment will constitute a waiver of all claims by the CONTRACTOR against the DEPARTMENT other than those previously made in writing and still unsettled.

13.18 No Waiver of Legal Rights:

The DEPARTMENT shall not be precluded or be estopped by any payment, measurement, estimate, or certificate made either before or after the completion and acceptance of the Work and payment therefor, from showing the true amount and character of the Work performed and materials furnished by the CONTRACTOR, nor from showing that any payment, measurement, estimate or certificate is untrue or is incorrectly made, or that the Work or materials are Defective. The DEPARTMENT shall not be precluded or estopped, notwithstanding any such measurement, estimate, or certificate and payment in accordance therewith, from recovering from the CONTRACTOR or his Sureties, or both, such damages as it may sustain by reason of his failure to comply with requirements of the Contract Documents. Neither the acceptance by the DEPARTMENT, or any representative of the DEPARTMENT, nor any payment for or acceptance of the whole or any part of the Work, nor any extension of the Contract Time, nor any possession taken by the DEPARTMENT, shall operate as a waiver of any portion of the Contract or of any power herein reserved, or of any right to damages. A waiver by the DEPARTMENT of any breach of the Contract shall not be held to be a waiver of any other subsequent breach.

Revised: December 2011

ARTICLE 14 - SUSPENSION OF WORK, DEFAULT AND TERMINATION

14.1 DEPARTMENT May Suspend Work:

- 14.1.1 The DEPARTMENT may, at any time, suspend the Work or any portion thereof by notice in writing to the CONTRACTOR. If the Work is suspended without cause the CONTRACTOR shall be allowed an increase in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Time, or both, directly attributable to any suspension if the CONTRACTOR makes an Approved claim therefor as provided in Article 15. However, no adjustment shall be made under this clause for any suspension, delay, or interruption to the extent that suspension is due to the fault or negligence of the CONTRACTOR, or that suspension is necessary for Contract compliance, or that performance would have been so suspended, delayed, or interrupted by any other cause, including the fault or negligence of the CONTRACTOR.
- 14.1.2 In case of suspension of Work, the CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for preventing damage to or loss of any of the Work already performed and of all materials whether stored on or off the site or Approved remote storage sites.

14.2 Default of Contract:

- 14.2.1 The Contracting Officer may give the CONTRACTOR and its surety a written Notice to Cure Default if the CONTRACTOR:
 - a. fails to begin work in the time specified,
 - b. fails to use sufficient resources to assure prompt completion of the work,
 - c. performs the work unsuitably or neglects or refuses to remove and replace rejected materials or work,
 - d. stops work,
 - e. fails to resume stopped work after receiving notice to do so,
 - f. becomes insolvent (except that if the CONTRACTOR declares bankruptcy, termination will be under Title 11 US Code 362 and/or 365. The CONTRACTOR'S bankruptcy does not relieve the surety of any obligations to assume the Contract and complete the work in a timely manner.
 - g. Allows any final judgment to stand against him unsatisfied for period of 60 days, or
 - h. Makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors without the consent of the Contracting Officer, or
 - i. Disregards Regulatory Requirements of any public body having jurisdiction, or
 - j. Otherwise violates in any substantial way any provisions of the Contract Documents, or
 - k. fails to comply with Contract minimum wage payments or civil rights requirements, or
 - 1. is a party to fraud, deception, misrepresentation, or
 - m. for any cause whatsoever, fails to carry on the Work in an acceptable manner.
- 14.2.2 The Notice to Cure Default will detail the conditions determined to be in default, the time within which to cure the default and may, in the Contracting Officer's discretion, specify the actions necessary to cure the default. Failure to cure the delay, neglect or default within the time specified in the Contracting Officer's written notice to cure authorizes the DEPARTMENT to terminate the contract. The Contracting Officer may allow more time to cure than originally stated in the Notice to Cure Default if he deems it to be in the best interests of the DEPARTMENT. The DEPARTMENT will provide the CONTRACTOR or its surety with a written Notice of Default Termination that details the default and the failure to cure it.

14.2.3 If the CONTRACTOR or its Surety, within the time specified in the above notice of default, shall not proceed in accordance therewith, then the DEPARTMENT may, upon written notification from the Contracting Officer of the fact of such delay, neglect or default and the CONTRACTOR's failure to comply with such notice, have full power and authority without violating the Contract, to take the prosecution of the Work out of the hands of the CONTRACTOR. The DEPARTMENT may terminate the services of the CONTRACTOR, exclude the CONTRACTOR from the site and take possession of the Work and of all the CONTRACTOR's tools, appliances, construction equipment and machinery at the site and use the same to the full extent they could be

00700-46

used by the CONTRACTOR (without liability to the CONTRACTOR for trespass or conversion), incorporate in the Work all materials and equipment stored at the site or for which the DEPARTMENT has paid the CONTRACTOR but which are stored elsewhere, and finish the Work as the DEPARTMENT may deem expedient. The DEPARTMENT may enter into an agreement for the completion of said Contract according to the terms and provisions thereof, or use such other methods that in the opinion of the Contracting Officer are required for the completion of said Contract in an acceptable manner.

- 14.2.4 The Contracting Officer may, by written notice to the CONTRACTOR and its Surety or its representative, transfer the employment of the Work from the CONTRACTOR to the Surety, or if the CONTRACTOR abandons the Work undertaken under the Contract, the Contracting Officer may, at its option with written notice to the Surety and without any written notice to the CONTRACTOR, transfer the employment for said Work directly to the Surety. The Surety shall submit its plan for completion of the Work, including any contracts or agreements with third parties for such completion, to the DEPARTMENT for approval prior to beginning completion of the Work. Approval of such contracts shall be in accordance with all applicable requirements and procedures for approval of subcontracts as stated in the Contract Documents.
- 14.2.5 After the notice of termination is issued, the DEPARTMENT may take over the work and complete it by contract or otherwise and may take possession of and use materials, appliances, equipment or plant on the work site necessary for completing the work.
- 14.2.6 Rather than taking over the work itself, the DEPARTMENT may transfer the obligation to perform the work from the CONTRACTOR to its surety. The surety must submit its plan for completion of the work, including any contracts or agreements with third parties for completion, to the DEPARTMENT for approval prior to beginning work. The surety must follow the Contract requirements for approval of subcontracts, except that the limitation on percent of work subcontracted will not apply.
- 14.2.7 On receipt of the transfer notice, the surety must take possession of all materials, tools, and appliances at the work site, employ an appropriate work force, and complete the Contract work, as specified. The Contract specifications and requirements shall remain in effect. However the DEPARTMENT will make subsequent Contract payments directly to the Surety for work performed under the terms of the Contract. The CONTRACTOR shall forfeit any right to claim for the same work or any part thereof. The CONTRACTOR shall not be entitled to receive any further balance of the amount to be paid under the Contract.
- 14.2.8 Upon receipt of the notice terminating the services of the CONTRACTOR, the Surety shall enter upon the premises and take possession of all materials, tools, and appliances thereon for the purpose of completing the Work included under the Contract and employ by contract or otherwise any person or persons to finish the Work and provide the materials therefore, without termination of the continuing full force and effect of this Contract. In case of such transfer of employment to the Surety, the Surety shall be paid in its own name on estimates covering Work subsequently performed under the terms of the Contract and according to the terms thereof without any right of the CONTRACTOR to make any claim for the same or any part thereof.
- 14.2.9 If the Contract is terminated for default, the CONTRACTOR and the Surety shall be jointly and severally liable for damages for delay as provided by paragraph 11.8, and for the excess cost of completion, and all costs and expenses incurred by the DEPARTMENT in completing the Work or arranging for completion of the Work, including but not limited to costs of assessing the Work to be done, costs associated with advertising, soliciting or negotiating for bids or proposals for completion, and other reprocurement costs. Following termination the CONTRACTOR shall not be entitled to receive any further balance of the amount to be paid under the Contract until the Work is fully finished and accepted, at which time if the unpaid balance exceeds the amount due the DEPARTMENT and any amounts due to persons for whose benefit the DEPARTMENT has withheld funds, such excess shall be paid by the DEPARTMENT to the CONTRACTOR. If the damages, costs, and expenses due the DEPARTMENT exceed the unpaid balance, the CONTRACTOR and its Surety shall pay the difference.
- 14.2.10 If, after notice of termination of the CONTRACTOR's right to proceed under the provisions of this clause, it is determined for any reason that the CONTRACTOR was not in default under the provisions of this clause, or that the delay was excusable under the provisions of this clause, or that termination was wrongful, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be determined in accordance with the clause providing for convenience termination.

Revised:	Decem	ber	2011
10011500.	Decem		-011

14.3 Rights or Remedies:

Where the CONTRACTOR's services have been so terminated by the DEPARTMENT, the termination will not affect any rights or remedies of the DEPARTMENT against the CONTRACTOR then existing or which may thereafter accrue. Any retention or payment of moneys due the CONTRACTOR by the DEPARTMENT will not release the CONTRACTOR from liability.

14.4 Convenience Termination:

- 14.4.1 The performance of the Work may be terminated by the DEPARTMENT in accordance with this section in whole or in part, whenever, for any reason the Contracting Officer shall determine that such termination is in the best interest of the DEPARTMENT. Any such termination shall be effected by delivery to the CONTRACTOR of a Notice of Termination, specifying termination is for the convenience of the DEPARTMENT the extent to which performance of Work is terminated, and the date upon which such termination becomes effective.
- 14.4.2 Immediately upon receipt of a Notice of Termination and except as otherwise directed by the Contracting Officer, the CONTRACTOR shall:
 - a. Stop Work on the date and to the extent specified in the Notice of Termination;
 - b. Place no further orders or subcontracts for materials, services, or facilities except as may be necessary for completion of such portion of the Work as is not terminated;
 - c. Terminate all orders and subcontracts to the extent that they relate to the performance of Work terminated by the Notice of Termination;
 - d. With the written Approval of the Contracting Officer, to the extent he may require, settle all outstanding liabilities and all claims arising out of such termination of orders and subcontracts, the cost of which would be reimbursable, in whole, or in part, in accordance with the provisions of the Contract;
 - e. Submit to the Contracting Officer a list, certified as to quantity and quality, of any or all items of termination inventory exclusive of items the disposition of which had been directed or authorized by the Contracting Officer;
 - f. Transfer to the Contracting Officer the completed or partially completed record drawings, Shop Drawings, information, and other property which, if the Contract had been completed, would be required to be furnished to the DEPARTMENT;
 - g. Take such action as may be necessary, or as the Contracting Officer may direct, for the protection and preservation of the property related to the Contract which is in the possession of the CONTRACTOR and in which the DEPARTMENT has or may acquire any interest.

The CONTRACTOR shall proceed immediately with the performance of the above obligations.

- 14.4.3 When the DEPARTMENT orders termination of the Work effective on a certain date, all Work in place as of that date will be paid for in accordance with Article 13 of the Contract. Materials required for completion and on hand but not incorporated in the Work will be paid for at invoice cost plus 15% with materials becoming the property of the DEPARTMENT or the CONTRACTOR may retain title to the materials and be paid an agreed upon lump sum. Materials on order shall be cancelled, and the DEPARTMENT shall pay reasonable factory cancellation charges with the option of taking delivery of the materials in lieu of payment of cancellation charges. The CONTRACTOR shall be paid 10% of the cost, freight not included, of materials cancelled, and direct expenses only for CONTRACTOR can establish them. The extra costs due to cancellation of bonds and insurance and that part of job start-up and phase-out costs not amortized by the amount of Work accomplished shall be paid by the DEPARTMENT. Charges for loss of profit or consequential damages shall not be recoverable except as provided above.
 - a. The following costs are not payable under a termination settlement agreement or Contracting Officer's determination of the termination claim:
 - 1. Loss of anticipated profits or consequential or compensatory damages

00700-48

- 2. Unabsorbed home office overhead (also termed "General & Administrative Expense") related to ongoing business operations
- 3. Bidding and project investigative costs
- 4. Direct costs of repairing equipment to render it operable for use on the terminated work
- 14.4.4 The termination claim shall be submitted promptly, but in no event later than 90 days from the effective date of termination, unless extensions in writing are granted by the Contracting Officer upon written request of the CONTRACTOR made within the 90-day period. Upon failure of the CONTRACTOR to submit his termination claim within the time allowed, the Contracting Officer may determine, on the basis of information available to him, the amount, if any, due to the CONTRACTOR by reason of the termination and shall thereupon pay to the CONTRACTOR the amount so determined.
- 14.4.5 The CONTRACTOR and the Contracting Officer may agree upon whole or any part of the amount or amounts to be paid to the CONTRACTOR by reason of the total or partial termination of Work pursuant to this section. The Contract shall be amended accordingly, and the CONTRACTOR shall be paid the agreed amount.
- 14.4.6 In the event of the failure of the CONTRACTOR and the Contracting Officer to agree in whole or in part, as provided heretofore, as to the amounts with respect to costs to be paid to the CONTRACTOR in connection with the termination of the Work the Contracting Officer shall determine, on the basis of information available to him, the amount, if any, due to the CONTRACTOR by reason of the termination and shall pay to the CONTRACTOR the amount determined as follows:
 - a. All costs and expenses reimbursable in accordance with the Contract not previously paid to the CONTRACTOR for the performance of the Work prior to the effective date of the Notice of Termination;
 - b. So far as not included under "a" above, the cost of settling and paying claims arising out of the termination of the Work under subcontracts or orders which are properly chargeable to the terminated portions of the Contract;
 - c. So far as practicable, claims by the CONTRACTOR for idled or stand-by equipment shall be made as follows: Equipment claims will be reimbursed as follows:
 - 1. Contractor-owned equipment usage, based on the CONTRACTOR'S ownership and operating costs for each piece of equipment as determined from the CONTRACTOR'S accounting records. Under no circumstance, may the CONTRACTOR base equipment claims on published rental rates.
 - 2. Idle or stand-by time for Contractor-owned equipment, based on the CONTRACTOR'S internal ownership and depreciation costs. Idle or stand-by equipment time is limited to the actual period of time equipment is idle or on stand-by as a direct result of the termination, not to exceed 30 days. Operating expenses will not be included for payment of idle or stand-by equipment time.
 - 3. Rented equipment, based on reasonable, actual rental costs. Equipment leased under "capital leases" as defined in Financial Accounting Standard No. 13 will be considered Contractor-owned equipment. Equipment leased from an affiliate, division, subsidiary or other organization under common control with the CONTRACTOR will be considered Contractor-owned equipment, unless the lessor has an established record of leasing to unaffiliated lessees at competitive rates consistent with the rates the CONTRACTOR has agreed to pay and no more than forty percent of the lessor's leasing business, measured in dollars, is with organizations affiliated with the lessor.
- 14.4.7 The CONTRACTOR shall have the right of appeal under the DEPARTMENTs claim procedures, as defined in Article 15, for any determination made by the Contracting Officer, except if the CONTRACTOR has failed to submit his claim within the time provided and has failed to request extension of such time, CONTRACTOR shall have no such right of appeal. In arriving at the amount due the CONTRACTOR under this section, there shall be deducted:
 - a. All previous payments made to the CONTRACTOR for the performance of Work under the Contract prior to termination;
 - b. Any claim for which the DEPARTMENT may have against the CONTRACTOR;
 - c. The agreed price for, or the proceeds of sale of, any materials, supplies, or other things acquired by the

Revised: December 2011

CONTRACTOR or sold pursuant to the provisions of this section and not otherwise recovered by or credited to the DEPARTMENT; and,

- d. All progress payments made to the CONTRACTOR under the provisions of this section.
- 14.4.8 Where the Work has been terminated by the DEPARTMENT said termination shall not affect or terminate any of the rights of the DEPARTMENT against the CONTRACTOR or his Surety then existing or which may thereafter accrue because of such default. Any retention or payment of monies by the DEPARTMENT due to the CONTRACTOR under the terms of the Contract shall not release the CONTRACTOR or its Surety from liability.
- 14.4.9 The CONTRACTOR's termination claim may not include claims that pre dated the notice for termination for convenience. Those claims shall be prosecuted by the CONTRACTOR under Article 15.
- 14.4.10 The CONTRACTOR'S termination claim may not exceed the total dollar value of the contract as awarded plus agreed upon change orders less the amounts that have been paid for work completed.
 - a. Unless otherwise provided for in the Contract Documents, or by applicable statute, the CONTRACTOR, from the effective date of termination and for a period of three years after final settlement under this Contract, shall preserve and make available to the DEPARTMENT at all reasonable times at the office of the CONTRACTOR, all its books, records, documents, and other evidence bearing on the cost and expenses of the CONTRACTOR under his Contract and relating to the Work terminated hereunder.
 - b. <u>Definitions</u>. In this Subsection 108-1.09, the term "cost" and the term "expense" mean a monetary amount in U.S. Dollars actually incurred by the CONTRACTOR, actually reflected in its contemporaneously maintained accounting or other financial records and supported by original source documentation.
 - c. <u>Cost Principles</u>. The DEPARTMENT may use the federal cost principles at 48 CFR §§ 31.201-1 to 31.205-52 (or succeeding cost principles for fixed price contracts) as guidelines in determining allowable costs under this Subsection to the extent they are applicable to construction contracts and consistent with the specifications of this Contract. The provisions of this contract control where they are more restrictive than, or inconsistent with, these federal cost principles."

00700-50
ARTICLE 15 - CLAIMS FOR ADJUSTMENT AND DISPUTES

15.1 Notification

- 15.1.1 The CONTRACTOR shall notify the DEPARTMENT in writing as soon as the CONTRACTOR becomes aware of any act or occurrence which may form the basis of a claim for additional compensation or an extension of Contract Time or of any dispute regarding a question of fact or interpretation of the Contract. The DEPARTMENT has no obligation to investigate any fact or occurrence that might form the basis of a claim or to provide any additional compensation or extension of Contract Time unless the CONTRACTOR has notified the DEPARTMENT in writing in a timely manner of all facts the CONTRACTOR believes form the basis for the claim.
- 15.1.2 If the CONTRACTOR believes that he is entitled to an extension of Contract Time, then the CONTRACTOR must state the contract section on which he basis his extension request, provide the DEPARTMENT with sufficient information to demonstrate that the CONTRACTOR has suffered excusable delay, and show the specific amount of time to which the CONTRACTOR is entitled. The DEPARTMENT will not grant an extension of Contract Time if the CONTRACTOR does not timely submit revised schedules under Section 01310.
- 15.1.3 If the matter is not resolved by agreement within 7 days, the CONTRACTOR shall submit an Intent to Claim, in writing, to the DEPARTMENT within the next 14 days.
- 15.1.4 If the CONTRACTOR believes additional compensation or time is warranted, then he must immediately begin keeping complete, accurate, and specific daily records concerning every detail of the potential claim including actual costs incurred. The CONTRACTOR shall provide the DEPARTMENT access to any such records and furnish the DEPARTMENT copies, if requested. Equipment costs must be based on the CONTRACTOR's internal rates for ownership, depreciation, and operating expenses and not on published rental rates. In computing damages, or costs claimed for a change order, or for any other claim against the DEPARTMENT for additional time, compensation or both, the CONTRACTOR must prove actual damages based on internal costs for equipment, labor or efficiencies. Total cost, modified total cost or jury verdict forms of presentation of damage claims are not permissible to show damages. Labor inefficiencies must be shown to actually have occurred and can be proven solely based on job records. Theoretical studies are not a permissible means of showing labor inefficiencies. Home office overhead will not be allowed as a component of any claim against the DEPARTMENT.
- 15.1.5 If the claim or dispute is not resolved by the DEPARTMENT, then the CONTRACTOR shall submit a written Claim to the Contracting Officer within 90 days after the CONTRACTOR becomes aware of the basis of the claim or should have known the basis of the claim, whichever is earlier. The Contracting Officer will issue written acknowledge of the receipt of the Claim.
- 15.1.6 The CONTRACTOR waives any right to claim if the DEPARTMENT was not notified properly or afforded the opportunity to inspect conditions or monitor actual costs or if the Claim is not filed on the date required.

15.2 Presenting the Claim

- 15.2.1 The Claim must include all of the following:
 - a. The act, event, or condition the claim is based on
 - b. The Contract provisions which apply to the claim and provide relief
 - c. The item or items of Contract work affected and how they are affected
 - d. The specific relief requested, including Contract Time if applicable, and the basis upon which it was calculated
 - e. A statement certifying that the claim is made in good faith, that the supporting cost and pricing data are accurate and complete to the best of your knowledge and belief, and that the amount requested accurately reflects the Contract adjustment which the CONTRACTOR believes is due.

Revised:	December 2011
Reviseu.	December 2011

15.3 Claim Validity, Additional Information, and DEPARTMENT's Action

- 15.3.1 The Claim, in order to be valid, must not only show that the CONTRACTOR suffered damages or delay but that it was caused by the act, event, or condition complained of and that the Contract provides entitlement to relief for such act, event, or condition.
- 15.3.2 The DEPARTMENT can make written request to the CONTRACTOR at any time for additional information relative to the Claim. The CONTRACTOR shall provide the DEPARTMENT the additional information within 30 days of receipt of such a request. Failure to furnish the additional information may be regarded as a waiver of the Claim.

15.4 Contracting Officer's Decision

The CONTRACTOR will be furnished the Contracting Officer's Decision within 90 days, unless the Contracting Officer requests additional information or gives the CONTRACTOR notice that the time for issuing a decision is being extended for a specified period under AS 36.30.620. The Contracting Officer's decision is final and conclusive unless, within 14 days of receipt of the decision, the CONTRACTOR delivers a Notice of Appeal to the Appeals Officer. Procedures for appeals are covered under AS 36.30.625 and AS 36.30.630.

15.5 Fraud and Misrepresentation in Making Claims

Criminal and Civil penalties authorized under AS 36.30.687 (including, but not limited to, forfeiture of all claimed amounts) may be imposed on the CONTRACTOR if the CONTRACTOR makes or uses a misrepresentation in support of a claim or defraud or attempt to defraud the DEPARTMENT at any stage of prosecuting a claim under this Contract.

00700-52

Revised: December 2011

INDEX TO GENERAL CONDITIONS

Α	Article or Paragraph Number
Acceptance of Insurance	5.4
Access to the Work	
Actual Damages	
Addenda-definition of	Article 1
Advertisement - definition of	Article 1
Alaska Agricultural/Wood Products	
Alaska Bidder - definition of	
Alaska Preferences	
Alaska Products	
Application for Payment-definition of	Article 1
Application for Payment, Final	
Application for Progress Payment	
Application for ProgressPayment-review of	
Approved or Approval -definition of	Article 1
Authorized Minor Variations in Work	
Availability of Lands	4.1
Award-defined	Article 1

B

Before Starting Construction	
Bid Bonds-definition of	Article 1
Bidder-definition of	Article 1
Bonds and insurances-in general	Article 5
Bonds, Delivery of	
Bonds, Performance and Other	
Revised: December 2011	00700-53

Builder's Risk Insurance ("ALL RISK"	")
--------------------------------------	----

С

Cash Allowances		
Change Order-definition of		Article 1
Change Orders-to be executed		9.4
Changes in the Work		9.1
Claims, Waiver of-on Final Payment		
Clarifications and Interpretations		2.2.1.d; 3.6
Cleaning		6.5
Completion, Final		
Completion, Substantial		
Conferences, Preconstruction – definition of		Article 1
Conflict, Error, Discrepancy-CONTRACTOR to R	Report	
Construction Machinery, Equipment, etc		6.4
Consultant-definition of		Article 1
Continuing the Work		6.23
Contract-definition of		Article 1
Contract Documents-amending and Supplementing	g	9.1; 9.4; 9.6
Contract Documents- definition of		Article 1
Contract Documents-Intent		
Contract Documents-Reuse of		
Contract Price, Change of		9.4; 9.7; 10.1
Contract Price-definition of		Article 1
Contracting Officer's Authorities and Limitations		2.1
Contracting Officer- definition of		Article 1
Contracting Officer's Evaluations		
Contract Time, Change of		9.4; 9.6; 11.4
Contract Time, Commencement of		
	00700-54	Revised: December 2011

Contract Time-definition of	.Article 1
CONTRACTOR-definition of	.Article 1
CONTRACTOR May Stop Work or Terminate	.3.5.1; 4.6; 14.4.1
CONTRACTOR'S Continuing Obligation	.13.16
CONTRACTOR'S Duty to Report Discrepancy in Documents	.3.5
CONTRACTOR'S Fee-Cost Plus	. 10.3.3
CONTRACTOR'S Liability Insurance	. 5.4.2
CONTRACTOR'S Records	.6.26
CONTRACTOR'S Responsibilities-in general	.Article 6
CONTRACTOR'S Warranty to Title	.13.6
Contractors-other	.8.1; 8.2
Contractual Liability Insurance	.5.4.2.b
Coordination	.6.13.5; 8.4
Copies of Contract Documents	.3.2
Correction or Removal of Defective Work	. 12.6
Correction Period, One Year	.12.7
Correction, Removal or Acceptance of Defective Work-in general	. 12.6; 12.8
Cost and Pricing Data	. 10.3.4
Cost-net decrease	. 10.6.2.d; 10.6.2.e
Cost of Work	. 10.4
Costs, Supplemental	. 10.4.5
D	
Day, Calendar-definition of	.Article 1
Defective-definition of	.Article 1
Defective Work, Acceptance of	. 12.8
Defective Work, Correction or Removal of	. 12.6; 12.9
Defective Work-in general	. 12.6; 12.8
Revised: December 2011 00700-55	

Defective Work, Rejecting		
Definitions		Article 1
Delivery of Bonds		5.1
DEPARTMENT-definition of		Article 1
DEPARTMENT May Correct Defective Worl	k	
DEPARTMENT May Stop Work		
DEPARTMENT May Suspend Work		14.1
DEPARTMENT'S Liability Insurance		
DEPARTMENT'S Responsibilities-in general		2.1
DEPARTMENT'S Separate Representative at	site	2.1.1; 2.1.3
Determination for Unit Prices		
Differing Site Conditions		9.9
Directive-definition of		Article 1
Directive-to be executed		9.3
Directive-required performance		
Disputes, Decisions by Contracting Officer		
Documents, Copies of Contract		
Documents, Record		6.16
Documents, Reuse		
Drawings-definition of		Article 1
Ε		
Easements		4.1
Emergencies		6.19
Equipment, Labor, Materials and		6.3; 6.4; 6.5
Equivalent Materials and Equipment		6.9
Explorations of physical conditions		4.3
Explosives		6.25
	00700-56	Revised: December 2

\mathbf{F}

Fee, CONTRACTOR'S-Costs Plus	10.3.3
Final Acceptance	13.15
Final Acceptance- definition of	Article 1
Final Completion and Application for Payment	13.13
Final Completion- definition of	Article 1
Final Inspection	13.12
Final Payment	13.14
Final Payment, Processing of	13.14

G

General Requirements-definition of	Article 1
Giving Notice	3.5.1; 4.4.4; 4.6; 5.4.2; 6.17.3; 6.19; 6.20.4; 7.4; 7.11; 8.1.4; 8.3; 9.3.6; 9.8; 9.9; 10.10; 11.1; 11.2; 11.5; 12.1; 12.3.1; 12.3.4; 12.9; 13.10; 13.12; 14.1.1; 14.2.1 thru 14.2.4; 14.4.1; 14.4.3; 15.1
Guarantee of Work-by CONTRACTOR	12.1
Ι	
Indemni fication	7.1; 7.3; 5.5
Inspection, Final	13.12
Inspection, Tests and	12.3
Install-definition of	Article 1

Insurance, Completed Operations	5.4.2.b
Insurance, CONTRACTOR'S Liability	5.4.2.b
Insurance, Contractual Liability	5.4.2.b

Revised: December 2011

Insurance, Owner's Liability	5.4.1
Insurance, Property Damage	5.4.2.b
Insurance, Waiver of Subrogation Rights	5.4.2.a.1, 5.4.3
Intent of Contract Documents	3.4
Interpretations and Clarifications	2.2.1.3; 3.6
Investigations of physical consitions	4.3
Invitation for Bids- definition of	Article 1

L

Labor, Materials and Equipment	6.3; 6.4; 6.5
Laws and Regulations- general	Article 7
Liability Insurance- CONTRACTOR'S	5.4.1
Liability Insurance-Owner's	5.4.1
Liens, Resulting Judgements	14.2.1.g
Liquidated Damages	11.8

\mathbf{M}

Materials and equipment- furnished by CONTRACTOR
Materials and equipment- incorporated in Work
Materials or equipment- equivalent
Multi-prime contracts

Ν

Notice, Giving of (See Giving Notice)	
Notice of Final Acceptance	13.15
Notice of Intent to Award-definition of	Article 1
Notice to Proceed-definition of	Article 1
Notice to Proceed-giving of	11.1; 11.2; 11.3

0

00700-58

Revised: December 2011

"Or-Equal" Item	.6.9
Other contractors	Article 8
Other work	.8.1.1
Overtime Work-authorization of	.7.14; 10.4.1
Owner-definition of (See DEPARTMENT)	Article 1

P

Partial Utilization	13.10
Partial Utilization (See Substantial Conpletion)- definition of	Article 1
Partial Utilization- Property Indurance	13.10
Patent Fees and Royalties	7.3
Payment, Recommendation of	13.4
Payments to CONTRACTOR-in general	Article 13
Payments of CONTRACTOR- withholding	13.7
Performance and other Bonds	5.2
Permits	7.2
Physical Conditions-in general	Article 4
Physical Conditions- Contracting officer's review	9.9
Physical Conditions- existing structures	4.3
Physical Conditions- explorations and reports	4.3
Physical Conditions-possible document change	9.9
Physical Conditions-price and time adjustments	9.9
Physical Conditions-report of differing	4.6; 9.9
Physical Conditions- Underground Utilities	4.4
Preconstruction Conference – definition of	Article 1
Premises, Use of	6.14
Price, Change of Contract	10.1
Price, Contract-definition of	Article 1
Progress Payment, Application for	13.3
Revised: December 2011 00700-59	

Progress Payment-retainage	13.8
Progress schedule	6.6; 6.7; 6.8
Project-definition of	Article 1
Project Manager-definition of	Article 1
Project Representation- provision for	2.1.1
Project, Starting the	11.2
Property Insurance	5.4.3
Property Insurance- Partial Utilization	13.10
Protection, Safety and	6.17

R

Recommendation of Progress Payment		13.4
Record Documents		6.16
Reference Points		4.7
Regulations, Laws and		Article 7
Rejecting Defective Work		12.4.2; 12.5
Related Work at Site		3.4.1
Removal or Correction of Defective Work		12.6; 12.9
Responsibilities, CONTRACTOR'S-in general		Article 6
Retainage		13.8
Reuse of Documents		3.7
Review of Shop Drawings and Samples		6.21
Right of Ways		4.1
Royalties, Patent Fees and		7.3
S		
Safety and Protection		6.17
Samples		6.20; 6.21
00	700-60	Revised: December 2011

Schedule of Progress	
Schedule of Shop Drawing submissions	6.6; 6.7; 6.8; 6.20.1
Schedule of Values- definition	Article1
Schedule of Values	6.6; 6.7; 6.8
Schedules, Finalizing	6.7
Shop Drawings and Samples	6.20; 6.21
Shop Drawings-definition of	Article 1
Shop Drawings, use to approve substitutions	6.9.4; 6.20.4
Site, Visits to-by Contracting Officer	2.4
Specifications-definition of	Article 1
Starting Construction, Before	6.6.1
Starting the Project	11.2
Stopping Work-by CONTRACTOR	3.5.1; 4.6; 14.4.2
Stopping Work-by Owner	12.5; 14.1
Subcontractor-definition of	Article 1
Subcontractors-in general	6.13
Subcontracts-required provisions	6.13.1; 6.13.3
Substantial Completion- certification of	13.10
Substantial Completion- definition of	Article 1
Substitute or "Or-Equal" Items	6.9
Subsurface Conditions	Article 4, 9.9
Supplemental Agreement- definition of	Article 1
Supplemental Agreement- general use	9.6
Supplemental costs	10.4.5
Supplementary Conditions- definition of	Article 1
Supplementary Conditions- principal references to	3.5; 4.3; 5.4; 11.8
Supplier-definition of	Article 1
Supplier-principal references	2.1.3; 3.7; 6.9; 6.12;
Revised: December 2011 00700-61	

6.13.2; 6.20; 6.21

Surety-consent to payment	13.14.2
Surety-Consultant has no duty to	2.1.3
Surety-notice to	9.8; 14.2
Surety-qualification of	5.2; 5.3
Surety Replacement	5.3
Suspending Work, by Owner	14.1
Suspension of Work and Termination-in general	Article 14
Superintendent-CONTRACTOR's	6.2
Supervision and Superintendence	6.1; 6.2

T

Taxes-Payment by CONTRACTOR	7.2
Termination-by Owner	14.4.1
Termination, Suspension of Work and-in general	Article 14
Tests and Inspections	12.3
Time, Change of Contract	9.4; 11.4
Time, Computations of	11.3
Time, Contract-definition of	Article 1

U

Uncovering Work		
Underground Utilities- general		
Underground Utilities-not shown or indicated		
Underground Utilities- protection of		4.4.2.d
Underground Utilities- shown or indicated		
Unit Price Work-definition of		Article 1
Unit Price Work-general		
Unit Prices		
	00700-62	Revised: December 2011

Unit Prices, Determination for	.10.10
Use of Premises	.6.14
Utility Owner's Notification	.4.4.2.c; 4.4.3; 4.4.4; 4.5; 4.6
Utility, Damaged	.4.5

V

Values, Schedule of	6.6; 6.7; 6.8
Variations in Work- Authorized	9.2
Visits to Site-by Contracting Officer	2.4

\mathbf{W}

Waiver of Claims-on Final Payment1	3.17
Waiver of Rights by insured parties1	3.18
Warranty and Guarantee-by CONTRACTOR1	2.1
Warranty of Title, CONTRACTOR'S1	3.6
Work, Access to	.2; 13.11; 12.2
Work-by others-general	Article 8
Work Continuing During Disputes	.23
Work, Cost of	0.4
Work-definition of	Article 1
Work, Neglected by CONTRACTOR	4.2.1.c
Work, Stopping by CONTRACTOR	.5.1; 4.6
Work, Stopping by Owner	2.5; 14.1

Revised: December 2011

18.2. General Conditions Modified for CM/GC Contracts

STATE OF ALASKA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND PUBLIC FACILITIES DOCUMENT 00700 GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOF BUILDINGS Modified for CM/GC Contract				
			ARTICLE	1 - DEFINITIONS.
			ARTICLE	2 - AUTHORITIES AND LIMITATIONS
	 2.1 Authorities and Limitations 2.2 Evaluations by Contracting Officer 2.3 Means and Methods 2.4 Visits to Site 			
ARTICLE	3 - CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: INTENT, AMENDING, REUSE			
	 3.1 Incomplete Contract Documents 3.2 Copies of Contract Documents 3.3 Scope of Work 3.4 Intent of Contract Documents 3.5 Discrepancy in Contract Documents 3.6 Clarifications and Interpretations 3.7 Reuse of Documents 			
ARTICLE	4 - LANDS AND PHYSICAL CONDITIONS			
	 4.1 Availability of Lands 4.2 Visit to Site 4.3 Explorations and Reports 4.4 Utilities 4.5 Damaged Utilities 4.6 Utilities Not Shown or Indicated 4.7 Survey Control 			
ARTICLE	5 - BONDS AND INSURANCE			
	 5.1 Delivery of Bonds 5.2 Bonds 5.3 Replacement of Bond and Surety 5.4 Insurance Requirements 5.5 Indemnification 			
ARTICLE	6 - CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES			
	6.1Supervision of Work6.2Superintendence by CONTRACTOR6.3Character of Workers6.4CONTRACTOR to Furnish6.5Materials and Equipment6.6Anticipated Schedules6.7Finalizing Schedules6.8Adjusting Schedules6.9Substitutes or "Or-Equal" Items6.10Substitute Means and Methods6.11Evaluation of Substitution6.12Dividing the Work6.13Subcontractors6.14Use of Premises			
Revised: De	cember 1987 (C)(4/96) 00700-1			

- 6.15 Structural Loading
- 6.16 Record Documents
- 6.17 Safety and Protection
- 6.18 Safety Representative
- 6.19 Emergencies
- 6.20 Shop Drawings and Samples
- 6.21 Shop Drawing and Sample Review
- 6.22 Maintenance During Construction
- 6.23 Continuing the Work
- 6.24 Consent to Assignment
- 6.25 Use of Explosives
- 6.26 CONTRACTOR's Records

ARTICLE 7 - LAWS AND REGULATIONS

- 7.1 Laws to be Observed
- 7.2 Permits, Licenses, and Taxes
- 7.3 Patented Devices, Materials and Processes
- 7.4 Compliance of Specifications and Drawings
- 7.5 Accident Prevention
- 7.6 Sanitary Provisions
- 7.7 Business Registration
- 7.8 Professional Registration and Certification
- 7.9 Local Building Codes
- 7.10 Air Quality Control
- 7.11 Archaeological or Paleontological Discoveries
- 7.12 Applicable Alaska Preferences
- 7.13 Preferential Employment
- 7.14 Wages and Hours of Labor
- 7.15 Overtime Work Hours and Compensation
- 7.16 Covenant Against Contingent Fees
- 7.17 Officials Not to Benefit
- 7.18 Personal Liability of Public Officials
- 7.19 Federally Assisted Projects
- 7.20 Gratuity and Conflict of Interest

ARTICLE 8- OTHER WORK

- 8.1 Related Work at Site
- 8.2 Access, Cutting, and Patching
- 8.3 Defective Work by Others
- 8.4 Coordination

ARTICLE 9- CHANGES

- 9.1 DEPARTMENT's Right to Change
- 9.2 Authorization of Changes within the General Scope
- 9.3 Directive
- 9.4 Change Order
- 9.5 Shop Drawing Variations
- 9.6 Changes Outside the General Scope; Supplemental Agreement
- 9.7 Unauthorized Work
- 9.8 Notification of Surety
- 9.9 Differing Site Conditions

ARTICLE 10- CONTRACT PRICE; COMPUTATION AND CHANGE

- 10.1 Contract Price: Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP)
- 10.2 Claim for Price Change
- 10.3 Change Order Price Determination
- 10.4 Lump Sum Price Change Method
- 10.5 Cost of the Work Change Method
- 10.6 CONTRACTOR's Fee

00700-2

- 10.7 Cost Breakdown
- 10.8 Cash Allowances
- 10.9 Unit Price Work
- 10.10 Determinations for Unit Prices
- 10.11 Disadvantaged and Women Business Enterprises (DBE and WBE) Program

ARTICLE 11- CONTRACT TIME, COMPUTATION AND CHANGE

- 11.1 Commencement of Contract Time; Notice to Proceed
- 11.2 Starting the Work
- 11.3 Computation of Contract Time
- 11.4 Time Change
- 11.5 Extension Due to Delays
- 11.6 Essence of Contract
- 11.7 Reasonable Completion Time
- 11.8 Delay Damages

ARTICLE 12 - QUALITY ASSURANCE

- 12.1 Warranty and Guaranty
- 12.2 Access to Work
- 12.3 Tests and Inspections
- 12.4 Uncovering Work
- 12.5 DEPARTMENT May Stop the Work
- 12.6 Correction or Removal of Defective Work
- 12.7 One Year Correction Period
- 12.8 Acceptance of Defective Work
- 12.9 DEPARTMENT may Correct Defective Work

ARTICLE 13- PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR AND COMPLETION

- 13.0 Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) Allowable Costs, Maximum Allowable Construction
- Cost (MACC), Fees, and Allowances
- 13.1 Schedule of Values
- 13.2 Preliminary Payments
- 13.3 Application for Progress Payment
- 13.4 Review of Applications for Progress Payments
- 13.5 Stored Materials and Equipment
- 13.6 CONTRACTOR's Warranty of Title
- 13.7 Withholding of Payments
- 13.8 Retainage
- 13.9 Request for Release of funds
- 13.10 Substantial Completion
- 13.11 Access Following Substantial Completion
- 13.12 Final Inspection
- 13.13 Final Completion and Application for Payment
- 13.14 Final Payment
- 13.15 Final Acceptance
- 13.16 CONTRACTOR's Continuing Obligation
- 13.17 Waiver of Claims by CONTRACTOR
- 13.18 No Waiver of Legal Rights

ARTICLE 14- SUSPENSION OF WORK, DEFAULT AND TERMINATION

- 14.1 DEPARTMENT May Suspend Work
- 14.2 Default of Contract
- 14.3 Rights or Remedies
- 14.4 Convenience Termination

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

ARTICLE 15- CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

- 15.1 Notification
- 15.2 Presenting Claim
- 15.3 Claim Validity, Additional Information & Project Manager's Action
- 15.4 Contracting Officer's Decision

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

"The State of Alaska, General Conditions of the Construction Contract for Buildings" is based on the "Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract" as published by the National Society of Professional Engineers (document number 1910-8, 1983 edition) on behalf of the Engineers Joint Construction Documents Committee. Portions of the NSPE General Conditions are reprinted herein by the express permission of NSPE. Modifications to the NSPE text are made to provide for State laws, regulations, and established procedures.

The granting of permission by NSPE to allow the State of Alaska to preprint portions of the NSPE document 1910-8, 1983 edition does not constitute approval of the State of Alaska General Conditions of the Construction Contract for Buildings.

00700-4

ARTICLE 1 - DEFINITIONS

Wherever used in the Contract Documents the following terms, or pronouns in place of them, the intent and meaning, unless a different intent or meaning is clearly indicated, shall be interpreted as set forth below.

The titles and headings of the articles, sections, and subsections herein are intended for convenience of reference and will not govern their interpretation. Whenever used in the Specifications or other Contract Documents the following terms have the meaning indicated which are applicable to both the singular and plural thereof. Working titles that have a masculine gender are intended to refer to persons of either sex.

Terms not defined below shall have their ordinary accepted meanings within the context that they are used. Words that have a well-known technical or trade meaning when used to describe work, materials or equipment shall be interpreted in accordance with such meaning.

Acceptance Tests - Quality Control tests taken by the CONTRACTOR, the results for which are used by the DEPARTMENT to determine whether the work complies with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

Access Road - The right-of-way, the roadway, and all improvements constructed thereon connecting the project site to a public thorough fare.

Addenda - All clarifications, corrections, or changes issued graphically or in writing by the DEPARTMENT after the Advertisement but prior to the opening of Proposals.

Advertisement - The public announcement, as required by law, inviting bids for Work to be performed or materials to be furnished. Advertisement of subcontractor bids shall be in accordance with the CM/GC Subcontractor Solicitation and Award Procedures approved by the DEPARTMENT.

Air Operations Area - For the purpose of these Specifications, the term air operations area shall mean any area of the airport used or intended to be used for the landing, takeoff, or surface maneuvering or parking of aircraft. An air operation area shall include such paved or unpaved areas that are used or intended to be used for the movement of aircraft in addition to its associated runway, runway safety area, taxiway, taxiway safety area or apron. The Air Operations Area shall also include the secured areas within airport buildings that require access clearance, background checks, and badging for entry.

Airport - Airport means an area of land or water that is used or intended to be used for the landing and takeoff of aircraft, and any appurtenant areas that are used or intended for use for airport buildings or other facilities or right of way, together with airport buildings and facilities.

Application for Payment - The form on which the CONTRACTOR requests progress or final payments and which includes such supporting documentation as is required by the Contract Documents.

Approved or Approval - Means written approval by the Contracting Officer or his authorized representative as defined in Article 2.1.

A.S - Initials that stand for Alaska Statute.

Award - The acceptance, by the DEPARTMENT, of a successful bid. For subcontractor bids, the acceptance of the CM/GC of a successful bid, in accordance with Subcontractor Solicitation and Award Procedures approved by the DEPARTMENT.

Bid Bond - A type of Proposal Guaranty.

Bidder - Any individual, firm, corporation or any acceptable combination thereof, or joint venture submitting a bid for the advertised Work.

Calendar Day - Every day shown on the calendar, beginning and ending at midnight.

Change Order - A written order by the DEPARTMENT directing changes to the Contract Documents, within their general scope.

Contingent Sum – When payment schedule Section 00312 contains a Contingent Sum pay unit, the Work covered shall be performed only upon the written Directive of the Project Manager. Payment shall be made as provided in the Directive.

Construction Contingency - An amount established by the DEPARTMENT for its sole use in accordance with Article 13 of the General Conditions.

Construction Manager/General Contractor (CM/GC) - The individual, firm, corporation or any acceptable combination thereof, contracting with the DEPARTMENT to provide Pre-construction Services, and once a GMP is established to perform the Work as CONTRACTOR, which performance shall include the management of

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

subcontractor bidding in accordance with Subcontractor Solicitation and Award Procedures approved by the DEPARTMENT and completion of the construction Work within the GMP and Project schedule.

Construction Manager/General Contractor (CM/GC) PROJECT - The entire scope of work of the program as described in the State of Alaska Department of Transportation and Public Facilities RFP for CM/GC services.

Contract - The written agreement between the DEPARTMENT and the CONTRACTOR setting forth the obligations of the parties and covering the Work to be performed, all as required by the Contract Documents.

Contract Documents - The Contract form, Addenda, the bidding requirements and CONTRACTOR's bid and GMP (including all appropriate bid tender forms), the bonds, the Conditions of the Contract and all other Contract requirements, the Specifications, and the Drawings furnished by the DEPARTMENT to the CONTRACTOR, together with all Change Orders and documents approved by the Contracting Officer, for inclusion, modifications and supplements issued on or after the Effective Date of the Contract.

Contract Price - The guaranteed maximum price (GMP).

Contract Time - The number of Calendar Days following issuance of Notice-to-Proceed in which the CONTRACTOR must Substantially Complete the project, or if specified as a calendar date, the Substantial Completion date specified in the Contract Documents.

Contracting Officer - The person authorized by the Commissioner to enter into and administer the Contract on behalf of the DEPARTMENT. He has authority to make findings, determinations and decisions with respect to the Contract and, when necessary, to modify or terminate the Contract. The Contracting Officer is identified on the construction Contract.

CONTRACTOR - The individual, firm, corporation or any acceptable combination thereof, contracting with the DEPARTMENT for performance of the Work.

Contractor's Contingency – An amount established by the DEPARTMENT for CONTRACTOR's sole use in accordance with Article 13 of the General Conditions.

Controlling Item - Any feature of the Work on the critical path of a network schedule.

Defective - Work that is unsatisfactory, faulty or deficient, or does not conform to the Contract Documents.

DEPARTMENT - The Alaska Department of Transportation and Public Facilities. References to "Owner", "State", "Contracting Agency", mean the DEPARTMENT.

DEPARTMENT's Consultant - A person, firm, or corporation, other than the CONTRACTOR or those engaged by the CONTRACTOR, retained directly by the DEPARTMENT to prepare Contract Documents, perform construction administration services, or other Project related services.

Directive - A written communication to the CONTRACTOR from the Contracting Officer interpreting or enforcing a Contract requirement or ordering commencement of an item of Work.

Drawings - The Drawings that show the character and scope of the Work to be performed and which have been furnished by the DEPARTMENT or the DEPARTMENT's Consultant and are by reference made a part of the Contract Documents.

Effective Date of the Contract - The date on which the Contract is fully executed by both CONTRACTOR and the DEPARTMENT.

Engineer – The authorized representative of the DEPARTMENT'S Contracting Officer. The Engineer is responsible for administration of the Contract.

Equipment - All machinery together with the necessary supplies for upkeep and maintenance, and also tools and apparatus necessary for the proper construction and acceptable completion of the work.

Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) - Branch of the U.S. DEPARTMENT of Transportation. When used to designate a person, FAA shall mean the Administrator or his/her duly authorized representative.

Final Acceptance - The DEPARTMENT's written acceptance of the Work following Final Completion and the performance of all Contract requirements by the CONTRACTOR.

Final Completion - The Project (or specified part thereof) has progressed to the point that all required Work is complete as determined by the Contracting Officer.

Final Payment – The last payment to be made to the CONTRACTOR following the issuance of and Final Acceptance.

Fixed Fee – The amount established and payable to the CONTRACTOR for Home Office overhead and Profit in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract.

00700-6

Fixed Fee = Fixed Fee Ratio X MACC

Fixed Fee Ratio – The ratio of the Fixed Fee proposed by the CONTRACTOR in response to the RFP for this Project divided by the Estimated Maximum Allowable Construction Cost included in the CM/GC RFP.

Full Cost Recovery (of equipment ownership costs) – Full cost recovery of equipment ownership costs is defined as the depreciation associated with the equipment as well as insurance, cost of money, property taxes, mechanics' supervision, storage, licenses, and record keeping costs. If any of these costs are recovered in project or general company overhead, those respective costs are excluded from the full cost recovery.

General Requirements - Division 1 of the Specifications containing administrative and procedural requirements as well as requirements for temporary facilities.

Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) – The maximum amount of compensation payable to the CONTRACTOR for performing the work as stated in the contract. The GMP consists of the MACC, and the CONTRACTOR's Fixed Fee as established by the Contract.

GMP = **MACC** + **Fixed** Fee

Holidays - In the State of Alaska, Legal Holidays occur on:

- l. New Years Day January l
- 2. Martin Luther King's Birthday Third Monday in January
- 3. President's Day Third Monday in February
- 4. Seward's Day Last Monday in March
- 5. Memorial Day Last Monday in May
- 6. Independence Day July 4
- 7. Labor Day First Monday in September
- 8. Alaska Day October 18
- 9. Veteran's Day November 11
- 10. Thanksgiving Day Fourth Thursday in November
- 11. Christmas Day December 25
- 12. Every Sunday
- 13. Every day designated by public proclamation by the President of the United States or the Governor of the State as a legal Holiday.

If any Holiday listed above falls on a Saturday, Saturday and the preceding Friday are both legal Holidays. If the Holiday should fall on a Sunday, except (12) above, Sunday and the following Monday are both legal Holidays. See Title 44, Alaska Statutes.

Inspector – The Engineer's representative authorized to make determinations and inspections of Contract performance and materials.

Interim Work Authorization - A written order by the DEPARTMENT authorizing initiation of work on changes to the Contract, within its general scope, until a subsequent Change Order is executed.

Install - Means to build into the Work, ready to be used in complete and operable condition and in compliance with Contract Documents.

Invitation for Bids - A portion of the bidding documents soliciting bids for the Work to be performed.

Laboratory - The official testing laboratories of the DEPARTMENT or such other laboratories as may be designated by the DEPARTMENT or identified in the contract documents.

Markup Fee – The maximum rates of cost markup as outlined in paragraph 10.6 to cover both the overhead and profit of the Subcontractor, to be used in Change Order price determination as described in paragraphs 10.3, 10.4 and 10.5. Except where specified, the term Subcontractor in this context shall also be applied to Self-performed Work by the CONTRACTOR.

Materials - Any substances specified for use in the construction of the project.

Maximum Allowable Construction Cost (MACC) – One component of the Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) provided by the CONTRACTOR and negotiated with the DEPARTMENT prior to award of a contract to perform the construction Work. Prior to the award of a contract to perform the construction Work, The MACC is the estimated and negotiated sum of all reimbursable costs as defined in the Contract for the performance of the work, as follows:

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

MACC = Negotiated Cost of the Work (Self-performed Work Costs + Subcontract Costs + CONTRACTOR administrative and support Work Costs allowed by General Conditions Article 13.0.6.c + MACC Allowances pursuant to Article 13.0.9 + Construction Contingency + Contractor's Contingency.

After award of a contract to perform the construction Work, the MACC may be adjusted by Change Order or Supplemental Agreement in accordance with the Contract. The MACC does not include the CONTRACTOR's Fixed Fee or any overhead cost that is also incorporated in the Fixed Fee.

Notice of Intent to Award - The written notice by the DEPARTMENT to all Bidders identifying the apparent successful Bidder and establishing the DEPARTMENT's intent to execute the Contract when all conditions required for execution of the Contract are met. For subcontractor bids, the written notice by the CM/GC to all bidders identifying the apparent successful bidder, in accordance with Subcontractor Solicitation and Award Procedures approved by the DEPARTMENT, contingent upon all conditions required for execution of a subcontract being met.

Notice to Proceed - A written notice to the CONTRACTOR to begin the Work and establishing the date on which the Contract Time begins.

Payment Bond - The security furnished by the CONTRACTOR and his Surety to guarantee payment of the debts covered by the bond.

Performance Bond - The security furnished by the CONTRACTOR and his Surety to guarantee performance and completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract.

Pre-construction Meeting - A preparatory meeting between the CONTRACTOR and the DEPARTMENT, Using Agency, and other parties affected by the construction, to discuss the project before the CONTRACTOR begins work.

Pre-construction Services - Consultation to the DEPARTMENT, the Program Manager, and design team during the planning and design of the project.

Project - The total construction, of which the Work performed under the Contract Documents is the whole or a part, where more than one CONTRACTOR may perform such total construction.

Program Manager - The representative or representatives designated by the Contracting Officer, consistent with General Condition Article 2.1, to manage the overall execution of the designated program objectives of which this Project is a part.

Project Manager – The representative or representatives designated by the Contracting Officer, consistent with General Condition Article 2.1, to manage the Project.

Proposal - The offer of a Bidder, on the prescribed forms, to perform the Work at the prices quoted.

Proposal Guaranty - The security furnished with a Proposal to guarantee that the bidder will enter into a Contract if the DEPARTMENT accepts his Proposal.

Quality Assurance (QA) – Tests and inspections performed by the DEPARTMENT to evaluate the methods, accuracy, precision, and reproducibility of quality control and material acceptance tests.

Quality Control (QC) - Tests and inspections by the CONTRACTOR to insure the acceptability of materials incorporated into the work. QC test reports are used as a basis upon which to determine whether the Work conforms to the requirements of the Contract Documents and may determine its acceptability for payment.

Regulatory Requirements - Laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, codes, or orders, including requirements of permits, issued by a governmental entity with lawful authority over a matter.

Runway - The area of the airport prepared for the landing and takeoff of aircraft.

Runway Safety Area (RSA) - A defined surface surrounding the runway prepared or suitable for reducing the risk of damage to airplanes in the event of an undershoot, overshoot, or excursion from the runway.

Schedule of Values - The DEPARTMENT's document, submitted by the CONTRACTOR and reviewed by the Contracting Officer, which shall serve as the basis for computing payment and for establishing the value of separate items of Work that comprise the GMP.

Self-Performed Work – Work self performed by the CONTRACTOR in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, excluding CONTRACTOR administrative and support Work allowed under General Conditions Article 13.0.6.c, that is not competitively bid to subcontractors or suppliers. The cost for Self–performed Work shall include the CONTRACTOR's fee for overhead and profit on that part of the work in accordance with the provisions of these General Conditions, but shall not include the CONTRACTOR's Fixed Fee.

00700-8

Shop Drawings - All drawings, diagrams, illustrations, schedules and other data which are specifically prepared by or for the CONTRACTOR to illustrate some portion of the Work and all illustrations, brochures, standard schedules, performance charts, instructions, diagrams and other information prepared by a Supplier and submitted by the CONTRACTOR to illustrate material, equipment, fabrication, or erection for some portion of the Work. Where used in the Contract Documents, the term "Shop Drawings" is also meant to include "Submittals".

Specifications - Those portions of the Contract Documents consisting of written technical descriptions of materials, equipment, construction systems, standards and workmanship as applied to the Work and certain administrative and procedural details applicable thereto.

Subcontractor - An individual, firm, or corporation to whom the CONTRACTOR or any other Subcontractor sublets part of the Contract.

Substantial Completion - Although not fully completed, the Work (or a specified part thereof) has progressed to the point where, in the opinion of the Contracting Officer, as evidenced by the DEPARTMENT's written notice, it is sufficiently complete, in accordance with the Contract Documents, so that the Work (or specified part) can be utilized for the purposes for which it is intended. The terms "Substantially Complete" and "Substantially Completed" as applied to any Work refer to Substantial Completion thereof.

Supplemental Agreement - A written agreement between the CONTRACTOR and the DEPARTMENT covering work that is not within the general scope of the Contract.

Supplementary Conditions - The part of the Contract Documents that amends or supplements these General Conditions.

Supplier - A manufacturer, fabricator, distributor, material man or vendor of materials or equipment.

Surety - The corporation, partnership, or individual, other than the CONTRACTOR, executing a bond furnished by the CONTRACTOR.

Taxiway - The portion of the air operations area of an airport that has been designated for movement of aircraft to and from runways or aircraft parking areas.

Transportation Security Agency (TSA). The federal agency responsible for monitoring and maintaining security at airports.

Traffic Control Plan (TCP) - A drawing of one or more specific plans that detail the routing of pedestrian, aircraft, and/or vehicular traffic through or around a construction area.

Unit Price Work - Work to be paid for on the basis of unit prices.

Utility - The privately, publicly or cooperatively owned lines, facilities and systems for producing, transmitting or distributing communications, power, electricity, light, heat, gas, oil, crude products, water, steam, waste, storm water not connected with highway or runway drainage, and other similar commodities, including publicly owned fire and police signal systems, street lighting systems, and railroads which directly or indirectly serve the public or any part thereof. The term "utility" shall also mean the utility company, inclusive of any wholly owned or controlled subsidiary.

Using Agency - The entity that will occupy or use the completed Project.

Validate-When required by the Contract Documents to validate a dimension or condition, the CONTRACTOR will be responsible for substantiating or verifying that the dimension or condition as represented in the Contract Documents meets the desired intent in sufficient time to allow correction prior to impacting the work.

Work - Work is the act of, and the result of, performing services, furnishing labor, furnishing and incorporating materials and equipment into the Project and performing other duties and obligations, all as required by the Contract Documents. Such Work, however incremental, will culminate in the entire completed Project, or the various separately identifiable parts thereof.

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

ARTICLE 2 - AUTHORIZATION AND LIMITATIONS

2.1 Authorities and Limitations

- 2.1.1 The Contracting Officer alone, shall have the power to bind the DEPARTMENT and to exercise the rights, responsibilities, authorities and functions vested in the Contracting Officer by the Contract Documents. The Contracting Officer shall have the right to designate in writing authorized representatives to act for him. Wherever any provision of the Contract Documents specifies an individual or organization, whether governmental or private, to perform any act on behalf of or in the interest of the DEPARTMENT that individual or organization shall be deemed to be the Contracting Officer's authorized representative under this Contract but only to the extent so specified.
- 2.1.2 The CONTRACTOR shall perform the Work in accordance with any written order (including but not limited to instruction, direction, interpretation or determination) issued by an authorized representative in accordance with the authorized representative's authority to act for the Contracting Officer. The CONTRACTOR assumes all the risk and consequences of performing the Work in accordance with any order (including but not limited to instruction, direction, interpretation or determination) of anyone not authorized to issue such order, and of any order not in writing.
- 2.1.3 Should the Contracting Officer or his authorized representative designate DEPARTMENT's Consultant(s) to act for the DEPARTMENT as provided for in Paragraph 2.1.1, the performance or nonperformance of the DEPARTMENT's Consultant under such authority to act, shall not give rise to any contractual obligation or duty of the DEPARTMENT's Consultant to the CONTRACTOR, any Subcontractor, any Supplier, or any other organization performing any of the Work or any Surety representing them.
- 2.1.4 The term "Contracting Officer" when used in the text of these General Conditions or other Contract Documents following this section shall also mean any duly authorized representative of the Contracting Officer when authorized in accordance with Paragraph 2.1.1
- 2.2 Evaluations by Contracting Officer
- 2.2.1 The Contracting Officer will decide all questions which may arise as to:
 - a. Quality and acceptability of materials furnished;
 - b. Quality and acceptability of Work performed;
 - c. Compliance with the schedule of progress;
 - d. Interpretation of Contract Documents;
 - e. Acceptable fulfillment of the Contract on the part of the CONTRACTOR.
- 2.2.2 In order to avoid cumbersome terms and confusing repetition of expressions in the Contract Documents the terms "as ordered", "as directed", "as required", "as approved" or terms of like effect or import are used, or the adjectives "reasonable", "suitable", "acceptable", "proper" or "satisfactory" or adjectives of like effect or import are used it shall be understood as if the expression were followed by the words "the Contracting Officer".

When such terms are used to describe a requirement, direction, review or judgment of the Contracting Officer as to the Work, it is intended that such requirement, direction, review or judgment will be solely to evaluate the Work for compliance with the Contract Documents (unless there is a specific statement indicating otherwise).

2.2.3 The use of any such term or adjective shall not be effective to assign to the DEPARTMENT any duty of authority to supervise or direct the furnishing or performance of the Work or any duty or authority to undertake responsibility contrary to the provisions of paragraphs 2.3.

2.3 Means & Methods

The means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of construction, or safety precautions and the program incident thereto, and the failure to perform or furnish the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents are the sole responsibility of the CONTRACTOR.

00700-10

2.4 Visits to Site/Place of Business

The Contracting Officer may, but is not required to, make visits to the site and approved remote storage sites at intervals appropriate to the various stages of construction to observe the progress and quality of the executed Work and to determine, in general, if the Work is proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents. The Contracting Officer may, at reasonable times, inspect that part of the plant or place of business of the CONTRACTOR or Subcontractor that is related to the performance of the Contract. Such observations or the lack of such observations shall in no way relieve the CONTRACTOR from his duty to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

ARTICLE 3 - CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: INTENT, AMENDING, REUSE

3.0 Contract Phasing

The Work under this Construction Contract is part of the CM/GC PROJECT. The CM/GC PROJECT may be divided into two or more construction contracts and/or phases as described in the Supplementary Conditions.

3.1 Incomplete Contract Documents

The submission of a GMP by the CONTRACTOR is considered a representation that the CONTRACTOR examined the Contract Documents to make certain that all sheets and pages were provided and that the CONTRACTOR is satisfied as to the conditions to be encountered in performing the Work. The DEPARTMENT expressly denies any responsibility or liability for a GMP submitted on the basis of an incomplete set of Contract Documents.

3.2 Copies of Contract Documents

The DEPARTMENT shall furnish to the CONTRACTOR at least one electronic and one paper copy of the Contract Documents, and up to the number of additional copies specified in the Supplementary Conditions. Additional copies beyond the number specified in the Supplementary Conditions will be furnished, upon request, at the cost of reproduction.

3.3 Scope of Work

The Contract Documents comprise the entire Contract between the DEPARTMENT and the CONTRACTOR concerning the Work. The Contract Documents are complementary; what is called for by one is as binding as if called for by all. The Contract Documents will be construed in accordance with the Regulatory Requirements of the place of the Project.

It is specifically agreed between the parties executing this Contract that it is not intended by any of the provisions of the Contract to create in the public or any member thereof a third party benefit, or to authorize anyone not a party to this Contract to maintain a suit pursuant to the terms or provisions of the Contract.

3.4 Intent of Contract Documents

- 3.4.1 It is the intent of the Contract Documents to describe a functionally complete Project to be constructed in accordance with the Contract Documents. Any Work, materials or equipment that may reasonably be inferred from the Contract Documents as being required to produce the intended result will be supplied, without any adjustment in GMP or Contract Time, whether or not specifically called for.
- 3.4.2 Reference to standard specifications, manuals or codes of any technical society, organization or association, or to the Regulatory Requirements of any governmental authority, whether such reference be specific or by implication, shall mean the edition stated in the Contract Documents or if not stated the latest standard specification, manual, code or Regulatory Requirements in effect at the time of Advertisement for the Project (or, on the Effective Date of the Contract if there was no Advertisement). However, no provision of any reference in the Contract Documents) shall be effective to change the duties and responsibilities of the DEPARTMENT and the CONTRACTOR, or any of their consultants, agents or employees from those set forth in the Contract Documents, nor shall it be effective to assign to the DEPARTMENT or any of the DEPARTMENT's Consultants, agents or employees, any duty or authority to supervise or direct the furnishing or performance of the Work or any duty or authority to undertake responsibility contrary to the provisions of paragraphs 2.3.

3.5 Discrepancy in Contract Documents

3.5.1 Before undertaking the Work, the CONTRACTOR shall carefully study and compare the Contract Documents and check and verify pertinent figures, and dimensions shown thereon and all applicable field measurements. Work in the area by the CONTRACTOR shall imply verification of figures, dimensions and field measurements. If, during the above study or during the performance of the Work, the CONTRACTOR finds a conflict, error, discrepancy or omission in the Contract Documents, or a discrepancy between the Contract Documents and any standard specification, manual, code, or Regulatory Requirement which affects the Work, the CONTRACTOR shall promptly report such discrepancy in

00700-12

writing to the Contracting Officer. The CONTRACTOR shall obtain a written interpretation or clarification from the Contracting Officer before proceeding with any Work affected thereby. Any adjustment made by the CONTRACTOR without this determination shall be at his own risk and expense. However, the CONTRACTOR shall not be liable to the DEPARTMENT for failure to report any conflict, error or discrepancy in the Contract Documents unless the CONTRACTOR had actual knowledge thereof or should reasonably have known thereof.

3.5.2 Discrepancy - Order of Precedence

When conflicts, errors, or discrepancies within the Contract Documents exist, the order of precedence from most governing to least governing will be as follows:

Supplementary Conditions

General Conditions

General Requirements

Technical Specifications

Drawings

Architectural drawings over structural drawings Structural drawings over mechanical and electrical drawings

In addition, the following shall apply:

Contents of most current Addenda will govern over respective prior Addenda and base Bid Documents

Recorded dimensions will govern over scaled dimensions

Large scale details will govern over small scale details

Schedules (e.g. equipment schedules, finish schedules. door schedules, material schedules and all similar type schedules where identified) in specifications or plans will govern over plans

3.6 Clarifications and Interpretations

The Contracting Officer will issue with reasonable promptness such written clarifications or interpretations of the requirements of the Contract Documents as the Contracting Officer may determine necessary.

3.7 Reuse of Documents

Neither the CONTRACTOR nor any Subcontractor, or Supplier or other person or organization performing or furnishing any of the Work under a direct or indirect contract with the DEPARTMENT shall have or acquire any title to or ownership rights in any of the Contract Documents (or copies thereof) prepared by or for the DEPARTMENT and they shall not reuse any of the Contract Documents on extensions of the Project or any other project without written consent of the Contracting Officer.

Contract Documents prepared by the CONTRACTOR in connection with the Work shall become the property of the DEPARTMENT.

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

ARTICLE 4 - LANDS AND PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

4.1 Availability of Lands

The DEPARTMENT shall furnish as indicated in the Contract Documents, the lands upon which the Work is to be performed, rights-of-way and easements for access thereto, and such other lands which are designated for use of the CONTRACTOR in connection with the Work. Easements for permanent structures or permanent changes in existing facilities will be obtained and paid for by the DEPARTMENT, unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents.

4.2 Visit to Site

The submission of a GMP by the CONTRACTOR is considered a representation that the CONTRACTOR has visited and carefully examined the site and is satisfied as to the conditions to be encountered in performing the Work and as to the requirements of the Contract Documents.

4.3 Explorations and Reports

Reference is made to the Supplementary Conditions for identification of those reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at the site that have been utilized by the DEPARTMENT in preparation of the Contract Documents. The CONTRACTOR may for his purposes rely upon the accuracy of the factual data contained in such reports but not upon the completeness or sufficiency thereof. Except as indicated in the immediately preceding sentence and in paragraphs 4.4 and 9.9, CONTRACTOR shall have full responsibility with respect to surface and subsurface conditions at the site

4.4 Utilities

The horizontal and vertical locations of known underground utilities as shown or indicated by the Contract Documents are approximate and are based on information and data furnished to the DEPARTMENT by the owners of such underground utilities.

4.4.1 NOT USED

- 4.4.2 The CONTRACTOR shall have full responsibility for:
 - a. Reviewing and checking all information and data concerning utilities.
 - b. Locating all underground utilities shown or indicated in the Contract Documents which are affected by the Work.
 - c. Coordination of the Work with the owners of all utilities during construction.
 - d. Safety and protection of all utilities as provided in paragraph 6.17.
 - e. Repair of any damage to utilities resulting from the Work in accordance with 4.4.4 and 4.5.
- 4.4.3 If Work is to be performed by any utility owner, the CONTRACTOR shall cooperate with such owners to facilitate the Work.
- 4.4.4 In the event of interruption to any utility service as a result of accidental breakage or as result of being exposed or unsupported, the CONTRACTOR shall promptly notify the utility owner and the Contracting Officer. If service is interrupted, repair work shall be continuous until the service is restored. No Work shall be undertaken around fire hydrants until the local fire authority has approved provisions for continued service.

4.5 Damaged Utilities

When the CONTRACTOR damages utilities, the utility owner shall have the choice of repairing the utility or having the CONTRACTOR repair the utility. In the following circumstances, the CONTRACTOR shall reimburse the utility owner for repair costs or provide at no cost to the utility owner or the DEPARTMENT, all materials, equipment and labor necessary to complete repair of the damage:

- a. When the utility is shown or indicated in the Contract Documents.
- b. When the utility owner has located the utility.
- c. When no locate was requested by the CONTRACTOR for utilities shown or indicated in the Contract Documents.
- d. All visible utilities.

00700-14

When the CONTRACTOR could have, otherwise, reasonably been expected to be aware of such utility.

4.6 Utilities Not Shown or Indicated

e.

If, while directly performing the Work, an underground or concealed utility is uncovered or revealed at the site which was not shown or indicated in the Contract Documents and which the CONTRACTOR could not reasonably have been expected to be aware of, the CONTRACTOR shall, promptly after becoming aware thereof and before performing any Work affected thereby (except in an emergency as permitted by paragraph 6.19) identify the owner of such underground or concealed utility and give written notice thereof to that owner and to the Contracting Officer. The Contracting Officer will promptly review the underground or concealed utility to determine the extent to which the Contract Documents and the Work should be modified to reflect the impacts of the discovered utility. The Contract Documents will be amended or supplemented in accordance with paragraph 9.2 and to the extent necessary through the issuance of a change document by the Contracting Officer. During such time, the CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the safety and protection of such underground or concealed utility as provided in paragraph 6.17. The CONTRACTOR may be allowed an increase in the GMP or an extension of the Contract Time, or both, to the extent that they are directly attributable to the existence of any underground or concealed utility that was not shown or indicated in the Contract Documents and which the CONTRACTOR could not reasonably have been expected to be aware of.

4.7 Survey Control

The DEPARTMENT will identify sufficient horizontal and vertical control data to enable the CONTRACTOR to survey and layout the Work. All survey work shall be performed under the direct supervision of a registered land surveyor when required by paragraph 7.8. Copies of all survey notes shall be provided to the DEPARTMENT at an interval determined by the Project Manager. The Project Manager may request submission on a weekly or longer period at his discretion. Any variations between the Contract Documents and actual field conditions shall be identified in the survey notes.

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

ARTICLE 5 - BONDS, INSURANCE, AND INDEMNIFICATION

5.1 Delivery of Bonds

When the CONTRACTOR delivers the executed Contract to the Contracting Officer, the CONTRACTOR shall also deliver to the Contracting Officer such bonds as the CONTRACTOR may be required to furnish in accordance with paragraph 5.2.

5.2 Bonds

The CONTRACTOR shall furnish Performance and Payment Bonds, each in an amount as shown on the Contract as security for the faithful performance and payment of all CONTRACTOR's obligations under the Contract Documents. These bonds shall remain in effect for one year after the date of Final Acceptance and until all obligations under this Contract, except special guarantees as per 12.7, have been met. All bonds shall be furnished on forms provided by the DEPARTMENT (or copies thereof) and shall be executed by such Sureties as are authorized to do business in the State of Alaska. The Contracting Officer may at his option copy the Surety with notice of any potential default or liability.

5.3 Replacement of Bond and Surety

If the Surety on any bond furnished in connection with this Contract is declared bankrupt or becomes insolvent or its right to do business is terminated in any state where any part of the Project is located or it ceases to meet the requirements of paragraph 5.2, or otherwise becomes unacceptable to the DEPARTMENT, or if any such Surety fails to furnish reports as to his financial condition as requested by the DEPARTMENT, the CONTRACTOR shall within 5 days thereafter substitute another bond and Surety, both of which must be acceptable to DEPARTMENT.

A corporate Surety may replace an individual Surety during the course of the Contract period. If the Surety desires to dispose of the collateral posted, the DEPARTMENT may, at its option, accept substitute collateral.

5.4 Insurance Requirements

- 5.4.1 The CONTRACTOR shall provide evidence of insurance with a carrier or carriers satisfactory to the DEPARTMENT covering injury to persons and/or property suffered by the State of Alaska or a third party, as a result of operations that arise both out of and during the course of this Contract by the CONTRACTOR or by any Subcontractor. This coverage will also provide protection against injuries to all employees of the CONTRACTOR and the employees of any Subcontractor engaged in Work under this Contract. The delivery to the DEPARTMENT of a written 30-day notice is required before cancellation of any coverage or reduction in any limits of liability. Insurance carriers shall have an acceptable financial rating.
- 5.4.2 The CONTRACTOR shall maintain in force at all times during the performance of Work under this agreement the following policies of insurance. Failure to maintain the specified insurance or to provide substitute insurance if an insurance carrier becomes insolvent, is placed in receivership, declares bankruptcy, or cancels a policy may be grounds for withholding Contract payments until substitute insurance is obtained, and may, in the DEPARTMENT's discretion, be grounds for declaring the CONTRACTOR in default. Where specific limits and coverage are shown, it is understood that they shall be the minimum acceptable. The requirements of this paragraph shall not limit the CONTRACTOR's responsibility to indemnify under paragraph 5.5. Additional insurance requirements specific to this Contract are contained in the Supplementary Conditions, when applicable.
 - a Worker's Compensation Insurance:

The CONTRACTOR shall provide and maintain, for all employees engaged in work under this contract, statutory limits coverage as required by AS 23.30.045.

The policy must waive subrogation against the State and include Employer's Liability Protection with policy limits not less than:

\$500,000 each accident, \$500,000 each disease.

b. <u>Commercial General Liability Insurance</u>: On an occurrence policy form covering all operations by

00700-16

or on behalf of the CONTRACTOR with combined single limits not less than:

\$1,000,000 each occurrence

\$1,000,000 for Personal Injury Liability

\$2,000,000 aggregate for Products-Completed Operations

\$2,000,000 general aggregate

The State of Alaska shall be named as additional insured. This insurance shall be considered to be primary and non-contributory to any other insurance carried by the State through self insurance or otherwise.

- c. <u>Automobile Liability Insurance</u>: Covering all vehicles used by the CONTRACTOR in the performance of services under this agreement with combined single limits not less than \$1,000,000 each occurrence. The State of Alaska shall be named as additional insured. This insurance shall be considered to be primary and non-contributory to any other insurance carried by the State through self insurance or otherwise.
- d. <u>Builder's Risk Insurance</u>:

Coverage shall be on an "All Risk" completed value basis including "earthquake and flood" and protect the interests of the DEPARTMENT, the CONTRACTOR and his Subcontractors. Coverage shall include all materials, supplies and equipment that are intended for specific installation in the Project while such materials, supplies and equipment are located at the Project site, in transit from port of arrival to job site and while temporarily located away from the Project site.

In addition to providing the above coverage the CONTRACTOR shall ensure that Subcontractors provide insurance coverage as noted in clauses a., b., and c. of this subparagraph. Builders Risk Insurance will only be required of <u>subcontractors</u> if so stated in the Supplementary Conditions.

e. <u>Other Coverages</u>:

As specified in Supplementary Conditions.

- f. In addition to providing the above coverages the CONTRACTOR shall, in any contract or agreement with Subcontractors performing work, require that all indemnities and waivers of subrogation it obtains, and that any stipulation to be named as an additional insured it obtains, also be extended to waive rights of subrogation against the State of Alaska and to add the State of Alaska as additional named indemnitee and as additional insured.
- 5.4.3 CONTRACTOR shall furnish evidence of insurance to the DEPARTMENT before award of the Contract. All other coverage, including required subcontractor furnished insurance shall be evidenced prior to commencement of Work. Acceptance by the DEPARTMENT of deficient evidence does not constitute a waiver of Contract requirements as provided for by the Conditions of the Contract.

The evidence shall be issued to the DEPARTMENT and shall be either a certificate of insurance or the policy declaration page with all required endorsements attached and must:

Denote the type, amount, and class of operations covered;

Show the effective (and retroactive) dates of the policy;

Show the expiration date of the policy;

Include all required endorsements;

Be executed by the carrier's representative; and

If a certificate of insurance, include the following statement:

"This is to certify that the policies described herein comply with all aspects of the insurance requirements of (Project Name and Number). The insurance carrier agrees that it shall notify the Engineer, in writing, at least 30 days before cancellation of any coverage or reduction in any limits of liability."

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

5.5 Indemnification

The CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, save harmless, and defend the DEPARTMENT, its DEPARTMENT's Consultants, its agents and its employees from any and all claims, actions, or liabilities for injuries or damages sustained by any person or property arising directly or indirectly from the construction or the performance in the course of this Contract of the CONTRACTOR, or its Subcontractors or Suppliers, including any of their Consultants, agents or employees; however, this provision has no effect if, but only if, the sole proximate cause of the injury or damage is the DEPARTMENT's negligence.

00700-18

ARTICLE 6 - CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES

6.1 Supervision of Work

The CONTRACTOR shall supervise and direct the Work competently and efficiently, devoting such attention thereto and applying such skills and expertise as may be necessary to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. All Work under this Contract shall be performed in a skillful and workmanlike manner. The CONTRACTOR shall be solely responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures of construction.

6.2 Superintendence by CONTRACTOR

The CONTRACTOR shall keep on the Work at all times during its progress a competent resident superintendent. The Contracting Officer shall be advised in writing of the superintendent's name, local address, and telephone number. This written advice is to be kept current until Final Acceptance by the DEPARTMENT. The superintendent will be the CONTRACTOR's representative at the site and shall have full authority to act and sign documents on behalf of the CONTRACTOR.

All communications given to the superintendent shall be as binding as if given to the CONTRACTOR. The CONTRACTOR shall cooperate with the Contracting Officer in every way possible.

6.3 Character of Workers

The CONTRACTOR shall provide a sufficient number of competent, suitably qualified personnel to survey and lay out the Work and perform construction as required by the Contract Documents. The CONTRACTOR shall at all times maintain good discipline and order at the site. The Contracting Officer may, in writing, require the CONTRACTOR to remove from the Work any employee the Contracting Officer deems incompetent, careless, or otherwise detrimental to the progress of the Work, but the Contracting Officer shall have no duty to exercise this right.

6.4 CONTRACTOR to Furnish

Unless otherwise specified in the General Requirements, the CONTRACTOR shall furnish and assume full responsibility for all materials, equipment and machinery, tools, appliances, fuel, power, light, heat, telephone, water, sanitary facilities, temporary facilities and all other facilities and incidentals necessary for the furnishing, performance testing, start-up and completion of the Work.

6.5 Materials and Equipment

All materials and equipment shall be of specified quality and new, except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents. If required by the Contracting Officer, the CONTRACTOR shall furnish satisfactory evidence (including reports of required tests) as to the kind and quality of materials and equipment. All materials and equipment shall be applied, installed, connected, erected, used, cleaned, and conditioned in accordance with the instructions of the applicable Supplier except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents; but no provision of any such instructions will be effective to assign to the DEPARTMENT or any of the DEPARTMENT's Consultants, agents or employees, any duty or authority to supervise or direct the furnishing or performance of the Work or any duty or authority to undertake responsibility contrary to the provisions of paragraphs 2.3.

6.5.2 BUY AMERICAN STEEL AND MANUFACTURED PRODUCTS

- a. The CONTRACTOR agrees that only domestic steel and manufactured products will be used by the CONTRACTOR, subcontractors, materialmen, and suppliers in the performance of this Federal-Aid contract, as defined below.
- b. The following terms apply to this clause:
 - Steel and Manufactured Products. As used in this clause, steel and manufactured products include (1) those produced in the United States or (2) a manufactured product produced or manufactured in the United States, if the cost of its components mined, produced or manufactured in the United States exceeds sixty (60) percent of the cost of all its components and final assembly has taken place in the United States. Components of foreign origin of the same class or kind, as the products referred to in subparagraphs c.(1) or c.(2) shall be treated as domestic.

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

- Components. As used in this clause, components means those articles, materials, and supplies incorporated directly into steel and manufactured products.
- Cost of Components. This means the costs for production of the components, exclusive of final assembly labor costs.
- c. **Buy American Certificate.** Execution and submission of the Buy American Certificate Form 25D-061, is required. If there are no exceptions to be listed on the certificate, the bidder shall enter "NONE" on the first line. If exceptions are listed on the Buy American Certificate, they shall meet at least one of the following criteria for the certificate to be considered appropriately executed:
 - 1. Those products or materials that the U.S. Department of Transportation has determined, under the *Aviation Safety and Capacity Expansion Act of 1990*, are not produced in the United States in sufficient and reasonably available quantities and of a satisfactory quality. (The current list is included on the back of Form 25D-061.)
 - 2. Those products or materials where the U.S. Department of Transportation has determined, under the *Aviation Safety and Capacity Expansion Act of 1990*, that domestic preference would be inconsistent with the public interest.
 - 3. Where inclusion of domestic material will increase the cost of the overall project contract by more than twenty-five (25) percent.

6.6 Anticipated Schedules:

- 6.6.1 The CONTRACTOR shall submit an anticipated CPM schedule in accordance with Section 01310 of the Contract Specifications. Prior to submitting the CONTRACTOR's first Application for Payment, the CONTRACTOR shall submit to the DEPARTMENT for review an anticipated progress schedule indicating the starting and completion dates of the various stages of the Work.
- 6.6.2 Prior to submitting the CONTRACTOR's first Application for Payment, the CONTRACTOR shall submit to the Contracting Officer for review:

Anticipated schedule of Shop Drawing submissions; and

Anticipated Schedule of Values for all Work. The Schedule of Values shall include quantities and prices of items aggregating the GMP and shall subdivide the Work into component parts in sufficient detail to serve as the basis for progress payments during construction. The CONTRACTOR's Fixed Fee and the Contingency accounts shall be shown as separate items.

6.7 Finalizing Schedules:

Prior to processing the first Application for Payment the Contracting Officer and the CONTRACTOR will finalize schedules required by paragraph 6.6.2, and the CONTRACTOR shall submit the anticipated CPM schedule required by paragraph 6.6.1. No applications for payments will be accepted by the DEPARTMENT after 60 days of issuing of the NTP without DEPARTMENT acceptance of the Finalized CPM Schedule. The finalized CPM schedule will be acceptable to the DEPARTMENT as providing information related to the orderly progression of the Work to completion within the Contract Time; but such acceptance will neither impose on the DEPARTMENT nor relieve the CONTRACTOR from full responsibility for the progress or scheduling of the Work. If accepted, the finalized schedule of Shop Drawings and other required submissions will be acknowledgment by the DEPARTMENT as providing a workable arrangement for processing the submissions. If accepted, the finalized Schedule of Values will be acknowledgment by the DEPARTMENT as an approximation of anticipated value of Work accomplished over the anticipated Contract Time. Receipt and acceptance of a schedule submitted by the CONTRACTOR shall not be construed to assign responsibility for performance or contingencies to the DEPARTMENT or relieve the CONTRACTOR of his responsibility to adjust his forces, equipment, and work schedules as may be necessary to insure completion of the Work within prescribed Contract Time. Should the prosecution of the Work be discontinued for any reason, the CONTRACTOR shall notify the Contracting Officer at least 24 hours in advance of resuming operations.

00700-20

6.8 Adjusting Schedules:

Upon substantial changes to the schedule or upon request the CONTRACTOR shall submit to the Contracting Officer for acceptance (to the extent indicated in paragraph 6.7 and the General Requirements) adjustments in the schedules to reflect the actual present and anticipated progress of the Work. The CONTRACTOR's failure to submit adjustments in the schedules upon substantial change shall preclude and waive any claim the CONTRACTOR may have had related to the impacts of delays caused by the substantial change.

- 6.9 Substitutes or "Or-Equal" Items:
- 6.9.1 Whenever materials or equipment are specified or described in the Contract Documents by using the name of a proprietary item or the name of a particular Supplier the naming of the item is intended to establish the type, function and quality required. Unless the name is followed by words indicating that substitution is limited or not permitted, the Contracting Officer may accept materials or equipment of other Suppliers only if sufficient information is submitted by the CONTRACTOR clearly demonstrating to the Contracting Officer that the material or equipment proposed is equivalent or equal in all aspects to that named. The procedure for review by the Contracting Officer will include the following as supplemented in the General Requirements.
- 6.9.2 The CONTRACTING OFFICER will not accept requests for review of substitute items of material and equipment from anyone other than the CONTRACTOR following the issuance of the Construction Contract.
- 6.9.3 If the CONTRACTOR wishes to furnish or use a substitute item of material or equipment, the CONTRACTOR shall make written application to the Contracting Officer for Approval thereof, certifying that the proposed substitute will perform adequately the functions and achieve the results called for by the general design, be similar and of equal substance to that specified and be suited to the same use as the specified. The application will state that the evaluation and Approval of the proposed substitute will not delay the CONTRACTOR's timely achievement of Substantial or Final Completion, whether or not acceptance of the substitute for use in the Work will require a change in any of the Contract Documents (or in the provisions of any other direct contract with the DEPARTMENT for Work on the Project) to adapt the design to the proposed substitute and whether or not incorporation or use of the substitute in connection with the Work is subject to payment of any license fee or royalty.
- 6.9.4 All variations of the proposed substitute from that specified will be identified in the application and available maintenance, repair and replacement service will be indicated. The application will also contain an itemized estimate of all costs that will result directly or indirectly from acceptance of such substitute, including costs of redesign and claims of other contractors affected by the resulting change, all of which shall be considered by the DEPARTMENT in evaluating the proposed substitute. The DEPARTMENT may require the CONTRACTOR to furnish at the CONTRACTOR's expense additional data about the proposed substitute. The Contracting Officer may reject any substitution request which the Contracting Officer determines is not in the best interest of the DEPARTMENT.
- 6.9.5 Substitutions shall be permitted during or after the bid period as allowed and in accordance with Document 00020 Invitation for Bids, Document 00700 General Conditions, and Document 01600 Material and Equipment and 01631 Substitution Request Form.
- 6.10 Substitute Means and Methods

If a specific means, method, technique, sequence or procedure of construction is indicated in or required by the Contract Documents, the CONTRACTOR may furnish or utilize a substitute means, method, sequence, technique or procedure of construction acceptable to the Contracting Officer, if the CONTRACTOR submits sufficient information to allow the Contracting Officer to determine that the substitute proposed is equivalent to that indicated or required by the Contract Documents. The procedure for review by the Contracting Officer will be similar to that provided in paragraph 6.9 as applied by the Contracting Officer and as may be supplemented in the General Requirements.

6.11 Evaluation of Substitution:

The Contracting Officer will be allowed a reasonable time within which to evaluate each proposed substitute. The Contracting Officer will be the sole judge of acceptability, and no substitute will be

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

ordered, installed or utilized without the Contracting Officer's prior written Approval which will be evidenced by either a Change Order or a Shop Drawing Approved in accordance with Sections 6.20 and 6.21. The Contracting Officer may require the CONTRACTOR to furnish at the CONTRACTOR's expense a special performance guarantee or other Surety with respect to any substitute.

6.12 Dividing the Work:

The divisions and sections of the Specifications and the identifications of any Drawings shall not control the CONTRACTOR in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or Suppliers or delineating the Work to be performed by any specific trade. The CONTRACTOR is solely responsible for ensuring that all Contract requirements are accounted for in dividing the work among Subcontractors or Suppliers or delineating the Work to be performed by any specific trade.

6.13 Subcontractors:

The CONTRACTOR shall utilize the services of appropriately licensed Subcontractors on those parts of the Work which, under normal contracting practices, are performed by Subcontractors, in accordance with the following conditions:

- 6.13.1 Prior to completion of the Construction Documents, the CONTRACTOR shall contact potential subcontractors and material suppliers to encourage their interest in bidding on the work.
- 6.13.2 It is the objective of the DEPARTMENT to obtain the best value for the funds expended. Competition is the preferred method of assuring the least cost, and sub-bidding of the work is expected and encouraged. Pre-qualification of subcontractors may be allowed subject to DEPARTMENT approval. It is understood that there may be times when the best interest of the project is served by the CONTRACTOR self-performing or otherwise exempting a portion of the work from sub-bidding. Relevant sections of the General Conditions applicable to Subcontractors shall be followed. Self-Performed work by the CONTRACTOR will be limited to a maximum of twenty (20) percent of the Maximum Allowable Construction Cost for the entire CM/GC PROJECT. The amount to be Self-Performed is subject to DEPARTMENT approval. The balance shall be competitively bid to subcontractors or suppliers.
- 6.13.3 The CONTRACTOR will develop proposed subcontracting solicitation procedures for DEPARTMENT approval. The CONTRACTOR will be expected to publicly conduct the sub-bidding of all remaining construction work including, where applicable, developing a subcontractor pre-qualification process for critical items of work. This will include:
 - a. The CONTRACTOR shall attempt to obtain a minimum 3 bids for each package of work bid.
 - b. All bids for non-self performed work valued at more than \$100,000 are required to be sealed, written, and submitted to a specific location at a specific time.
 - c. Solicitations for bids for Federal-Aid Contracts shall be advertised at least 10 days in advance of the bid opening. Solicitations shall be advertised in the at least two newspapers specifically targeted to reach DBE/ESBE audiences.
 - d. For non-self performed work valued at less than \$100,000, the CONTRACTOR may receive a minimum of 3 bids by telephone without advertisement.
- 6.13.4 The CONTRACTOR shall not award any Work to any Subcontractor without prior written Approval of the Contracting Officer. The CONTRACTOR shall not allow any subcontractor to proceed with any Work under this Contract until the CONTRACTOR submits a written statement concerning the proposed award to the Subcontractor which shall contain required Equal Employment Opportunity documents, evidence of insurance whose limits are acceptable to the CONTRACTOR, and an executed copy of the subcontract to the Contracting Officer and receives Approval to proceed with the subcontract work. All subcontracts shall contain provisions for prompt payment, release of retainage, and interest on late payment amounts and retainage as specified in A.S. 36.90.210. Contracts between subcontractors, regardless of tier, must also contain these provisions. No acceptance by the Contracting Officer of any such Subcontractor shall constitute a waiver of any right of the DEPARTMENT to reject Defective Work.
- 6.13.5 The CONTRACTOR shall be fully responsible to the DEPARTMENT for all acts and omissions of the Subcontractors, Suppliers and other persons and organizations performing or furnishing any of the Work under a direct or indirect contract with CONTRACTOR just as CONTRACTOR is responsible for CONTRACTOR's own acts and omissions.

00700-22

- 6.13.6 All Work performed for CONTRACTOR by a Subcontractor will be pursuant to an appropriate written agreement between CONTRACTOR and the Subcontractor which specifically binds the Subcontractor to the applicable terms and conditions of the Contract Documents for the benefit of the DEPARTMENT and contains waiver provisions as required by paragraph 13.17 and termination provisions as required by Article 14.
- 6.13.7 Nothing in the Contract Documents shall create any contractual relationship between the DEPARTMENT and any such Subcontractor, Supplier or other person or organization, nor shall it create any obligation on the part of the DEPARTMENT to pay or to see to the payment of any moneys due any such Subcontractor, Supplier or other person or organization except as may otherwise be required by Regulatory Requirements. The DEPARTMENT will not undertake to settle any differences between or among the CONTRACTOR, Subcontractors, or Suppliers.
- 6.13.8 The CONTRACTOR and Subcontractors shall coordinate their work and cooperate with other trades so to facilitate general progress of Work. Each trade shall afford other trades every reasonable opportunity for installation of their work and storage of materials. If cooperative work of one trade must be altered due to lack of proper supervision, or failure to make proper provisions in time by another trade, the CONTRACTOR shall remedy such conditions with no change in GMP or Contract Time.
- 6.13.9 The CONTRACTOR shall include on his own payrolls any person or persons working on this Contract who are not covered by written subcontract, and shall ensure that all Subcontractors include on their payrolls all persons performing Work under the direction of the Subcontractor.

6.14 Use of Premises

The CONTRACTOR shall confine construction equipment, the storage of materials and equipment and the operations of workers to the Project limits and approved remote storage sites and lands and areas identified in and permitted by Regulatory Requirements, rights-of-way, permits and easements, and shall not unreasonably encumber the premises with construction equipment or other materials or equipment. The CONTRACTOR shall assume full responsibility for any damage to any such land or area, or to the owner or occupant thereof or of any land or areas contiguous thereto, resulting from the performance of the Work. Should any such owner make any claim against the DEPARTMENT or occupant because of the performance of the Work, the CONTRACTOR shall hold the DEPARTMENT harmless.

6.15 Structural Loading

The CONTRACTOR shall not load nor permit any part of any structure to be loaded in any manner that will endanger the structure, nor shall the CONTRACTOR subject any part of the Work or adjacent property to stresses or pressures that will endanger it.

6.16 Record Documents

The CONTRACTOR shall maintain in a safe place at the site one record copy of all Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, Directives, Change Orders, Supplemental Agreements, and written interpretations and clarifications (issued pursuant to paragraph 3.6) in good order and annotated to show all changes made during construction. These record documents together with all Approved samples and a counterpart of all Approved Shop Drawings will be available to the Contracting Officer for reference and copying. Upon completion of the Work, the annotated record documents, samples and Shop Drawings will be delivered to the Contracting Officer. Record documents shall accurately record variations in the Work which vary from requirements shown or indicated in the Contract Documents.

6.17 Safety and Protection

The CONTRACTOR alone shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work. The CONTRACTOR shall take all necessary precautions for the safety of, and shall provide the necessary protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to:

- 6.17.1 All employees on the Work and other persons and organizations who may be affected thereby;
- 6.17.2 All the Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the site; and
- 6.17.3 Other property at the site or adjacent thereto, including trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways,

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)
structures, and utilities not designated for removal, relocation or replacement in the course of construction.

The CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable Regulatory Requirements of any public body having jurisdiction for the safety of persons or property or to protect them from damage, injury or loss; and shall erect and maintain all necessary safeguards for such safety and protection. The CONTRACTOR shall notify owners of adjacent property and utility owners when prosecution of the Work may affect them, and shall cooperate with them in the protection, removal, relocation and replacement of their property. All damage, injury or loss to any property caused, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, by the CONTRACTOR, any Subcontractor, Supplier or any other person or organization directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform or furnish any of the Work or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, shall be remedied by the CONTRACTOR with no change in GMP or Contract Time except as stated in 4.6, except damage or loss attributable to unforeseeable causes beyond the control of and without the fault or negligence of the CONTRACTOR, including but not restricted to acts of God, of the public enemy or governmental authorities. The CONTRACTOR's duties and responsibilities for the safety and protection of the Work shall continue until Final Acceptance (except as otherwise expressly provided in connection with Substantial Completion).

6.18 Safety Representative

The CONTRACTOR shall designate a responsible safety representative at the site. This person shall be the CONTRACTOR's superintendent unless otherwise designated in writing by the CONTRACTOR to the Contracting Officer.

6.19 Emergencies

In emergencies affecting the safety or protection of persons or the Work or property at the site or adjacent thereto, the CONTRACTOR, without special instruction or authorization from the DEPARTMENT, is obligated to act to prevent threatened damage, injury or loss. The CONTRACTOR shall give the Contracting Officer prompt written notice if the CONTRACTOR believes that any significant changes in the Work or variations from the Contract Documents have been caused thereby. If the DEPARTMENT determines that a change in the Contract Documents is required because of the action taken in response to an emergency, a change will be authorized by one of the methods indicated in Paragraph 9.2, as determined appropriate by the Contracting Officer.

6.20 Shop Drawings and Samples

- 6.20.1 After checking and verifying all field measurements and after complying with applicable procedures specified in the General Requirements, the CONTRACTOR shall submit to the Contracting Officer for review and Approval in accordance with the accepted schedule of Shop Drawing submissions the required number of all Shop Drawings, which will bear a stamp or specific written indication that the CONTRACTOR has satisfied CONTRACTOR's responsibilities under the Contract Documents with respect to the review of the submission. All submissions will be identified as the Contracting Officer may require. The data shown on the Shop Drawings will be complete with respect to quantities, dimensions, specified performance and design criteria, materials and similar data to enable the Contracting Officer to review the information as required.
- 6.20.2 The CONTRACTOR shall also submit to the Contracting Officer for review and Approval with such promptness as to cause no delay in Work, all samples required by the Contract Documents. All samples will have been checked by and accompanied by a specific written indication that the CONTRACTOR has satisfied CONTRACTOR's responsibilities under the Contract Documents with respect to the review of the submission and will be identified clearly as to material, Supplier, pertinent data such as catalog numbers and the use for which intended.
- 6.20.3 Before submission of each Shop Drawing or sample the CONTRACTOR shall have determined and verified all quantities, dimensions, specified performance criteria, installation requirements, materials, catalog numbers and similar data with respect thereto and reviewed or coordinated each Shop Drawing or sample with other Shop Drawings and samples and with the requirements of the Work and the Contract Documents.

00700-24

- 6.20.4 At the time of each submission the CONTRACTOR shall give the Contracting Officer specific written notice of each variation that the Shop Drawings or samples may have from the requirements of the Contract Documents, and, in addition, shall cause a specific notation to be made on each Shop Drawing submitted to the Contracting Officer for review and Approval of each such variation. All variations of the proposed Shop Drawing from that specified will be identified in the submission and available maintenance, repair and replacement service will be indicated. The submittal will also contain an itemized estimate of all costs that will result directly or indirectly from acceptance of such variation, including costs of redesign and claims of other Contractors affected by the resulting change, all of which shall be considered by the DEPARTMENT in evaluating the proposed variation. If the variation may result in a change of Contract Time or Price, or Contract responsibility, and is not minor in nature; the CONTRACTOR must submit a written request for Change Order with the variation to notify the DEPARTMENT of his intent. The DEPARTMENT may require the CONTRACTOR to furnish at the CONTRACTOR's expense additional data about the proposed variation. The Contracting Officer may reject any variation request which the Contracting Officer determines is not in the best interest of the DEPARTMENT.
- 6.20.5 When required by the Contract Documents to validate a dimension or condition, the CONTRACTOR will be responsible for validation that the dimension or condition is as represented in the Contract Documents in sufficient time to allow correction prior to impacting the work. Any rework or impact to the work resulting from the CONTRACTOR's failure to perform timely validation will be the responsibility of the CONTRACTOR and the GMP will not be increased as a result of this failure on the part of the CONTRACTOR.

6.21 Shop Drawing and Sample Review

- 6.21.1 The Contracting Officer will review with reasonable promptness Shop Drawings and samples, but the Contracting Officer's review will be only for conformance with the design concept of the Project and for compliance with the information given in the Contract Documents and shall not extend to means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of construction (except where a specific means, method, technique, sequence or procedure of construction is indicated in or required by the Contract Documents) or to safety precautions or programs incident thereto. The review of a separate item as such will not indicate acceptance of the assembly in which the item functions. The CONTRACTOR shall make corrections required by the Contracting Officer and shall return the required number of corrected copies of Shop Drawings and submit as required new samples for review. The CONTRACTOR shall direct specific attention in writing to revisions other than the corrections called for by the Contracting Officer on previous submittals.
- 6.21.2 The Contracting Officer's review of Shop Drawings or samples shall not relieve CONTRACTOR from responsibility for any variation from the requirements of the Contract Documents unless the CONTRACTOR has in writing advised the Contracting Officer of each such variation at the time of submission as required by paragraph 6.20.4. The Contracting Officer if he so determines, may give written Approval of each such variation by Change Order, except that, if the variation is minor and no Change Order has been requested a specific written notation thereof incorporated in or accompanying the Shop Drawing or sample review comments shall suffice as a modification. Approval by the Contracting Officer will not relieve the CONTRACTOR from responsibility for errors or omissions in the Shop Drawings or from responsibility for having complied with the provisions of paragraph 6.20.3.
- 6.21.3 The DEPARTMENT shall be responsible for all DEPARTMENT review costs resulting from the initial submission and first re-submittal. The CONTRACTOR shall, at the discretion of the Contracting Agency, pay all review costs incurred by the DEPARTMENT as a result of any additional re-submittals.
- 6.21.4 Where a Shop Drawing or sample is required by the Specifications, any related Work performed prior to the Contracting Officer's review and Approval of the pertinent submission will be the sole expense and responsibility of the CONTRACTOR.

6.22 Maintenance During Construction

The CONTRACTOR shall maintain the Work during construction and until Substantial Completion, at which time the responsibility for maintenance shall be established in accordance with paragraph 13.10.

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

6.23 Continuing the Work

The CONTRACTOR shall carry on the Work and adhere to the progress schedule during all disputes or disagreements with the DEPARTMENT. No Work shall be delayed or postponed pending resolution of any disputes, disagreements, or claims except as the CONTRACTOR and the Contracting Officer may otherwise agree in writing.

6.24 Consent to Assignment

The CONTRACTOR shall obtain the prior written consent of the Contracting Officer to any proposed assignment of any interest in, or part of this Contract. The consent to any assignment or transfer shall not operate to relieve the CONTRACTOR or his Sureties of any of his or its obligations under this Contract or the Performance Bonds. Nothing herein contained shall be construed to hinder, prevent, or affect an assignment of monies due, or to become due hereunder, made for the benefit of the CONTRACTOR's creditors pursuant to law.

6.25 Use of Explosives

- 6.25.1 When the use of explosives is necessary for the prosecution of the Work, the CONTRACTOR shall exercise the utmost care not to endanger life or property, including new Work and shall follow all Regulatory Requirements applicable to the use of explosives. The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for all damage resulting from the use of explosives.
- 6.25.2 All explosives shall be stored in a secure manner in compliance with all Regulatory Requirements, and all such storage places shall be clearly marked. Where no Regulatory Requirements apply, safe storage shall be provided not closer than 1,000 feet from any building, camping area, or place of human occupancy.
- 6.25.3 The CONTRACTOR shall notify each public utility owner having structures in proximity to the site of his intention to use explosives. Such notice shall be given sufficiently in advance to enable utility owners to take such steps as they may deem necessary to protect their property from injury. However, the CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for all damage resulting from the use of the explosives, whether or not, utility owners act to protect their property.
- 6.25.4 Use of explosives for activities such as excavation and demolition will generally not be permitted on this Project. The use of powder-actuated hand tools may be permitted on a case-by-case basis by the DEPARTMENT when submitted by the CONTRACTOR.

6.26 CONTRACTOR's Records

- 6.26.1 Records of the CONTRACTOR and Subcontractors relating to personnel, payrolls, invoices of materials, and any and all other data relevant to the performance of this Contract, must be kept on a generally recognized accounting system. Such records must be available during normal work hours to the Contracting Officer for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with Regulatory Requirements and provisions of the Contract Documents.
- 6.26.2 Payroll records must contain the name and address of each employee, his correct classification, rate of pay, daily and weekly number of hours of work, deductions made, and actual wages paid. The CONTRACTOR and Subcontractors shall make employment records available for inspection by the Contracting Officer and representatives of the U.S. and/or State Department of Labor and will permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the Project.
- 6.26.3 Records of all communications between the DEPARTMENT and the CONTRACTOR and other parties, where such communications affected performance of this Contract, must be kept by the CONTRACTOR and maintained for a period of 3 years from Final Acceptance. The DEPARTMENT or its assigned representative may perform an audit of these records during normal work hours after written notice to the CONTRACTOR.

6.27 Load Restrictions

The CONTRACTOR shall comply with all load restrictions as set forth in the "Administrative Permit Manual", and Title 17, Chapter 25, of the Alaska Administrative Code in the hauling of materials on public roads, beyond the limits of the project, and on all public roads within the project limits that are scheduled to remain in use upon completion of the project.

00700-26

Overload permits may, at the discretion of the State, be issued for travel beyond the project limits for purposes of mobilization and/or demobilization. Issuance of such a permit will not relieve the CONTRACTOR of liability for damage which may result from the moving of equipment.

The operation of equipment of such weight or so loaded as to cause damage to any type of construction will not be permitted. No overloads will be permitted on the base course or surface course under construction. No loads will be permitted on a concrete pavement, base or structure before the expiration of the curing period. The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for all damage done by his equipment.

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

ARTICLE 7 - LAWS AND REGULATIONS

7.1 Laws to be Observed

The CONTRACTOR shall keep fully informed of all federal and state Regulatory Requirements and all orders and decrees of bodies or tribunals having any jurisdiction or authority, which in any manner affect those engaged or employed on the Work, or which in any way affect the conduct of the Work. The CONTRACTOR shall at all times observe and comply with all such Regulatory Requirements, orders and decrees; and shall protect and indemnify the DEPARTMENT and its representatives against claim or liability arising from or based on the violation of any such Regulatory Requirement, order, or decree whether by the CONTRACTOR, Subcontractor, or any employee of either. Except where otherwise expressly required by applicable Regulatory Requirements, the DEPARTMENT shall not be responsible for monitoring CONTRACTOR's compliance with any Regulatory Requirements.

7.2 Permits, Licenses, and Taxes

- 7.2.1 The CONTRACTOR shall procure all permits and licenses, pay all charges, fees and taxes, and give all notices necessary and incidental to the due and lawful prosecution of the Work. As a condition of performance of this Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall pay all federal, state and local taxes incurred by the CONTRACTOR, in the performance of this Contract. Proof of payment of these taxes is a condition precedent to final payment by the DEPARTMENT under this Contract.
- 7.2.2 The CONTRACTOR's certification that taxes have been paid (as contained in the *Release of Contract*) will be verified with the Department of Revenue and Department of Labor, prior to final payment.
- 7.2.3 If any federal, state or local tax is imposed, charged, or repealed after the date of the submission of the GMP and is made applicable to and paid by the CONTRACTOR on the articles or supplies herein contracted for, then the Contract shall be increased or decreased accordingly by a Change Order.

7.3 Patented Devices, Materials and Processes

If the CONTRACTOR employs any design, device, material, or process covered by letters of patent, trademark or copyright, the CONTRACTOR shall provide for such use by suitable legal agreement with the patentee or owner. The CONTRACTOR and the Surety shall indemnify and save harmless the DEPARTMENT, any affected third party, or political subdivision from any and all claims for infringement by reason of the use of any such patented design, device, material or process, or any trademark or copyright, and shall indemnify the DEPARTMENT for any costs, expenses, and damages which it may be obliged to pay by reason of any infringement, at any time during the prosecution or after the completion of the Work.

7.4 Compliance of Specifications and Drawings

If the CONTRACTOR observes that the Specifications and Drawings supplied by the DEPARTMENT are at variance with any Regulatory Requirements, CONTRACTOR shall give the Contracting Officer prompt written notice thereof, and any necessary changes will be authorized by one of the methods indicated in paragraph 9.2. as determined appropriate by the Contracting Officer. If the CONTRACTOR performs any Work knowing or having reason to know that it is contrary to such Regulatory Requirements, and without such notice to the Contracting Officer, the CONTRACTOR shall bear all costs arising therefrom; however, it shall not be the CONTRACTOR's primary responsibility to make certain that the Specifications and Drawings supplied by the DEPARTMENT are in accordance with such Regulatory Requirements.

7.5 Accident Prevention

The CONTRACTOR shall comply with AS 18.60.075 and all pertinent provisions of the Construction Code Occupational Safety and Health Standards issued by the Alaska Department of Labor.

7.6 Sanitary Provisions

The CONTRACTOR shall provide and maintain in a neat and sanitary condition such accommodations for the use of his employees and DEPARTMENT representatives as may be necessary to comply with the requirements of the State and local Boards of Health, or of other bodies or tribunals having jurisdiction.

00700-28

7.7 Business Registration

Comply with AS 08.18.011, as follows: "it is unlawful for a person to submit a bid or work as a contractor until he has been issued a certificate of registration by the Department of Commerce. A partnership or joint venture shall be considered registered if one of the general partners or venturers whose name appears in the name under which the partnership or venture does business is registered."

7.8 Professional Registration and Certification

All craft trades, architects, engineers and land surveyors, electrical administrators, and explosive handlers employed under the Contract shall specifically comply with applicable provisions of AS 08.18, 08.48, 08.40, and 08.52. Provide copies of individual licenses within 7 days following a request from the Contracting Officer.

7.9 Local Building Codes

The CONTRACTOR shall comply with AS 35.10.025 that requires construction in accordance with applicable local building codes and the obtaining of required permits. The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for coordinating with and providing access to the authority having jurisdiction for inspections.

7.10 Air Quality Control

The CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable provisions of AS 46.03.04 as pertains to Air Pollution Control.

7.11 Archaeological or Paleontological Discoveries

When the CONTRACTOR's operation encounters prehistoric artifacts, burials, remains of dwelling sites, or paleontological remains, such as shell heaps, land or sea mammal bones or tusks, the CONTRACTOR shall cease operations immediately and notify the Contracting Officer. No artifacts or specimens shall be further disturbed or removed from the ground and no further operations shall be performed at the site until so directed. Should the Contracting Officer order suspension of the CONTRACTOR's operations in order to protect an archaeological or historical finding, or order the CONTRACTOR to perform extra Work, such shall be covered by an appropriate Contract change document.

7.12 Applicable Alaska Preferences

- 7.12.1 In determining the low bidder for State funded projects, a five (5) percent bid preference is given to "Alaska bidders", as required under AS 36.30.170. "Alaska bidder" means a person who:
 - a. holds a current Alaska business license;
 - b. submits a bid for goods, services, or construction under the name as appearing on the person's current Alaska business license
 - c. has maintained a place of business within the state staffed by the bidder or an employee of the bidder for a period of 6 months immediately preceding the date of the bid;
 - d. is incorporated or qualified to do business under the laws of the state, is a sole proprietorship, and the proprietor is a resident of the state or is a partnership, and all partners are residents of the state; and
 - e. if a joint venture, is composed entirely of venturers that qualify under (1) through (4), above.
- 7.12.2 In determining the low bidder for State funded projects, an "Alaska products" preference has been given as required under AS 36.30.326 36.30.332, when the bidder designates the use of Alaska products. The Bidder shall complete the Alaska Products Preference Worksheet per its instructions and submit it with the Bid Proposal. If the successful Bidder/CONTRACTOR proposes to use an Alaska product and does not do so, a penalty will be assessed against the successful Bidder/CONTRACTOR in an amount equal to the product preference percentage granted to the successful Bidder/CONTRACTOR plus one (1) percent multiplied by the total declared value of the Alaska products proposed but not used.
- 7.12.3 Pursuant to AS 36.15.050 and AS 36.30.322, "agricultural/wood" products harvested in Alaska shall be used in State funded projects whenever they are priced no more than seven (7) percent above agricultural/wood products harvested outside the state and are of a like quality as compared with agricultural/wood products harvested outside the state, when such products are not utilized, the

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

CONTRACTOR shall document the efforts he made towards obtaining agricultural/wood products harvested in Alaska and include in this documentation a written statement that he contacted the manufacturers and suppliers identified on the Department of Commerce and Economic Development's list of suppliers of Alaska forest products concerning the availability of agricultural/wood products harvested in Alaska and, if available, the product prices. The CONTRACTOR's use of agricultural/wood products that fail to meet the requirements of this section shall be subject to the provisions of paragraphs 12.6 through 12.9 relating to Defective Work.

7.12.4 The CONTRACTOR shall maintain records, in a format acceptable to the Contracting Officer, which establish the type and extent of "agricultural/wood" and "Alaska" products utilized. All record keeping and documentation associated with the requirements 7.12.2 and 7.12.3 of this paragraph must be provided to the DEPARTMENT upon written request or as otherwise provided within the Contract Documents.

7.13 Preferential Employment

For State funded projects, the CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable and valid laws and regulations regarding the hiring of Alaska residents now in effect or that might subsequently take effect during the term of this Contract. In order to ensure that CONTRACTOR's Subcontractors will comply with all applicable laws and regulations regarding the hiring of Alaska residents now in effect or that might subsequently take effect, the CONTRACTOR shall include in its contracts with Subcontractors under this Contract language that is substantially the same as the first sentence of this provision.

7.14 Wages and Hours of Labor

- 7.14.1 One certified copy of all payrolls shall be submitted weekly to the State Department of Labor and, upon request, to the Contracting Officer to assure compliance with AS 36.05.040, *Filing Schedule of Employees Wages Paid and Other Information*. The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the submission of certified copies of payrolls of all Subcontractors. The certification shall affirm that the payrolls are current and complete, that the wage rates contained therein are not less than the applicable rates referenced in these Contract Documents, and that the classification set forth for each laborer or mechanic conforms with the Work he performed. The CONTRACTOR and his Subcontractors shall attend all hearings and conferences and produce such books, papers, and documents all as requested by the Department of Labor. Should federal funds be involved, the appropriate federal agency as identified by the DEPARTMENT shall also receive a copy of the CONTRACTOR'S certified payrolls. Regardless of project funding source, copies of all certified payrolls supplied to the State Department of Labor by the CONTRACTOR shall be supplied also to the Project Manager, upon request, including submittals made by, or on behalf of, subcontractors.
- 7.14.2 The following labor provisions shall also apply to this Contract:
 - The CONTRACTOR and his Subcontractors shall pay all employees unconditionally and not less than once a week;
 - b. Wages may not be less than those stated under AS 36.05.010, regardless of the contractual relationship between the CONTRACTOR or Subcontractors and laborers, mechanics, or field surveyors. The current prevailing rate of wages shall be based on the date as specified in AS 36.05.010 unless such date is modified in the Supplementary Conditions;
 - c. The scale of wages to be paid shall be posted by the CONTRACTOR in a prominent and easily accessible place at the site of the Work;
 - d. The DEPARTMENT shall withhold so much of the accrued payments as is necessary to pay to laborers, mechanics, or field surveyors employed by the CONTRACTOR or Subcontractors the difference between:
 - 1. The rates of wages required by the Contract to be paid laborers, mechanics, or field surveyors on the Work, and;
 - 2. The rates of wages in fact received by laborers, mechanics or field surveyors.
- 7.14.3 Within 3 calendar days of award of a construction contract, the CONTRACTOR shall file a "Notice of Work" with the Department of Labor and shall pay all related fees. The Contracting Officer will not issue Notice to Proceed to the CONTRACTOR until such notice and fees have been paid to the Department of Labor. Failure of the CONTRACTOR to file the Notice of Work and pay fees within this timeframe shall

00700-30

not constitute grounds for an extension of contract time or adjustment of GMP.

7.15 Overtime Work Hours and Compensation

Pursuant to 40 *U.S.C. 327-330* and AS 23.10.060 -.110, the CONTRACTOR shall not require nor permit any laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he is employed on any Work under this Contract to work in excess of 8 hours in any Calendar Day or in excess of forty hours in such workweek on Work subject to the provisions of the *Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act* unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one half times his basic rate of pay for all such hours worked in excess of 8 hours in any Calendar Day or in excess of forty hours in such workweek whichever is the greater number of overtime hours. In the event of any violation of this provision, the CONTRACTOR shall be liable to any affected employee for any amounts due and penalties and to the DEPARTMENT for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic employee was required or permitted to be employed on such Work in excess of 8 hours or in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by this paragraph.

7.16 Covenant Against Contingent Fees

The CONTRACTOR warrants that no person or selling agent has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this Contract upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, excepting bona fide employees or bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by the CONTRACTOR for the purpose of securing business. For breach or violation of this warrant, the DEPARTMENT shall have the right to annul this Contract without liability or, in its discretion, to deduct price of consideration from the Contract or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee.

7.17 Officials Not to Benefit

No member of or delegate to the U.S. Congress, the Alaska State Legislature or other state official shall be admitted to any share or part of this Contract, nor to any benefit that may arise there from. However, this provision shall not be construed to extend to this Contract if made with a corporation for its general benefit.

7.18 Personal Liability of Public Officials

In carrying out any of the provisions thereof, or in exercising any power or authority granted to the Contracting Officer by the Contract, there will be no liability upon the Contracting Officer nor upon state employees authorized as his representatives, either personally or as officials of the State of Alaska, it being always understood that in such matters they act as agents and representatives of the DEPARTMENT.

7.19 Federally Assisted Projects

The work in this contract will be undertaken and accomplished in accordance with the terms and conditions of a Grant Agreement between the State of Alaska and the United States, under the *Federal Aviation Reauthorization Act of 1996*, as amended, pursuant to which the United States may pay a certain percentage of the costs of the project that are determined to be allowable under that Act.

When the United States Government pays all or any portion of the cost of a project, the Federal laws and the rules and regulations made pursuant to such laws must be observed by the CONTRACTOR, and the work shall be subject to the inspection of the appropriate Federal agency. Such inspection shall in no sense make the Federal Government a party to this Contract and will in no way interfere with the rights of either party hereunder.

In the employment of labor (except in executive, administrative, and supervisory positions), preference shall be given to qualified individuals who have served in the military service of the United States (as defined in section 101(1) of the *Soldiers' and Sailors' Civil Relief Act of 1940*) and have been honorably discharged from that service, except that preference may be given only where that labor is available locally and is qualified to perform the work to which the employment relates.

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

7.20 Gratuity and Conflict of Interest

The CONTRACTOR agrees that he will not extend any loan, gratuity or gift of money of any form whatsoever to any employee or agent of the DEPARTMENT nor will he rent or purchase any equipment or materials from any employee of the DEPARTMENT or to the best of his knowledge from any agent of any employee of the DEPARTMENT. Before payment of the final estimate, the CONTRACTOR shall execute and furnish the DEPARTMENT an affidavit certifying that he has complied with the above provisions of the contract.

00700-32

ARTICLE 8 - OTHER WORK

8.1 Related Work at Site

- 8.1.1 The DEPARTMENT reserves the right at any time to contract for and perform other or additional work on or near the Work covered by the Contract.
- 8.1.2 When separate contracts are let within the limits of the Project, the CONTRACTOR shall conduct his Work so as not to interfere with or hinder the work being performed by other contractors. The CONTRACTOR when working on the same Project with other contractors shall cooperate with such other contractors. The CONTRACTOR shall join his Work with that of the others in an acceptable manner and shall perform it in proper sequence to that of others.
- 8.1.3 If the fact that other such work is to be performed is identified or shown in the Contract Documents the CONTRACTOR shall assume all liability, financial or otherwise, in connection with this Contract and indemnify and save harmless the DEPARTMENT from any and all damages or claims that may arise because of inconvenience, delay, or loss experienced by the CONTRACTOR because of the presence and operations of other contractors.
- 8.1.4 If the fact that such other work is to be performed was not identified or shown in the Contract Documents, written notice thereof will be given to the CONTRACTOR prior to starting any such other work. If the CONTRACTOR believes that such performance will require an increase in GMP or Contract Time, the CONTRACTOR shall notify the Contracting Officer of such required increase within fifteen (15) calendar days following receipt of the Contracting Officer's notice. Should the Contracting Officer find such increase(s) to be justified, a Change Order will be executed.

8.2 Access, Cutting, and Patching

The CONTRACTOR shall afford each utility owner and any other contractor who is a party to such a direct contract with the DEPARTMENT (or the DEPARTMENT, if the DEPARTMENT is performing the additional work with the DEPARTMENT's employees) proper and safe access to the site and a reasonable opportunity for the introduction and storage of materials and equipment and the execution of such work, and shall properly connect and coordinate the Work with the work of others. The CONTRACTOR shall do all cutting, fitting and patching of the Work that may be required to make its several parts come together properly and integrate with such other work, the CONTRACTOR shall not endanger any work of others by cutting, excavating or otherwise altering their work and will only cut or alter such other work with the written consent of the Contracting Officer. The duties and responsibilities of the CONTRACTOR under this paragraph are for the benefit of other contractors to the extent that there are comparable provisions for the benefit of the CONTRACTOR in said direct contracts between the DEPARTMENT and other contractors.

8.3 Defective Work by Others

If any part of the CONTRACTOR's Work depends for proper execution or results upon the work of any such other contractor, utility owner, or the DEPARTMENT, the CONTRACTOR shall inspect and promptly report to the Contracting Officer in writing any delays, defects or deficiencies in such work that render it unavailable or unsuitable for such proper execution and results. The CONTRACTOR's failure to so report will constitute an acceptance of the other work as fit and proper for integration with CONTRACTOR's Work except for latent or nonapparent defects and deficiencies in the other work.

8.4 Coordination

If the DEPARTMENT contracts with others for the performance of other work at the site, Contracting Officer will have authority and responsibility for coordination of the activities among the various prime contractors.

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

ARTICLE 9 - CHANGES

9.1 DEPARTMENT's Right to Change

Without invalidating the Contract and without notice to any Surety, the DEPARTMENT may, at any time or from time to time, order additions, deletions or revisions in the Work within the general scope of the Contract, including but not limited to changes:

- 9.1.1 In the Contract Documents;
- 9.1.2 In the method or manner of performance of the Work;
- 9.1.3 In State-furnished facilities, equipment, materials, services, or site;
- 9.1.4 Directing acceleration in the performance of the Work.

9.2 Authorization of Changes within the General Scope

One or more of following means shall be used to authorize additions, deletions, or revisions in the Work within the general scope of the Contract as specified in 9.1:

- 9.2.1 Directive (pursuant to paragraph 9.3)
- 9.2.2 A Change Order (pursuant to paragraph 9.4)
- 9.2.3 DEPARTMENTs acceptance of Shop Drawing variations from the Contract Documents as specifically identified by the CONTRACTOR as required by paragraph 6.20.4.
- 9.2.4 Interim Work Authorization (pursuant to paragraph 9.10)
- 9.3 Directive
- 9.3.1 The Contracting Officer shall provide written clarification or interpretation of the Contract Documents (pursuant to paragraph 3.6).
- 9.3.2 The Contracting Officer may authorize minor variations in the Work from the requirements of the Contract Documents that do not involve an adjustment in the GMP or the Contract Time and are consistent with the overall intent of the Contract Documents.
- 9.3.3 The Contracting Officer may order the CONTRACTOR to correct Defective Work or methods that are not in conformance with the Contract Documents.
- 9.3.4 The Contracting Officer may direct the commencement or suspension of Work or emergency related Work (as provided in paragraph 6.19).
- 9.3.5 Upon the issuance of a Directive to the CONTRACTOR by the Contracting Officer, the CONTRACTOR shall proceed with the performance of the Work as prescribed by such Directive.
- 9.3.6 If the CONTRACTOR believes that the changes noted in a Directive may cause an increase in the GMP or an extension of Contract Time, the CONTRACTOR shall immediately provide written notice to the Contracting Officer depicting such increases before proceeding with the Directive, except in the case of an emergency. If the Contracting Officer finds the increase in GMP or the extension of Contract Time justified, a Change Order will be issued. If however, the Contracting Officer does not find that a Change Order is justified, the Contracting Officer may direct the CONTRACTOR to proceed with the Work. The CONTRACTOR shall cooperate with the Contracting Officer in keeping complete daily records of the cost of such Work. If a Change Order is ultimately determined to be justified, in the absence of agreed prices and unit prices, payment for such Work will be made on a "cost of the work basis" as provided in 10.5
- 9.4 Change Order

A change in Contract Time, GMP, or responsibility may be made for changes within the scope of the Work by Change Order. Upon receipt of an executed Change Order, the CONTRACTOR shall promptly proceed with the Work involved that will be performed under the applicable conditions of the Contract Documents except as otherwise specifically provided. Changes in GMP and Contract Time shall be made in accordance with Articles 10 and 11. A Change Order shall be considered executed when it is signed by the DEPARTMENT.

9.5 Shop Drawing Variations

00700-34

Variations by shop drawings and a request for a Change Order submitted as per 6.20.4 shall only be eligible for consideration under 9.4 when the CONTRACTOR identifies in writing conditions that affect the price, time, or responsibility

9.6 Changes Outside the General Scope; Supplemental Agreement

When the Contracting Officer determines that a change is outside the general scope of the Contract, it must be authorized by a Supplemental Agreement signed by the appropriate representatives of the DEPARTMENT and the CONTRACTOR.

9.7 Unauthorized Work

The CONTRACTOR shall not be entitled to an increase in the GMP or an extension of the Contract Time with respect to any work performed that is not required by the Contract Documents as amended, modified and supplemented as provided in this Article 9, except in the case of an emergency as provided in paragraph 6.19 and except in the case of uncovering Work as provided in paragraph 12.4.2.

9.8 Notification of Surety

If notice of any change affecting the general scope of the Work or the provisions of the Contract Documents (including, but not limited to, GMP or Contract Time) is required by the provisions of any bond to be given to a Surety, the giving of any such notice will be the CONTRACTOR's responsibility, and the amount of each applicable bond will be adjusted accordingly.

9.9 Differing Site Conditions

- 9.9.1 The CONTRACTOR shall promptly, and before such conditions are disturbed (except in an emergency as permitted by paragraph 6.19), notify the Contracting Officer in writing of: (1) subsurface or latent physical conditions at the site differing materially from those indicated in the Contract, and which could not have been discovered by a careful examination of the site, or (2) unknown physical conditions at the site, of an unusual nature, differing materially from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in work of the character provided for in this Contract. The Contracting Officer shall promptly investigate the conditions, and if the Contracting Officer finds that such conditions do materially so differ and cause an increase or decrease in the CONTRACTOR's cost of, or time required for, performance of this Contract, an equitable adjustment shall be made and the Contract modified in writing accordingly.
- 9.9.2 Any claim for additional compensation by the CONTRACTOR under this clause shall be made in accordance with Article 15. In the event that the Contracting Officer and the CONTRACTOR are unable to reach an agreement concerning an alleged differing site condition, the CONTRACTOR will be required to keep an accurate and detailed record which will indicate the actual "cost of the work" done under the alleged differing site condition. Failure to keep such a record shall be a bar to any recovery by reason of such alleged differing site conditions. The Contracting Officer shall be given the opportunity to supervise and check the keeping of such records.

9.10 Interim Work Authorization

An Interim Work Authorization may be used to establish a change within the scope of the Work; however, only a Change Order shall establish associated changes in Contract Time and GMP. Work authorized by Interim Work Authorization shall be converted to a Change Order. The basis of payment shall be as stated in the Interim Work Authorization, unless it states that the basis of payment has not been established and is to be negotiated, in which case the basis of payment shall be Cost of the Work pursuant to Article 10.5.

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

ARTICLE 10 - CONTRACT PRICE; COMPUTATION AND CHANGE

10.1 Contract Price: Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP)

The GMP, as outlined in paragraph 13.0, constitutes the maximum amount of compensation payable to the CONTRACTOR for performing the Work. All duties, responsibilities and obligations assigned to or undertaken by the CONTRACTOR shall be covered under the GMP. The GMP may only be changed by a Change Order or Supplemental Agreement.

In establishing the GMP, the CONTRACTOR will have become thoroughly familiar with the construction documents and specifications upon which the GMP will be based, and will have made best efforts to determine complete scope of work contemplated therein. No change order will be issued for an adjustment in contract price or contract time for work resulting from issuance of subsequent updates to the contract documents that should have been reasonably anticipated in the documents used to prepare the MACC.

10.2 Claim for Price Change

Any claim for an increase or decrease in the GMP shall be submitted in accordance with the terms of Article 15, and shall not be allowed unless notice requirements of this Contract have been met.

10.3 Change Order Price Determination

The value of any Work covered by a Change Order for an increase or decrease in the GMP shall be determined in one or a combination of the following ways as the DEPARTMENT may elect:

- 10.3.1 Where the Work involved is covered by unit prices contained in the Contract Documents, by application of unit prices to the quantities of the items involved (subject to the provisions of subparagraphs 10.9.1 through 10.9.3, inclusive).
- 10.3.2 Where the Work involved is covered by a subcontractor or supplier or is Self performed as described in subparagraphs 13.0.6.a and 13.0.6.b, by mutual acceptance of a lump sum price, which includes a Markup fee for <u>overhead and profit</u> (determined as provided in paragraphs 10.4 and 10.6)
- 10.3.3 When 10.3.1 and 10.3.2 are inapplicable and where the Work involved is covered by a subcontractor or supplier or is Self performed as described in subparagraphs 13.0.6.a and 13.0.6.b, on the basis of the "cost of the work" (determined as provided in paragraph 10.5) plus a Markup fee for overhead and profit (determined as provided in paragraph 10.6).
- 10.3.4 When the Work involved is covered under the reimbursable provisions for CONTRACTOR administrative and support Work allowed by subparagraph 13.0.6.c, as determined by the DEPARTMENT an adjustment to the approved estimated cost included in the GMP for this Work, which excludes a Markup fee for overhead and profit. In the absence of mutual acceptance of an adjustment, the CONTRACTOR shall provide written notice and proceed under the provisions of paragraph 10.2.
- 10.3.5 Before a Change Order or Supplemental Agreement is approved; the CONTRACTOR shall submit cost or pricing data in accordance with paragraphs 6.26 and 10.7 regarding the changed or extra Work. The CONTRACTOR shall certify that the data submitted is, to his best knowledge and belief, accurate, complete and current as of a mutually determined specified date and that such data will continue to be accurate and complete during the performance of the changed or extra Work.

10.4 Lump Sum Price Change Method

The CONTRACTOR shall prepare a lump sum proposal in the following format:

- 10.4.1 Direct Costs
 - a. Material (itemize)
 - The cost to the CONTRACTOR for the material directly required for the performance of the changed Work. Such cost of material may include the cost of transportation. Only the applicable portion of a delivery charge will be allowed if the delivery is not specifically for the changed Work,
 - 2. Trade discounts offered by the supplier to the CONTRACTOR shall be credited to the DEPARTMENT. If the material is obtained from a source owned wholly or in part by the CONTRACTOR, payment thereof will not exceed the current wholesale price for the

00700-36

material. The term "trade discount" includes the concept of cash discounting.

- 3. If, in the opinion of the DEPARTMENT, the cost of the material is excessive or if the CONTRACTOR fails to furnish satisfactory evidence of a cost to him from the supplier then, in either case, the cost of the material shall be deemed to be the lowest current wholesale price at which similar material is available in the quantities required.
- 4. The DEPARTMENT reserves the right to furnish such material as it deems advisable and the CONTRACTOR shall have no claims for cost or profit on material furnished by the DEPARTMENT.
- b. Labor (man-hours, rates by crafts)
 - 1. Payroll costs shall include, but not be limited to, salaries and wages, and fringe benefits including social security contributions, unemployment, excise and payroll taxes, workers' compensation, health and retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation and holiday pay applicable thereto. The costs for all supervision, including general superintendents and foremen, shall be included in the markups established by this Contract. The only exception to this shall be working foremen who perform manual labor. No labor charges will be accepted for engineering or proposal preparation. These costs shall be included in the markups established by this Contract.
- c. Equipment (type, size, attachments, hours, rate)
 - 1. The cost to the CONTRACTOR for the use of equipment directly required in the performance of the changed Work. No mobilization or demobilization cost will be allowed for equipment already on site.
 - 2. For equipment owned, furnished, or rented by the CONTRACTOR, costs allowed shall be the actual usage costs incurred as supported by the CONTRACTOR's published standard equipment rates or rental invoices. Rates charged shall not exceed the rates established by the Rental Rate Blue Book.
 - 3. The amount to be paid to the CONTRACTOR for the use of equipment as set forth above will constitute full compensation for the cost of fuel, power, oil, lubricants, supplies, small tools, small equipment, necessary attachments, repairs and maintenance of any kind, depreciation, storage, insurance, labor (except for equipment operators) and any and all costs incidental to the use of the equipment.
- d. Consultants
 - Cost of outside consultants and professional personnel (including but not limited to engineers, architects, testing laboratories, and surveyors) employed for services necessary for the completion of the Work as may be required by the CONTRACTOR. The CONTRACTOR shall obtain the consent of the DEPARTMENT prior to engaging such outside consultants if the consultant's services are not specifically identified in the Contract Documents and qualifications are not previously provided therefor.
- e. Direct costs shall not include:
 - Payroll costs and other compensation of the CONTRACTOR's officers, executives, principals of partnerships and sole proprietorships, general managers, engineers, architects, estimators, lawyers, auditors, accountants, purchasing and contracting agents, expeditors, timekeepers, clerks, superintendents and non working foremen, and similar administrative personnel. These costs shall be considered administrative costs covered by the CONTRACTOR's Markup fee.
 - 2. Expense of the CONTRACTOR's principal and branch offices other than that portion of the CONTRACTOR's office at the site devoted to the Work.
 - 3. Any part of the CONTRACTOR's capital expenses. Interest on the CONTRACTOR's capital employed for the Work. Charges against the CONTRACTOR for delinquent payments.

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

- 4. Costs due to the negligence of the CONTRACTOR, any Subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable. Negligence costs include correction of defective Work, disposal of material wrongly supplied, and making good any damage to property.
- 5. Other overhead or general expense costs of any kind.
- 6. Cost of supplies not incorporated into the Work.
- 7. Cost of safety programs.
- 8. Cost of warranty work.
- 10.4.2 Sub Tier Subcontract Costs
 - a. If required by DEPARTMENT, CONTRACTOR shall obtain competitive quotes from Subcontractors or Suppliers and shall select and award subcontracts in accordance with the CONTRACTOR's subcontracting solicitation plan approved by the DEPARTMENT.
 - b. Direct costs shall be as outlined in paragraph 10.4.1.
 - c. Subcontractors' (at any tier) markups for overhead and profit shall not exceed eighteen (18) percent of the direct costs.

10.4.3 Overhead and Profit

a. The CONTRACTOR's Markup fee for overhead and profit shall not exceed the amounts provided in paragraph 10.6.

10.5 Cost of the Work Change Method

- 10.5.1 The term "cost of the work" means the sum of all costs necessarily incurred and paid by the CONTRACTOR in the proper performance of the Work. Except as otherwise may be agreed to in writing by the DEPARTMENT, such costs shall include only the Reimbursable Costs identified in paragraphs 10.5.1.a through 10.5.1.f and shall not include any of the Not Reimbursable Costs itemized in paragraph 10.5.1.g. The CONTRACTOR and the DEPARTMENT shall compare records of force account costs at the end of each workday. Copies of these records shall be made in duplicate by the CONTRACTOR and shall be signed daily by both the DEPARTMENT and the CONTRACTOR. Except as otherwise may be agreed to in writing by the DEPARTMENT, such costs shall be in amounts no higher than those prevailing in the locality of the Work. "Cost of the work" may include the following items:
 - a. Cost of all material furnished and incorporated in the Work, in accordance with Paragraph 10.4.1.a.
 - b. Labor costs for employees in the direct employment of the CONTRACTOR in the performance of the Work in accordance with Paragraph 10.4.1.b. Reimbursement for overtime and premium time outside of the CONTRACTOR's established working hours requires a minimum of 72 hours advanced notification provided to the DEPARTMENT.
 - c. Cost of equipment furnished and used in completion of the Work in accordance with Paragraph 10.4.1.c.
 - 1. Equipment will be eligible for payment when operated and used on a full-time basis. Equipment is considered to be used full time when the equipment must be manned and ready for use at all times.
 - 2. When the DEPARTMENT determines that equipment need not remain at the site continuously, payment will be limited to actual hours of use.
 - 3. Rental rates for equipment retained on the Work for an extended duration will be adjusted to the then-current rate on the anniversary of the Work Start Date.
 - 4. The hourly operating cost will be allowed for each hour that the equipment is in use. The rate will be the monthly rate divided by 176 hours for single-shift operations. Hourly rates will be adjusted for two- and three-shift operations as recommended by the Rental Rate Blue Book.

00700-38

- 5. Equipment attachments will be included in the rate only when deemed by the DEPARTMENT to be essential to the Work. When multiple attachments are approved for use (tractor with ripper, dozer or tractor with loader and backhoe, etc.) and the attachments are being used interchangeably, only the one attachment having the higher rate will be eligible for payment.
- 6. Standby time, when ordered by the DEPARTMENT, will be paid as follows: -One-third of the total rate established in paragraphs 10.5.1.c.4 and 10.5.1.c.5 above, rounded to the nearest 10 cents. Standby rates which are calculated at less than one dollar per hour will not be paid. No more than 8 hours of standby will be paid during a 24-hour period. No more than 40 hours of standby will be paid during a one-week period. In the event of breakdown, or shutdown by order of the DEPARTMENT, of part or all of the equipment being used, payment for such equipment that is idled shall cease. Labor that is idled and cannot be diverted to other Work will be paid through the one-half shift during which the breakdown or shutdown occurred. No other payment will be made for non-operating hours.
- 7. Rental will not be allowed for equipment listed in the Shop Tools section of the Rental Rate Blue Book having a daily rate of less than \$5 each. Individual pieces of equipment not specifically covered by the Rental Rate Blue Book and having a value of \$750 or less shall be considered "small tools and equipment for which no rental is allowed."
- d. Payments made by the CONTRACTOR to Sub tier Subcontractors for Work performed by Sub tier Subcontractors in accordance with paragraph 10.4.2
- e. Cost of outside Consultants and professional personnel as may be required in connection with services provided by the CONTRACTOR for completion of the Work in accordance with paragraph 10.4.1.d.
- f. Supplemental costs:
 - 1. Sales, use, or similar taxes related to the Work, and for which the CONTRACTOR is liable, imposed by any governmental authority.
 - Costs for royalty payments, fees, permits, and licenses other than those caused by the negligence of the CONTRACTOR or the CONTRACTOR's employees, agents, or Subcontractors.
 - 3. Losses, damages, and related expenses sustained by the CONTRACTOR in connection with the execution of the Work that are not caused by the negligence of the CONTRACTOR, any Subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable, and are not compensated for by insurance recovery. Losses, damages, and related expenses shall include settlements made with the written consent and approval of the DEPARTMENT.
 - No such losses, damages and related expenses shall be included in the force account cost for the purpose of determining the CONTRACTOR's markup for overhead and profit.
 - For any loss or damage requiring reconstruction that the CONTRACTOR is placed in charge of, the CONTRACTOR shall be paid for services to the extent otherwise eligible for payment under Article 10.5,
 - 4. The cost of utilities, fuel, and sanitary facilities at the site.
 - 5. Minor expenses in connection with the Work such as telegrams, long distance telephone calls, telephone service at the site, expressage, and petty cash items.
 - 6. Rental of all the CONTRACTOR-owned and operated power tools and equipment having a value greater than \$750, which the DEPARTMENT approves for use. The cost of small tools and equipment, excluding hand tools owned by the workers, having a value of \$750 or less which are consumed in the performance of the Work.
- g. Cost of the Work method shall not include:

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

- 1. Payroll costs and other compensation of the CONTRACTOR's officers, executives, principals of partnerships and sole proprietorships, general managers, engineers, architects, estimators, lawyers, auditors, accountants, purchasing and contracting agents, expeditors, timekeepers, clerks, superintendents and non working foremen, and similar administrative personnel. These costs shall be considered administrative costs covered by the CONTRACTOR's Markup fee.
- 2. Expense of the CONTRACTOR's principal and branch offices other than that portion of the CONTRACTOR's office at the site devoted to the Work.
- Any part of the CONTRACTOR's capital expenses. Interest on the CONTRACTOR's capital employed for the Work. Charges against the CONTRACTOR for delinquent payments.
- 4. Costs due to the negligence of the CONTRACTOR, any Subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable. Negligence costs include correction of defective Work, disposal of material wrongly supplied, and making good any damage to property.
- The costs of any item not specifically and expressly included in Paragraphs 10.5.1.a through 10.5.1.f.

10.5.2 Overhead and Profit

a. The CONTRACTOR's Markup fee for overhead and profit shall not exceed the amounts provided in paragraph 10.6

10.6 Fee on Changed Work

10.6.1 CONTRACTOR's Fixed Fee

The CONTRACTOR's Fixed Fee included in the GMP shall not be increased or decreased unless the MACC, adjusted to include all change orders, varies more than five (5) percent above or five (5) percent below the original MACC. If the MACC, adjusted to include all change orders, is:

- a. Greater than One-hundred and five (105) percent of the value of the original MACC, the CONTRACTOR's Fixed Fee shall increase. The amount of the Fixed Fee increase shall be determined by multiplying the portion of the MACC, adjusted to include all change orders, which is above this value, by the Fixed Fee Ratio; the DEPARTMENT will add the resulting product to the CONTRACTOR's Fixed Fee component of the GMP.
- b. Less than Ninety-five (95) percent of the value of the original MACC, the CONTRACTOR'S Fixed Fee shall decrease. The amount of the Fixed Fee decrease shall be determined by multiplying that portion of the MACC, including all change orders, which is below this value by the Fixed Fee Ratio; the DEPARTMENT will subtract the resulting product from the CONTRACTOR'S Fixed Fee component of the GMP.

10.6.2 Subcontractor's Markup Fee and Markup Fee on Self Performed Work

Except where specified, the term Subcontractor in 10.6.2 shall also be applied to Self-performed work by the CONTRACTOR. The Markup fee for overhead and profit for Subcontractor Changed Work, shall be determined as follows.

- a. A Markup fee based on the following maximum rates of cost markup for the Subcontractor (to cover both overhead and profit of the Subcontractor) shall be used in the negotiation of a lump-sum Change Order under paragraph 10.4:
 - 1. When the work is performed by a subcontractor, the Markup fee for the subcontractor which is performing the work shall be eighteen (18) percent of the costs incurred, and when the CONTRACTOR Self-performs work, the Markup fee for the CONTRACTOR shall be thirteen (13) percent. When multiple tiers of subcontractors are involved, the Markup fee to each intermediate tier subcontractor shall be limited to ten (10 percent) of the total cost of the changed work by the subcontractor which actually performs the work.

00700-40

- 2. These terms shall also apply to the proposals of subcontractors of all tiers.
- 3. No Markup fee is allowed for costs listed in paragraphs 10.4.1.d and 10.4.1.e
- A Markup fee based on the following percentages of the various portions of the "cost of the work" under paragraph 10.5:
 - 1. For costs incurred under paragraphs 10.5.1.a through 10.5.1.c the Markup fee for the subcontractor which is performing the work shall be fifteen (15) percent and when the CONTRACTOR Self-performs work, the Markup fee for the CONTRACTOR shall be ten (10) percent.
 - 2. For costs incurred under paragraph 10.5.1.d. the Markup fee for the subcontractor which is performing the work shall be fifteen (15) percent of the costs incurred under paragraphs 10.5.1.a. through 10.5.1.c. and the Markup fee to each intermediate tier subcontractor shall be limited to five (5) percent of the total cost of the changed work by the subcontractor which actually performs the work.
 - 3. No Markup fee shall be payable on the basis of costs itemized under paragraphs 10.5.1.e through 10.5.1.g.
- c. The amount of credit to be allowed by the Subcontractor to the DEPARTMENT for any such change which results in a net decrease in cost will be the amount of the actual net decrease plus a deduction in Subcontractor's Markup fee by an amount equal to ten (10) percent of the net decrease
- d. When both additions and credits are involved in any one change, the adjustment in Subcontractor's Markup fee shall be computed on the basis of the net change in accordance with paragraphs 10.6.2.a through 10.6.2.c, inclusive.
- e. Cost Changes to Bonds and Insurance:

When changes in the Work require new or increased premiums on bonds and insurance, or premiums for property insurance coverage within the limits of the deductible amounts established by the DEPARTMENT in accordance with Article 5, the DEPARTMENT shall reimburse such costs.

10.7 Cost Breakdown

Whenever the value or cost of any Work is to be determined pursuant to Article 10, the CONTRACTOR will submit in a form acceptable to the DEPARTMENT an itemized cost breakdown together with supporting data.

10.8 Cash Allowances

It is understood that CONTRACTOR has included in the GMP all allowances so named in the Contract Documents and shall cause the Work so covered to be done by such Subcontractors or Suppliers and for such sums within the limit of the allowances as may be acceptable to the Contracting Officer. CONTRACTOR agrees that:

- 10.8.1 The allowances include the cost to CONTRACTOR (less any applicable trade discounts) of materials and equipment required by the allowances to be delivered at the site, and all applicable taxes; and
- 10.8.2 CONTRACTOR's cost for unloading and handling on the site, labor, installation costs, overhead, profit and other expenses contemplated for the allowances have been included in the GMP and not in the allowances. No demand for additional payment on account of any thereof will be valid.

Prior to final payment, an appropriate Change Order will be issued to reflect actual amounts due the CONTRACTOR on account of Work covered by allowances, and the GMP shall be correspondingly adjusted.

- 10.9 Unit Price Work
- 10.9.1 Where the Contract Documents provide that all or part of the Work is to be Unit Price Work, initially the GMP will be deemed to include for all Unit Price Work an amount equal to the sum of the established unit prices for each separately identified item of Unit Price Work times the estimated quantity of each item as

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

indicated in the Contract. The estimated quantities of items of Unit Price Work are not guaranteed and are solely for the purpose of comparison of bids and determining an initial GMP. Determinations of the actual quantities and classifications of Unit Price Work performed by the CONTRACTOR will be made by the DEPARTMENT in accordance with paragraph 10.10.

- 10.9.2 Each unit price will be deemed to include an amount considered by the CONTRACTOR to be adequate to cover the CONTRACTOR's overhead and profit for each separately identified item; however, it shall not include the CONTRACTOR's Fixed Fee. If the "Basis of Payment" clause in the Contract Documents relating to any unit price in the bid schedule requires that the said unit price cover and be considered compensation for certain work or material essential to the item, this same work or material will not also be measured or paid for under any other pay item which may appear elsewhere in the Contract Documents. Each unit price item shall include all overhead and profit but shall not include the CONTRACTOR's Fixed Fee.
- 10.9.3 Payment to the CONTRACTOR shall be made only for the actual quantities of Work performed and accepted or materials furnished, in conformance with the Contract Documents. When the accepted quantities of Work or materials vary from the quantities stated in the bid schedule, or change documents, the CONTRACTOR shall accept as payment in full, payment at the stated unit prices for the accepted quantities of Work and materials furnished, completed and accepted; except as provided below:
 - a. When the quantity of Work to be done or material to be furnished under any item, for which the total cost of the item exceeds ten (10) percent of the total GMP, is increased by more than twenty-five (25) percent of the quantity stated in the bid schedule, or change documents, either party to the Contract, upon demand, shall be entitled to an equitable unit price adjustment on that portion of the Work above one-hundred-twenty-five (125) percent of the quantity stated in the bid schedule.
 - b. When the quantity of Work to be done or material to be furnished under any major item, for which the total cost of the item exceeds ten (10) percent of the total GMP, is decreased by more than twenty-five (25) percent of the quantity stated in the bid schedule, or change documents either party to the Contract, upon demand, shall be entitled to an equitable price adjustment for the quantity of Work performed or material furnished, limited to a total payment of not more than seventy-five (75) percent of the amount originally bid for the item.

10.10 Determinations for Unit Prices

The Contracting Officer will determine the actual quantities and classifications of Unit Price Work performed by the CONTRACTOR. The Contracting Officer will review with the CONTRACTOR preliminary determinations on such matters before finalizing the costs and quantities on the Schedule of Values. The Contracting Officer's acknowledgment thereof will be final and binding on the CONTRACTOR, unless, within 10 days after the date of any such decisions, the CONTRACTOR delivers to the Contracting Officer written notice of intention to appeal from such a decision.

10.11 Federal Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program (Federal-Aid Contracts)

The DBE program shall be in accordance with Section 00120.

00700-42

ARTICLE 11 - CONTRACT TIME; COMPUTATION AND CHANGE

11.1 Commencement of Contract Time; Notice to Proceed

The Contract Time will commence to run on the day indicated in the Notice to Proceed.

11.2 Starting the Work

No Work on Contract items shall be performed before the effective date of the Notice to Proceed. The CONTRACTOR shall notify the Contracting Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the time actual construction operations will begin. The CONTRACTOR may request a limited Notice to Proceed after Award has been made, to permit him to order long lead materials which could cause delays in Project completion. However, granting is within the sole discretion of the Contracting Officer, and refusal or failure to grant a limited Notice to Proceed shall not be a basis for claiming for delay, extension of time, or alteration of price.

11.3 Computation of Contract Time

11.3.1 When the Contract Time is specified on a Calendar Day basis, all Work under the Contract shall be completed within the number of Calendar Days specified. The count of Contract Time begins on the day following receipt of the Notice to Proceed by the CONTRACTOR, if no starting day is stipulated therein.

Calendar Days shall continue to be counted against Contract Time until and including the date of Substantial Completion of the Work.

11.3.2 When the Contract completion time is specified as a fixed calendar date, it shall be the date of Substantial Completion.

11.4 Time Change

The Contract Time may only be changed by a Change Order or Supplemental Agreement.

11.5 Extension Due to Delays

The right of the CONTRACTOR to proceed shall not be terminated nor the CONTRACTOR charged with liquidated or actual damages because of delays to the completion of the Work due to unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the CONTRACTOR, including, but not restricted to the following: acts of God or of the public enemy, acts of the DEPARTMENT in its contractual capacity, acts of another contractor in the performance of a contract with the DEPARTMENT, floods, fires, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes, unusually severe weather and delays of Subcontractors or Suppliers due to such causes. Any delay in receipt of materials on the site, caused by other than one of the specifically mentioned occurrences above, does not of itself justify a time extension, provided that the CONTRACTOR shall within twenty four (24) hours from the beginning of any such delay (unless the Contracting Officer shall grant a further period of the time prior to the date of final settlement of the Contract), notify the Contracting Officer in writing of the cause of delay. The Contracting Officer shall ascertain the facts and the extent of the delay and extend the time for completing the Work when the findings of fact justify such an extension.

11.6 Essence of Contract

All time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract.

11.7 Reasonable Completion Time

It is expressly understood and agreed by and between the CONTRACTOR and the DEPARTMENT that the date of beginning and the time for Substantial and Final Completion of the Work described herein are reasonable times for the completion of the Work.

11.8 Delay Damages

Whether or not the CONTRACTOR's right to proceed with the Work is terminated, he and his Surety shall be liable for damages resulting from his refusal or failure to complete the Work within the specified time.

Liquidated damages for delay shall be paid by the CONTRACTOR or his Surety to the DEPARTMENT in the amount as specified in the Supplementary Conditions for each Calendar Day the completion of the Work or any part thereof is delayed beyond the time required by the Contract, or any extension thereof.

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

The DEPARTMENT may deduct any monies due the DEPARTMENT for liquidated damages from any monies due the CONTRACTOR. If no money is due the CONTRACTOR, the DEPARTMENT shall have the right to recover said sum from the CONTRACTOR, the surety or both.

The CONTRACTOR acknowledges that the liquidated damages established herein are not a penalty but rather constitute a reasonable estimate of damages that the DEPARTMENT will sustain by reason of delayed completion. The liquidated damages represent a reasonable estimate of actual damages resulting from additional costs for continued management, loss of production and the value of money.

These liquidated damages will continue to run both before and after termination in the event of default termination. These liquidated damages do not cover excess costs of completion or DEPARTMENT costs, fees, and charges related to re-procurement. If a default termination occurs, the CONTRACTOR or his Surety shall pay, all excess costs and expenses related to completion as provided by Article 14.2.9 in addition to these damages.

Permitting the CONTRACTOR to continue and finish the work or any part of it after the time fixed for its completion, or after the date to which the time for completion may have been extended, will in no way operate as a waiver on the part of the DEPARTMENT of any of its rights under the Contract.

00700-44

ARTICLE 12 - QUALITY ASSURANCE

12.1 Warranty and Guaranty

The CONTRACTOR warrants and guarantees to the DEPARTMENT that all Work will be in accordance with the Contract Documents and will not be Defective. Prompt notice of all defects shall be given to the CONTRACTOR. All Defective Work, whether or not in place, may be rejected, corrected or accepted as provided for in this article.

12.2 Access to Work

The DEPARTMENT and the DEPARTMENT's representatives, testing agencies and governmental agencies with jurisdiction interests will have access to the Work at reasonable times for their observation, inspecting and testing. The CONTRACTOR shall provide proper and safe conditions for such access.

12.3 Tests and Inspections

- 12.3.1 The CONTRACTOR shall give the Contracting Officer timely notice of readiness of the Work for all required inspections, tests or Approvals.
- 12.3.2 If Regulatory Requirements of any public body having jurisdiction require any Work (or part thereof) to specifically be inspected, tested or approved, the CONTRACTOR shall assume full responsibility therefor, pay all costs in connection therewith and furnish the Contracting Officer the required certificates of inspection, testing or approval, except that the DEPARTMENT shall pay the cost of Special Inspections required by the International Building Code and the authority having jurisdiction. The CONTRACTOR shall also be responsible for and shall pay all costs in connection with any inspection or testing required in connection with DEPARTMENT's acceptance of a Supplier of materials or equipment proposed to be incorporated in the Work, or of materials or equipment submitted for Approval prior to the CONTRACTOR's purchase thereof for incorporation in the Work.

The CONTRACTOR shall pay the cost of all inspections, tests and approvals that are required by the Contract Documents in addition to those above. The DEPARTMENT may perform additional tests and inspections that it deems necessary to insure quality control. All such failed tests or inspections shall be at the CONTRACTOR's expense.

- 12.3.3 Not Used
- 12.3.4 If any Work (including the work of others) that is to be inspected, tested or Approved is covered without written concurrence of the Contracting Officer, it must, if requested by the Contracting Officer, be uncovered for observation. Such uncovering shall be at the CONTRACTOR's expense unless the CONTRACTOR has given the Contracting Officer timely notice of CONTRACTOR's intention to cover the same and the Contracting Officer has not acted with reasonable promptness in response to such notice.
- 12.3.5 Neither observations nor inspections, tests or Approvals, including Quality Assurance tests or inspections by the DEPARTMENT or others shall relieve the CONTRACTOR from the CONTRACTOR's obligations to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

12.4 Uncovering Work

- 12.4.1 If any Work is covered contrary to the written request of the Contracting Officer, it must, if requested by the Contracting Officer, be uncovered for the Contracting Officer's observation and replaced at the CONTRACTOR's expense.
- 12.4.2 If the Contracting Officer considers it necessary or advisable that covered Work be observed inspected or tested, the CONTRACTOR, at the Contracting Officer's request, shall uncover, expose or otherwise make available for observation, inspection or testing as the Contracting Officer may require, that portion of the Work in question, furnishing all necessary labor, material and equipment. If it is found that such Work is Defective, the CONTRACTOR shall bear all direct and indirect costs of such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection and testing and of satisfactory reconstruction, (including but not limited to fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys and other professionals) and the DEPARTMENT shall be entitled to an appropriate decrease in the Contract Price. If, however, such Work is not found to be Defective, the CONTRACTOR shall be allowed an increase in the GMP or an extension of the Contract Time, or both, directly attributable to such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection, testing and reconstruction.

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

12.5 DEPARTMENT May Stop the Work

If the Work is Defective, or the CONTRACTOR fails to supply suitable materials or equipment, or fails to furnish or perform the Work in such a way that the completed Work will conform to the Contract Documents, the Contracting Officer may order the CONTRACTOR to stop the Work, or any portion thereof, until the cause for such order has been eliminated; however, this right of the Contracting Officer to stop the Work shall not give rise to any duty on the part of the Contracting Officer to exercise this right for the benefit of the CONTRACTOR or any other party.

12.6 Correction or Removal of Defective Work

If required by the Contracting Officer, the CONTRACTOR shall promptly, as directed, either correct all Defective Work, whether or not fabricated, installed or completed, or, if the Work has been rejected by the Contracting Officer, remove it from the site and replace it with Work which conforms to the requirements of the Contract Documents. The CONTRACTOR shall bear all direct and indirect costs of such correction or removal (including but not limited to fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys and other professionals) made necessary thereby.

12.7 One Year Correction Period and Standard Warranty

If within one year after the date of Substantial Completion of the Construction Contract or such longer period of time as may be prescribed by Regulatory Requirements or by the terms of any applicable special guarantee or extended warranty required by the Contract Documents or by any specific provision of the Contract Documents, any Work is found to be Defective, the CONTRACTOR shall promptly, without cost to the DEPARTMENT and in accordance with the Contracting Officer's written instructions, either correct such Defective Work, or, if it has been rejected by the Contracting Officer, remove it from the site and replace it with conforming Work. If the CONTRACTOR does not promptly comply with the terms of such instructions, or in an emergency where delay would cause serious risk of loss or damage, the DEPARTMENT may have the Defective Work corrected or the rejected Work removed and replaced, and all direct and indirect costs of such removal and replacement (including but not limited to fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys and other professionals) will be paid by the CONTRACTOR. In special circumstances where a particular item of equipment is placed in continuous service for the benefit of the DEPARTMENT before Substantial Completion of all the Work, the correction and warranty period for that item may begin on an earlier date if so provided in the Specifications or by Change Order. Provisions of this paragraph are not intended to shorten the statute of limitations for bringing an action.

12.8 Acceptance of Defective Work

Instead of requiring correction or removal and replacement of Defective Work, the Contracting Officer may accept Defective Work; the CONTRACTOR shall bear all direct and indirect costs attributable to the Contracting Officer's evaluation of and determination to accept such Defective Work (costs to include but not be limited to fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys and other professionals). If any such acceptance occurs prior to final payment, a Change Order will be issued incorporating the necessary revisions in the Contract Documents with respect to the Work; and the DEPARTMENT shall be entitled to an appropriate decrease in the GMP. If the DEPARTMENT has already made final payment to the CONTRACTOR, the CONTRACTOR or his Surety shall pay an appropriate amount to the DEPARTMENT.

12.9 DEPARTMENT May Correct Defective Work

If the CONTRACTOR fails within a reasonable time after written notice from the Contracting Officer to proceed to correct Defective Work or to remove and replace rejected Work as required by the Contracting Officer in accordance with paragraph 12.6, or if the CONTRACTOR fails to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, or if the CONTRACTOR fails to comply with any other provision of the Contract Documents, the DEPARTMENT may, after 7 days' written notice to the CONTRACTOR, correct and remedy any such deficiency. In exercising the rights and remedies under this paragraph the DEPARTMENT shall proceed expeditiously. To the extent necessary to complete corrective and remedial action, the Contracting Officer may exclude the CONTRACTOR from all or part of the site, take possession of all or part of the Work, and suspend the CONTRACTOR's services related thereto, take and incorporate in the Work all materials and equipment stored at the site or approved remote storage sites

00700-46

or for which the DEPARTMENT has paid the CONTRACTOR but which are stored elsewhere. The CONTRACTOR shall allow the Contracting Officer and his authorized representatives such access to the site as may be necessary to enable the Contracting Officer to exercise the rights and remedies under this paragraph. All direct and indirect costs of the DEPARTMENT in exercising such rights and remedies will be charged against the CONTRACTOR, and a Change Order will be issued incorporating the necessary revisions in the Contract Documents with respect to the Work; and the DEPARTMENT shall be entitled to an appropriate decrease in the GMP. Such direct and indirect costs will include but not be limited to fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys and other professionals, all court and arbitration costs and all costs of repair and replacement of work of others destroyed or damaged by correction, removal or replacement of the CONTRACTOR's Defective Work. The CONTRACTOR shall not be allowed an extension of time because of any delay in performance of the work attributable to the exercise, by the Contracting Officer, of the DEPARTMENT's rights and remedies hereunder.

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

ARTICLE 13 - PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR AND COMPLETION

13.0 Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) Allowable Costs, Maximum Allowable Construction Cost (MACC), Fees, and Allowances

13.0.1 Basis

The CONTRACTOR shall be entitled to the following compensation, and no other, for satisfactory performance of the work required under this Contract:

- Subject to the provisions of this Contract, including but not limited to provisions regarding the Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP), reimbursement of reasonable costs actually incurred in performance of the Contract for which reimbursement is expressly authorized by this Contract;
- b. A Fixed Fee equal to the Fixed Fee Ratio multiplied by the Maximum Allowable Construction Cost (MACC) for Work under the base (original GMP) Contract plus any increase or decrease to the Fixed Fee resulting from change orders in accordance with paragraph 10.6.1; and
- c. In addition to and not as a part of the GMP, the CONTRACTOR shall be entitled to an Incentive Fee in accordance with the express provisions of this Contract.

13.0.2 Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP)

The GMP consists of the MACC plus the Fixed Fee.

13.0.3 Maximum Allowable Construction Cost (MACC)

a. Amount

The DEPARTMENT's obligation to the CONTRACTOR for allowable reimbursable costs under this Contract shall not exceed the Maximum Allowable Construction Cost, (MACC), subject only to adjustments up or down to reflect changes in work scope effected by fully executed Change Orders or Supplemental Agreements.

b. Components

Prior to the award of a contract to perform the construction Work, the MACC is the estimated and negotiated sum of all reimbursable costs as defined in the Contract for the performance of the work, consisting of two components: (1) the negotiated cost Cost of the Work, and (2) the Contingency. After award of a contract to perform the construction Work, the MACC may be adjusted by Change Order or Supplemental Agreement, but only in accordance with the Contract.

1. Negotiated Cost of the Work

The Negotiated Cost of the Work may include the following pursuant to paragraph 13.0.6: (1) Subcontractor and Supplier Costs, (2) Self-performed Work Costs, and (3) CONTRACTOR administrative and support Work Costs allowed by paragraph 13.0.6.c. In addition, the Negotiated Cost of the Work may include Allowances as directed by the DEPARTMENT pursuant to paragraph 13.0.9.

Self Performed Work - Upon written approval of the DEPARTMENT, the CONTRACTOR may self-perform greater than twenty (20) percent of the work in any single Contract phase under the CM/GC PROJECT, as long as the total value of Self performed Work does not exceed twenty (20) percent of the total MACC for all Contract phases of work included in the CM/GC PROJECT. The CONTRACTOR will notify the DEPARTMENT in writing of any Contract Work it proposes to self-perform and submit a Cost Proposal for performing the work. The CONTRACTOR's cost proposal for Self-performed Work shall not include the CONTRACTOR's Fixed Fee (The CONTRACTOR's Fixed Fee shall be applied separately pursuant to paragraphs 13.0.1 and 13.0.2). Self-performed Work is to be included in the MACC as part of the Negotiated Cost of the Work. It will be reimbursed and treated as a subcontract except when otherwise specified in this Contract. The DEPARTMENT may accept the CONTRACTOR's proposal to self-perform work; negotiate a price acceptable to both parties for performing the work; or, require the CONTRACTOR to Subcontract the work to others.

00700-48

Contingency

2.

i. The <u>Construction Contingency</u>, may only be expended or committed by the CONTRACTOR for the Cost of the Work with prior review between CONTRACTOR and DEPARTMENT with documentation of notification and written consent of the DEPARTMENT before the CONTRACTOR may commit or expend these construction contingency funds. Articles 10.4 and 10.5, 10.6.2, 10.6.7, and 10.9 shall be used for price determination when utilizing Construction Contingency funds. Any construction contingency remaining at Final Completion shall revert to the DEPARTMENT, and is not payable to the CONTRACTOR. Written notification and consent may occur at work sessions related to the construction contingency utilization review and/or during the monthly billing review procedure. The Construction Contingency is to be used for:

Additions to the scope of the Work.

Additional work arising from regulatory requirements.

ii. The <u>CONTRACTOR's Contingency</u> component shall be used for the cost of the Work at the CONTRACTOR's discretion. This portion of the contingency shall be reviewed with the DEPARTMENT monthly on an information only basis. Unused CONTRACTOR's contingency component shall be returned to the DEPARTMENT through the Change Order process.

13.0.4 Not Used

13.0.5 Adjustments

- a. The CONTRACTOR shall familiarize itself with the design documents and make every effort to determine the complete scope of work reflected therein. CONTRACTOR acknowledges that the design documents are not complete, but the CONTRACTOR represents that it has priced all of the Work reflected on the contract documents and all work reasonably inferable as necessary to complete the design reflected in the contract documents. No Change Order shall be issued for an adjustment in GMP or contract time for work which should have reasonably been anticipated from the contract documents.
- b. The GMPs for the construction contract or contracts under the CM/GC PROJECT will be negotiated and awarded as described in the Supplementary Conditions.
- c. The design upon which the GMP is based is fully described in the Contract Documents. The CONTRACTOR represents that it relied upon the Contract Documents in extrapolating costs for the GMP:
- d. The GMP shall be adjusted up or down in response to fully executed change orders that change the scope of the work required under the Contract.

13.0.6 Reimbursable Costs

Subject to the GMP and other provisions of the Contract, the DEPARTMENT shall reimburse the CONTRACTOR for reasonable costs directly attributable to this Contract and incurred in the following categories, and no others (for purposes of this section reimbursable costs exclude CONTRACTOR mark-up and fees, which are addressed elsewhere):

a Subcontractors and Suppliers

Payments to subcontractors and suppliers, provided that the DEPARTMENT shall receive the benefit of trade and quantity discounts, and the CONTRACTOR shall retain the benefits of discounts for early or timely payment.

b. Self-Performed Work

The Self-performed Work authorized by this Contract will be reimbursed and treated as a subcontract except when otherwise specified in the Contract.

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

c. CONTRACTOR Performed administrative and support Work covered in the General Requirements, and the General Conditions and Supplementary Conditions.

The DEPARTMENT will reimburse the CONTRACTOR for the costs of administrative and support work required to perform the Work in accordance with the following paragraphs, provided the CONTRACTOR authenticates to the satisfaction of the DEPARTMENT that these costs are not included in the CONTRACTOR's Home Office overhead or Fixed Fee:

1. Regular Labor Costs

Salaries or wages, plus fringe benefits routinely provided by the CONTRACTOR (including, as applicable, retirement, life insurance, medical insurance, sick leave, holiday pay, vacation, and other benefits required by law or by a then current labor agreement), for all of the following employees for the time they are engaged in the work under the Contract:

- i. Field labor, including field superintendents;
- ii. Employees stationed at the CONTRACTOR's field office;
- iii. Employees engaged at the shops or on the road in expediting the production or transportation of materials or equipment required of this contract; and
- 2. Not Used
- 3. Not Used
- Not Used
- 5. Overtime Labor Costs

Overtime identified in the CONTRACTOR's estimate of reimbursable costs, plus overtime approved by the DEPARTMENT in advance for additional work required by the DEPARTMENT.

6. Subsistence and Travel

Subsistence and travel for the CONTRACTOR's salaried employees normally stationed in the field office when those employees are required to travel and remain out of the Anchorage metropolitan area in direct performance of work under this Contract, but only with DEPARTMENT prior approval.

7. Supplies

Field office supplies and services, including office supplies, telephone, postage, reproduction, photographs, and field office data processing equipment.

Fire and Safety

Safety, first aid, and temporary fire protection.

9. Job Site Facilities and Services

Temporary facilities and services at the job site, including the job shack and other structures, sanitation, debris removal, roads, heat, light, water, air, and weather protection. Utilities shall be reimbursable to the extent that they are not furnished by the DEPARTMENT as outlined in the Contract Documents.

10. Materials

Materials, expendable supplies, consumables (other than hand tools owned by CONTRACTOR's employees on the project), and their transportation to the work site.

11. Taxes, License Fees, Bond Premiums, Insurance Premiums as required pursuant to paragraph 5.4.2, and Royalties

Licenses, royalties, bond premiums, and sales or similar taxes which the CONTRACTOR is required by law to pay and are in effect as of the effective date of this contract, other than

00700-50

personal property taxes on the CONTRACTOR's construction equipment and CONTRACTOR's income taxes.

12. CONTRACTOR's Equipment

Reimbursement for use of CONTRACTOR owned equipment shall be at the CONTRACTOR's published rental equipment rates included in this Contract, plus cost of fuel and routine maintenance. Prior to use of such equipment, the CONTRACTOR shall furnish the DEPARTMENT with a rent versus purchase analysis, the DEPARTMENT shall have the unilateral right to decide whether to rent the equipment or provide DEPARTMENT equipment to the CONTRACTOR. For those items of equipment for which the total rental is expected to exceed the replacement cost shown on the equipment rental rate table, the DEPARTMENT will have the right to discontinue further monthly rental payments beyond the replacement value but retain the service of the equipment; reimbursing the CONTRACTOR only for fuel and routine maintenance costs. For equipment furnished by the DEPARTMENT to the CONTRACTOR for use on the Work, the CONTRACTOR will be reimbursed for transportation to and from the site, unloading and loading at the site, repair, maintenance and fueling.

13. Rented Equipment

Rental of equipment owned by third party equipment vendors while it is engaged in Contract work, plus fuel and routine maintenance at the CONTRACTOR's actual cost. Prior to use of such equipment, the CONTRACTOR shall furnish the DEPARTMENT with a rent versus purchase analysis, the DEPARTMENT shall have the unilateral right to decide whether to rent the equipment or provide DEPARTMENT equipment to the CONTRACTOR. For equipment furnished by the DEPARTMENT to the CONTRACTOR for use on the Work, the CONTRACTOR will be reimbursed for transportation to and from the site, unloading and loading at the site, repair, maintenance and fueling.

14. Material Storage

Offsite storage of materials in a location and under circumstances approved by the DEPARTMENT in advance and in writing.

15. Permits

All building and other permits for which the CONTRACTOR is responsible under the Contract.

16. Documents

Preparing, obtaining, and copying reports, schedules, manuals, drawings, specifications, related data processing services, and other documents necessary for the performance of the Contract work, except as specified in paragraph 13.0.7.6.

17. Legal Costs

Reasonable attorney's fees and other costs necessarily incurred by the CONTRACTOR in mediation, arbitration, or litigation necessarily and reasonably incurred in the performance of the Work, but not including fees or costs arising in connection with disputes between the CONTRACTOR, including its subcontractors or suppliers and the DEPARTMENT. The CONTRACTOR shall notify the DEPARTMENT in writing within 5 days of the CONTRACTOR's knowledge of potential for incurring such cost.

 Craft Labor for CONTRACTOR Performed administrative and support Work covered under paragraph 13.0.6.c

For work required in performance of the administrative and support Work allowed under paragraph 13.0.6.c, the CONTRACTOR may use CONTRACTOR-furnished craft labor.

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

19. Consultants

Cost of outside Consultants and professional personnel as may be required in connection with services provided by the CONTRACTOR. The CONTRACTOR shall obtain the consent of the DEPARTMENT prior to engaging such outside Consultants who not specifically required and identified in the Contract Documents.

20. Insurance Losses

Excluding losses resulting from gross negligence, willful misconduct or malicious behavior, the cost of repairing damaged Work, only to the extent that the cost of such repairs is not recoverable by the CONTRACTOR from others and the CONTRACTOR is not compensated therefor by insurance or otherwise, provided that the remaining available Contractor's Contingency within the GMP is not exceeded.

13.0.7 Costs Not Reimbursable

The following is a non-exclusive list of categories of costs for which the CONTRACTOR is not entitled to reimbursement, and are to be accounted for in CONTRACTOR's Fixed Fee:

a. Certain Salaries and Other Compensation

The salary of any individual who is a partner in or an officer of the CONTRACTOR, or of any individual employed in any of the CONTRACTOR's offices other than the field office except as provided for in the Supplementary Conditions.

b. Overhead

Home Office overhead and any corporate general and administrative costs including any costs described in 13.0.6 that are included in the CONTRACTOR's Home Office overhead.

c. Interest

Interest on capital.

d. Employee Relocation Expenses

Any expenses related to employee relocation, including but not limited to moving costs, subsistence, and/or living allowances.

e. Profit

Profit.

f. Proposal

Preparation of the CONTRACTOR's response to the DEPARTMENT's request for proposals for this Contract.

g. Hand Tools

The hand tools owned by the CONTRACTOR's employees on the project.

h. Corrective Work

The cost of corrective work performed as Self-performed Work or by subcontractors and suppliers.

i. Excess Costs

Otherwise reimbursable costs in excess of the MACC.

13.0.8 MACC Allowances

The MACC may be subject to adjustment for changes in the MACC Allowances for the cost of work items included in the MACC. MACC Allowances will be indicated in the Contract Documents

a. Unless otherwise stated, these MACC Allowances cover all costs related to the described items, including but not limited to labor, material, equipment, delivery, taxes, handling costs, installation costs, and subcontracts.

00700-52

b. If the final cost of a MACC Allowance item is more or less than the MACC Allowance, the MACC and GMP may be increased or decreased by subsequent change order by an amount equal to the difference between the final cost of the MACC Allowance item and the MACC Allowance amount stated in this Contract, as approved by the DEPARTMENT.

13.1 Schedule of Values

The Schedule of Values established as provided in paragraph 6.6 will serve as the basis for progress payments and will be incorporated into a form of Application for Payment acceptable to the Contracting Officer. Progress payments on account of Unit Price Work will be based on the number of units completed.

13.2 Preliminary Payments

Upon approval of the Schedule of Values the CONTRACTOR may be paid for direct costs substantiated by paid invoices and other prerequisite documents required by the General Requirements. Direct costs shall include the cost of bonds, insurance, approved materials stored on the site or at approved remote storage sites, deposits required by a Supplier prior to fabricating materials, and other approved direct mobilization costs substantiated as indicated above. These payments shall be included as a part of the total GMP as stated in the Contract.

13.3 Application for Progress Payment

The CONTRACTOR shall submit to the Contracting Officer for review an Application for Payment filled out and signed by the CONTRACTOR covering the Work completed as of the date of the Application for Payment and accompanied by such supporting documentation as is required by the Contract Documents. The CONTRACTOR may submit periodically, but not more than once each month, a request for payment for work performed, materials delivered and stored on the site and progress payment of the CONTRACTOR's Fixed Fee equal to a proportional amount of the reimbursable costs for each payment request. Payment shall be based on the most recent schedule of values submitted by the CONTRACTOR in accordance with the Contract Documents. The schedule of values shall allocate the entire GMP among the various pieces of work, except the CONTRACTOR's Fixed Fee and the contingency account shall be shown as separate items. Applications for Payment shall show the percentage of completion for each portion of the Work as of the end of the period covered as described below:

The percentage of completion for costs covered under Articles 10, 13.0.6.a and 13.0.6.b for Subcontractor and Supplier, and Self-Performed Work shall be the percentage of that portion of the Work that has actually been completed. The percentage of completion for costs covered under Article 13.0.6.c shall be calculated based on the estimated actual expense for that portion of the Work incurred during the period of the Application for Payment.

Payment requests shall be submitted to the DEPARTMENT, who will promptly verify the correctness thereof for payment. Payment will be due and payable promptly by the DEPARTMENT after the DEPARTMENT's receipt and approval of a correct payment request in accordance with the Alaska Statutes. Final payment will be processed in the same manner. Progress payments will be made in accordance with the General Conditions, for payments and retainage. For all payment requests after the initial Application for Payment, the CONTRACTOR shall transmit such cost reports as requested by the DEPARTMENT from the CONTRACTOR's automated cost accounting system that detail and substantiate the actual expenses incurred during the prior Application for Payment period, together with the current payment request. The CONTRACTOR shall make adjustments up or down when the actual expenses are higher or lower than the corresponding amount requested in the prior Application for Payment. The CONTRACTOR shall retain adjustments up or down when the actual expenses are higher or lower than the corresponding amount requested in the prior Application for Payment. The CONTRACTOR shall retain accounting the contract of the Work during the period involved, with copies of payroll for labor, records of equipment used, and copies of bills. These records shall be kept at the CONTRACTOR's jobsite office and shall be available for audit by the DEPARTMENT at any time. At any time the DEPARTMENT may request copies of supporting invoices or other documents required by the DEPARTMENT.

13.4 Review of Applications for Progress Payment

Contracting Officer will either indicate in writing a recommendation of payment or return the Application for Payment to the CONTRACTOR indicating in writing the Contracting Officer's reasons for refusing to recommend payment. In the latter case, the CONTRACTOR may make the necessary corrections and

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

resubmit the Application for Payment.

13.5 Stored Materials and Equipment

If payment is requested on the basis of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work but delivered and suitably stored at the site or at another location agreed to in writing, the Application for Payment shall also be accompanied by a bill of sale, paid invoice or other documentation warranting that the DEPARTMENT has received the materials and equipment free and clear of all charges, security interests and encumbrances and evidence that the materials and equipment are covered by appropriate property insurance and other arrangements to protect the DEPARTMENT's interest therein, all of which will be satisfactory to the Contracting Officer. No payment will be made for perishable materials that could be rendered useless because of long storage periods. No progress payment will be made for living plant materials until planted.

13.6 CONTRACTOR's Warranty of Title

The CONTRACTOR warrants and guarantees that title to all Work, materials and equipment covered by any Application for Payment, whether incorporated in the Project or not, will pass to the DEPARTMENT no later than the time of payment free and clear of any claims, liens, security interests and further obligations.

13.7 Withholding of Payments

The DEPARTMENT may withhold or refuse payment for any of the reasons listed below provided it gives written notice of its intent to withhold and of the basis for withholding:

- 13.7.1 The Work is Defective, or completed Work has been damaged requiring correction or replacement, or has been installed without Approval of Shop Drawings, or by an unapproved Subcontractor, or for unsuitable storage of materials and equipment.
- 13.7.2 A Change Order has reduced the GMP,
- 13.7.3 The DEPARTMENT has been required to correct Defective Work or complete Work in accordance with paragraph 12.9.
- 13.7.4 The DEPARTMENT's actual knowledge of the occurrence of any of the events enumerated in paragraphs 14.2.1.a through 14.2.1.m inclusive.
- 13.7.5 Claims have been made against the DEPARTMENT or against the funds held by the DEPARTMENT on account of the CONTRACTOR's actions or inactions in performing this Contract, or there are other items entitling the DEPARTMENT to a set off.
- 13.7.6 Subsequently discovered evidence or the results of subsequent inspections or test; nullify any previous payments for reasons stated in subparagraphs 13.7.1 through 13.7.5.
- 13.7.7 The CONTRACTOR has failed to fulfill or is in violation of any of his obligations under any provision of this Contract.

13.8 Retainage

At any time the DEPARTMENT finds that satisfactory progress is not being made it may in addition to the amounts withheld under 13.7 retain a maximum amount equal to ten (10) percent of the total amount earned on all subsequent progress payments. This retainage may be released at such time as the Contracting Officer finds that satisfactory progress is being made.

13.9 Request for Release of Funds

If the CONTRACTOR believes the basis for withholding is invalid or no longer exists, immediate written notice of the facts and Contract provisions on which the CONTRACTOR relies, shall be given to the DEPARTMENT, together with a request for release of funds and adequate documentary evidence proving that the problem has been cured. In the case of withholding which has occurred at the request of the Department of Labor, the CONTRACTOR shall provide a letter from the Department of Labor stating that withholding is no longer requested. Following such a submittal by the CONTRACTOR, the DEPARTMENT shall have a reasonable time to investigate and verify the facts and seek additional assurances before determining whether release of withheld payments is justified.

00700-54

13.10 Substantial Completion

When the CONTRACTOR considers the Work ready for its intended use, and has obtained the approval of all maintenance and operating manuals and marked up record documents, the CONTRACTOR shall notify the Contracting Officer in writing that the Work or a portion of Work which has been specifically identified in the Contract Documents is substantially complete (except for items specifically listed by the CONTRACTOR as incomplete) and request that the DEPARTMENT issue a certificate of Substantial Completion. Within a reasonable time thereafter, the Contracting Officer, the CONTRACTOR and appropriate Consultant(s) shall make an inspection of the Work to determine the status of completion. If the Contracting Officer does not consider the Work substantially complete, the Contracting Officer will notify the CONTRACTOR in writing giving the reasons therefor. If the Contracting Officer considers the Work substantially complete, the Contracting Officer of Substantial CONTRACTOR a certificate of Substantial Completion with tentative list of items to be completed or corrected. At the time of delivery of the certificate of Substantial Completion the CONTRACTOR a written division of responsibilities pending Final Completion with respect to security, operation, safety, maintenance, heat, utilities, insurance and warranties which shall be consistent with the terms of the Contract Documents.

The DEPARTMENT shall be responsible for all DEPARTMENT costs resulting from the initial inspection and the first re-inspection; the CONTRACTOR shall pay all costs incurred by the DEPARTMENT resulting from re-inspections, thereafter.

13.11 Access Following Substantial Completion

The DEPARTMENT shall have the right to exclude the CONTRACTOR from the Work after the date of Substantial Completion, but the DEPARTMENT shall allow CONTRACTOR reasonable access to complete or correct items on the tentative list.

13.12 Final Inspection

Upon written notice from the CONTRACTOR that the entire Work or an agreed portion thereof is complete, the Contracting Officer will make a final inspection with the CONTRACTOR and appropriate Consultant(s) and will notify the CONTRACTOR in writing of all particulars in which this inspection reveals that the Work is incomplete or Defective. The CONTRACTOR shall immediately take such measures as are necessary to remedy such deficiencies. The CONTRACTOR shall pay for all costs incurred by the DEPARTMENT resulting from re-inspections.

13.13 Final Completion and Application for Payment

After the CONTRACTOR has completed all such corrections to the satisfaction of the Contracting Officer and delivered all finalized maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, guarantees, bonds, certificates of payment to all laborers, Subcontractors and Suppliers, certificates of inspection, marked-up record documents and other documents - all as required by the Contract Documents; and after the Contracting Officer has indicated in writing that the Work has met the requirements for Final Completion, and subject to the provisions of paragraph 13.18, the CONTRACTOR may make application for payment for Final Completion following the procedure for progress payments. All remaining certificates, warranties, guarantees, releases, affidavits shall accompany the application for Final Payment, and other documentation required by the Contract Documents.

13.14 Final Payment

13.14.1 Following the issuance of payment for Final Completion, the DEPARTMENT shall conduct a final review of project documentation to verify the Work has been completed in conformance with the Contract Documents. Upon request, the CONTRACTOR shall provide the DEPARTMENT with documentation to support its review. If on the basis of the Contracting Officer's observation of the Work during construction and final inspection, and the Contracting Officer's review of the application for Final Payment and accompanying documentation - all as required by the Contract Documents; and the Contracting Officer is satisfied that the Work has been completed and the CONTRACTOR's other obligations under the Contract Documents have been fulfilled, the DEPARTMENT will process application for Final Payment. Otherwise, the Contracting Officer will return the application for Final Payment to the CONTRACTOR, indicating in writing the reasons for refusing to process Final Payment, in which case the CONTRACTOR shall make the necessary corrections and resubmit the application for Final Payment.

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

13.14.2 If, through no fault of the CONTRACTOR, Final Completion of the Work is significantly delayed, the Contracting Officer shall, upon receipt of the CONTRACTOR's application for Final Payment, and without terminating the Contract, make payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed and accepted. If the remaining balance to be held by the DEPARTMENT for Work not fully completed or corrected is less than the retainage provided for in paragraph 13.9, and if bonds have been furnished as required in paragraph 5.1, the written consent of the Surety to the payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed and accepted shall be submitted by the CONTRACTOR to the DEPARTMENT with the application for such payment. Such payment shall be made under the terms and conditions governing final payment, except that it shall not constitute a waiver of claims.

13.15 Final Acceptance

Following certification of payment of payroll and revenue taxes, and final payment to the CONTRACTOR, the DEPARTMENT will issue a letter of Final Acceptance, releasing the CONTRACTOR from further obligations under the Contract, except those (1) specified in paragraphs 13.16, 13.17, and 13.18, (2) required by law or regulation, or (3) continuing obligations established by the provisions of this Contract, such as warranty, guaranty, indemnity, insurance or bond.

13.16 CONTRACTOR's Continuing Obligation

The CONTRACTOR's obligation to perform and complete the Work and pay all laborers, Subcontractors, and materialmen in accordance with the Contract Documents shall be absolute. Neither any progress or final payment by the DEPARTMENT, nor the issuance of a certificate of Substantial Completion, nor any use or occupancy of the Work or any part thereof by the DEPARTMENT or Using Agency, nor any act of acceptance by the DEPARTMENT nor any failure to do so, nor any review and Approval of a Shop Drawing or sample submission, nor any correction of Defective Work by the DEPARTMENT will constitute an acceptance of Work not in accordance with the Contract Documents or a release of the CONTRACTOR's obligation to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

13.17 Waiver of Claims by CONTRACTOR

The making and acceptance of final payment will constitute a waiver of all claims by the CONTRACTOR against the DEPARTMENT other than those previously made in writing and still unsettled.

13.18 No Waiver of Legal Rights

The DEPARTMENT shall not be precluded or be stopped by any payment, measurement, estimate, or certificate made either before or after the completion and acceptance of the Work and payment therefor, from showing the true amount and character of the Work performed and materials furnished by the CONTRACTOR, nor from showing that any payment, measurement, estimate or certificate is untrue or is incorrectly made, or that the Work or materials are Defective. The DEPARTMENT shall not be precluded or stopped, notwithstanding any such measurement, estimate, or certificate and payment in accordance therewith, from recovering from the CONTRACTOR or his Sureties, or both, such damages as it may sustain by reason of his failure to comply with requirements of the DEPARTMENT, nor any payment for or acceptance of the whole or any part of the Work, nor any extension of the Contract Time, nor any possession taken by the DEPARTMENT, shall operate as a waiver of any portion of the Contract or of any power herein reserved, or of any right to damages. A waiver by the DEPARTMENT of any breach of the Contract shall not be held to be a waiver of any other subsequent breach.

00700-56

ARTICLE 14 - SUSPENSION OF WORK, DEFAULT AND TERMINATION

14.1 DEPARTMENT May Suspend Work

- 14.1.1 The DEPARTMENT may, at any time, suspend the Work or any portion thereof by notice in writing to the CONTRACTOR. If the Work is suspended without cause the CONTRACTOR shall be allowed an increase in the GMP or an extension of the Contract Time, or both, directly attributable to any suspension if the CONTRACTOR makes an Approved claim therefrom as provided in Article 15. However, no adjustment shall be made under this clause for any suspension, delay, or interruption to the extent that suspension is due to the fault or negligence of the CONTRACTOR, or that suspension is necessary for Contract compliance, or that performance would have been so suspended, delayed, or interrupted by any other cause, including the fault or negligence of the CONTRACTOR.
- 14.1.2 In case of suspension of Work, the CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for preventing damage to or loss of any of the Work already performed and of all materials whether stored on or off the site or Approved remote storage sites.

14.2 Default of Contract

- 14.2.1 The Contracting Officer may give the CONTRACTOR and its surety a written Notice to Cure Default if the CONTRACTOR:
 - a. fails to begin work in the time specified,
 - b. fails to use sufficient resources to assure prompt completion of the work,
 - c. performs the work unsuitably or neglect or refuse to remove and replace rejected materials or work,
 - d. stops work,
 - e. fails to resume stopped work after receiving notice to do so,
 - f. becomes insolvent (except that if the CONTRACTOR declares bankruptcy, termination will be under Title 11 US Code 362 and/or 365. The CONTRACTOR's bankruptcy does not relieve the surety of any obligations to assume the Contract and complete the work in a timely manner.),
 - g. allows any final judgment to stand against him unsatisfied for period of 60 days,
 - h. makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors without the consent of the Contracting Officer,
 - i. disregards Regulatory Requirements of any public body having jurisdiction,
 - j. otherwise violates in any substantial way any provisions of the Contract Documents,
 - k. fails to comply with Contract minimum wage payments or civil rights requirements,
 - 1. is party to fraud, deception, misrepresentation, or
 - m. for any cause whatsoever, fails to carry on the Work in an acceptable manner.
- 14.2.2 The Notice to Cure Default will detail the conditions determined to be in default, the time within which to cure the default and may, in the Contracting Officer's discretion, specify the actions necessary to cure the default. Failure to cure the delay, neglect or default within the time specified in the Contracting Officer's written notice to cure authorizes the DEPARTMENT to terminate the contract. The Contracting Officer may allow more time to cure than originally stated in the Notice to Cure Default if he deems it to be in the best interests of the DEPARTMENT. The DEPARTMENT will provide CONTRACTOR and its surety with a written Notice of Default Termination that details the default and the failure to cure it.
- 14.2.3 If the CONTRACTOR or Surety, within the time specified in the above notice of default, shall not proceed in accordance therewith, then the DEPARTMENT may, upon written notification of termination from the Contracting Officer of the fact of such delay, neglect or default and the CONTRACTOR's failure to comply with such notice, have full power and authority without violating the Contract, to take the prosecution of the Work out of the hands of the CONTRACTOR. The DEPARTMENT may terminate the services of the CONTRACTOR, exclude the CONTRACTOR from the site and take possession of the

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

Work and of all the CONTRACTOR's tools, appliances, construction equipment, machinery plant and associated items at the site and use the same to the full extent they could be used by the CONTRACTOR (without liability to the CONTRACTOR for trespass or conversion), incorporate in the Work all materials and equipment stored at the site or for which the DEPARTMENT has paid the CONTRACTOR but which are stored elsewhere, and finish the Work as the DEPARTMENT may deem expedient. The DEPARTMENT may enter into an agreement for the completion of said Contract according to the terms and provisions thereof, or use such other methods that in the opinion of the Contracting Officer are required for the completion of said Contract in an acceptable manner.

- 14.2.4 Rather than taking over the work itself, the DEPARTMENT may, by written notice to the CONTRACTOR and its Surety or its representative, transfer the employment of the Work from the CONTRACTOR to the Surety, or if the CONTRACTOR abandons the Work undertaken under the Contract, the Contracting Officer may, at his option with written notice to the Surety and without any written notice to the CONTRACTOR, transfer the employment for said Work directly to the Surety. The Surety shall submit its plan for completion of the Work, including any contracts or agreements with third parties for such completion, to the DEPARTMENT for Approval prior to beginning completion of the Work. Approval of such contracts shall be in accordance with all applicable requirements and procedures for Approval of subcontracts as stated in the Contract Documents.
- 14.2.5 On receipt of the transfer notice, the surety must take possession of all tools, appliances, construction equipment, machinery plant and associated items at the work site, provide required items, employ an appropriate work force, and complete the Contract work, as specified. The Contract specifications and requirements shall remain in effect. However the DEPARTMENT will make subsequent Contract payments directly to the Surety for work performed under the terms of the Contract. The CONTRACTOR forfeits any right to claim for the same work or any part thereof and is not entitled to receive any further balance of the amount to be paid under the Contract.
- 14.2.6 If the Contract is terminated for default, the CONTRACTOR and the Surety shall be jointly and severally liable for damages for delay as provided by paragraph 11.8, and for the excess cost of completion, and all costs and expenses incurred by the DEPARTMENT in completing the Work or arranging for completion of the Work, including but not limited to costs of assessing the Work to be done, costs associated with advertising, soliciting or negotiating for bids or proposals for completion, and other re-procurement costs. Following termination the CONTRACTOR shall not be entitled to receive any further balance of the amount to be paid under the Contract until the Work is fully finished and accepted, at which time if the unpaid balance exceeds the amount due the DEPARTMENT and any amounts due to persons for whose benefit the DEPARTMENT has withheld funds, such excess shall be paid by the DEPARTMENT to the CONTRACTOR or the Surety, as appropriate. If the damages, costs, and expenses due the DEPARTMENT exceed the unpaid balance, the CONTRACTOR and his Surety shall pay the difference.
- 14.2.7 If, after notice of termination of the CONTRACTOR's right to proceed under the provisions of this clause, it is determined for any reason that the CONTRACTOR was not in default under the provisions of this clause, or that the delay was excusable under the provisions of this clause, or that termination was wrongful, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be determined in accordance with the clause providing for convenience termination.

14.3 Rights or Remedies

Where the CONTRACTOR's services have been so terminated by the DEPARTMENT, the termination will not affect any rights or remedies of the DEPARTMENT against the CONTRACTOR then existing or which may thereafter accrue. Any retention or payment of moneys due the CONTRACTOR by the DEPARTMENT will not release the CONTRACTOR from liability.

14.4 Convenience Termination

14.4.1 The performance of the Work may be terminated by the DEPARTMENT in accordance with this section in whole or in part, whenever, for any reason the Contracting Officer shall determine that such termination is in the best interest of the DEPARTMENT. Any such termination shall be effected by delivery to the CONTRACTOR of a Notice of Termination, specifying termination is for the convenience of the DEPARTMENT the extent to which performance of Work is terminated, and the date upon which such

00700-58

termination becomes effective.

- 14.4.2 Immediately upon receipt of a Notice of Termination and except as otherwise directed by the Contracting Officer, the CONTRACTOR shall:
 - a. Stop Work on the date and to the extent specified in the Notice of Termination;
 - b. Place no further orders or subcontracts for materials, services, or facilities except as may be necessary for completion of such portion of the Work as is not terminated;
 - c. Terminate all orders and subcontracts to the extent that they relate to the performance of Work terminated by the Notice of Termination;
 - d. With the written Approval of the Contracting Officer, to the extent he may require, settle all outstanding liabilities and all claims arising out of such termination of orders and subcontracts, the cost of which would be reimbursable, in whole, or in part, in accordance with the provisions of the Contract;
 - e. Submit to the Contracting Officer a list, certified as to quantity and quality, of any or all items of termination inventory exclusive of items the disposition of which had been directed or authorized by the Contracting Officer;
 - f. Transfer to the Contracting Officer the completed or partially completed record drawings, Shop Drawings, information, and other property which, if the Contract had been completed, would be required to be furnished to the DEPARTMENT;
 - g. Take such action as may be necessary, or as the Contracting Officer may direct, for the protection and preservation of the property related to the Contract which is in the possession of the CONTRACTOR and in which the DEPARTMENT has or may acquire any interest.

The CONTRACTOR shall proceed immediately with the performance of the above obligations.

- 14.4.3 When the DEPARTMENT orders termination of the Work effective on a certain date, all Work in place as of that date will be paid for in accordance with Article 13 of the Contract. Materials required for completion and on hand but not incorporated in the Work will be paid for at invoice cost plus fifteen (15)percent with materials becoming the property of the DEPARTMENT or the CONTRACTOR may retain title to the materials and be paid an agreed upon lump sum. Materials on order shall be cancelled, and the DEPARTMENT shall pay reasonable factory cancellation charges with the option of taking delivery of the materials in lieu of payment of cancellation charges. The CONTRACTOR shall be paid ten (10) percent of the cost, freight not included, of materials cancelled, and direct expenses only for CONTRACTOR chartered freight transport which cannot be cancelled without charges, to the extent that the CONTRACTOR can establish them. The extra costs due to cancellation of bonds and insurance and that part of job start-up and phase-out costs not amortized by the amount of Work accomplished shall be paid by the DEPARTMENT. Charges for loss of profit or consequential damages shall not be recoverable except as provided above.
 - a. The following costs are not payable under a termination settlement agreement or Contracting Officer's determination of the termination claim:
 - 1. Loss of anticipated profits or consequential or compensatory damages
 - 2. Unabsorbed home office overhead (also termed "General & Administrative Expense") related to ongoing business operations
 - 3. Bidding and project investigative costs
 - 4. Direct costs of repairing equipment to render it operable for use on the terminated work
- 14.4.4 The termination claim shall be submitted promptly, but in no event later than 90 days from the effective date of termination, unless extensions in writing are granted by the Contracting Officer upon written request of the CONTRACTOR made within the 90 day period. Upon failure of the CONTRACTOR to submit his termination claim within the time allowed, the Contracting Officer may determine, on the basis of information available to him, the amount, if any, due to the CONTRACTOR by reason of the

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)
termination and shall thereupon pay to the CONTRACTOR the amount so determined.

- 14.4.5 The CONTRACTOR and the Contracting Officer may agree upon whole or any part of the amount or amounts to be paid to the CONTRACTOR by reason of the total or partial termination of Work pursuant to this section. The Contract shall be amended accordingly, and the CONTRACTOR shall be paid the agreed amount.
- 14.4.6 In the event of the failure of the CONTRACTOR and the Contracting Officer to agree in whole or in part, as provided heretofore, as to the amounts with respect to costs to be paid to the CONTRACTOR in connection with the termination of the Work the Contracting Officer shall determine, on the basis of information available to him, the amount, if any, due to the CONTRACTOR by reason of the termination and shall pay to the CONTRACTOR the amount determined as follows:
 - All costs and expenses reimbursable in accordance with the Contract not previously paid to the CONTRACTOR for the performance of the Work prior to the effective date of the Notice of Termination;
 - b. So far as not included under "a" above, the cost of settling and paying claims arising out of the termination of the Work under subcontracts or orders which are properly chargeable to the terminated portions of the Contract;
 - c. So far as practicable, claims by the CONTRACTOR for idled or stand-by equipment shall be made as follows: Equipment claims will be reimbursed as follows:
 - 1. CONTRACTOR-owned equipment usage, based on the CONTRACTOR'S ownership and operating costs for each piece of equipment as determined from the CONTRACTOR'S accounting records. Under no circumstance, may the CONTRACTOR base equipment claims on published rental rates.
 - 2. Idle or stand-by time for CONTRACTOR-owned equipment, based on the CONTRACTOR'S internal ownership and depreciation costs. Idle or stand-by equipment time is limited to the actual period of time equipment is idle or on stand-by as a direct result of the termination, not to exceed 30 days. Operating expenses will not be included for payment of idle or stand-by equipment time.
 - 3. Rented equipment, based on reasonable, actual rental costs. Equipment leased under "capital leases" as defined in Financial Accounting Standard No. 13 will be considered CONTRACTOR-owned equipment. Equipment leased from an affiliate, division, subsidiary or other organization under common control with the CONTRACTOR will be considered CONTRACTOR-owned equipment, unless the lessor has an established record of leasing to unaffiliated lessees at competitive rates consistent with the rates the CONTRACTOR has agreed to pay and no more than forty (40) percent of the lessor's leasing business, measured in dollars, is with organizations affiliated with the lessor.
- 14.4.7 The CONTRACTOR shall have the right of appeal under the DEPARTMENT's claim procedures, as defined in Article 15, for any determination made by the Contracting Officer, except if the CONTRACTOR has failed to submit its claim within the time provided and has failed to request extension of such time, CONTRACTOR shall have no such right of appeal. In arriving at the amount due the CONTRACTOR under this section, there shall be deducted:
 - a. All previous payments made to the CONTRACTOR for the performance of Work under the Contract prior to termination;
 - b. Any claim for which the DEPARTMENT may have against the CONTRACTOR;
 - c. The agreed price for, or the proceeds of sale of, any materials, supplies, or other things acquired by the CONTRACTOR or sold pursuant to the provisions of this section and not otherwise recovered by or credited to the DEPARTMENT; and,
 - d. All progress payments made to the CONTRACTOR under the provisions of this section.

00700-60

- 14.4.8 Where the Work has been terminated by the DEPARTMENT said termination shall not affect or terminate any of the rights of the DEPARTMENT against the CONTRACTOR or its Surety then existing or which may thereafter accrue because of such default. Any retention or payment of monies by the DEPARTMENT due to the CONTRACTOR under the terms of the Contract shall not release the CONTRACTOR or its Surety from liability.
- 14.4.9 The CONTRACTOR'S termination claim may not include claims that pre dated the notice for termination for convenience. Those claims shall be prosecuted by the CONTRACTOR under Article 15.
- 14.4.10 The CONTRACTOR'S termination claim may not exceed the total dollar value of the contract as awarded plus agreed upon change orders less the amounts that have been paid for work completed.
 - a. Unless otherwise provided for in the Contract Documents, or by applicable statute, the CONTRACTOR, from the effective date of termination and for a period of 3 years after final settlement under this Contract, shall preserve and make available to the DEPARTMENT at all reasonable times at the office of the CONTRACTOR, all its books, records, documents, and other evidence bearing on the cost and expenses of the CONTRACTOR under his Contract and relating to the Work terminated hereunder.
 - b. <u>Definitions</u>. In this paragraph 14.4, the term "cost" and the term "expense" mean a monetary amount in U.S. Dollars actually incurred by the CONTRACTOR, actually reflected in its contemporaneously maintained accounting or other financial records and supported by original source documentation.

<u>Cost Principles</u>. The DEPARTMENT may use the federal cost principles at 48 CFR §§ 31.201-1 to 31.205-52 (or succeeding cost principles for fixed price contracts) as guidelines in determining allowable costs under this Subsection to the extent they are applicable to construction contracts and consistent with the specifications of this Contract. The provisions of this contract control where they are more restrictive than, or inconsistent with, these federal cost principles.

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

ARTICLE 15 - CLAIMS FOR ADJUSTMENT AND DISPUTES

15.1 Notification

- 15.1.1 The CONTRACTOR shall notify the DEPARTMENT in writing as soon as the CONTRACTOR becomes aware of any act or occurrence which may form the basis of a claim for additional compensation or an extension of Contract Time or of any dispute regarding a question of fact or interpretation of the Contract. The DEPARTMENT has no obligation to investigate any fact or occurrence that might form the basis of a claim or to provide any additional compensation or extension of Contract Time unless the CONTRACTOR has notified the DEPARTMENT in writing in a timely manner of all facts the CONTRACTOR believes form the basis for the claim.
- 15.1.2 If the CONTRACTOR believes that he is entitled to an extension of Contract Time, then the CONTRACTOR must state the contract section on which he bases his extension request, provide the DEPARTMENT with sufficient information to demonstrate that the CONTRACTOR has suffered excusable delay, and show the specific amount of time to which the CONTRACTOR is entitled. The DEPARTMENT will not grant an extension of Contract Time if the CONTRACTOR does not timely submit revised schedules under Section 01310 and Article 6.8.
- 15.1.3 If the matter is not resolved by agreement within 7 days, the CONTRACTOR shall submit an Intent to Claim, in writing, to the DEPARTMENT within the next 14 days.
- 15.1.4 If the CONTRACTOR believes additional compensation or time is warranted, then he must immediately begin keeping complete, accurate, and specific daily records concerning every detail of the potential claim including actual costs incurred. The CONTRACTOR shall provide the DEPARTMENT access to any such records and furnish the DEPARTMENT copies, if requested. Equipment costs must be based on the CONTRACTOR's internal rates for ownership, depreciation, and operating expenses and not on published rental rates.
- 15.1.5 If the claim or dispute is not resolved by the DEPARTMENT, then the CONTRACTOR shall submit a written Claim to the Contracting Officer within 90 days after the CONTRACTOR becomes aware of the basis of the claim or should have known the basis of the claim, whichever is earlier. The Contracting Officer will issue written acknowledge of the receipt of the Claim.
- 15.1.6 The CONTRACTOR waives any right to claim if the DEPARTMENT was not notified properly or afforded the opportunity to inspect conditions or monitor actual costs or if the Claim is not filed on the date required.

15.2 Presenting the Claim

- 15.2.1 The Claim must include all of the following:
 - a. The act, event, or condition the claim is based on
 - b. The Contract provisions which apply to the claim and provide relief
 - c. The item or items of Contract work affected and how they are affected
 - d. The specific relief requested, including Contract Time if applicable, and the basis upon which it was calculated
 - e. A statement certifying that the claim is made in good faith, that the supporting cost and pricing data are accurate and complete to the best of the CONTRACTOR'S knowledge and belief, and that the amount requested accurately reflects the Contract adjustment which the CONTRACTOR believes is due.

15.3 Claim Validity, Additional Information, and DEPARTMENT's Action

- 15.3.1 The Claim, in order to be valid, must not only show that the CONTRACTOR suffered damages or delay but that it was caused by the act, event, or condition complained of and that the Contract provides entitlement to relief for such act, event, or condition.
- 15.3.2 The DEPARTMENT can make written request to the CONTRACTOR at any time for additional information relative to the Claim. The CONTRACTOR shall provide the DEPARTMENT the additional information within 30 days of receipt of such a request. Failure to furnish the additional information may

00700-62

be regarded as a waiver of the Claim.

15.4 Contracting Officer's Decision

The CONTRACTOR will be furnished the Contracting Officer's Decision within 90 days, unless the Contracting Officer requests additional information or gives the CONTRACTOR notice that the time for issuing a decision is being extended for a specified period under AS 36.30.620. The Contracting Officer's decision is final and conclusive unless, within 14 days of receipt of the decision, the CONTRACTOR delivers a Notice of Appeal to the Appeals Officer. Procedures for appeals are covered under AS 36.30.625 and AS 36.30.630.

15.5 Fraud and Misrepresentation in Making Claims

Criminal and Civil penalties authorized under AS 36.30.687 (including, but not limited to, forfeiture of all claimed amounts) may be imposed on the CONTRACTOR if the CONTRACTOR makes or uses a misrepresentation in support of a claim or defraud or attempt to defraud the DEPARTMENT at any stage of prosecuting a claim under this Contract.

END OF SECTION

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

INDEX TO GENERAL CONDITIONS

Α	Article or Paragraph Number
Acceptance of Insurance	
Access to the Work	
Actual Damages	
Addenda-definition of	Article 1
Advertisement - definition of	Article 1
Alaska Agricultural/Wood Products	
Alaska Bidder - definition of	
Alaska Preferences	
Alaska Products	
Application for Payment-definition of	Article 1
Application for Payment, Final	
Application for Progress Payment	
Application for Progress Payment-review of	
Approved or Approval -definition of	Article 1
Authorized Minor Variations in Work	
Availability of Lands	4.1
Award-defined	Article 1

B

Before Starting Construction	11.2
Bid Bonds-definition of	Article 1
Bidder-definition of	Article 1
Bonds and insurances-in general	Article 5
Bonds, Delivery of	5.1
Bonds, Performance and Other	5.2
Builder's Risk Insurance ("ALL RISK")	5.4.3.d

С

Cash Allowances		10.8
Change Order-definition of		Article 1
Change Orders-to be executed		9.4
Changes in the Work		9.1
Claims, Waiver of-on Final Payment		13.17
Clarifications and Interpretations		2.2.1.d; 3.6
Cleaning		
Completion, Final		13.14
Completion, Substantial		13.10
Conferences, Preconstruction		6.6.1
Conflict, Error, Discrepancy-CONTRACTOR to F	Report	3.5
Construction Machinery, Equipment, etc		6.4
	00700-64	Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

Continuing the Work	6.23
Contract-definition of	
Contract Documents-amending and Supplementing	
Contract Documents- definition of	
Contract Documents-Intent.	
Contract Documents-Reuse of	
GMP Contract Price, Change of	
GMP Contract Price-definition of	
Contracting Officer's Authorities and Limitations	
Contracting Officer- definition of	
Contracting Officer's Evaluations	
Contract Time, Change of	
Contract Time, Commencement of	· · · ·
Contract Time, Commencement of	
CONTRACTOR-definition of	
CONTRACTOR May Stop Work or Terminate	
CONTRACTOR'S Continuing Obligation	
CONTRACTOR'S Duty to Report Discrepancy in Documents	
CONTRACTOR'S Fee-Cost Plus	
CONTRACTOR'S Liability Insurance	
CONTRACTOR'S Records	
CONTRACTOR'S Responsibilities-in general	
CONTRACTOR'S Warranty to Title	
CONTRACTOR's-other	
Contractual Liability Insurance	
Coordination	,
Copies of Contract Documents	
Correction or Removal of Defective Work	12.6
Correction Period, One Year	12.7
Correction, Removal or Acceptance of Defective Work-in general	12.6; 12.8
Cost and Pricing Data	10.3.4
Cost-net decrease	10.6.2.c; 10.6.d
Cost of Work	10.5
Costs, Supplemental	10.5.1.f
D	
Day, Calendar-definition of	.Article 1

Article 1
Article 1
12.8
12.6; 12.9
12.6; 12.8
12.4.2; 12.5

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

DefinitionsArticle 1
Delivery of Bonds5.1
DEPARTMENT-definition ofArticle 1
DEPARTMENT May Correct Defective Work12.9
DEPARTMENT May Stop Work12.5
DEPARTMENT May Suspend Work14.1
DEPARTMENT's Consultant-definition ofArticle 1
DEPARTMENT'S Liability Insurance
DEPARTMENT'S Responsibilities-in general2.1
DEPARTMENT'S Separate Representative at site2.1.1; 2.1.3
Determination for Unit Prices
Differing Site Conditions
Directive-definition ofArticle 1
Directive-to be executed
Directive-required performance
Disadvantaged and Women Business Enterprise10.11
Disputes, Decisions by Contracting Officer
Documents, Copies of Contract
Documents, Record
Documents, Reuse
Drawings-definition ofArticle 1

E

Easements	4.1
Effective date of Contract-definition of	Article 1
Emergencies	6.19
Equipment, Labor, Materials and	6.3; 6.4; 6.5
Equivalent Materials and Equipment	6.9
Explorations of physical conditions	4.3
Explosives	6.25

F

Fee, CONTRACTOR'S-Costs Plus	
Final Acceptance	
Final Acceptance- definition of	Article 1
Final Completion and Application for Payment	13.13
Final Completion- definition of	Article 1
Final Completion- definition of Final Inspection	

00700-66

G

General Requirements-definition of	Article 1
Giving Notice	
	11.2; 11.5; 12.1; 12.3.1; 12.3.4; 12.9; 13.10;
	15.1; 15.5
Guarantee of Work-by CONTRACTOR	12.1
_	

I

Indemnification	7.1; 7.3; 5.5
Inspection, Final	13.12
Inspection, Tests and	12.3
Install-definition of	Article 1
Insurance, Bonds and- in general	Article 5
Insurance, Certification of	5.4.2
Insurance, Completed Operations	5.4.3.b
Insurance, CONTRACTOR'S Liability	5.4.3.b
Insurance, Contractual Liability	5.4.3.b
Insurance, Owner's Liability	5.4.1
Insurance, Property Damage	5.4.3.b
Insurance, Waiver of Subrogation Rights	5.4.1
Intent of Contract Documents	3.4
Interpretations and Clarifications	2.2.1.3; 3.6
Interim Work Authorization- definition of	Article 1
Interim Work Authorization	9.10
Investigations of physical conditions	4.3
Invitation for Bids- definition of	Article 1

L

Labor, Materials and Equipment	6.3; 6.4; 6.5
Laws and Regulations- general	Article 7
Liability Insurance- CONTRACTOR'S	5.4.1
Liability Insurance-Owner's	5.4.1
Liens, Resulting Judgments	14.2.1.g
Liquidated Damages	
Μ	

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

Ν

Notice, Giving of (See Giving Notice)	
Notice of Final Acceptance	13.15
Notice of Intent to Award-definition of	Article 1
Notice to Proceed-definition of	Article 1
Notice to Proceed-giving of	11.1; 11.2; 11.3

0

"Or-Equal" Item	6.9
Other contractors	Article 8
Other work	8.1.1
Overtime Work-authorization of	7.15; 10.4.1.b.2
Owner-definition of (See DEPARTMENT)	Article 1

Р

	00700-68	Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96 Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08
Project, Starting the		11.2
Project Representation- provision for		2.1.1
Project Manager-definition of		Article 1
Project-definition of		Article 1
Progress schedule		6.6; 6.7; 6.8
Progress Payment-retainage		13.8
Progress Payment, Application for		13.1
Price, Contract-definition of		Article 1
Price, Change of Contract		10.1
Premises, Use of		6.14
Preconstruction Conference		6.6.1
Physical Conditions- Underground Utilities		4.4
Physical Conditions-report of differing		4.6; 9.9
Physical Conditions-price and time adjustments		9.9
Physical Conditions-possible document change		9.9
Physical Conditions- explorations and reports		4.3
Physical Conditions- existing structures		4.3
Physical Conditions- Contracting officer's review		9.9
Physical Conditions-in general		Article 4
Permits		7.2
Performance and other Bonds		5.2
Payments of CONTRACTOR- withholding		13.7
Payments to CONTRACTOR-in general		Article 13
Payment, Recommendation of		
Patent Fees and Royalties		
Partial Utilization- Property Insurance		
Partial Utilization (See Substantial Completion)- de	efinition of	Article 1

Property Insurance	5.4.3
Property Insurance- Partial Utilization	13.10
Protection, Safety and	6.17
Punch list	13.10

R

Recommendation of Progress Payment	.13.4
Record Documents	.6.16
Reference Points	.4.7
Regulations, Laws and	Article 7.
Rejecting Defective Work	.12.4.2; 12.5
Related Work at Site	.3.4.1
Removal or Correction of Defective Work	.12.6; 12.9
Responsibilities, CONTRACTOR'S-in general	Article 6
Retainage	.13.8
Reuse of Documents	.3.7
Review of Shop Drawings and Samples	.6.21
Right of Ways	.4.1
Royalties, Patent Fees and	.7.3

S

Safety and Protection	.6.17
Samples	.6.20; 6.21
Schedule of Progress	.6.6; 6.7; 6.8
Schedule of Shop Drawing submissions	.6.6; 6.7; 6.8; 6.20.1
Schedule of Values- definition	Article1
Schedule of Values	.6.6; 6.7; 6.8
Schedules, Finalizing	.6.7
Shop Drawings and Samples	.6.20; 6.21
Shop Drawings-definition of	Article 1
Shop Drawings, use to approve substitutions	.6.9.4; 6.20.4
Site, Visits to-by Contracting Officer	.2.4
Specifications-definition of	Article 1
Starting Construction, Before	.6.6.1
Starting the Project	.11.2
Stopping Work-by CONTRACTOR	.3.5.1; 4.6; 14.4.1
Stopping Work-by Owner	.12.5; 14.1
Subcontractor-definition of	Article 1
Subcontractors-in general	.6.13
Subcontracts-required provisions	.6.13.4; 6.13.6
Substantial Completion- certification of	.13.10
Substantial Completion- definition of	Article 1
Substitute or "Or-Equal" Items	.6.9
Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) 00700-69 Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)	

Subsurface ConditionsArticle 4,	9.9
Supplemental Agreement- definition ofArticle 1	
Supplemental Agreement- general use9.6	
Supplemental costs	
Supplementary Conditions- definition ofArticle 1	
Supplementary Conditions- principal references to	5.4; 11.8
Supplier-definition ofArticle 1	
Supplier-principal references2.1.3; 3.7	; 6.9; 6.12; 6.13.5; 6.20; 6.21
Surety-consent to payment	
Surety-Consultant has no duty to2.13	
Surety-notice to	
Surety-qualification of	
Surety Replacement5.3	
Suspending Work, by Owner14.1	
Suspension of Work and Termination-in generalArticle 14	ł
Superintendent-CONTRACTOR's	
Supervision and Superintendence	

Т

Taxes-Payment by CONTRACTOR	7.2
Termination-by Owner	14.4.1
Termination, Suspension of Work and-in general	Article 14
Tests and Inspections	12.3
Time, Change of Contract	9.4; 11.4
Time, Computations of	11.3
Time, Contract-definition of	Article 1

U

-	
Uncovering Work	12.4
Underground Utilities- general	4.4
Underground Utilities-not shown or indicated	4.6
Underground Utilities- protection of	4.4.2.d
Underground Utilities- shown or indicated	4.4.1
Unit Price Work-definition of	Article 1
Unit Price Work-general	10.9
Unit Prices	10.9.1
Unit Prices, Determination for	10.10
Use of Promises	6.14
Utility Owner's Notification	4.4.2.c; 4.4.3; 4.4.4; 4.5; 4.6
Utility, Damaged	4.5

00700-70

V

Values, Schedule of	6.6; 6.7; 6.8
Variations in Work- Authorized	9.2
Visits to Site-by Contracting Officer	2.4
XX7	

W

Waiver of Claims-on Final Payment	13.17
Waiver of Rights by insured parties	13.18
Warranty and Guarantee-by CONTRACTOR	12.1
Warranty of Title, CONTRACTOR'S	13.6
Work, Access to	8.2; 13.11; 12.2
Work-by others-general	Article 8
Work Continuing During Disputes	6.23
Work, Cost of	10.5
Work-definition of	Article 1
Work, Neglected by CONTRACTOR	14.2.1.c
Work, Stopping by CONTRACTOR	3.5.1; 4.6
Work, Stopping by Owner	12.5; 14.1

Revised: December 1987 (C)(4/96) Modified for CM/GC Contract (9/08)

18.3. RESERVED (General Conditions Modified for Design – Build Contracts)

	Project Name
	Project Number
NUMBERS	FILE NAME
GREEN FILE	CLOSE OUT PAPERWORK
000	FISCAL
001	PDA'S – RSA'S/REVISIONS
002	ENCUMBRANCE MEMO'S & RECORD
003	BUDGET & COST CONTROL
004	BOND SALE FILE
005	FISCAL CORRESPONDENCE MISC. INVOICES/OTHER THAN CONSULTANT
006	MISC. INVOICES/OTHER THAN CONSULTANT
010	PROGRAM
011	CIP PACKAGE & PROGRAM
013	PROGRAM CHANGES (Document A/E Scope Changes
015	LAND/LEASE
020	CONSULTANT AGREEMENT FILE
021	AE SELECTION
	A. ASPS
	B. RFP
	C. Advertisements
	D. Proposals
	E. Committee Evaluation Report
022	PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
	A. Notice of Intent to Negotiate
	B. Audit
	C. RON
	D. Notice Of Intent to Award
	E. PSA
	F. Insurance Certificates G. Amendments
	G. Amendments
023	NTP'S & INVOICES
024	RELATED CORRESPONDENCE PSA WAIVERS
025	EVALUATIONS
026	CONSULTANT CLAIMS
030	DESIGN ADMINISTRATION
031	PROJECT CORRESPONDENCE
	A. Correspondence – In
	B. Correspondence – Out
	C. Memos – In

SWPF FILING SYSTEM (Legal File)

		D. Memos – Out
		E. Transmittals
	032	F. Directory PROJECT STATUS REPORTS
	032	PROJECT STATUS REPORTS PROJECT SCHEDULE
	033	MEETINGS
	035	PUBLIC RELATIONS
	036	CONSULTANT SUBMITTALS
		A. Program/Concepts
		B. Schematic
		C. Design Development
		D. Construction Document
		E. Cost Estimates
	0.27	F. Special Studies/Investigations/Reports
	037	ARTWORK
	038	UTILITIES
0.40	039	IN – HOUSE SPECIFICATIONS
040	0.41	DESIGN REVIEW/REGULATORY/APPROVALS
	041	DOT & PF TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMENTS
	042	CLIENT AGENCY COMMENTS
0.50	043	REGULATORY REVIEWS & APPROVALS/PERMITS
050	0.51	BID/AWARD
	051	BIDDING DOCUMENT ORIGINALS
0.00	052	CONFORMED SPECIFICATIONS
060	061	CONSTRUCTION CLOSEOUT CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION
	061	
		A. Schedules
		B. Subcontractors
		C. Certified Payroll D. Quality Assurance Reviews/Closeout Documents
		E. Insurance's
		F. Accident Reports/OSHA Reports
		G. Inspections
		H. General Correspondence – IN, OUT or BOTH
		I. Field Questions/RFI's
		J. Request For Proposal (RFP's)
		K. Change Orders
		L. Directives/Interim Work Authorizations (IWA)
		M. Pay Estimates/Schedule of Values
		N. Daily Reports (Logs)
		O. Monthly Status Reports
		P. Claims/Disputes
		Q. Meetings
		R. Photographs Transmittal
		S. Substantial & Final Inspection/Certificate of
		S. Substantial & Final Inspection/Certificate of Occupancy
		T. Badging
		U. Permits
		o, i crimos
		2 of 3

SWPF FILING SYSTEM (Legal File)

V. Commissioning

062	TOPICA	TOPICAL BY CSI DIVISION (April 2012 Master Format)	
	01 00 00	General Requirements	
	02 00 00	Existing Conditions	
	03 00 00	Concrete	
	04 00 00	Masonry	
	05 00 00	Metals	
	06 00 00	Wood, Plastics, and Composites	
	07 00 00	Thermal and Moisture Protection	
	08 00 00	Openings	
	09 00 00	Finishes	
	10 00 00	Specialties	
	11 00 00	Equipment	
	12 00 00	Furnishings	
	13 00 00	Special Construction	
	10 00 00	Conveying Equipment	
	21 00 00	Fire Suppression	
	22 00 00	Plumbing	
	23 00 00	Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning (HVAC)	
	25 00 00	Integrated Automation	
	26 00 00	Electrical	
	27 00 00	Communications	
	28 00 00	Electronic Safety and Security	
		Earthwork	
	32 00 00	Exterior Improvements	
	33 00 00	Utilities	
	34 00 00	Transportation	
	35 00 00	Waterway and Marine Construction	
	40 00 00	Process Integration	
	40 00 00	Material Processing and Handling Equipment	
	42 00 00	Process Heating, Cooling, and Drying Equipment	
	43 00 00	Process Gas and Liquid Handling, Purification, and	
	45 00 00	Storage Equipment	
	44 00 00	Pollution and Waste Control Equipment	
	45 00 00	Industry-Specific Manufacturing Equipment	
	46 00 00	Water and Wastewater Equipment	
	48 00 00	Electrical Power Generation	
	40 00 00	Electrical Fower Generation	
070	OCCUPANCY		
071	O & M MANUA	LS	
072	WARRANTIES		
073	CORRECTIVE WORK		
074	SERVICE CONTRACTS		
075	TRAINING		
076	RECORD DRAWINGS		
0.00			
2 - 62			
3 of 3			

MEMORANDUM

State of Alaska

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities Office of the Commissioner

TELEPHONE NO: 465-3901 TEXT TELEPHONE: 465-3652 FAX NUMBER: 586-8365

DATE: August 3, 2007

 \square

Deputy Commissioner

TO: John MacKinnon

FROM: Leo von Scheben, P.E., L.S., M.B.A. Commissioner SUBJECT: Statewide Facilities

Governor Palin's transition team recommended that state buildings be consolidated as much as possible and their status elevated to one of a division, unit, or entity. This proposal reflects what some other states have found to be the most effective way of managing building and facility assets. It is critical that this department elevate facilities planning, design and construction so that the issues of aging, deteriorating state buildings can be addressed.

I am directing that the Facilities Construction Section be transferred from Central Region to the Commissioner's Office and that the Engineer IV in charge of that organization report to you. This section will then take on the responsibility of department-wide oversight of all building design and construction related activities and act as advocates for department-wide facility needs. I encourage you to review the staffing structure and make a determination on whether changes will be needed. I expect that the new Statewide Facilities Section will continue to receive support from Central Region in such areas as contracts, quality assurance, etc.

This reorganization shall be effective September 1, 2007.

cc: Joel St. Aubin, Engineer/Architect IV, Facilities Construction Section Gordon Keith, Central Regional Director Malcolm Menzies, Southeast Regional Director Steve Titus, Northern Regional Director Nancy Slagle, Director, Division of Administrative Services Frank Richards, P.E., Statewide M&O Engineer

08-09-07A10:13 RCVD

"Providing for the movement of people and goods and the delivery of state services."

(This page intentionally left blank)

(This page intentionally left blank)